Table of Contents



Table of Contents

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

%] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 201
or
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For The Transition Period From To

Commission File Number 1-5097

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its cagrt

Wisconsin 39-038001C
(State of Incorporation) (I.LR.S. Employer
Identification No.)
5757 North Green Bay Avenue
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53209
(Address of principal executive office (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code:
(414) 524-1200

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(b) tfe Exchange Act:

Title of Each Clas: Name of Each Exchange on Which Register:
Common Stock New York Stock Exchange
Corporate Unit: New York Stock Exchang

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(g) tife Exchange Act:
None

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantusei-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Ruleot@e Securities
Act. Yes M No O

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Exchange
Act. Yes O No &

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant €l filed all reports required to be filed by Secti® or 15(d) of the
Exchange Act during the preceding 12 months (ostmh shorter period that the registrant was reduiv file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementstfe past 90 days. Y= No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ldsmtted electronically and posted on its corpo¥&eb site, if any, every
Interactive Data File required to be submitted posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T duttire preceding 12 months
(or for such shorter period that the registrant veagiired to submit and post such files). \Yds No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquidlets pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K i$ contained herein, and
will not be contained, to the best of registrarkhowledge, in definitive proxy or information &ments incorporated by refere
in Part Ill of this Form 10-K or any amendmenthgstForm 10-K. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlezge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, noaaccelerated filer. See t
definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “acceltzd filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rul&b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated fileM Accelerated filer Non-acceleratefiler O Smaller reporting compan
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exgje Act). YesOd
No &

As of March 31, 2011, the aggregate market valud@fegistrant’'s Common Stock held by non-affdgbf the registrant
was approximately $28.2 billion based on the clpsiales price as reported on the New York Stoclh&mge. As of October 31,
2011, 680,381,571 shares of the registrant’'s Com&took, par value $0.0° 1sper share, were outstanding.



DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the definitive Proxy Statement to biveéeed to shareholders in connection with the Aalrideeting of
Shareholders to be held on January 25, 2012 aoeporated by reference into Part Ill.




JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.
Index to Annual Report on Form 10-K
Year Ended September 30, 2011

Page
CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS FOR FORWARK-LOOKING INFORMATION 3
PART I.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS 3
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS 8
ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENT 13
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 14
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 17
ITEM 4. (REMOVED AND RESERVED 18
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRAN 18
PART I.

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELAED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIE 20

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 23

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION: 24

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 50

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 51

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE ~ 10F

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURE 10&

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION 10€

PART IIl.

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORETGOVERNANCE 10€

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 10€

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL\WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 10€

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACIDNS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCI 107

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICE 107

PART IV.

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 10¢
SIGNATURES 10¢
INDEX TO EXHIBITS 11C

EX-10.H
EX-10.K
EX-10.L
EX-10.Q
EX-10.U
EX-10.V
EX-12
EX-21
EX-23
EX-31.1
EX-31.2
EX-32

EX-101 INSTANCE DOCUMENT

EX-101 SCHEMA DOCUMENT

EX-101 CALCULATION LINKBASE DOCUMENT
EX-101 LABELS LINKBASE DOCUMENT

EX-101 PRESENTATION LINKBASE DOCUMEN"
EX-101 DEFINITION LINKBASE DOCUMENT






Table of Contents

CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS FOR FORWARD -LOOKING INFORMATION

Unless otherwise indicated, references to “Johizamrols,” the “Company,” “we,
to Johnson Controls, Inc. and its consolidatedididrges.

our” and “us” irhis Annual Report on Form 10-K refer

Certain statements in this report, other than guritorical information, including estimates, pdiions, statements relating to our business
plans, objectives and expected operating resultsflze assumptions upon which those statementsaaesl, are “forward-looking statements”
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litiga Reform Act of 1995, Section 27A of the SedastAct of 1933 and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These forward-loglstatements generally are identified by the wdtmklieve,” “project,” “expect,”
“anticipate,” “estimate,” “forecast,” “outlook,” fitend,” “strategy,” “plan,” “may,” “should,” “will; “would,” “will be,” “will continue,” “will
likely result,” or the negative thereof or variatfothereon or similar terminology generally intethtie identify forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements are based on currergaapons and assumptions that are subject to aistaincertainties which may cause
actual results to differ materially from the fonddboking statements. A detailed discussion ofgigkd uncertainties that could cause actual
results and events to differ materially from suciwiard-looking statements is included in the secéntitled “Risk Factors” (refer to Part |,
Item 1A, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K). Wedantake no obligation, and we disclaim any obligatito update or revise publicly any
forward-looking statements, whether as a resuttesf information, future events or otherwise.

PART |
ITEM 1 BUSINESS

General

Johnson Controls is a global diversified technolagy industrial leader serving customers in moaa tht60 countries. The Company creates
quality products, services and solutions to optar@nergy and operational efficiencies of buildirgad-acid automotive batteries and
advanced batteries for hybrid and electric vehj@esl interior systems for automobiles.

Johnson Controls was originally incorporated ingtate of Wisconsin in 1885 as Johnson Electrigi8eiCompany to manufacture, install
and service automatic temperature regulation sysfenbuildings. The Company was renamed to Joh@sorirols, Inc. in 1974. In 1978, we
acquired Globe-Union, Inc., a Wisconsin-based mactufer of automotive batteries for both the reptaent and original equipment markets.
We entered the automotive seating industry in 2988 the acquisition of Michigan-based Hoover Unsad, Inc. In 2005, the Company
acquired York International, a global supplier efling, ventilating, air-conditioning and refrigéoa equipment and services.

Our building efficiency business is a global madkeider in designing, producing, marketing andaifisg integrated heating, ventilating and
air conditioning (HVAC) systems, building managemgystems, controls, security and mechanical eqgeipinin addition, the building
efficiency business provides technical servicesygynmanagement consulting and operations of ergalkestate portfolios for the non-
residential buildings market. We also provide restithl air conditioning and heating systems andistidal refrigeration products.

Our automotive experience business is one of thédigdargest automotive suppliers, providing inative interior systems through our
design and engineering expertise. Our technolagitand into virtually every area of the interiocluding seating and overhead systems,
systems, floor consoles, instrument panels, coglgpitl integrated electronics. Customers include nfdbe world’s major automakers.

Our power solutions business is a leading globapker of lead-acid automotive batteries for vifty@very type of passenger car, light truck
and utility vehicle. We serve both automotive argiequipment manufacturers (OEMs) and the genetdtle battery aftermarket. We are
the leading supplier of batteries to power StaopStehicles, as well as lithium-ion battery teclugiés to power certain hybrid and electric
vehicles.

Financial Information About Business Segments

Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 280, “SegtriReporting,” establishes the standards for réppihformation about operating
segments in financial statements. In applying titeréa set forth in ASC 280, the Company has deieed that it has nine
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reportable segments for financial reporting purgo3ée Company’s nine reportable segments areqiegbe the context of its three primary
businesses: building efficiency, automotive expeéeand power solutions.

Effective October 1, 2010, the building efficienoysiness unit reorganized its management repostinigture to reflect its current business
activities. Historical information has been revisedeflect the new building efficiency reportakkegment structure.

Refer to Note 18, “Segment Information,” of theew®to consolidated financial statements for finalnoiformation about business segments.

For the purpose of the following discussion of @@mmpany’s businesses, the five building efficienggortable segments and the three
automotive experience reportable segments arergesstogether due to their similar customers aedstinilar nature of their products,
production processes and distribution channels.

Products/Systems and Services
Building efficiency

Building efficiency is a global leader in delivegiintegrated control systems, mechanical equipnsentjces and solutions designed to
improve the comfort, safety and energy efficientypan-residential buildings and residential projgsrivith operations in 56 countries.
Revenues come from facilities management, techeealices and the replacement and upgrade of HV#@rals and mechanical equipment
in the existing buildings market, where the Compsaigrge base of current customers leads to rdpesdhess, as well as with installing
controls and equipment during the constructionesf uildings. Customer relationships often spairebuilding lifecycles.

Building efficiency sells its control systems, manfcal equipment and services primarily throughGloenpany’s extensive global network of
sales and service offices. Some building controtsrmechanical systems are sold to distributorsrefanditioning, refrigeration and
commercial heating systems throughout the worlgporapimately 44% of building efficiency’s sales akerived from HVAC products and
installed control systems for construction andafittmarkets, of which 12% of its total sales agtated to new commercial construction.
Approximately 56% of its sales originate from ie\dce offerings. In fiscal 2011, building efficienaccounted for 37% of the Company’s
consolidated net sales.

The Company’s systems include Ydtkhillers, industrial refrigeration products, aimigiéers and other HYAC mechanical equipment that
provide heating and cooling in non-residential dinig)s. The Metasy8 control system monitors and integrates HVAC equipingth other
critical building systems to maximize comfort whikducing energy and operating costs. As the lagjebal supplier of HVAC technical
services, building efficiency staffs, optimizes argairs building systems made by the Company @ntbimpetitors. The Company offers a
wide range of solutions such as performance cainmigaonder which guaranteed energy savings are lngée customer to fund project costs
over a number of years. In addition, the globalkptace solutions segment provides full-time on-ejpperations staff and real estate and
energy consulting services to help customers, épemulti-national companies, reduce costs andrime the performance of their facility
portfolios. The Company’s on-site staff typicallgrforms tasks related to the comfort and religbdit the facility, and manages
subcontractors for functions such as foodservieaning, maintenance and landscaping. The Comganypeoduces air conditioning and
heating equipment for the residential market.

Automotive experience

Automotive experience designs and manufacturesdnteroducts and systems for passenger cars ghtitfiicks, including vans, pick-up
trucks and sport/crossover utility vehicles. Theibass produces automotive interior systems for ® &N operates approximately 230

wholly- and majority-owned manufacturing or assemiiants in 33 countries worldwide. Additionallipetbusiness has partially-owned

affiliates in Asia, Europe, North America and SoAtherica.

Automotive experience products and systems inchaoaieplete seating systems and components; coclgiigrsg, including instrument panels
and clusters, information displays and body coldrs] overhead systems, including headliners aectreinic convenience features; floor
consoles; and door systems. In fiscal 2011, autometxperience accounted for 49% of the Company'solidated net sales.

The business operates assembly plants that supplynative OEMs with complete seats on a “just-indiin-sequence” basis. Seats are
assembled to specific order and delivered on agpeechined schedule directly to an
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automotive assembly line. Certain of the businestisr automotive interior systems are also sugplie a “just-in-time/in-sequence” basis.
Foam, metal and plastic seating components, seatscseat mechanisms and other components aggeship these plants from the
business’s production facilities or outside suppglie

Power solutions

Power solutions services both automotive OEMs ardattery aftermarket by providing advanced batichnology, coupled with systems
engineering, marketing and service expertise. Tdma@any is the largest producer of lead-acid automditatteries in the world, producing
approximately 130 million lead-acid batteries artyua approximately 70 wholly- and majority-ownedanufacturing or assembly plants in
20 countries worldwide. Investments in new prodarad process technology have expanded product mgfeto absorbent glass mat

(AGM) technology that powers Start-Stop vehiclesywell as lithium-ion battery technology for cent&iybrid and electric vehicles.
Approximately 77% of automotive battery sales waittk in fiscal 2011 were to the automotive replaeatrmarket, with the remaining sales
to the OEM market.

Power solutions accounted for 14% of the Compafigtsl 2011 consolidated net sales. Batteries dastip battery containers are
manufactured at wholly- and majority-owned plamt&Niorth America, South America, Asia and Europe.

Competition
Building efficiency

The building efficiency business conducts certdiitsooperations through thousands of individuaitcacts that are either negotiated or
awarded on a competitive basis. Key factors iratlvard of contracts include system and service pedace, quality, price, design,
reputation, technology, application engineeringatalty and construction or project management etige2 Competitors for contracts in the
residential and non-residential marketplace inclond@y regional, national and international provigiésrger competitors include Honeywell
International, Inc.; Siemens Building Technologi@s,operating group of Siemens AG; Schneider EteS#; Carrier Corporation, a
subsidiary of United Technologies Corporation; Edmcorporated, a subsidiary of Ingersoll-Rand CanypLimited; Daikin Industries, Ltd.;
Lennox International, Inc.; Goodman Global, Inc;RE Inc.; and Jones Lang LaSalle, Inc. The servitasket, including global workplace
solutions, is highly fragmented. Sales of servaeslargely dependent upon numerous individualrestg with commercial businesses
worldwide. The loss of any individual contract wdulot have a material adverse effect on the Company

Automotive experience

The automotive experience business faces compefitbon other automotive suppliers and, with respedertain products, from the
automobile OEMs who produce or have the capatiitgroduce certain products the business supfltesautomotive supply industry
competes on the basis of technology, quality, béits of supply and price. Design, engineering gndduct planning are increasingly
important factors. Independent suppliers that megethe principal automotive experience competitoclude Lear Corporation, Faurecia SA
and Magna International Inc.

Power solutions

Power solutions is the principal supplier of bageito many of the largest merchants in the batiisrmarket, including Advance Auto Parts,
AutoZone, Robert Bosch GmbH, Costco, NAPA, O'RIIBK, Interstate Battery System of America, PepB@&ears, Roebuck & Co. and
Wal-Mart stores. Automotive batteries are sold tigtwout the world under private labels and undeQmpany’s brand names (Optifia
Varta®, LTH ® and Heliar®) to automotive replacement battery retailers asttidutors and to automobile manufacturers asimaig
equipment. The power solutions business competisaniumber of major domestic and international uficturers and distributors of lead-
acid batteries, as well as a large number of sma#igional competitors. The power solutions bussngrimarily competes in the battery
market with Exide Technologies, GS Yuasa Corponatitast Penn Manufacturing Company and Fiamm Grblg.North American,
European and Asian lead-acid battery markets af@yhcompetitive. The manufacturers in these marketnpete on price, quality, technical
innovation, service and warranty.
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Backlog

The Company’s backlog relating to the building@éncy business is applicable to its sales of systend services. At September 30, 2011,
the backlog was $5.1 billion, compared with $41fidsi as of September 30, 2010. The increase iklbgavas primarily due to market share
gains and conditions in all geographic marketshwite largest percentage increase in Asia. Thelbgdoes not include amounts associated
with contracts in the global workplace solutionsibess because such contracts are typically medti-gervice awards, nor does it include
unitary products within the other segment. The larlmount outstanding at any given time is noessarily indicative of the amount of
revenue to be earned in the upcoming fiscal year.

At September 30, 2011, the Company’s automotiveeepce backlog of net new incremental businesggaonsolidated and
unconsolidated subsidiaries to be executed witlemiext three fiscal years was approximately $dlidmy, $1.0 billion of which relates to
fiscal 2012. The backlog as of September 30, 2049 approximately $4.0 billion. The increase in bagkvas primarily due to higher
industry production volumes in North America, Eugagmd Asia, and the impact of recent acquisiti®hg. automotive backlog is generally
subject to a number of risks and uncertaintiesh siscrelated vehicle production volumes, the tindheelated production launches and
changes in customer development plans.

Raw Materials

Raw materials used by the businesses in connegttbrtheir operations, including lead, steel, uagth chemicals, copper, sulfuric acid and
polypropylene, were readily available during tharyand the Company expects such availability tdinaa. In fiscal 2012, the Company
expects increases in steel, copper, chemicalsesinl costs. Lead and other commodity costs arecéaqbéo be relatively stable.

Intellectual Property

Generally, the Company seeks statutory protectostrategic or financially important intellectyabperty developed in connection with its
business. Certain intellectual property, where appate, is protected by contracts, licenses, demtiality or other agreements.

The Company owns numerous U.S. and non-U.S. paimdstheir respective counterparts), the more mapéd of which cover those
technologies and inventions embodied in currentlpets, or which are used in the manufacture ofehpreducts. While the Company
believes patents are important to its businessatipas and in the aggregate constitute a valuasetano single patent, or group of patents, is
critical to the success of the business. The Comfaom time to time, grants licenses under iteptt and technology and receives licenses
under patents and technology of others.

The Company'’s trademarks, certain of which are ri@t® its business, are registered or otherwasglly protected in the U.S. and many
non-U.S. countries where products and serviceseClompany are sold. The Company, from time to,tlmeeomes involved in trademark
licensing transactions.

Most works of authorship produced for the Compaagh as computer programs, catalogs and salestliter carry appropriate notices
indicating the Company’s claim to copyright protestunder U.S. law and appropriate internationedties.

Environmental, Health and Safety Matters

Laws addressing the protection of the environmEntironmental Laws) and workers’ safety and he@lorker Safety Laws) govern the
Company’s ongoing global operations. They genegaibyide for civil and criminal penalties, as wadl injunctive and remedial relief, for
noncompliance or require remediation of sites wi@wmpany-related materials have been releasedhatenvironment.

The Company has expended substantial resourcealigldoth financial and managerial, to comply withvironmental Laws and Worker
Safety Laws and maintains procedures designedsterfand ensure compliance. Certain of the Comgamnysinesses are, or have been,
engaged in the handling or use of substances thptimmpact workplace health and safety or the emwirent. The Company is committed to
protecting its workers and the environment agahmstisks associated with these substances.

The Company'’s operations and facilities have baad,in the future may become, the subject of foronéformal enforcement actions or
proceedings for noncompliance with such laws ottierremediation of Company-related
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substances released into the environment. Suclemmagpically are resolved by negotiation with regory authorities that result in
commitments to compliance, abatement or remedigiograms and, in some cases, payment of penafis®rically, neither such
commitments nor such penalties have been matésieé Iltem 3, “Legal Proceedings,” of this reportdaliscussion of the Company’s
potential environmental liabilities.)

Environmental Capital Expenditures

The Company’s ongoing environmental compliance gnogoften results in capital expenditures. Envirental considerations are a part of
all significant capital expenditure decisions; hoee expenditures in fiscal 2011 related solelgrwironmental compliance were not
material. It is management’s opinion that the ant@fimny future capital expenditures related sotelgnvironmental compliance will not
have a material adverse effect on the Company&hiiral results or competitive position in any oeauy

Employees

As of September 30, 2011, the Company employedoappately 162,000 employees, of whom approxima®y000 were hourly and 65,0
were salaried.

Seasonal Factors

Certain of building efficiency’s sales are seas@salhe demand for residential air conditioningiganent generally increases in the summer
months. This seasonality is mitigated by the otiteducts and services provided by the buildingcifficy business that have no material
seasonal effect.

Sales of automotive seating and interior systendsodibatteries to automobile OEMs for use as oabaguipment are dependent upon the
demand for new automobiles. Management believasitraand for new automobiles generally reflectsisieity to overall economic
conditions with no material seasonal effect.

The automotive replacement battery market is affbbly weather patterns because batteries are keketb fail when extremely low
temperatures place substantial additional powarireaents upon a vehicle’s electrical system. Alsitery life is shortened by extremely
high temperatures, which accelerate corrosion ratesrefore, either mild winter or moderate sumteerperatures may adversely affect
automotive replacement battery sales.

Financial Information About Geographic Areas

Refer to Note 18, “Segment Information,” of thee®to consolidated financial statements for finalnciformation about geographic areas.

Research and Development Expenditures

Refer to Note 1, “Summary of Significant AccountiRglicies,” of the notes to consolidated finanstatements for research and development
expenditures.

Available Information

The Company'’s filings with the U.S. Securities &athange Commission (SEC), including annual repamt&orm 10K, quarterly reports o
Form 10-Q, definitive proxy statements on Scheddl&, current reports on Form 8-K, and any amendminthose reports filed pursuant to
Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangedAidi934, are made available free of charge thrdhghnvestor Relations section of the
Company’s Internet website at http://www.johnsortools.comas soon as reasonably practicable after the Comglantronically files such
material with, or furnishes it to, the SEC. Coppésny materials the Company files with the SEC a@lan be obtained free of charge through
the SEC’s website at http://www.sec.goat the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F StkeE., Washington, D.C. 20549, or by calling
the SEC’s Office of Investor Education and Assistaat 1-800-732-0330. The Company also makes &l@jliree of charge, its Ethics
Policy, Corporate Governance Guidelines, Boardiodd@ors committee charters and other informatilated to the Company on the
Company’s Internet website or in printed form upequest. The Company is not including the infororatontained on the Company’s
website as a part of, or incorporating it by refieesinto, this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

General Risks

General economic, credit and capital market conditns could adversely affect our financial performane, and may affect our ability to
grow or sustain our businesses and could negativedffect our ability to access the capital markets.

We compete around the world in various geograpdtions and product markets. Global economic canmttaffect each of our three primary
businesses. As we discuss in greater detail isfbeific risk factors for each of our businesses #ppear below, any future financial distress
in the automotive industry or residential and conmuia construction markets could negatively affegt revenues and financial performance
in future periods, result in future restructurifaoges, and adversely impact our ability to growsustain our businesses.

The capital and credit markets provide us withitiijy to operate and grow our businesses beyondigh&lity that operating cash flows
provide. A worldwide economic downturn and disroptbf the credit markets could reduce our accesapial necessary for our operations
and executing our strategic plan. If our accesafital were to become significantly constrainedasts of capital increased significantly due
to lowered credit ratings, prevailing industry ciimhs, the volatility of the capital markets ohet factors, then our financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows could be afgaffected. The Company’s $2.5 billion four-yeawrolving credit facility expires in
February 2015. The Company plans to renew theitfapitior to its expiration.

We are subject to pricing pressure from our automate customers.

We face significant competitive pressures in albof business segments. Because of their purchagiegour automotive customers can
influence market participants to compete on prieens. If we are not able to offset pricing redutsioesulting from these pressures by
improved operating efficiencies and reduced exganes, those pricing reductions may have an adversact on our business.

We are subject to risks associated with our non-U.®perations that could adversely affect our resudt of operations.

We have significant operations in a number of coestoutside the U.S., some of which are locatezhierging markets. Longrm economi
uncertainty in some of the regions of the worlavinich we operate, such as Asia, South AmericaMiuglle East, Central Europe and other
emerging markets, could result in the disruptiomafrkets and negatively affect cash flows from apgrations to cover our capital needs and
debt service. The sovereign debt crisis in cousifrievhich we operate in Europe could negativelgaat our access to, and cost of, capital,
and therefore could have an adverse effect on asinbss, results of operations, financial condiiod competitive position.

In addition, as a result of our global presencggaificant portion of our revenues and expensei®minated in currencies other than the
U.S. dollar. We are therefore subject to foreigrrency risks and foreign exchange exposure. Oungni exposures are to the euro, British
pound, Japanese yen, Czech koruna, Mexican pesoaftan lei, Hungarian forint, Polish zloty, Canaddollar and Chinese renminbi. Wt
we employ financial instruments to hedge transaefiand foreign exchange exposure, these actidtigsot insulate us completely from
those exposures. Exchange rates can be volatileand adversely impact our financial results aochparability of results from period to
period.

There are other risks that are inherent in our dd®- operations, including the potential for chanipesocio-economic conditions, laws and
regulations, including import, export, labor andieonmental laws, and monetary and fiscal polic@stectionist measures that may prohibit
acquisitions or joint ventures, unsettled politicahditions, corruption, natural and man-made tkésashazards and losses, violence and
possible terrorist attacks.

These and other factors may have a material adeffieset on our non-U.S. operations and thereforewrbusiness and results of operations.

We are subject to regulation of our international gerations that could adversely affect our businesand results of operations.

Due to our global operations, we are subject toynhaws governing international relations, includithgse that prohibit improper payments
government officials and commercial customers, r@strict where we can do
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business, what information or products we can sufgptertain countries and what information we pasvide to a non-U.S. government,
including but not limited to the Foreign CorruptPtices Act and the U.S. Export Administration Adiblations of these laws, which are
complex, may result in criminal penalties or samwsithat could have a material adverse effect obosiness, financial condition and results
of operations.

Increased public awareness and concern regardihglgtlimate change may result in more regional@rféderal requirements to reduce or
mitigate the effects of greenhouse gas emissidmstelcontinues to be a lack of consistent climegeéslation, which creates economic and
regulatory uncertainty. Such uncertainty extendsitiore incentives for energy efficient buildingsdavehicles and costs of compliance, wt
may impact the demand for our products and oudtsestioperations.

Global climate change could negatively affect ourusiness.

There is a growing consensus that greenhouse gasiens are linked to global climate changes. Giinthanges, such as extreme weather
conditions, create financial risk to our businéss. example, the demand for our products and sesy&uch as residential air conditioning
equipment and automotive replacement batteries,beaffected by unseasonable weather conditiomsa@ changes could also disrupt our
operations by impacting the availability and cdsinaterials needed for manufacturing and couldease insurance and other operating costs
These factors may impact our decisions to constrewt facilities or maintain existing facilities ameas most prone to physical climate risks.
The Company could also face indirect financialsipssed through the supply chain, and processptisns due to physical climate changes
could result in price modifications for our prodsieind the resources needed to produce them.

We are subject to requirements relating to environrental regulation and environmental remediation maters, which could adversely
affect our business and results of operations.

Because of uncertainties associated with envirotmheggulation and environmental remediation ati#igiat sites where we may be liable,
future expenses that we may incur to remediatdifikhsites could be considerably higher thandheent accrued liability on our
consolidated statement of financial position, whichild have a material adverse effect on our basiaed results of operations.

Negative or unexpected tax consequences could adsely affect our results of operations.

Adverse changes in the underlying profitability dimé&ncial outlook of our operations in severaigdictions could lead to changes in our
valuation allowances against deferred tax asset®ter tax reserves on our statement of finampaaltion that could materially and
adversely affect our results of operations. Additilty, changes in tax laws in the U.S. or in otb@untries where we have significant
operations could materially affect deferred taxetsand liabilities on our consolidated stateméfiinancial position and tax expense.

We are also subject to tax audits by governmentilogities in the U.S. and in ndih-S. jurisdictions. Negative unexpected resultenfiane ol
more such tax audits could adversely affect ourlte®f operations.

Legal proceedings in which we are, or may be, a parmay adversely affect us.

We are currently and may in the future become stitbjelegal proceedings and commercial or conteddisputes. These are typically claims
that arise in the normal course of business inolgidivithout limitation, commercial or contractudplutes with our suppliers, intellectual
property matters, third party liability, includimgoduct liability claims and employment claims. Tdexists the possibility that such claims
may have an adverse impact on our results of dpagathat is greater than we anticipate.

A downgrade in the ratings of our debt could restret our ability to access the debt capital marketsrad increase our interest costs.

Changes in the ratings that rating agencies assigar debt may ultimately impact our access todiset capital markets and the costs we
incur to borrow funds. If ratings for our debt faklow investment grade, our access to the delitataparkets would become restricted.
Tightening in the credit markets and the reducedllef liquidity in many financial markets due tarmnoil in the financial and banking
industries could affect our access to the debttabpiarkets or the price we pay to issue debt.dristlly, we have relied on our ability to
issue commercial paper rather than to draw on ditcfacility to support our daily operations, whimeans that a downgrade in our ratings
or continued volatility in the financial marketsuséng limitations to the debt capital markets cdudde an adverse effect on our business or
our ability to meet our liquidity needs.
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Additionally, several of our credit agreements gahg include an increase in interest rates ifidngs for our debt are downgraded. Further,
an increase in the level of our indebtedness merg@se our vulnerability to adverse general ecoo@md industry conditions and may affect
our ability to obtain additional financing.

We are subject to potential insolvency or financiatistress of third parties.

We are exposed to the risk that third parties tioua arrangements who owe us money or goods awxiteg, or who purchase goods and
services from us, will not be able to perform thahtigations or continue to place orders due tolwency or financial distress. If third parties
fail to perform their obligations under arrangensenith us, we may be forced to replace the undeglgommitment at current or above
market prices or on other terms that are less &blerto us. In such events, we may incur lossesypresults of operations, financial position
or liquidity could otherwise be adversely affected.

We may be unable to complete or integrate acquisins effectively, which may adversely affect our greth, profitability and results of
operations.

We expect acquisitions of businesses and assptayt@ role in our future growth. We cannot be @erthat we will be able to identify
attractive acquisition targets, obtain financingdoquisitions on satisfactory terms or successadhuire identified targets. Additionally, we
may not be successful in integrating acquired lassias into our existing operations and achieviogepted synergies. Competition for
acquisition opportunities in the various industiiesvhich we operate may rise, thereby increasimgoosts of making acquisitions or causing
us to refrain from making further acquisitions. fe also subject to applicable antitrust laws andtravoid anticompetitive behavior. These
and other acquisition-related factors may negatiaeld adversely impact our growth, profitabilitydaresults of operations.

We are subject to business continuity risks assod¢ed with centralization of certain administrative functions.

Certain administrative functions, primarily in NoerAmerica, Europe and Asia, have been or are iptbeess of being regionally centralized
to improve efficiency and reduce costs. To the mieat these central locations are disrupted satided, key business processes, such as
invoicing, payments and general management opestanuld be interrupted.

A failure of our information technology (IT) infras tructure could adversely impact our business and agrations.

We rely upon the capacity, reliability and secudfyour information technology infrastructure ang ability to expand and continually upd
this infrastructure in response to the changinglaed our business. For example, we are implemgmiaw enterprise resource planning and
other IT systems in certain of our businesses avgariod of several years. As we implement the siestems, they may not perform as
expected. We also face the challenge of suppoaotimglder systems and implementing necessary upgrdidwe experience a problem with
the functioning of an important IT system or a ségureach of our IT systems, the resulting disias could have an adverse effect on our
business.

We and certain of our third-party vendors receiné store personal information in connection with buman resources operations and other
aspects of our business. Despite our implementafisecurity measures, our IT systems are vulnermbtlamages from computer viruses,
natural disasters, unauthorized access, cybekadtat other similar disruptions. Any system failuaecident or security breach could resu
disruptions to our operations. A material networgazh in the security of our IT systems could idelthe theft of our intellectual property or
trade secrets. To the extent that any disruptiors®curity breach results in a loss or damage talata, or in inappropriate disclosure of
confidential information, it could cause signifitatamage to our reputation, affect our relationshyith our customers, lead to claims against
the Company and ultimately harm our business. thtiath, we may be required to incur significant tsa® protect against damage caused by
these disruptions or security breaches in the éutur

Our business success depends on attracting and reteg qualified personnel.

Our ability to sustain and grow our business rexgiirs to hire, retain and develop a highly skiflad diverse management team and
workforce. Failure to ensure that we have the lesddp capacity with the necessary skill set andeepce could impede our ability to deliy
our growth objectives and execute our strategio.phay
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unplanned turnover or inability to attract and ireteey employees could have a negative effect anesults of operations.

Building Efficiency Risks

Failure to comply with regulations due to our contiacts with U.S. government entities could adversebffect our business and results ¢
operations.

Our building efficiency business contracts with goument entities and is subject to specific rulegulations and approvals applicable to
government contractors. We are subject to routirtits by the Defense Contract Audit Agency to assur compliance with these
requirements. Our failure to comply with these threo laws and regulations could result in conttahinations, suspension or debarment
from contracting with the U.S. federal governmentil fines and damages and criminal prosecutiaraddition, changes in procurement
policies, budget considerations, unexpected U.@ldpments, such as terrorist attacks, or simitditipal developments or events abroad
may change the U.S. federal government’s natiosalrity defense posture may affect sales to govemmentities.

Volatility in commodity prices may adversely affectour results of operations.

Commodity prices were volatile in the past yeaimprily steel, aluminum, copper and fuel costsréases in commodity costs negatively
impact the profitability of orders in backlog ascess on those orders are fixed; therefore, in bwetderm we cannot adjust for changes in
commodity prices. If we are not able to recover omdity cost increases through price increases t@astomers on new orders, then such
increases will have an adverse effect on our residiloperations. Additionally, unfavorability in ohiedging programs during a period of
declining commodity prices could result in lowerngias as we reduce prices to match the marketfored commodity cost level.

Conditions in the residential and commercial new aostruction markets may adversely affect our resultof operations.

HVAC equipment sales in the residential and commenew construction markets correlate to the nunab@ew homes and buildings that
are built. The strength of the residential and camial markets depends in part on the availabiiftgonsumer and commercial financing for
our customers, along with inventory and pricinggisting homes and buildings. If economic and drewdirket conditions worsen, it may
result in a decline in the residential housing tartgion market and construction of new commerbialdings. Such conditions could have an
adverse effect on our results of operations andtrespotential liabilities or additional costsicduding impairment charges.

A variety of other factors could adversely affecthe results of operations of our building efficiencybusiness.

Any of the following could materially and adversétypact the results of operations of our buildifficeency business: loss of, changes in, or
failure to perform under facility management supgintracts with our major customers; cancellatibroosignificant delays in, projects in
our backlog; delays or difficulties in new proddelvelopment; the potential introduction of simiteursuperior technologies; financial
instability or market declines of our major componsuppliers; the unavailability of raw materigtsiarily steel, copper and electronic
components) necessary for production of HYAC eqa@iptprice increases of limited-source compongartsjucts and services that we are
unable to pass on to the market; unseasonable @reaihditions in various parts of the world; chageenergy costs or governmental
regulations that would decrease the incentive dgtamers to update or improve their building cdrdystems; revisions to energy efficiency
legislation; a decline in the outsourcing of fagilnanagement services; availability of labor tpmart growth of our service businesses; and
natural or marmade disasters or losses that impact our abililetiver facility management and other products serdices to our custome

Automotive Experience Risks

Conditions in the automotive industry may adverselaffect our results of operations.

Our financial performance depends, in part, on @@t in the automotive industry. In fiscal 20blyr largest customers globally were
automobile manufacturers Ford Motor Company (Fd&#neral Motors Corporation (GM) and Daimler AGalftomakers experience a
decline in the number of new vehicle sales, we m@erience reductions in orders from these custenreur write offs of accounts
receivable, incur impairment charges or
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require additional restructuring actions beyond @urent restructuring plans, particularly if arfitiee automakers cannot adequately fund
their operations or experience financial distress.

Financial distress of the automotive supply chainauld harm our results of operations.

Automotive industry conditions could adversely affthe original equipment supplier base. Lower puatidn levels for key customers,
increases in certain raw material, commodity arergncosts and global credit market conditions doasult in financial distress among
many companies within the automotive supply bas®ri€ial distress within the supplier base may teacbmmercial disputes and possible
supply chain interruptions, which in turn couldrdist our production. In addition, an adverse industivironment may require us to provide
financial support to distressed suppliers or takemomeasures to ensure uninterrupted productibighacould involve additional costs or
risks. If any of these risks materialize, we akelly to incur losses, or our results of operatidimsincial position or liquidity could otherwise
be adversely affected.

Change in consumer demand may adversely affect ovesults of operations.

Increases in energy costs or other factors (dimate change concerns) may shift consumer demangt #om motor vehicles that typically
have higher interior content that we supply, sushght trucks, cross-over vehicles, minivans ably’s, to smaller vehicles having less
interior content. The loss of business with respecbr a lack of commercial success of, one orenparticular vehicle models for which we
are a significant supplier could reduce our sahektarm our profitability, thereby adversely affegtour results of operations.

We may not be able to successfully negotiate prigrterms with our customers in the automotive expeeince business, which may
adversely affect our results of operations.

We negotiate sales prices annually with our autdraa@ustomers. Cost-cutting initiatives that oustouners have adopted generally result in
increased downward pressure on pricing. In somescasr customer supply agreements require redsdtiocomponent pricing over the
period of production. If we are unable to genesgaifficient production cost savings in the futureffset price reductions, our results of
operations may be adversely affected. In particldage commercial settlements with our customeag atversely affect our results of
operations or cause our financial results to varaguarterly basis.

Volatility in commodity prices may adversely affectour results of operations.

Commodity prices can be volatile from year to yéfacommodity prices rise, and if we are not aldedcover these cost increases from our
customers, these increases will have an adverseteffi our results of operations.

The cyclicality of original equipment automobile poduction rates may adversely affect the results afperations in our automotive
experience business.

Our automotive experience business is directijtedléo automotive production by our customers. Adtive production and sales are highly
cyclical and depend on general economic conditantbother factors, including consumer spendingpmaterences. An economic decline 1
results in a reduction in automotive productionoloy automotive experience customers could havetarrahadverse impact on our results of
operations.

A variety of other factors could adversely affecthe results of operations of our automotive experiare business.

Any of the following could materially and adversétypact the results of operations of our automogixperience business: the loss of, or
changes in, automobile supply contracts or soursiragegies with our major customers or suppligtiat-up expenses associated with new
vehicle programs or delays or cancellations of qurolgrams; underutilization of our manufacturingilities, which are generally located ne
and devoted to, a particular customer’s facilibghility to recover engineering and tooling costsrket and financial consequences of any
recalls that may be required on products that we Isapplied; delays or difficulties in new proddetvelopment; complexity of new program
launches, which are subject to our customers’ inperformance, design and quality standards;rimpéion of supply of certain singlesurce
components; the potential introduction of similaisaperior technologies; changing nature of ountjgentures and relationships with our
strategic business partners; and global overcapaci vehicle platform proliferation.
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Power Solutions Risks

We face competition and pricing pressure from othecompanies in the power solutions business.

Our power solutions business competes with a nuimbeajor domestic and international manufactuesrd distributors of lead-acid
batteries, as well as a large number of smallgipral competitors. The North American, Europeath Asian lead-acid battery markets are
highly competitive. The manufacturers in these raelkcompete on price, quality, technical innovatservice and warranty. If we are unable
to remain competitive and maintain market shathénregions and markets we serve, our results efatipns may be adversely affected.

Volatility in commodity prices may adversely affectour results of operations.

Lead is a major component of our lead-acid batefide price of lead has been highly volatile dherlast several years. We attempt to
manage the impact of changing lead prices throhghecycling of used batteries returned to us lyyaftermarket customers, commercial
terms and commodity hedging programs. Our abititynitigate the impact of lead price changes cammipacted by many factors, including
customer negotiations, inventory level fluctuatiamsl sales volume/mix changes, any of which coaitelan adverse effect on our results of
operations.

Additionally, the prices of other commaodities, pairity fuel, acid and resin, have been volatileotier commaodity prices rise, and if we are
not able to recover these cost increases througé jpicreases to our customers, such increasebavi an adverse effect on our results of
operations. Moreover, the implementation of angeincreases to our customers could negatively ¢étgemand for our products.

Decreased demand from our customers in the automet industry may adversely affect our results of opations.

Our financial performance in the power solutionsibass depends, in part, on conditions in the aotiomindustry. Sales to OEMs accoun
for approximately 23% of the total sales of the powolutions business in fiscal 2011. DeclinesqieaNlorth American and European
automotive production levels could reduce our satesadversely affect our results of operationsiddition, if any OEMs reach a point
where they cannot fund their operations, we mayrimaite offs of accounts receivable, incur impaémhcharges or require additional
restructuring actions beyond our current restructuplans.

A variety of other factors could adversely affecthe results of operations of our power solutions busess.

Any of the following could materially and adverséfypact the results of operations of our power ohs business: loss of, or changes in,
automobile battery supply contracts with our langginal equipment and aftermarket customers; ticeciasing quality and useful life of
batteries or use of alternative battery technokdieth of which may contribute to a growth slowdaw the lead-acid battery market; delays
or cancellations of new vehicle programs; markek famancial consequences of any recalls that maggeired on our products; delays or
difficulties in new product development, includiligpium-ion technology; financial instability or mket declines of our customers or
suppliers; interruption of supply of certain singlgurce components; changing nature of our jointwes and relationships with our strategic
business partners; the increasing global envirotahand safety regulations related to the manufagjiand recycling of lead-acid batteries;
our ability to secure sufficient tolling capacity tecycle batteries; and the lack of the develogroéa market for hybrid and electric vehicles.

ITEM 1B UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

The Company has no unresolved written commentgsdeggits periodic or current reports from the stdfthe SEC.
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ITEM 2 PROPERTIES

At September 30, 2011, the Company conducted #sadipns in 61 countries throughout the world, vitishworld headquarters located in
Milwaukee, Wisconsin. The Company’s wholly- and andy-owned facilities, which are listed in the kalon the following pages by business
and location, totaled approximately 95 million seigeet of floor space and are owned by the Companogpt as noted. The facilities
primarily consisted of manufacturing, assembly and/arehouse space. The Company considers it#ifsio be suitable and adequate for

their current uses. The majority of the facilitaag operating at normal levels based on capacity.

Building Efficiency

Arizona
California

Delaware
Florida
Georgia
Illinois

Kansas
Kentucky

Maryland

Massachuseti
Michigan
Minnesota
Mississippi
Missouri

New Jerse)
North Caroline
Oregon
Oklahoma
Pennsylvani:

Texas

Washingtor
Wisconsin

Phoenix (1),(4
Fremont (1),(4
Roseville (1),(4.
Simi Valley (1),(4)
Whittier (4)
Newark (1),(4)
Largo (1),(3)
Atlanta (1),(4)
Arlington Heights (4,
Dixon (3)
Elmhurst (1),(4
Wheeling (1),(4
Lenexa (1),(4
Wichita (2),(3)
Erlanger (1,
Louisville (1),(4)

Capitol Heights (1),(4

Rossuville (1)
Sparks (1),(4
Lynnfield (4)

Sterling Heights (1),(3

Plymouth (1),(4,
Hattiesburg (1
Albany

St. Louis (1),(4
Hainesport (1),(4
Charlotte (1),(4
Portland (1),(4
Norman (3)
Audubon (1),(4,
York (1)
Waynesboro (3
Houston (1),(4
Irving (4)

San Antonic

Fife (1),(4)
Milwaukee (2),(4)
Waukesha (1),(4
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Austria

Brazil
Belgium
Canade

China

Denmark

France

Germany

Hong Kong
India

Italy
Japar
Mexico

Netherlands
Poland
Romania
Russia
South Africa
Spain
Switzerlanc
Turkey

Graz (4)

Vienna (4)

Séo Paulo (3
Diegem (1),(4
Ajax (1),(3)
Victoria (1),(4)
Oakville (1),(4)
Qingyuan (2),(3
Wuxi (2),(3)
Aarhus (3)
Hornslet (2),(4
Viby (2),(3)
Amiens Glisy (3)
Carquefou Bel Air (3
Colombes (1),(3
Nantes (1,

Saint Quentin Fallavier (1),(:
Essen (2),(3
Kempen (1),(3
Mannheim (1),(3
Hong Kong (1),(3
Chakan (1),(3
Pune (1),(3

Milan (1),(4)
Tokyo (1),(4)
Apodaca (1),(3
Durango (3
Juarez (2),(3
Monterrey (1),(3]
Reynosa (3
Gorinchem (1),(4
Warsaw (1),(3
Bucharest (1),(3
Moscow (1),(3)
Johannesburg (1),(:
Sabadell (1),(3
Basel (1)

[zmir (1),(3)




Table of Contents

Automotive Experience

Alabama

Georgia
lllinois

Indiana

Kentucky

Louisiana
Michigan

Missouri

Ohio

Tennesse

Texas

Wisconsin

Clanton
Cottondale
Eastabog;i
McCalla (1)
LaGrange (1
West Point (1
Chicago (1
Lawrenceville
Sycamore
Kendallville
Munice (1)
Cadiz
Georgetown (2
Harrodsburg (3
Leitchfield
Louisville (1)
Nicholasville (1)
Owensboro (1
Shelbyville (1)
Winchester (1
Shrevepor
Auburn Hills (1)
Battle Creel
Cascade (1
Croswell (1)
Detroit
Fowlerville
Highland Park (1
Holland (2),(3)
Kentwood (1)
Lansing (2)
Monroe (1)
Port Huron (1
Plymouth (3)
Romulus (1
Taylor (1)

Troy (1)
Warren (1)
Eldon (2)
Kansas City (1
Riverside (1
Bryan
Greenfield
Northwood

St. Mary's (2)
Wauseor
Columbia (1)
Franklin
Murfreesboro (2
Pulaski (1)

El Paso (1
San Antonio (1
Hudson
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Argentina

Australia
Austria

Belgium

Brazil

Bulgaria
Canade

China

Czech Republi

France

Buenos Aires (1
Cordoba (1

Rosario

Adelaide (1)

Graz (1)

Mandling

Assenede (1

Geel (1),(3)
Gravatai

Pouso Alegre
Quatro Barras (2
San Bernardo do Camj
Santo Andre

Sao Jose dos Camp
Sao Jose dos Pinhais
Sofia (1),(4)

Milton

Mississauga (1),(<
Saint Man's
Tillsonburg

Whitby (2)

Beijing (3)
Shanghai (1),(3
Benatky (1)

Ceska Lipa (4
Mlada Boleslav (1
Roudnice

Rychnov (1)
Strakonice

Straz pod Ralsket
Cergy (1),(4)
Conflan«-sur-Lanterne
Creutzwald
Fesche-le-Chatel (1)
La Ferte Bernar
Rosny

Strasbour¢
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Automotive Experience (continued)

Germany

Italy

Japar

Korea

Macedonie
Malaysia

Mexico

Boblingen (1),(3
Bochum (2)
Bremen (1
Burscheid (2),(3
Dautphe
Espelkamg
Grefrath
Hannover (1,
Hilchenbach (1
Holzgerlingen (1.
Kaiserslauter
Karlsruhe (1),(4
Luneburg
Mannweiler (1)
Markgroningen (1
Neustad

Rastatt (1,
Remscheid (1
Rockenhause
Saarlouis (1
Solingen
Uberherrn
Waghausel (3
Zwickau
Grugliasco (1.
Melfi

Ogliastro Cilentc
Rocca ['Evandro
Ayase
Hamamatsi
Higashiomi
Yamato
Yokohama (1),(4
Yokosuka (2]
Ansan (1),(4.
Asan

Skopje

Melaka (1)
Pekan (1

Perak Darul Redzuan (
Selangor Darul Ehse

Ecapetec Edo (I
Juarez (2
Matamaros (1
Monclova
Puebla (2
Ramos Arizpe
Reynosa (1
Saltillo

Tlaxcala

Toluca (1)

Poland

Portugal
Republic of Slovenii

Romania

Russia

Slovak Republic

South Africa

Spain

Sweder
Thailand
Tunesis
Turkey

United Kingdom
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Bierun
Siemianowice
Skarbimierz (1,
Swiebodzin
Zory

Palmels

Novo Mesto (1,
Slovenj Grade:
Craiova (1)
Jimbolia (1)
Mioveni (1)
Pitesti (1)
Ploesti
Timisoara (1,
St. Petersburg (1
Togliatti (1)
Bratislava (1),(4
Kostany nad Turcom (Z
Lozorno (1)
Lucenec (2
Namestovo (1
Trencin (1)
Zilina (2)

East London (1
Pretoria
Uitenhage (1
Abrera

Alagon
Almussafes (2
Calatorao (1
Pedrola
Redondela (1
Valladolid
Goteburg (1,
Rayong

Bi'r al Bay (1)
Bursa (1)
Kocaeli
Birmingham
Burtor-Upor-Trent
Ellesmere (1
Garston (1
Sunderlanc
Telford (1)
Wednesbun
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Power Solutions

Arizona Yuma (3) Austria Graz (1)
Delaware Middletown (3) Vienna (1)
Florida Tampa (3] Brazil Sorocaba (3
lllinois Geneva (3 China Changxing (3
Indiana Ft. Wayne (3 Chongging (3
lowa Red Oak (3 Shanghai (2),(3
Kentucky Florence (1),(3 Czech Republi Ceska Lipa (2),(3
Michigan Holland (3) France Rouen
Missouri St. Joseph (2),(< Sarreguemines (¢
North Caroline Kernersville (3) Germany Hannover (3
Ohio Toledo (3) Krautscheid (3
Oregon Portland (2),(3 Zwickau (2),(3)
South Carolin: Florence (3 Korea Gumi (2),(3)
Oconee (3 Mexico Celaya
Texas San Antonio (3 Cienega de Flores (.
Wisconsin Milwaukee (4) Escobedc
Flores
Garcia
San Pedro (1),(«
Torreon
Spain Burgos
Guadamar del Segu
Guadalajara (1
Ibi (3)
Sweder Hultsfred
Corporate
Wisconsin Milwaukee (4)

(1) Leased facility

(2) Includes both leased and owned facilii

(3) Includes both administrative and manufacturinglitées

(4) Administrative facility only

In addition to the above listing, which identifi@sge properties (greater than 25,000 square finetle are approximately 644 building

efficiency branch offices and other administratdffices located in major cities throughout the woiThese offices are primarily leased
facilities and vary in size in proportion to thelwme of business in the particular locality.

ITEM 3 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As noted in Item 1, liabilities potentially ariseogally under various Environmental Laws and WorBafety Laws for activities that are noi
compliance with such laws and for the cleanup tessivhere Company-related substances have beesedlato the environment.

Currently, the Company is responding to allegatitias it is responsible for performing environmémgmnediation, or for the repayment of
costs spent by governmental entities or otheropmifig remediation, at approximately 42 sites | thS. Many of these sites are landfills
used by the Company in the past for the disposalaste materials; others are secondary lead smeltel lead recycling sites where the
Company returned lead-containing materials for cbioy; a few involve the cleanup of Company mantueng facilities; and the remaining
fall into miscellaneous categories. The Company faag similar claims of liability at additional i in the future. Where potential liabilities
are alleged, the Company pursues a course of dotiemded to mitigate them.

The Company accrues for potential environmentéllliges in a manner consistent with accountingipiples generally accepted in the Uni
States; that is, when it is probable a liability teeen incurred and the amount of the liabilitsessonably estimable. Reserves for
environmental liabilities totaled $30 million and@million at
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September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The @oynpeviews the status of its environmental sitea gquarterly basis and adjusts its
reserves accordingly. Such potential liabilitiesraed by the Company do not take into considergimssible recoveries of future insurance
proceeds. They do, however, take into accountitedylshare other parties will bear at remediasdas. It is difficult to estimate the
Companys ultimate level of liability at many remediatioites due to the large number of other partiesriat be involved, the complexity
determining the relative liability among those gt the uncertainty as to the nature and scoffeedhvestigations and remediation to be
conducted, the uncertainty in the application of &nd risk assessment, the various choices and associated with diverse technologies
may be used in corrective actions at the sitestlamdften quite lengthy periods over which evehtemediation may occur. Nevertheless,
Company does not currently believe that any clapesalties or costs in connection with known envinental matters will have a material
adverse effect on the Company'’s financial positiesults of operations or cash flows.

The Company is involved in a number of productilighand various other casualty lawsuits incidemthe operation of its businesses.
Insurance coverages are maintained and estimastsl @@ recorded for claims and lawsuits of thtsinga It is management’s opinion that
none of these will have a material adverse effadhe Company’s financial position, results of @tens or cash flows. Costs related to such
matters were not material to the periods presented.

ITEM 4 (REMOVED AND RESERVED)
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of Form 1aH¢€, following list of executive officers of the Cpamny as of November 16, 2011 is
included as an unnumbered Item in Part | of thi®rein lieu of being included in the Company’s Bré&tatement relating to the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders to be held on January @522

Jeffrey G. Augustin49, was elected a Corporate Vice President irchM2005 and has served as Vice President of Firfantiee
building efficiency business since December 2008viBusly, Mr. Augustin served as Corporate Cotgrdrom March 2005 to
March 2007. From 2001 to March 2005, Mr. Augustesw ice President of Finance and Corporate Coetrofl Gateway, Inc.

Beda Bolzenius55, was elected a Corporate Vice President ineNtber 2005 and serves as President of the autarmtperience
business. He previously served as Executive ViesiBent and General Manager Europe, Africa andhSamnterica for automotive
experience from November 2004 to November 2005Bblzenius joined the Company in November 2004 fRaobert Bosch GmbH, a
global manufacturer of automotive and industriahteology, consumer goods and building technoloder& he most recently served as
the president of Bosch'’s Body Electronics division.

Colin Boyd, 52, was elected Vice President, Information Tetbgy and Chief Information Officer in October 2008r. Boyd
previously served as Chief Information Officer a&barporate Vice President of Sony Ericsson from 21002008.

Susan F. Davis 58, was elected Executive Vice President of HuRasources in September 2006. She previously sas/dtice
President of Human Resources from May 1994 to Sdmte 2006 and as Vice President of Organizatiomaielbpment for automotive
experience from August 1993 to April 1994. Ms. Bajgined the Company in 1983.

Jeffrey S. Edwards49, was elected a Corporate Vice President in 04 and serves as Group Vice President and Geévianager
for automotive experience Asia. He previously sdrae Group Vice President and General Managemfongotive experience North
America from August 2002 to May 2004 and Group \Weesident and General Manager for product anchbasidevelopment.

Mr. Edwards joined the Company in 1984.

Charles A. Harvey 59, was elected Corporate Vice President of Bityeand Public Affairs in November 2005. He praasty served
as Vice President of Human Resources for the auteenexperience business and in other human ressdeadership positions.
Mr. Harvey joined the Company in 1991.

William C. Jackson51, was elected Executive Vice President, Operatiord Innovation, in July 2011. Prior to joinindndeon
Controls, Mr. Jackson was Vice President and Peesidf Automotive at Sears Holdings Corporatiomfrd009 to 2010. Prior to that, he
served as Senior Vice President and board memlizoad,
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Allen & Hamilton and Booz & Company, a strategy aahsulting firm, where he led the firm’s GlobaltAmotive, Transportation and
Industrials Practice.

Susan M. Kreh 49, was elected a Corporate Vice President ircMa007 and has served as Vice President of Firfantee power
solutions business since November 2009. Ms. Kreledeas Corporate Controller from March 2007 to &ober 2009. Prior to joining tl
Company, Ms. Kreh served 22 years at PPG Industries including as Corporate Treasurer from Jan@802 until March 2007.

R. Bruce McDonald 51, was elected Executive Vice President in $apexr 2006 and Chief Financial Officer in May 206k
previously served as Corporate Vice President flanmuary 2002 to September 2006, Assistant Chiefrigial Officer from October 2004
to May 2005 and Corporate Controller from Noveni2@dl to October 2004. Mr. McDonald joined the Comypia 2001.

Alex A. Molinaroli, 52, was elected a Corporate Vice President in B4 and has served as President of the powdiswibusines
since January 2007. Previously, Mr. Molinaroli sghas Vice President and General Manager for Niaribrica Systems & the Middle
East for the building efficiency business and halsl Increasing levels of responsibility for consrglystems and services sales and
operations. Mr. Molinaroli joined the Company in8B9

C. David Myers 48, was elected a Corporate Vice President aasid®@mt of the building efficiency business in Dmber 2005, when
he joined the Company in connection with the adgtjorsof York International Corporation (York). Atork, Mr. Myers served as Chief
Executive Officer from February 2004 to Decembed2,(President from June 2003 to December 2005, HixecVice President and Chi
Financial Officer from January 2003 to June 2008 ¥ite President and Chief Financial Officer froebFuary 2000 to January 2003.

Jerome D. Okarmab9, was elected Vice President, Secretary aneé@e@ounsel in November 2004 and was named a GugpWice
President in September 2003. He previously serseikaistant Secretary from 1990 to November 20@4asnDeputy General Counsel
from June 2000 to November 2004. Mr. Okarma joitedCompany in 1989.

Stephen A. Roell61, was elected Chief Executive Officer effectivéctober 2007, Chairman effective in January&@hd President
effective in May 2009. He was first elected to Bward of Directors in October 2004 and served ascHtve Vice President from
October 2004 through September 2007. Mr. Roelliptesly served as Chief Financial Officer betwee@ll&nd May 2005, Senior Vice
President from September 1998 to October 2004 acel Rtesident from 1991 to September 1998. Mr. IRoieled the Company in 1982.

Brian J. Stief, 55, was elected Vice President and CorporaterGitentin July 2010 and serves as the Companyiscdiyal Accounting
Officer. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Stief sva partner with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, whifoined in 1979 and became
partner in 1989. He served several of the firmrgdat clients and also held various office managigner roles.

Jacqueline F. Strayer57, was elected Vice President, Corporate Comaation in September 2008. She previously servadices
President, Corporate Communications, for Arrow Etatcs, Inc. from 2004 to 2008. Prior to that, $ieédd communication leadership
positions at United Technologies Corporation and@pital Corporation.

Frank A. Voltolina, 51, was elected a Corporate Vice President amgdCate Treasurer in July 2003 when he joined then@any.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Voltolina was ¥i®resident and Treasurer at ArvinMeritor, Inc.

There are no family relationships, as defined lgyitistructions to this item, among the Company#&cetive officers.

All officers are elected for terms that expire be tate of the meeting of the Board of Directotl®fang the Annual Meeting of Shareholds
or until their successors are elected and qualified
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PART Il

ITEM5 MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The shares of the Company’s common stock are tradebde New York Stock Exchange under the symbgl.*J

Number of Record Holdel

Title of Class as of September 30, 20
Common Stock, $0.01 7/18 par va 43,340

Common Stock Price Rant Dividends

2011 2010 2011 2010
First Quarte! $29.95-40.1¢  $23.62-28.3¢ $ 0.1€ $ 0.1z
Second Quarte 36.95- 42.4; 27.21- 33.6( 0.1¢€ 0.1z
Third Quartel 35.37- 42.5] 25.56- 35.71 0.1€ 0.1z
Fourth Quarte 25.91- 42.9: 26.07- 31.1¢ 0.1€ 0.1:
Year $25.91-42.9: $23.62-35.771 $ 064 $ 0.52

In September 2006, the Company’s Board of Direcdoithorized a stock repurchase program to acqpite 200 million of the Company’s
outstanding common stock. Stock repurchases uh@eptogram may be made through open market, glivaegotiated transactions or
otherwise at times and in such amounts as Compamagement deems appropriate. The stock repurchagem does not have an
expiration date and may be amended or terminatatébBoard of Directors at any time without priatine.

The Company entered into an Equity Swap Agreenaatéd March 13, 2009, with Citibank, N.A. (Citibankhe Company selectively uses
equity swaps to reduce market risk associated itgitstock-based compensation plans, such as igsréddfcompensation plans. These equity
compensation liabilities increase as the Compastgek price increases and decrease as the Compoglsprice decreases. In contrast, the
value of the Equity Swap Agreement moves in theosjip direction of these liabilities, allowing tB®mpany to fix a portion of the liabilities
at a stated amount.

In connection with the Equity Swap Agreement, Gitik may purchase unlimited shares of the Compastgtk in the market or in privately
negotiated transactions. The Company disclaimsGitdtank is an “affiliated purchaser” of the Compaas such term is defined in Rule 10b-
18(a)(3) under the Securities Exchange Act or @itibank is purchasing any shares for the Compa@hg. Equity Swap Agreement has no
stated expiration date. The net effect of the chandair value of the Equity Swap Agreement argl¢hange in equity compensation
liabilities was not material to the Company’s eagsd for the three months ended September 30, 2011.
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The following table presents information regardihg repurchase of the Company’s common stock b tmpany as part of the publicly
announced program and purchases of the Companyisioa stock by Citibank in connection with the EguBtwap Agreement during the
three months ended September 30, 2011.

Approximate Dollal

Total Number o Value of Shares thi
Shares Purchased May Yet be
Total Number o Average Price Part of the Publich Purchased under tt
Period Shares Purchas Paid per Shar Announced Progra Programs
7/1/11 - 7/31/11
Purchases by Company | — = — $102,394,71
8/1/11 - 8/31/11
Purchases by Company | — — — $102,394,71
9/1/11 - 9/30/11
Purchases by Company | o = — $102,394,71
7/1/11 - 7/31/11
Purchases by Citibar — — — NA
8/1/11 - 8/31/11
Purchases by Citibar — — — NA
9/1/11 - 9/30/11
Purchases by Citibar — — — NA

(1) The repurchases of the Company’s common digd¢ke Company are intended to partially offs&itdtin related to our stock option and
restricted stock equity compensation plans andraated as repurchases of Company common stoglufposes of this disclosul
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The following information in Item 5 is not deemedite “soliciting material” or to be “filed” with #6SEC or subject to Regulation 14A or

14C under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Brgk Act) or to the liabilities of Section 18 oétBxchange Act, and will not be deemed

to be incorporated by reference into any filing einthe Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Axtept to the extent the Company
specifically incorporates it by reference into sactiing.

The line graph below compares the cumulative thaleholder return on our Common Stock with thewdative total return of companies

the Standard & Poor’s (S&P’s) 500 Stock Index aomhpanies in our Diversified Industrials Peer GréUdphis graph assumes the investment

of $100 on September 30, 2006 and the reinvestofait dividends since that date.

COMPANY INDEX Sep0€ Sep07 Sep08& Sep0¢ SeplC Sepll
Johnson Controls, In 10C 166.4: 130.2¢ 113.3¢ 137.8: 121.27
Diversified Industrials Peer Grot 10C 132.81 98.9¢ 101.0: 123.9: 115.4¢
S&P 500 Com-Ltd. 10C 116.8: 91.1¢ 84.8¢ 93.4¢ 94 5¢
Total Return to Shareholders
Daollars
180
160 Cass
140 f"f - e —
120 — __'_-:_.,__--' - T —— —_'_'__'_ il = ———_‘r_'.
100 p=—— e T —— |
80 —
G
40
0
n T T T T
Seplb Sepl7 Sepl8 Sepl® Sepld Sepll
—#— Johnson Comtrols, Inc —&— Diversified Industnals Peer Group —&— S&F 500 Comp-Lid

* The JCI Diversified Industrials Peer Group imbés: Danaher Corporation, Dover Corporation, E@orporation, Emerson Electric
Corporation. Honeywell International Inc., Inger&and Plc., lllinois Tool Works Inc., ITT Corporati, 3M Company, Textron Inc.,

and United Technologies Corporati

The Company'’s transfer agent’s contact informatioas follows:

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
Shareowner Services Department
P.O. Box 64856

St. Paul, MN 55164-0856

(877) 602-7397
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ITEM 6 SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data reflects thsults of operations, financial position data, aathmon share information for the fiscal
years ended September 30, 2007 through Septemp2030 (in millions, except per share data and rempbemployees and shareholde

Year ended September 30,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
OPERATING RESULTS
Net sales $ 40,83 $ 34,30¢ $ 28,49° $ 38,06: $ 34,62«
Segment income (Z 2,28t 1,93: 262 2,071 1,88¢
Income (loss) attributable to Johnson Controls, fraom
continuing operation 1,624 1,491 (339 97¢ 1,29t
Net income (loss) attributable to Johnson Contiloks, 1,624 1,491 (339 97¢ 1,252
Earnings (loss) per share from continuing operatidn
Basic $ 24C $ 222 $ (0.59) $ 1.6t $ 21¢
Diluted 2.3¢€ 2.1¢ (0.57) 1.6: 2.1¢€
Earnings (loss) per share |
Basic $ 24C $ 222 $ (0.59) $ 1.6t $ 212
Diluted 2.3¢€ 2.1¢ (0.57) 1.6 2.0¢
Return on average shareholders’ equity attributable
Johnson Controls, Inc. (. 15% 16% -4% 11% 16%
Capital expenditure $ 1,32¢ $ 17 $ 647 $ 807 $ 82t
Depreciation and amortizatic 731 691 745 783 732
Number of employee 162,00( 137,00( 130,00( 140,00( 140,00(
FINANCIAL POSITION
Working capital (4, $ 1,58¢ $ 91¢ $ 1,147 $ 1,22t $ 1,441
Total asset 29,67¢ 25,74 24,08¢ 24,98 24,10¢
Long-term debt 4,53: 2,652 3,16¢ 3,201 3,25¢
Total debt 5,14¢ 3,38¢ 3,96¢ 3,944 4,41¢
Shareholders’ equity attributable to Johnson Cdmtr
Inc. 11,04 10,07: 9,10(C 9,40¢ 8,87
Total debt to total capitalization ( 32% 25% 30% 30% 33%
Net book value per share (1) | $ 16.2¢ $ 14.9¢ $ 13.5¢ $ 15.8: $ 14.9¢
COMMON SHARE INFORMATION (1)
Dividends per shar $ 0.64 $ 0.5z $ 0.5z $ 0.5z $ 0.44
Market prices
High $ 429 $ 35.7i $ 30.01 $ 44.4¢ $ 43.0%
Low 25.91 23.6: 8.3t 26.0( 23.8¢
Weighted average shares (in milliol
Basic 677.7 672.( 595.: 593.1 590.€
Diluted 689.¢ 682.t 595.: 601.4 599.2
Number of shareholde 43,34( 44,627 46,46( 47,54 47,81(
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(1) All share and per share amounts reflect @gtfior-one common stock split payable October 726 shareholders of record on
September 14, 200

(2) Segmentincome is calculated as income frontiguing operations before income taxes and nanalting interests excluding net
financing charges, debt conversion costs and sigmf restructuring cost

(3) Return on average shareholders’ equity aftaible to Johnson Controls, Inc. (ROE) represemisme from continuing operations
divided by average shareholders’ equity attribigablJohnson Controls, Inc. Income from continwdpgrations includes $230 million
and $495 million of significant restructuring costdiscal year 2009 and 2008, respectiv:

(4) Working capital is defined as current assets current liabilities, excluding cash, shortvtatebt, the current portion of long-term debt
and net assets of discontinued operati

(5) Total debt to total capitalization represdnotal debt divided by the sum of total debt andrsholders’ equity attributable to Johnson
Controls, Inc.

(6) Net book value per share represents shareh’ equity attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.idad by the number of common shares
outstanding at the end of the peri

ITEM 7 MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

General

The Company operates in three primary businesséding efficiency, automotive experience and poselutions. Building efficiency
provides facility systems, services and workpladatons including comfort, energy and security mgement for the residential and non-
residential buildings markets. Automotive experiedesigns and manufactures interior systems ardlipt®for passenger cars and light
trucks, including vans, pick-up trucks and spodgsover utility vehicles. Power solutions desigmd mmanufactures automotive batteries for
the replacement and original equipment markets.

This discussion summarizes the significant facadiscting the consolidated operating results, faiancondition and liquidity of the
Company for the three-year period ended Septenthe2@®.1. This discussion should be read in conjanatith Item 8, the consolidated
financial statements and the notes to consolid@adcial statements.

Executive Overview

In fiscal 2011, the Company recorded net saleg10f&billion, a 19% increase from the prior yeaet Micome attributable to Johnson
Controls, Inc. was $1.6 billion, a 9% increase fribv@ prior year. The increase is primarily the hestiincreased industry production volumes
in the automotive markets and the impact of actjoiss. The Company experienced market share gaithfigher segment income in all th
businesses. The Company continues to introduceanevenhanced technology applications in all buse®and markets served, while at the
same time improving the quality of its products.

Building efficiency business net sales and segrimeime increased 16% and 6%, respectively, compartitk prior year primarily due to
higher sales volumes in all segments, strong emgngiarket growth and the favorable impact of faneigrrency translation.

The automotive experience business net sales gnaese income increased 21% and 29%, respectivetgpared to the prior year primarily
due to higher automobile production in all segmethies impact of acquisitions and the favorable iotd foreign currency translation.

Net sales and segment income for the power soltioisiness increased by 20% and 21%, respecti@iypared to the prior year primar
due to increased demand and higher unit pricedtirgggfrom increases in the cost of lead.

Compared to September 30, 2010, the Company’s lbdefat increased by $1.8 billion, increasing tbial debt to capitalization ratio to 32%
at September 30, 2011 from 25% at September 3@.201
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Outlook

In fiscal 2012, the Company anticipates that nkgtssaill grow to approximately $44.2 billion, arcirease of 8% from fiscal 2011 net sales,
and that earnings will increase to approximately\83$2 $3.00 per diluted share. Sales and margimdugments are expected in all three
businesses in fiscal 2012. The Company expecteh@gil2 automotive production in North America &fdna, with relatively flat European
production versus fiscal 2011. The Company forexctstt the global building efficiency market withprove slightly in fiscal 2012 as strong
growth in the emerging markets, especially Chindtae Middle East, offset softness in mature ggugjcamarkets.

The Company expects building efficiency revenueastoease by 9% — 11% in fiscal 2012 due to stioacklogs, a moderate improvement
in service revenues, and the continued growthsodiitergy solutions and global workplace solutiamsinesses. Segment margins are expe

to increase to 5.6% — 5.8% led by the benefitsloba volume growth and improvements in the serbissiness. The Company expects that
the higher margins will be partially offset by istments in growth initiatives including a salexexpansion, information technology
investments and costs associated with the intrazluct new products. The Company recently introduanoptix, a suite of cloud-hosted
building efficiency applications that make it edasycollect and manage data from disparate buildirsgems and other data sources.

The Company forecasts approximately 6% revenue throwfiscal 2012 by its automotive experience hass, reflecting higher global
production volumes and approximately $1.4 billiomew program launches, partially offset by theatieg impact of a weaker euro.
Excluding currency, revenues are expected to iser8&. In China, inclusive of non-consolidatedtjeientures, the Company expects total
revenues to increase by 21% to approximately $4liBrb Segment margins are expected to improve.88% — 5.5% in fiscal 2012 as a
result of the higher volumes and the full year li¢ioé acquisitions completed in fiscal 2011. InrBpe, margins are expected to improve
significantly as the Company continues to reducgrajional and launch related inefficiencies.

Power solutions fiscal 2012 revenues are expeot@tttease 11% — 13% due to higher volumes acibesgions resulting from market
share gains and the full year impact of productibthe Changxing plant in China. Segment margia®apected to increase to 13.5% —
13.9% reflecting the benefits of vertical integoatifor the recycling of lead and the start of aduiet mix shift toward absorbent glass mat
(AGM) battery technology. The higher segment mafgpm these factors will be partially offset by exyses associated with the consolida
of its hybrid battery business.

Segment Analysis

Management evaluates the performance of its busingiss based primarily on segment income, whiakefined as income from continuing
operations before income taxes and noncontrolhiterésts excluding net financing charges, debt emion costs and significant restructui
costs.

Effective October 1, 2010, the building efficiertmysiness unit reorganized its management repostimigture to reflect its current business
activities. Historical information has been revisedeflect the new building efficiency reportaklegment structure and certain building
efficiency cost allocation methodology changes.eRés Note 18, “Segment Information,” of the nategonsolidated financial statements for
further information.

FISCAL YEAR 2011 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR 2010

Summary
Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change
Net sales $40,83: $34,30¢ 19%
Segment incom 2,28¢ 1,93: 18%

. The $6.5 billion increase in consolidated ne¢salas primarily due to higher sales in the autoraaxperience business
($3.1 billion) as a result of increased industrgdurction levels in all segments and incrementassdlie to business acquisitions;
higher sales in the building efficiency businesk 7$billion) as a result of higher sales in allreegts; higher sales in the power
solutions business ($0.9 billio
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reflecting higher sales volumes, the impddtigher lead costs on pricing and sales associatida prior year business acquisition;
and the favorable impact of foreign currency tratish ($0.8 billion).

. Excluding the favorable impact of foreign curreti@nslation, consolidated net sales increased Is7ébmpared to the prior yei

. The $352 million increase in segment income wasarily due to higher volumes in the automotiv@esience, building efficiency
and power solutions businesses; favorable pricmproduct mix net of lead and other commodity €@sthe power solutions
business; operating income of current year acduistin the automotive experience Europe segmeudititee favorable impact of
foreign currency translation ($45 million). Thesetbrs were partially offset by higher selling, geat and administrative expenses
net of an automotive experience legal settlememtrdywunfavorable margin rates in the building éficy business; and the negative
impact of the earthquake in Japan and related svEisical 2011 segment income includes a gain quisition of a partially-owned
affiliate net of acquisition costs, related pur@ascounting adjustments and a partially-ownediattis restatement of prior period
income in the power solutions business ($37 mijlicosts related to business acquisitions in thieraative experience Europe
segment ($64 million); and restructuring costs (84dBon). Fiscal 2010 segment income includes dixesset impairment charges
recorded in the automotive experience Asia segif$22 million) and a gain on acquisition of a powelutions Korean partially-
owned affiliate net of acquisition costs and relgterchase accounting adjustments ($37 milli

. Excluding the favorable impact of foreign currgti@nslation, consolidated segment income incikka$86 as compared to the prior
year.

Building Efficiency

Net Sales Segment Incom
for the Year Ende for the Year Ende
September 3( September 3(

(in millions) 2011 2010 Change 2011 2010 Change
North America system $ 2,34: $ 2,142 9% $ 23¢ $ 20€ 16%
North America servic 2,30t 2,127 8% 11z 117 -3%
Global workplace solutior 4,15z 3,28¢ 26% 16 40 -60%
Asia 1,84( 1,422 29% 24¢ 17¢€ 40%
Other 4,252 3,82: 11% 99 132 -25%

$14,89: $12,80: 16% $ 71€ $ 67: 6%

Net Sales

. The increase in North America systems was prigndrie to higher volumes of equipment and contsgltems in the commercial
construction and replacement markets ($191 millaang the favorable impact from foreign currencystation ($10 million)

. The increase in North America service was prifpatiie to higher volumes, mainly driven by energlugons and truck-based
business ($120 million), incremental sales duepa@ year business acquisition ($46 million) dhe favorable impact of foreign
currency translation ($12 million

. The increase in global workplace solutions wasarily due to a net increase in services to ned/existing customers
($709 million) and the favorable impact of foreigurrency translation ($156 millior

. The increase in Asia was primarily due to higl@umes of equipment and controls systems ($256omj| the favorable impact of
foreign currency translation ($98 million) and héglservice volumes including the negative impadhefJapan earthquake and
related events ($65 million

. The increase in other was primarily due to higr@umes in the Middle East ($198 million), Latin&rica ($107 million) and
Europe ($39 million), and the favorable impactafign currency translation ($85 milliot

26




Table of Contents

Segment Income:

. The increase in North America systems was prisndrie to higher volumes ($38 million), favorablamin rates ($24 million), prior
year reserves for existing customers ($13 millam) the favorable impact of foreign currency tratish ($1 million), partially offse
by higher selling, general and administrative exgesn($43 million)

. The decrease in North America service was prigndtie to unfavorable mix and margin rates ($79iam) and higher selling,
general and administrative expenses ($4 millioajtiglly offset by prior year inventory adjustmeatsd information technology
implementation costs ($55 million), higher volunf®25 million) and the favorable impact of foreigmency translation
($1 million).

. The decrease in global workplace solutions wasaily due to unfavorable margin rates ($41 mili@nd higher selling, general
and administrative expenses ($37 million), pastialifset by higher volumes ($49 million) and thedeable impact of foreign
currency translation ($5 million

. The increase in Asia was primarily due to highelumes ($82 million) and the favorable impactafefign currency translation
(%15 million), partially offset by higher sellingeneral and administrative expenses ($27 milli

. The decrease in other was primarily due to higleding, general and administrative expenses (Bi#ll®n), restructuring costs
($35 million), non-recurring charges related to thodimerica indirect taxes ($24 million), unfavoralhargin rates ($16 million) and
distribution business costs ($11 million), partiaffset by higher volumes ($75 million), highernéty income ($18 million) and the
favorable impact of foreign currency translatio@ (8illion).

Automotive Experience

Net Sales Segment Incom
for the Year Ende for the Year Ende
September 3( September 3(

(in millions) 2011 2010 Change 2011 2010 Change
North America $ 7,431 $ 6,76F 10% $ 404 $ 37¢ 7%
Europe 10,26 8,01¢ 28% 114 10E 9%
Asia 2,367 1,82¢ 30% 245 107 127%

$20,06¢ $16,61( 21% $ 761 $ 591 29%

Net Sales

. The increase in North America was primarily dodigher volumes to the Company’s major OEM custeni®779 million),
incremental sales due to business acquisitions9(#iifion) and net favorable commercial settlemeartd pricing ($21 million),
partially offset by the negative impact of the Japarthquake and related events ($263 milli

. The increase in Europe was primarily due to higlwdumes and new customer awards including thatmegimpact of the Japan
earthquake and related events ($1.1 billion), imenetal sales due to business acquisitions ($89®n)iland the favorable impact of
foreign currency translation ($295 million), paliijeoffset by net unfavorable commercial settlensesrtd pricing ($37 million’

. The increase in Asia was primarily due to higlh@umes and new customer awards including the negahpact of the Japan
earthquake and related events ($455 million), @verfable impact of foreign currency translation§$&illion) and incremental sales
due to business acquisitions ($13 million), paltiaffset by unfavorable commercial settlements pnding ($15 million).

Segment Income:

. The increase in North America was primarily dodigher volumes ($160 million), higher equity ine® ($6 million) and net
favorable commercial settlements and pricing ($%ion), partially offset by the negative impacttbe earthquake in Japan and
related events ($61 million), higher selling, gett@nd administrative expenses net of a legalese&ht award ($48 million), higher
engineering expenses ($27 million) and higher pastiy costs ($8 million
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. The increase in Europe was primarily due to higltdumes including the negative impact of the lequike in Japan and related
events ($95 million), operating income of curreeéiyacquisitions ($75 million), lower selling, gesleand administrative expenses
($14 million) and the favorable impact of foreiguriency translation ($9 million), partially offsey costs related to business
acquisitions ($64 million), higher operating co&58 million), unfavorable commercial settlements @ricing ($34 million), higher
engineering expenses ($22 million) and higher pastiy costs ($9 million

. The increase in Asia was primarily due to higlh@umes including the negative impact of the eargkg in Japan and related events
($84 million), higher equity income mainly in Chi(®55 million), prior year asset impairment chargedapan ($22 million), lower
purchasing costs ($19 million), lower operatingtsd$13 million) and the favorable impact of foreigurrency translation
(%4 million), partially offset by higher sellingegeral and administrative expenses ($34 millionjaworable pricing ($16 million)
and higher engineering expenses ($12 milli

Power Solutions

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change
Net sales $5,87¢ $4,89: 20%
Segment incom 80¢ 66¢ 21%

. Net sales increased primarily due to the impadctigtier lead costs on pricing ($287 million), higlsates volumes including ti
negative impact of the earthquake in Japan antecelvents ($283 million), sales associated wiphi@r year business acquisition
($261 million), favorable price/product mix ($81lhain) and the favorable impact of foreign curreni@nslation ($70 million)

. Segment income increased primarily due to favlerphicing and product mix net of lead and othenowdity costs ($145 million);
higher sales volumes ($56 million); gain on acdiariof a partially-owned affiliate net of acquisit costs, related purchase
accounting adjustments and a partially-owned edffiliate’s restatement of prior period income T$8illion); income associated
with a prior year business acquisition ($30 mil)icend the favorable impact of foreign currencyislation ($8 million); partially
offset by higher operating and transportation c(43 million); higher selling, general and admirative expenses ($44 million);
prior year net gain on acquisition of a Korean ipyt-owned affiliate ($37 million); and lower equity imme ($8 million).

Net Financing Charges

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change

Net financing charge $174 $17C 2%
. The increase in net financing charges was primdirily to higher debt levels partially offset by loweerest rates in fiscal 201

Provision for Income Taxes

The effective rate is below the U.S. statutory ate to continuing global tax planning initiativéscome in certain non-U.S. jurisdictions
with a rate of tax lower than the U.S. statutosyr@e and certain discrete period items.

Valuation Allowances

The Company reviews its deferred tax asset valnatimwances on a quarterly basis, or whenevertsvarchanges in circumstances indic
that a review is required. In determining the regent for a valuation allowance, the historical pmojected financial results of the legal
entity or consolidated group recording the net defetax asset are considered, along with any qtbsitive or negative evidence. Since
future financial results may differ from previoustimates, periodic adjustments to the Company'satain allowances may be necessary.
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In fiscal 2011, the Company recorded an overaltelse to its valuation allowances of $20 milliomyarily due to a $30 million discrete
period income tax adjustment in the fourth quaitethe fourth quarter of fiscal 2011, the Compameyformed an analysis related to the
evidence, the Company determined that it was nikeéylthan not that the deferred tax assets primaithin Denmark, Italy, automotive
experience in Korea and automotive experiencearuthited Kingdom would be utilized. Therefore, tbempany released a net $30 million
of valuation allowances in the three month periodesl September 30, 2011.

In fiscal 2010, the Company recorded an overaltelse to its valuation allowances of $87 milliomyarily due to a $111 million discrete
period income tax adjustment. In the fourth quanfdiscal 2010, the Company performed an analydeted to the realizability of its
worldwide deferred tax assets. As a result, aret afinsidering tax planning initiatives and othesipive and negative evidence, the Comg.
determined that it was more likely than not that deferred tax assets primarily within Mexico wobklutilized. Therefore, the Company
released $39 million of valuation allowances inttiieee month period ended September 30, 2010. érttie Company determined that it
was more likely than not that the deferred tax tzsseuld not be utilized in selected entities indpe. Therefore, the Company recorded
$14 million of valuation allowances in the threenttoperiod ended September 30, 2010. To the ettieffompany improves its underlying
operating results in these entities, these valnatibwances, or a portion thereof, could be resgia future periods.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2010, the Companted®mined that it was more likely than not that atipo of the deferred tax assets within the
Slovakia automotive entity would be utilized. THere, the Company released $13 million of valuaatiowances in the three month period
ended June 30, 2010.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2010, the Companyedmined that it was more likely than not that atipo of the deferred tax assets within the
Brazil automotive entity would be utilized. Therefothe Company released $69 million of valuatibomeaances. This was comprised of a ¢
million decrease in income tax expense offset B4 million reduction in cumulative translation astiments.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Compamgréased the valuation allowances by $20 milliomictv was substantially offset by a
decrease in its reserves for uncertain tax postiora similar amount. These adjustments were basedreview of tax return filing positions
taken in these jurisdictions and the establishedres.

It is reasonably possible that over the next 12 thigrvaluation allowances recorded against defdepedssets in certain jurisdictions of up to
$50 million may be adjusted.

Uncertain Tax Positions

The Company is subject to income taxes in the Bh8.numerous non-U.S. jurisdictions. Judgmentdsired in determining its worldwide
provision for income taxes and recording the rela@ssets and liabilities. In the ordinary coursthefCompany’s business, there are many
transactions and calculations where the ultimat@é&iermination is uncertain. The Company is redplander audit by tax authorities.

Based on published case law in a non-U.S. jurisdia@nd the settlement of a tax audit during thedthuarter of fiscal 2010, the Company
released net $38 million of reserves for uncertaxnpositions, including interest and penalties.

As a result of certain events related to prior ya&mlanning initiatives during the first quartdrfiscal 2010, the Company increased the
reserve for uncertain tax positions by $31 milliortluding $26 million of interest and penalties.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Compasgréased its reserves for uncertain tax positigri20 million, which was substantially
offset by an increase in its valuation allowancea similar amount. These adjustments were basedreview of tax filing positions taken in
jurisdictions with valuation allowances as indichtdbove

The Company’s federal income tax returns and gertan.S. income tax returns for various fiscal yearam under various stages of a
by the Internal Revenue Service and respectivelh&tax authorities. Although the outcome of taits is always uncertain, management
believes that it has appropriate support for thatfmms taken on its tax returns and that its ahtauxaprovisions included amounts sufficien
pay assessments, if any, which may be proposededtaking authorities. At September 30, 2011, them@any had recorded a liability for its
best estimate of the probable loss on certairsdfit positions, the majority of which is includedther
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noncurrent liabilities in the consolidated statetaanf financial position. Nonetheless, the amouwittismately paid, if any, upon resolution of
the issues raised by the taxing authorities, mégrdinaterially from the amounts accrued for eaebry

It is reasonably possible that certain tax exanonat appellate proceedings and/or tax litigatidih @@nclude within the next 12 months, the
impact of which could be up to a $100 million adijment to tax expense.

Impacts of Tax Legisiation and Change in Statutory Tax Rates

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 20Xlletzislation was adopted in various jurisdictioN®ne of these changes are expected to
have a material impact on the Company’s consoliifitencial condition, results of operations ortcllews.

On March 23, 2010, the U.S. President signed emodomprehensive health care reform legislatioreutite Patient Protection and
Affordable Care Act (HR3590). Included among thganarovisions of the law is a change in the taatment of a portion of Medicare

Part D medical payments. The Company recorded easbrntax charge of approximately $18 million in seeond quarter of fiscal year 2010
to reflect the impact of this change. In the fougtiarter of fiscal 2010, the amount decreased byifibn resulting in an overall impact of
$16 million.

Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change
Income attributable to noncontrolling intere $117 $75 56%

. The increase in income attributable to noncolitrlinterests was primarily due to higher earniagsertain automotive experience
partially-owned affiliates in North America and Asia and avposolutions partial-owned affiliate.

Net Income Attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change

Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, $1,62¢ $1,491 9%

. The increase in net income attributable to Johi@ontrols, Inc. was primarily due to higher voligie the automotive experience,
building efficiency and power solutions busines$agorable pricing and product mix net of lead atiter commaodity costs in the
power solutions business; operating income of ciilyear acquisitions in the automotive experiengefe segment; and the favorable
impact of foreign currency translation. These feztoere partially offset by higher selling, genexatl administrative expenses net of an
automotive experience legal settlement award; wrihie margin rates in the building efficiency mesis; the negative impact of the
earthquake in Japan and related events; an incireéise provision for income taxes; and higher meoattributable to noncontrolling
interests. Fiscal 2011 net income attributableotmdon Controls, Inc. includes a gain on acquisitiba partially-owned affiliate net of
acquisition costs, related purchase accountingstdgnts and a partially-owned affiliate’s restatetred prior period income in the
power solutions business; costs related to busmepsisitions in the automotive experience Eurgmgrent; and restructuring costs.
Fiscal 2010 net income attributable to Johnson @&mtinc. includes fixed asset impairment chamgesrded in the automotive
experience Asia segment and a gain on acquisifianpower solutions Korean partially-owned affiéiatet of acquisition costs and
related purchase accounting adjustments. Fiscdl @dted earnings per share was $2.36 compartftetprior year’s diluted earnings
per share of $2.1!
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FISCAL YEAR 2010 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR 2009

Summary
Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2010 2009 Change
Net sales $34,30¢ $28,49° 20%
Segment incom 1,93: 262 *

*  Measure not meaningf

e The $5.8 hillion increase in consolidated ne¢savas primarily due to higher sales in the autora@xperience business ($4.5 billion)
as a result of increased industry production leirelll segments, higher sales in the power sabstinusiness ($0.8 billion) reflecting
higher sales volumes and the impact of higher teestis on pricing, the favorable impact of foreigmrency translation ($0.5 billion)
and a slight increase in building efficiency ndesz

e Excluding the favorable impact of foreign curreni@nslation, consolidated net sales increased 19ébmpared to the prior yei

e The $1.7 billion increase in consolidated segnirerdme was primarily due to higher volumes in gélitomotive experience and power
solutions businesses, favorable operating costeimutomotive experience North America segmergréble overall margin rates in
the building efficiency business, impairment charggcorded in the prior year on an equity investrirethe building efficiency other
segment ($152 million), incremental warranty chargeeorded in the prior year in the building effinty other segment ($105 millio
fixed asset impairment charges recorded in the ggar in the automotive experience North Americd Burope segments
($77 million and $33 million, respectively), gain acquisition of a Korean partially-owned affiliatet of acquisition costs and related
purchase accounting adjustments in the power solsitbusiness ($37 million) and higher equity incomténe automotive experience
and power solutions businesses, partially offsetigier selling, general and administrative expsnfieed asset impairment charges
recorded in the automotive experience Asia segit$2# million) and the unfavorable impact of foreigurrency translation
($6 million).

Building Efficiency

Net Sales Segment Incom
for the Year Ende for the Year Ende
September 3( September 3(

(in millions) 2010 2009 Change 2010 2009 Change
North America system $ 2,142 $ 2,222 -4% $ 20¢€ $ 25¢ -20%
North America servic 2,12 2,16¢ -2% 117 18¢ -38%
Global workplace solutior 3,28¢ 2,832 16% 40 58 -31%
Asia 1,42 1,29 10% 17¢ 17C 5%
Other 3,827 3,97¢ -4% 132 (27€) *

$12,80: $12,49: 2% $ 673 $ 397 70%

*  Measure not meaningf
Net Sales

«  The decrease in North America systems was priynduie to lower volumes of equipment in the comrarconstruction and
replacement markets ($101 million) partially offbgtthe favorable impact from foreign currency slation ($21 million).
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The decrease in North America service was prigdtie to lower truck-based business ($155 millipaitially offset by higher
volumes in energy solutions ($72 million), the featnle impact of foreign currency translation ($2#ian) and incremental sales due
to a business acquisition ($20 millio

The increase in global workplace solutions wamarily due to a net increase in services to exgstiustomers ($208 million), new
business ($151 million) and the favorable impadbogign currency translation ($97 millior

The increase in Asia was primarily due to favtgatmpact of foreign currency translation ($56 roitl), higher volumes of equipment
and controls systems ($39 million) and higher srviolumes ($34 million]

The decrease in other was primarily due to lovedumes in Europe ($290 million), the Middle Ea®38 million) and other business
areas ($11 million), partially offset by improvené@mthe U.S. residential replacement markets fotany products ($96 million) and
the favorable impact of foreign currency transhati§83 million).

Segment Income:

The decrease in North America systems was priynduie to lower volumes ($17 million), unfavorabfrgin rates ($15 million),
reserves for existing customers ($13 million) aighbr selling, general and administrative expei$8snillion), partially offset by th
favorable impact of foreign currency translatio (8illion).

The decrease in North America service was prigdrie to information technology implementationtsocsnd inventory adjustments
($55 million), lower volumes in truck-based serg¢®18 million), higher selling, general and admiirdtive expenses ($6 million),
partially offset by favorable margin rates ($6 ioifl) and the favorable impact of foreign curremanslation ($2 million)

The decrease in global workplace solutions wamanily due to higher selling, general, and adnimaisve expenses ($27 million)
primarily related to business development investsiand unfavorable margin rates ($24 million), ipdyt offset by higher volumes
(%24 million), prior year bad debt expense assediatith a customer bankruptcy ($8 million) and fdneorable impact of foreign
currency translation ($1 million

The increase in Asia was primarily due to higbedes volumes ($19 million), favorable margin rg&&4 million) and the favorable
impact of foreign currency translation ($4 milliopjrtially offset by higher selling, general amiranistrative expenses ($29 milliot

The increase in other was primarily due to fabtganargin rates ($218 million), prior year impa@m charges recorded on an equity
investment ($152 million), prior year incrementamanty charges ($105 million) and prior year ineey related charges ($20
million), partially offset by higher selling, ger@and administrative expenses ($66 million) prifgaelated to investments in
emerging markets and increased engineering speratidgower volumes ($19 million

Automotive Experience

Net Sales Segment Incom
for the Year Ende for the Year Ende
September 3( September 3(
(in millions) 2010 2009 Change 2010 2009 Change
North America $ 6,76% $ 4,631 46% $ 3¢ $ (339 &
Europe 8,01¢ 6,281 28% 10¢ (212) *
Asia 1,82¢ 1,09¢ 66% 107 4 *
$16,61( $12,01¢ 38% $ 591 $ (54) *

*  Measure not meaningf
Net Sales

The increase in North America was primarily dodigher industry production volumes by the Companyajor OEM customers
(%$2.1 billion) and incremental sales from a bussresyuisition ($58 million), partially offset by favorable commercial settlements
and pricing ($36 million)
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e The increase in Europe was primarily due to higiteduction volumes and new customer awards (Billi8n) partially offset by
unfavorable commercial settlements and pricing ($82on) and the unfavorable impact of foreign @mcy translation ($20 million

e The increase in Asia was primarily due to higheduoiction volumes and new customer awards ($603omjland the favorable impe
of foreign currency translation ($125 millior

Segment Income:

« The increase in North America was primarily dodigher industry production volumes ($478 milliplower operating and selling,
general and administration costs ($152 million)irapairment charge on fixed assets recorded imptie year ($77 million) and
higher equity income ($28 million), partially oftdey higher engineering expenses ($22 millic

« The increase in Europe was primarily due to higiteduction volumes ($350 million), favorable phasing costs ($64 million), an
impairment charge on fixed assets recorded in tioe pear ($33 million), higher equity income ($a0llion) and favorable operating
costs ($8 million), partially offset by higher prigear commercial recoveries ($45 million), higkegineering expenses ($44 million),
higher selling, general and administrative cos&9 (fillion) and the unfavorable impact of foreigmmency translation ($19 million

e Theincrease in Asia was primarily due to highedpction volumes ($90 million), higher equity incemat our joint ventures mainly
China ($62 million) and the favorable impact ofdign currency translation ($1 million), partiallffset by asset impairment charge:
Japan ($22 million), higher engineering expensé&s® (&illion) and higher selling, general and adntmaigve costs ($17 million’

Power Solutions

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2010 2009 Change
Net sales $4,89: $3,98¢ 23%
Segment incom 66¢ 40€ 65%

* Net sales increased primarily due to higher sathsmes ($454 million), the impact of higher leadtsoon pricing ($316 million), th
favorable impact of foreign currency translatio643$nillion), incremental sales due to a businesgiation ($43 million) and
favorable price/product mix ($23 millior

*  Segment income increased primarily due to highaés volumes ($164 million), gain on acquisitiba dorean partially-owned
affiliate net of acquisition costs and related pase accounting adjustments ($37 million) as dssdisn Note 2, “Acquisitions ¢f the
notes to consolidated financial statements, higheity income ($27 million), prior year disposaleoformer manufacturing facility in
Europe and other assets ($20 million), the favarabpact of foreign currency translation ($3 mijand favorable net lead and other
commodity costs and pricing ($56 million), whicltindes a prior year $62 million out of period adijnent as discussed in Note 1,
“Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” ofemotes to consolidated financial statements. &grtffsetting these factors were
higher selling, general and administrative cost&(®illion).

Restructuring Costs

To better align the Company’s cost structure wltdbgl automotive market conditions, the Company mated to a restructuring plan (2009
Plan) in the second quarter of fiscal 2009 andrdExba $230 million restructuring charge. The regtiring charge related to cost reduction
initiatives in the Company’s automotive experierma)ding efficiency and power solutions businessed included workforce reductions and
plant consolidations. The Company expects to subaty complete the 2009 Plan by the end of 20tie automotive-related restructuring
actions targeted excess manufacturing capacitytimgdirom lower industry production in the Europe&orth American and Japanese
automotive markets. The restructuring actions iitding efficiency were primarily in Europe whereetiCompany is centralizing certain
functions and rebalancing its resources to tatgegeographic markets with the greatest potent@aliln. Power solutions actions focused on
optimizing its manufacturing capacity as a restilbaver overall demand for original equipment beés resulting from lower vehicle
production levels.
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Since the announcement of the 2009 Plan in Marél9 2the Company has experienced lower employegaese and termination benefit
cash payouts than previously calculated for autva@xperience in Europe of approximately $70 miliof which $42 million was
identified in fiscal year 2010, due to favorablgesance negotiations and the decision to not gioseiously planned plants in response to
increased customer demand. The underspend ofitla 2009 Plan reserves has been committed foitiaddl costs incurred as part of pov
solutions and automotive experience Europe andhNamerica’s additional cost reduction initiatives.

Refer to Note 15, “Restructuring Costs,” of theasoto consolidated financial statements for furttieclosure related to the Company’s
restructuring plans.

Net Financing Charges

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2010 2009 Change

Net financing charge $17C $23¢ -29%

. The decrease in net financing charges was priynduie to lower debt levels, including the convensof the Company’s convertible
senior notes and Equity Units in September 2008 |@wer interest rates in fiscal 20!

Provision for Income Taxes

The effective rate is below the U.S. statutory chte to continuing global tax planning initiativ@scome in certain non-U.S. jurisdictions
with a rate of tax lower than the U.S. statutoryr@e and certain discrete period items.

Valuation Allowances

The Company reviews its deferred tax asset valnatiowances on a quarterly basis, or whenevertev@rchanges in circumstances indic
that a review is required. In determining the reguient for a valuation allowance, the historical projected financial results of the legal
entity or consolidated group recording the net detketax asset are considered, along with any qbsitive or negative evidence. Since
future financial results may differ from previoustienates, periodic adjustments to the Company’satan allowances may be necessary.

In fiscal 2010, the Company recorded an overaltelse to its valuation allowances of $87 milliomyarily due to a $111 million discrete
period tax adjustment. In the fourth quarter ofdis2010, the Company performed an analysis relatéiae realizability of its worldwide
deferred tax assets. As a result, and after comsgltax planning initiatives and other positivedaregative evidence, the Company
determined that it was more likely than not that deferred tax assets primarily within Mexico wobklutilized. Therefore, the Company
released $39 million of valuation allowances inttiieee month period ended September 30, 2010. énttie Company determined that it
was more likely than not that the deferred tax tzsseuld not be utilized in selected entities in&pe. Therefore, the Company recorded
$14 million of valuation allowances in the threenttoperiod ended September 30, 2010. To the ettieffompany improves its underlying
operating results in these entities, these valnatibwances, or a portion thereof, could be resgia future periods.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2010, the Companted®mined that it was more likely than not that atipo of the deferred tax assets within the
Slovakia automotive entity would be utilized. THere, the Company released $13 million of valuaatiowances in the three month period
ended June 30, 2010.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2010, the Companyedmined that it was more likely than not that atipo of the deferred tax assets within the
Brazil automotive entity would be utilized. Thersfothe Company released $69 million of valuatibomeaances. This was comprised of a ¢
million decrease in income tax expense offset B4 million reduction in cumulative translation astiments.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Compamgréased the valuation allowances by $20 milliomictv was substantially offset by a
decrease in its reserves for uncertain tax postiora similar amount. These adjustments were basedreview of tax return filing positions
taken in these jurisdictions and the establishedres.
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In fiscal 2009, the Company recorded an overalldase to its valuation allowances by $245 millibhis was comprised of a $252 million
increase in income tax expense with the remainmguat impacting the consolidated statement of fierposition.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2009, the Companted®mined that it was more likely than not that atipo of the deferred tax assets within the
Brazil power solutions entity would be utilized. &rkfore, the Company released $10 million of vadmaallowances in the three month
period ended June 30, 2009. This was comprisedb8fraillion decrease in income tax expense withrémeaining amount impacting the
consolidated statement of financial position beeatieelated to acquired net operating losses.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2009, the Compatgrthined that it was more likely than not thatdleéerred tax asset associated with a
capital loss would be utilized. Therefore, the Campreleased $45 million of valuation allowancethimthree month period ended March
20009.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2009, as a resulthef rapid deterioration in the economic environmseveral jurisdictions incurred unexpected
losses in the first quarter that resulted in curitivgdosses over the prior three years. As a reantl after considering tax planning initiatives
and other positive and negative evidence, the Casngatermined that it was more likely than not tiwt deferred tax assets would not be
utilized in several jurisdictions including Franddexico, Spain and the United Kingdom. Therefohe, Company recorded $300 million of
valuation allowances in the three month period dridecember 31, 2008. To the extent the Companydwagwrits underlying operating resi
in these jurisdictions, these valuation allowances portion thereof, could be reversed in fupgaods.

Uncertain Tax Positions

The Company is subject to income taxes in the Bh8.numerous non-U.S. jurisdictions. Judgmentgsired in determining its worldwide
provision for income taxes and recording the relassets and liabilities. In the ordinary coursthefCompany’s business, there are many
transactions and calculations where the ultimatelédermination is uncertain. The Company is redylander audit by tax authorities. In

June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards B{fa#$B) issued guidance prescribing a comprehemsivgel for how a company should
recognize, measure, present, and disclose imasdial statements uncertain tax positions thatnapany has taken or expects to take on a tax
return. The Company adopted this guidance, whidhcisided in ASC 740, “Income Taxes,” as of Octobg2007. As such, accruals for tax
contingencies are provided for in accordance withrequirements of ASC 740.

Based on recently published case law in a hon-jurBBdiction and the settlement of a tax audit dgrihe third quarter of fiscal 2010, the
Company released net $38 million of reserves faettain tax positions, including interest and ptesl

As a result of certain events related to prior ya&mlanning initiatives during the first quartdrfiscal 2010, the Company increased the
reserve for uncertain tax positions by $31 milliovcluding $26 million of interest and penalties.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Compasgréased its reserves for uncertain tax positigri&20 million, which was substantially
offset by an increase in its valuation allowancea similar amount. These adjustments were basedreview of tax filing positions taken in
jurisdictions with valuation allowances as indich&bove

As a result of certain events in various jurisdiot during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2008Juding the settlement of the fiscal 2002
through fiscal 2003 U.S. federal tax examinatidhe,Company decreased its total reserve for urindea positions by $32 million. This was
comprised of a $55 million decrease to tax expamska $23 million increase to goodwill.

As a result of various entities exiting businesseérntain jurisdictions and certain events relatedrtor tax planning initiatives during the third
quarter of fiscal 2009, the Company reduced thervesfor uncertain tax positions by $33 million.i§tvas comprised of a $17 million
decrease to tax expense and a $16 million decteagmodwill.

The Company’s federal income tax returns and gertan.S. income tax returns for various fiscal yearmam under various stages of al
by the Internal Revenue Service and respectivelh&tax authorities. Although the outcome of taits is always uncertain, management
believes that it has appropriate support for thatfmms taken on its tax returns and that its ahtauxaprovisions included amounts sufficien
pay assessments, if any, which may be proposededtaking authorities. At September 30, 2010, them@any had recorded a liability for
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its best estimate of the probable loss on certhits ¢ax positions, the majority of which is inded in other noncurrent liabilities in the
consolidated statements of financial position. Nbeakess, the amounts ultimately paid, if any, upesolution of the issues raised by the
taxing authorities, may differ materially from thmounts accrued for each year.

Changein Tax Status

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, the Compasagarded $84 million in discrete period tax benefdated to a change in tax status of a U.S.
and a U.K. subsidiary. This is comprised of a $58ian tax expense benefit and a $25 million deseeto goodwill. In the second quarter of
fiscal 2009, the Company recorded a $30 milliordite period tax benefit related to a change irstatus of a French subsidiary.

The changes in tax status resulted from volun@xyetections that produced deemed liquidationdJf&. federal income tax purposes. The
Company received tax benefits in the U.S. for tesés from the decrease in value as compared twitheal tax basis of its investments.
These elections changed, for U.S. federal incom@uaposes, the tax status of these entities andegiorted as a discrete period tax bene
accordance with the provision of ASC 740.

Impacts of Tax Legisation and Change in Statutory Tax Rates

On March 23, 2010, the U.S. President signed emodomprehensive health care reform legislatioreutite Patient Protection and
Affordable Care Act (HR3590). Included among thganarovisions of the law is a change in the taatment of a portion of Medicare

Part D medical payments. The Company recorded eastintax charge of approximately $18 million in $eeond quarter of fiscal year 2010
to reflect the impact of this change. In the fougtiarter of fiscal 2010, the amount decreased byifibn resulting in an overall impact of
$16 million.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 20k0getislation was adopted in various jurisdictioN®ne of these changes are expected to
have a material impact on the Company’s consolitiitancial condition, results of operations ortcélews.

In fiscal 2009, the Company obtained High Tech Enise status from the Chinese Tax Bureaus foouarChinese subsidiaries. This status
allows the entities to benefit from a 15% tax rate.

In February 2009, Wisconsin enacted numerous clsatogé/isconsin income tax law as part of the Budighulus and Repair Bill,
Wisconsin Act 2. These changes are effective irtbmpany’s tax year ended September 30, 2010. Hjer changes included an adoption
of corporate unitary combined reporting and an agjm of the related entity expense add back pianss These Wisconsin tax law changes
did not have a material impact on the Company’sobdated financial condition, results of operati@r cash flows.

Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2010 2009 Change
Income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling intEs $75 $(12) *

* Measure not meaningf

. The increase in income attributable to noncolit@linterests was primarily due to improved eagsiat certain automotive experience
partially-owned affiliates in North America and Asia and aposolutions partial-owned affiliate.
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Net Income Attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.

Year Endec
September 3(
(in millions) 2010 2009 Change

Net income (loss) attributable to Johnson Contiols, $1,491 $(33¢) *

* Measure not meaningf

. The increase in net income attributable to Johi@ontrols, Inc. was primarily due to higher volumie the automotive experience and
power solutions businesses, favorable operatintg doshe automotive experience North America segnfavorable overall margin
rates in the building efficiency business, impaintneharges recorded in the prior year on an eguitystment in the building efficiency
other segment, incremental warranty charges redardthe prior year in the building efficiency ottegment, fixed asset impairment
charges recorded in the prior year in the autoreaixperience North America and Europe segments,ayaacquisition of a Korean
partially-owned affiliate in the power solutionsdiness, restructuring charges recorded in the paar, higher equity income in the
automotive experience and power solutions busisesiebdt conversion costs incurred in the prior yeat lower net financing charges,
partially offset by higher selling, general and #nistrative expenses, fixed asset impairment clargeorded in the automotive
experience Asia segment, an increase in the poowvisr income taxes and higher income attributédleoncontrolling interests. Fiscal
2010 diluted earnings per share was $2.19 comparistal 2009 diluted loss per share of $0

GOODWILL, LONG-LIVED ASSETS AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

Goodwill at September 30, 2011 was $7.0 billionlSHillion higher than the prior year. The increases primarily due to the impact of
current year acquisitions.

Goodwill reflects the cost of an acquisition in egs of the fair values assigned to identifiableassets acquired. The Company reviews
goodwill for impairment during the fourth fiscal ager or more frequently if events or changes iourhstances indicate the asset might be
impaired. The Company performs impairment reviesvsts reporting units, which have been determiteebe the Company’s reportable
segments or one level below the reportable segnmetstain instances, using a fair-value methagedaon management’s judgments and
assumptions or third party valuations. The faiueabf a reporting unit refers to the price that lddee received to sell the unit as a whole in
an orderly transaction between market participahthe measurement date. In estimating the faireyaghe Company uses multiples of
earnings based on the average of historical, fhadisnultiples of earnings of comparable entitieth\wimilar operations and economic
characteristics. In certain instances, the Compeseg discounted cash flow analyses to further sufpefair value estimates. The inputs
utilized in the analyses are classified as LeviepBits within the fair value hierarchy as definedSC 820, “Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures.” The estimated fair value is then cared with the carrying amount of the reporting uinicluding recorded goodwill. The
Company is subject to financial statement riskhéxtent that the carrying amount exceeds thmatd fair value. The impairment testing
performed by the Company in the fourth quartersdfal year 2011, 2010 and 2009 indicated that stimmated fair value of each reporting
unit substantially exceeded its corresponding @agramount including recorded goodwill, and as suchimpairment existed at
September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009. No reportingwas determined to be at risk of failing step ohthe goodwill impairment test.

At December 31, 2010, in conjunction with the pragian of its financial statements, the Companysssd goodwill for impairment in the
building efficiency business due to the changesportable segments as described in Note 18, “Setgmienmation,” of the notes to
consolidated financial statements. As a result@bmpany performed impairment testing for goodwiitler the new segment structure and
determined that the estimated fair value of eapbnteng unit substantially exceeded its correspogdiarrying amount including recorded
goodwill, and as such, no impairment existed atdbgwer 31, 2010. No reporting unit was determindaktat risk of failing step one of the
goodwill impairment test.

At March 31, 2009, in conjunction with the prepamatof its financial statements, the Company codetlit had a triggering event requiring
the assessment of impairment of goodwill in themdtive experience Europe segment due to the agdidecline in the automotive market.
As a result, the Company performed impairmentrgdior
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goodwill and determined that fair value of the ndipg unit exceeded its carrying value and no impant existed at March 31, 2009.

At December 31, 2008, in conjunction with the pragian of its financial statements, the Companychaaed it had a triggering event
requiring the assessment of impairment of goodwilhe automotive experience North America and Barsegments and the building
efficiency other segment (formerly unitary produgteup segment) due to the rapid declines in thenaotive and construction markets. As a
result, the Company performed impairment testingyfmdwill and determined that fair values of teparting units exceed their carrying
values and no impairment existed at December 318.2Do further support the fair value estimatethefautomotive experience North
America and building efficiency other segments, Glmpany prepared a discounted cash flow analyatsaiso indicated the fair value
exceeded the carrying value for each reporting Uiié assumptions supporting the estimated futast fiows of the reporting units,
including profit margins, long-term sales forecastsl growth rates, reflect the Company’s best edém The assumptions related to
automotive experience sales volumes reflectedstpeated continued automotive industry decline \aitleturn to fiscal 2008 volume
production levels by fiscal 2013. The assumpti@iated to the construction market sales volumédsatefd steady growth beginning in fiscal
2010.

Indefinite lived other intangible assets are aldgjexct to at least annual impairment testing. Othingible assets with definite lives continue
to be amortized over their estimated useful lives are subject to impairment testing if eventstamges in circumstances indicate that the
asset might be impaired. A considerable amountafagement judgment and assumptions are requirgetHiorming the impairment tests.
While the Company believes the judgments and asSangoused in the impairment tests are reasonatolena impairment existed at
September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, different asomspcould change the estimated fair values dredefore, impairment charges could be
required.

The Company reviews the realizability of its dedertax assets on a quarterly basis, or whenevaitswe changes in circumstances indicate
that a review is required. In determining the regment for a valuation allowance, the historical projected financial results of the legal
entity or consolidated group recording the net defkttax asset are considered, along with any qtbsitive or negative evidence. Since
future financial results may differ from previoustienates, periodic adjustments to the Company’satain allowances may be necessary.

The Company has certain subsidiaries, mainly lacaid-rance and Spain, which have generated opgratid/or capital losses and, in cer
circumstances, have limited loss carryforward pksidn accordance with ASC 740, “Income Taxes,"Goenpany is required to record a
valuation allowance when it is more likely than tlee Company will not utilize deductible amountset operating losses for each legal
entity or consolidated group based on the tax rinlé¢ise applicable jurisdiction, evaluating bothsjtive and negative historical evidences as
well as expected future events and tax plannirajegres.

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairmérenever events or changes in circumstancesatedtbat the asset’s carrying amount
may not be recoverable. The Company conductsntg-liwed asset impairment analyses in accordante A8C 360-10-15, “Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” ASC 360-10-15 regaithe Company to group assets and liabiliti¢seatowest level for which identifiable
cash flows are largely independent of the cashdlofwther assets and liabilities and evaluata#set group against the sum of the
undiscounted future cash flows. If the undiscourtiash flows do not indicate the carrying amourthefasset group is recoverable, an
impairment charge is measured as the amount byhwth&carrying amount of the asset group exceedaiitvalue based on discounted cash
flow analysis or appraisals.

At September 30, 2011, the Company concluded ihdichave any triggering events requiring assessofempairment of its long-lived
assets.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Compaopaluded it had a triggering event requiring assesd of impairment of its long-lived
assets due to the planned relocation of a pladapan in the automotive experience Asia segmenrd rasult, the Company reviewed its long-
lived assets for impairment and recorded an $1liomilmpairment charge within cost of sales in therth quarter of fiscal 2010 related to
automotive experience Asia segment. The impairmastmeasured under a market approach utilizingopragsal. The inputs utilized in the
analysis are classified as Level 3 inputs withim fidar value hierarchy as defined in ASC 820, “Ré&tue Measurements and Disclosures.”

In the third quarter of fiscal 2010, the Companpaaded it had a triggering event requiring assessraf impairment of its long-lived assets
due to the planned relocation of its headquarteiigling in Japan in the automotive experience Asigment. As a result, the Company
reviewed its long-lived assets for impairment and
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recorded an $11 million impairment charge withiliisg, general and administrative expenses in lire tquarter of fiscal 2010 related to the
automotive experience Asia segment. The impairmastmeasured under a market approach utilizingopragsal. The inputs utilized in the
analysis are classified as Level 3 inputs withim filir value hierarchy as defined in ASC 820, “Ré&tue Measurements and Disclosures.”

In the second quarter of fiscal 2010, the Compamgcluded it had a triggering event requiring assesd of impairment of its long-lived
assets due to planned plant closures for the adioenexperience North America segment. These céssare a result of the Company’s
revised restructuring actions to the 2008 PlaneR&f Note 15, “Restructuring Costs,” of the ndtesonsolidated financial statements for
further information regarding the 2008 Plan. Agsutt, the Company reviewed its lotiged assets for impairment and recorded a $19an
impairment charge in the second quarter of fis@dl2related to the automotive experience North Acaegsegment. This impairment charge
was offset by a decrease in the Company’s restingtueserve related to the 2008 Plan due to l@ugployee severance and termination
benefit cash payments than previously expectedisasissed further in Note 15. The impairment waasueed under an income approach
utilizing forecasted discounted cash flows for 4ils2010 through 2014 to determine the fair valuthefimpaired assets. This method is
consistent with the method the Company has emplaypdor periods to value other long-lived assé&tse inputs utilized in the discounted
cash flow analysis are classified as Level 3 inmuitBin the fair value hierarchy as defined in A820, “Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures.”

In the third quarter of fiscal 2009, the Companpaaded it had a triggering event requiring assesgraf impairment of its long-lived assets
in light of the restructuring plans in North Amexiannounced by Chrysler LLC (Chrysler) and Gendiatbrs Corporation (GM) during the
quarter as part of their bankruptcy reorganizagilams. As a result, the Company reviewed its longd assets relating to the Chrysler and
GM platforms within the automotive experience Noiherica segment and determined no impairmentexkist

In the second quarter of fiscal 2009, the Compamgluded it had a triggering event requiring assesd of impairment of its long-lived
assets in conjunction with its restructuring plan@unced in March 2009. As a result, the Companigweed its long-lived assets associated
with the plant closures for impairment and recordeég#16 million impairment charge in the second tpreof fiscal 2009, of which $25 millic
related to the automotive experience North Amesegment, $16 million related to the automotive eemee Asia segment and $5 million
related to the automotive experience Europe segrReffiér to Note 15, “Restructuring Costsf'the notes to consolidated financial statem
for further information regarding the 2009 Plandittbnally, at March 31, 2009, in conjunction wite preparation of its financial
statements, the Company concluded it had a triggexvent requiring assessment of its other longdliassets within the automotive
experience Europe segment due to significant deslim European automotive sales volume. As a rakeltCompany reviewed its other long-
lived assets within the automotive experience Eesggment for impairment and determined no additionpairment existed.

At December 31, 2008, in conjunction with the pregian of its financial statements, the Companyctaated it had a triggering event
requiring assessment of impairment of its longdiessets due to the significant declines in NomfeAican and European automotive sales
volumes. As a result, the Company reviewed its {livef assets for impairment and recorded a $11bamimpairment charge within cost
sales in the first quarter of fiscal 2009, of whi&#7 million related to the automotive experienaetN America segment and $33 million
related to the automotive experience Europe segment

Investments in partially-owned affiliates (“affites”) at September 30, 2011 were $811 million, B88on higher than the prior year. The
increase was primarily due to positive earningsdayain automotive experience affiliates primaiiyAsia, an initial investment in a power
solutions affiliate and affiliates acquired as mHrturrent year business acquisitions, partiaffget by dividends paid by affiliates and the
acquisition of the controlling interest in a fordyeunconsolidated power solutions affiliate.

The Company reviews its equity investments for impant whenever there is a loss in value of anstment which is other than a tempor
decline. The Company conducts its equity investnmapairment analyses in accordance with ASC 328/éstments-Equity Method and
Joint Ventures.” ASC 323 requires the Company tom an impairment charge for a decrease in vdia® investment when the decline in
the investment is considered to be other than teanpo

At December 31, 2008, in conjunction with the pregian of its financial statements, the Companyctaated it had a triggering event
requiring assessment of impairment of its equitiegiment in a 48%-owned joint venture with U.S.cainditioning Distributors, Inc. (U.S.
Air) due to the significant decline in North Ameaitresidential housing construction starts, whiatt significantly impacted the financial
results of the equity investment. The
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Company reviewed its equity investment in U.S. fAirimpairment and as a result, recorded a $15Ramiimpairment charge within equity
income (loss) for the building efficiency other st in the first quarter of fiscal 2009. The UAS.investment balance included in the
consolidated statement of financial position attSeyber 30, 2011 was $53 million. The Company da¢snticipate future impairment of
this investment as, based on its current forecadtsther decline in value that is other than terapy is not considered reasonably likely to
occur.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Working Capital

September 3( September 3(
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change
Working capital $1,58¢ $ 91¢ 73%
Accounts receivabl 7,151 6,09t 17%
Inventories 2,31¢ 1,78¢ 30%
Accounts payabl 6,15¢ 5,42¢ 14%

. The Company defines working capital as curres¢®sless current liabilities, excluding cash, skerm debt, the current portion of
long-term debt and net assets of discontinued tipaga Management believes that this measure okimgcapital, which excludes
financin¢-related items and discontinued activities, proviglesore useful measurement of the Com’s operating performanc

. The increase in working capital at September 30128 compared to September 30, 2010 was prindaréyto current year acquisitio
higher accounts receivable from higher sales votuamal higher inventory levels to support higheesgbartially offset by higher
accounts payable primarily due to increased purchactivity.

. The Company’s days sales in accounts receivaueedsed to 52 at September 30, 2011 from 55 égpttilor year primarily due to
improved collections. The increase in accountsivabée compared to September 30, 2010 was primdué/to increased sales in the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2011 compared to the sgomter in the prior year. There has been no samif adverse change in the level of
overdue receivables or changes in revenue recogmitethods

. The Company’s inventory turns during fiscal 2@idre slightly lower compared to the prior year iity due to increased inventory
build to meet increased demal

. Days in accounts payable at September 30, 20dreawed to 71 days from 74 days at September 30, @@marily due to the timing of
supplier payment:

Cash Flows

Year Ended September &
(in millions) 2011 2010
Cash provided by operating activiti $1,07¢ $1,43¢
Cash used by investing activiti (2,637 (892
Cash provided (used) by financing activit 1,23¢ (89%)
Capital expenditure (1,325 (777)

. The decrease in cash provided by operating sieswvas primarily due to unfavorable changes ooants receivable, inventory, other
assets and accounts payable, partially offset flgdrinet income and favorable changes in accruemia taxes

. The increase in cash used by investing activitias primarily due to higher capital expenditures aoguisitions of businesse

. The increase in cash provided by financing adtisiwas primarily due to an increase in overdliitdevels. Refer to Note 8, “Debt and
Financing Arrangemen” of the notes to consolidated financial statememt$urther discussior

. The increase in capital expenditures in the cityear primarily related to capacity increases artical integration efforts in the power
solutions business, increased investments to stippstomer growth an
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enhance the Company’s strategic footprint prilnan Mexico and Southeast Asia, and informatteohnology infrastructure
investments

Capitalization

September 3 September 3
(in millions) 2011 2010 Chang
Total debt $ 5,14¢ $ 3,38¢ 52%
Shareholder equity attributable to Johnson Contrals, | 11,04: 10,07: 10%
Total capitalizatior $ 16,18¢ $ 13,46( 20%
Total debt as a % of total capitalizati 32% 25%

. The Company believes the percentage of total hetottal capitalization is useful to understanding Company’s financial condition as
it provides a review of the extent to which the Qamy relies on external debt financing for its fungdand is a measure of risk to its
shareholders

. In fiscal 2008, the Company entered into new cdteohrevolving credit facilities totaling 350 mdh euro with 100 million euro
expiring in May 2009, 150 million euro expiringilay 2011 and 100 million euro expiring in Augusti20in May 2009, the
100 million euro revolving facility expired and ti@®@mpany entered into a new one year committedvigegpcredit facility in the
amount of 50 million euro expiring in May 2010.Nfay 2010, the 50 million euro revolving facility gixed and the Company entered
into a new one year committed revolving facilitytire amount of 50 million euro expiring in May 2014 July 2011, the Company
entered into a new 50 million euro committed reuwvfacility scheduled to mature in July 2012. lnghist 2011, the Company entered
into a new 100 million euro committed revolving ifag scheduled to mature in August 2014. In Segien2011, the Company entered
into three new committed revolving facilities, tiig 73 million euro and an additional $50 millisgheduled to mature in
September 2012. As of September 30, 2011 there meedeaws on any of the revolving facilitie

. In December 2009, the Company retired its 7diillyen, three-year, floating rate loan agreemattwtas scheduled to mature on
January 18, 2011. The Company used cash to repayote.

. In December 2009, the Company retired its 12dilien, three-year, floating rate loan agreemiesit tnatured. The Company used cash
to repay the note

. In December 2009, the Company retired approxily&tE3 million in principal amount of its fixed &notes that was scheduled to
mature on January 15, 2011. The Company used cdehd the repurchas

. In February 2010, the Company retired approxima$8y million in principal amount of its fixed ratetes that was scheduled to ma
on January 15, 2011. The Company used cash tattfienepurchast

. In February 2010, the Company retired its 18dsillyen, three-year, floating rate loan agreemieait was scheduled to mature on
January 18, 2011. The Company used cash to repayote.

. In March 2010, the Company issued $500 milliogragate principal amount of 5.0% senior unsecuesti frate notes due in fiscal
2020. Net proceeds from the issue were used fagrgénorporate purposes including the retiremeshof-term debt

. In March 2010, the Company retired approxima$dg million in principal amount of its fixed ratetes that was scheduled to mature
on January 15, 2011. The Company used cash tattfienepurchast

. In May 2010, the Company retired approximatel§ #illion in principal amount of its fixed rate st scheduled to mature on
January 15, 2011. The Company used cash to funeéphechase:

. In September 2010, the Company entered into a $00 million committed revolving facility scheauwl to mature in December 2011.
In February 2011, the Company retired the commiedity. There were no draws on the facili

. In November 2010, the Company repaid debt of @8Bon which was acquired as part of an acquisitio the first quarter of fiscal
2011. The Company used cash to repay the

. In January 2011, the Company retired $654 millioprincipal amount, plus accrued interest, obi25% fixed rate notes that matured
on January 15, 2011. The Company used cash totlfienplayment
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. In February 2011, the Company issued $350 miliggregate principal amount of floating rate seniwsecured notes due in fiscal
2014, $450 million aggregate principal amount @5% senior unsecured fixed rate notes due in fid@a#t, $500 million aggregate
principal amount of 4.25% senior unsecured fixad rotes due in fiscal 2021 and $300 million aggtegrincipal amount of 5.7%
senior unsecured fixed rate notes due in fiscal284gregate net proceeds of $1.6 billion fromidseies were used for general
corporate purposes including the retirement oft-term debt

. In February 2011, the Company entered into gsae; 100 million euro, floating rate loan schedule mature in February 2017.
Proceeds from the facility were used for genergbarate purpose:

. In February 2011, the Company replaced its $Rillibn committed five-year credit facility, scheldd to mature in December 2011,
with a $2.5 billion committed four-year credit fhigi scheduled to mature in February 2015. Thelitgds used to support the
Compan’s outstanding commercial paper. At September 3D 2ere were no draws on the facil

. In April 2011, a total of 157,820 equity unitshieh had a purchase contract settlement date ofiMait, 2012, were early exercised. As
a result, the Company issued 766,673 shares osdahDontrols, Inc. common stock and approximat8lynfilion of 11.5% notes due
2042.

. The Company also selectively makes use of skomt-tredit lines. The Company estimates that, &eptember 30, 2011, it could
borrow up to $2.4 billion at its current debt rag$mon committed credit line

. The Company believes its capital resources auidity position at September 30, 2011 are adeqwateeet projected needs. The
Company believes requirements for working capéapital expenditures, dividends, minimum pensiontidoutions, debt maturities,
announced acquisitions and any other potentialisitigus in fiscal 2012 will continue to be fund&dm operations, supplemented by
short- and long-term borrowings, if required. Thengpany currently manages its short-term debt mositi the U.S. and euro
commercial paper markets and bank loan marketselevent the Company is unable to issue commerajar, it would have the
ability to draw on its $2.5 billion revolving credacility, which matures in February 2015. Therererno draws on the revolving credit
facility as of September 30, 2011. As such, the @amy believes it has sufficient financial resourtteind operations and meet its
obligations for the foreseeable futu

. The Company earns a significant amount of itsaf®g income outside the U.S., which is deemeaketpermanently reinvested in
foreign jurisdictions. We currently do not intendrrioresee a need to repatriate these funds. Thgp&y expects existing domestic
cash and liquidity to continue to be sufficienfdad our domestic operating activities and cashro@ments for investing and financing
activities for at least the next twelve months #reteafter for the foreseeable future. In addittbe, Company expects existing foreign
cash, cash equivalents, short term investmentgastu flows from operations to continue to be sigfitto fund our foreign operating
activities and cash commitments for investing atiéig, such as material capital expenditures, foeast the next twelve months and
thereafter for the foreseeable future. Should tbe@any require more capital in the U.S. than issgated by our operations
domestically, we could elect to raise capital ia thS. through debt or equity issuances. Thisratére could result in increased inter
expense or other dilution of our earnings. We Haueowed funds domestically and continue to haeeathility to borrow funds
domestically at reasonable interest ra

. The Company’s debt financial covenants requir@r@mum consolidated shareholdeesjuity attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. ¢
least $3.5 billion at all times and allow a maximagygregated amount of 10% of consolidated sharehslldquity attributable to
Johnson Controls, Inc. for liens and pledges. kEop@ses of calculating the Company’s covenantssaatated shareholders’ equity
attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. is calcuatéthout giving effect to (i) the application ofS&C 715-60, “Defined Benefit Plans —
Other Postretirement,” or (ii) the cumulative fapeicurrency translation adjustment. As of Septen38e2011, consolidated
shareholders’ equity attributable to Johnson Cdmittac. as defined per the Company’s debt findremaenants was $10.5 billion and
there were no outstanding amounts for liens andigele. The Company expects to remain in compliariteall covenants and other
requirements set forth in its credit agreementsiadentures for the foreseeable future. None ofGbmpany’s debt agreements limit
access to stated borrowing levels or require acatele repayment in the event of a decrease in tinep@ny's credit rating
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A summary of the Company’s significant contractigligations as of September 30, 2011 is as follgasillions):

2017
Total 2012 201:-201¢ 201£-201¢€ and Beyon

Contractual Obligations
Long-term debt

(including capital lease obligations $ 4,55( $ 17 $ 1,367 $ 937 $ 2,22¢
Interest on long-term debt

(including capital lease obligations 2,38: 213 39C 304 1,47¢€
Operating lease 992 28¢ 401 202 10C
Purchase obligatior 2,39( 1,772 514 95 9
Pension and postretirement contributi 424 89 49 71 21%
Total contractual cash obligatio $10,73¢ $ 2,38C $ 2,721 $ 1,60¢ $ 4,02¢

* See"Capitalizatiol” for additional information related to the Comp’s lon¢-term debt

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND POLICIES

The Company prepares its consolidated financi&stants in conformity with accounting principlesigeally accepted in the United State
America (U.S. GAAP). This requires management tkerestimates and assumptions that affect reportexdiats and related disclosures.
Actual results could differ from those estimatelse Tollowing policies are considered by managenebe the most critical in understanding
the judgments that are involved in the preparatiothe Company’s consolidated financial statemantsthe uncertainties that could impact
the Company’s results of operations, financial pasiand cash flows.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s building efficiency business recogsirevenue from certain long-term contracts overctintractual period under the
percentage-of-completion (POC) method of accountiigs method of accounting recognizes sales aoslsgorofit as work is performed
based on the relationship between actual costsrieatand total estimated costs at completion. Reéized revenues that will not be billed
under the terms of the contract until a later daerecorded in unbilled accounts receivable. Likeywcontracts where billings to date have
exceeded recognized revenues are recorded inaithent liabilities. Changes to the original estiesamay be required during the life of the
contract and such estimates are reviewed monthles&nd gross profit are adjusted using the cuielaatch-up method for revisions in
estimated total contract costs and contract vakistinated losses are recorded when identifiedn@lagainst customers are recognized as
revenue upon settlement. The amount of accountsviedale due after one year is not significant. Tike of the POC method of accounting
involves considerable use of estimates in deterginévenues, costs and profits and in assigningr@unts to accounting periods. The
periodic reviews have not resulted in adjustmemds were significant to the Company’s results afragions. The Company continually
evaluates all of the assumptions, risks and urio¢iga inherent with the application of the POC noet of accounting.

The building efficiency business enters into exezhdiarranties and long-term service and maintenagmements with certain customers.
For these arrangements, revenue is recognizedstyaight-line basis over the respective contrachte

The Company'’s building efficiency business alsdssegrtain heating, ventilating and air conditianifiVAC) and refrigeration products and
services in bundled arrangements, where multipdelysets and/or services are involved. In accordanteASU No. 2009-13, “Revenue
Recognition (Topic 605): Multiple-Deliverable RewenArrangements — A Consensus of the FASB Emerigisiges Task Force,” the
Company divides bundled arrangements into sepddditeerables and revenue is allocated to eachetelble based on the relative selling
price method. Significant deliverables within theseangements include equipment, commissioningjaetabor and extended warranties. In
order to estimate relative selling price, markeadmd transfer price studies are utilized. Appraately four to twelve months separate the
timing of the first deliverable until the last peeof
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equipment is delivered, and there may be extendetawty arrangements with duration of one to fieang commencing upon the end of the
standard warranty period.

In all other cases, the Company recognizes revantie time title passes to the customer or asce=rare performed.

Gooduwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill reflects the cost of an acquisition in egs of the fair values assigned to identifiableassets acquired. The Company reviews
goodwill for impairment during the fourth fiscal ger or more frequently if events or changes iowrnstances indicate the asset might be
impaired. The Company performs impairment reviesvstt reporting units, which have been determittelde the Company’s reportable
segments or one level below the reportable segniertstain instances, using a fair-value methasedaon management’s judgments and
assumptions or third party valuations. The faiueabf a reporting unit refers to the price that lddee received to sell the unit as a whole in
an orderly transaction between market participantee measurement date. In estimating the faireyghe Company uses multiples of
earnings based on the average of historical, phadisnultiples of earnings of comparable entitieth\wimilar operations and economic
characteristics. In certain instances, the Compeseg discounted cash flow analyses to further sufpefair value estimates. The inputs
utilized in the analyses are classified as LeviepBits within the fair value hierarchy as defineddiSC 820, “Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures.” The estimated fair value is then caragd with the carrying amount of the reporting uinitluding recorded goodwill. The
Company is subject to financial statement riskhodxtent that the carrying amount exceeds thmatsd fair value. The impairment testing
performed by the Company in the fourth quarterisifdl year 2011, 2010 and 2009 indicated that stienated fair value of each reporting
unit substantially exceeded its corresponding @agrgmount including recorded goodwill, and as suchimpairment existed at
September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009. No reportingwas determined to be at risk of failing step ohéhe goodwill impairment test.

Indefinite lived other intangible assets are aldoject to at least annual impairment testing. Othtangible assets with definite lives continue
to be amortized over their estimated useful lives are subject to impairment testing if eventstamges in circumstances indicate that the
asset might be impaired. A considerable amountafagement judgment and assumptions are requigetHiorming the impairment tests.
While the Company believes the judgments and assonspused in the impairment tests are reasonalglena impairment existed at
September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, different asomspcould change the estimated fair values dredefore, impairment charges could be
required.

Employee Benefit Plans

The Company provides a range of benefits to itsleyees and retired employees, including pensiodspastretirement health and other
benefits. Plan assets and obligations are measnraghlly, or more frequently if there is a remeamant event, based on the Company’s
measurement date utilizing various actuarial assiamg such as discount rates, assumed rates ofiyemmpensation increases, turnover
rates and health care cost trend rates as of #hat Mleasurements of net periodic benefit cosbased on the assumptions used for the
previous year-end measurements of assets and tttigaThe Company reviews its actuarial assumptmman annual basis and makes
modifications to the assumptions based on curegesrand trends when appropriate. As required By GAAP, the effects of the
modifications are recorded currently or amortizedrduture periods.

U.S. GAAP requires that companies recognize istdagement of financial position a liability for defd benefit pension and postretirement
plans that are underfunded or unfunded, or an émsdefined benefit pension and postretiremenefieplans that are overfunded. U.S.
GAAP also requires that companies measure the ihefmdifjations and fair value of plan assets thetednine a benefit plasfunded status
of the date of the employer’s fiscal year-end.

The Company considers the expected benefit payneendsplan-by-plan basis when setting assumed uiigcates. As a result, the Company
uses different discount rates for each plan depgnain the plan jurisdiction, the demographics afipipants and the expected timing of
benefit payments. For the U.S. pension and postre@int health and other benefit plans, the Compaeg a discount rate provided by an
independent third party calculated based on anogpiate mix of high quality bonds. For the non-Up8nsion and postretirement health and
other benefit plans, the Company consistently tteeselevant country specific benchmark indicesdietermining the various discount rates.
The Company’s discount rate on U.S. plans was 5.26805.50% at September 30, 2011 and 2010, regplgctihe Company’s weighted
average discount rate on non-U.S. plans was 4.Q®é@ember 30, 2011 and 2010.
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In estimating the expected return on plan assesCbmpany considers the historical returns on aéasets, adjusted for forward-looking
considerations, inflation assumptions and the ihpathe active management of the plans’ investsgts. Reflecting the relatively long-term
nature of the plans’ obligations, approximately 568the plans’ assets are invested in equitied) thié remainder primarily invested in fixed
income and alternative investments. For the yerding September 30, 2011 and 2010, the Companpsated long-term return on U.S.
pension plan assets used to determine net petediefit cost was 8.50%. The actual rate of retur)5. pension plans was below 8.50% in
fiscal 2011 and 2010. For the years ending SepteBhe2011 and 2010, the Company’s weighted avezagected long-term return on non-
U.S. pension plan assets was 5.50% and 6.00%,atesge. Plan assets for the Company’s postretirgrhealth and other benefit plans were
contributed at the end of fiscal 2011 and not coplated in fiscal 2011 net periodic benefit cost.

Beginning in fiscal 2012 the Company believes trgtterm rate of return will approximate 8.50%,8&2and 6.30% for U.S. pension, non-
U.S. pension, and postretirement health and otheefit plans, respectively. Any differences betwaetual results and the expected long-
term asset returns will be reflected in other caghpnsive income and amortized to expense in fyemes. If the Compang’actual returns ¢
plan assets are less than the Company’s expecatidditional contributions may be required.

For purposes of expense recognition, the Compaay asnarket-related value of assets that recogttieadifference between the expected
return and the actual return on plan assets othaeayear period. As of September 30, 2011, the Companyapproximately $119 million
unrecognized asset losses associated with itspgdrsion plans, which will be recognized in the gkdtion of the market-related value of
assets and subject to amortization in future psriod

In fiscal 2011, total employer and employee conitiidns to the defined benefit pension plans we&03$8illion, of which $183 million were
voluntary contributions made by the Company. ThexgGany expects to contribute approximately $350iomlin cash to its defined benefit
pension plans in fiscal year 2012. In fiscal 2Qbial employer and employee contributions to thetygirement health and other benefit pl
were $183 million, of which $156 million were volany contributions made by the Company. The Compepects to contribute
approximately $60 million in cash to its postreatient health and other benefit plans in fiscal &2,

Based on information provided by its independentaies and other relevant sources, the Compargmveslithat the assumptions used are
reasonable; however, changes in these assumptioigimpact the Company’s financial position, réswif operations or cash flows.

Product Warranties

The Company offers warranties to its customers iggipg upon the specific product and terms of theamer purchase agreement. A typical
warranty program requires that the Company repli@dective products within a specified time pericahf the date of sale. The Company
records an estimate of future warranty-relatedscbased on actual historical return rates and d&th@wn factors. Based on analysis of return
rates and other factors, the adequacy of the Coy'pamrranty provisions are adjusted as necesgargeptember 30, 2011, the Company
had recorded $301 million of warranty reserves. Chenpany monitors its warranty activity and adjustseserve estimates when it is
probable that future warranty costs will be differéhan those estimates.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeASC 740, “Income Taxes.” Deferred tax assetd liabilities are recognized for
the future tax consequences attributable to diffees between financial statement carrying amourggisting assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases and operating loss and atbechrryforwards. Deferred tax assets and lisdsldre measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the yearshith those temporary differences are expectdxtecovered or settled. The Company
records a valuation allowance that primarily reprgs non-U.S. operating and other loss carryforavémdwhich utilization is uncertain.
Management judgment is required in determining@benpany’s provision for income taxes, deferredassets and liabilities and the
valuation allowance recorded against the Compamgtgleferred tax assets. In calculating the promigdr income taxes on an interim basis,
the Company uses an estimate of the annual eféetdivrate based upon the facts and circumstammegrkat each interim period. On a
quarterly basis, the actual effective tax ratedisisted as appropriate based upon the actual sesuttompared to those forecasted at the
beginning of the fiscal year. In determining theddor a valuation allowance, the historical anojguted financial results of the legal entity
or consolidated group recording the net deferredtzset are considered, along with any other pesiti negative evidence. Since future
financial results may differ from previous estingte
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periodic adjustments to the Compasyaluation allowance may be necessary. At SepteB8the2011, the Company had a valuation allow.
of $719 million, of which $559 million relates tetnoperating loss carryforwards primarily in Framaecel Spain, for which sustainable taxable
income has not been demonstrated; and $160 mfhioather deferred tax assets.

The Company is subject to income taxes in the Bh8.numerous non-U.S. jurisdictions. Judgmentgsired in determining its worldwide
provision for income taxes and recording the relassets and liabilities. In the ordinary coursthefCompany’s business, there are many
transactions and calculations where the ultimat@é&iermination is uncertain. The Company is redplander audit by tax authorities. At
September 30, 2011, the Company had unrecognixdabteefits of $1,357 million.

The Company does not provide additional U.S. inctemes on undistributed earnings of non-U.S. cadat#d subsidiaries included in
shareholders’ equity attributable to Johnson Cdsittac. Such earnings could become taxable upesate or liquidation of these non-U.S.
subsidiaries or upon dividend repatriation. The @any’s intent is for such earnings to be reinvestethe subsidiaries or to be repatriated
only when it would be tax effective through thdimttion of foreign tax credits. Refer to “Capitadtion” within the “Liquidity and Capital
Resources” section for discussion of domestic angign cash projections.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011‘©89mpensation — Retirement Benefits — Multiemplofans (Subtopic 715-80):
Disclosures about an Employer’s Participation Mutiemployer Plan.” ASU No. 2011-09 requires adthl quantitative and qualitative
disclosures about an employer’s participation inti@omployer pension plans, including disclosurehe name and identifying number of the
significant multiemployer plans in which the empoyarticipates, the level of the emploggparticipation in the plans, the financial heait|
the plans and the nature of the employer commitsnienthe plans. ASU No. 2011-09 will be effectioe the Company for the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2012. The adoption of thidande will have no impact on the Company’s constdid financial condition and results
of operations.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011188&ngibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Tiag Goodwill for Impairment.”
ASU No. 2011-08 provides companies an option téoper a qualitative assessment to determine whétindrer goodwill impairment testing
is necessary. If, as a result of the qualitatiseasment, it is determined that it is more likbbrt not that a reporting unit’s fair value is less
than its carrying amount, the two-step quantitatimpairment test is required. Otherwise, no furtiesting is required. ASU No. 2011-08 will
be effective for the Company for goodwill impairmésests performed in the fiscal year ending SeptF80, 2013, with early adoption
permitted. The adoption of this guidance is exptbehave no impact on the Company'’s consolidatexhtial condition and results of
operations.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, “@ahensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Getmgnsive Income.” ASU

No. 201:-05 eliminates the option to present componentsitgr comprehensive income as part of the stateofestitareholders’ equity. All
non-owner changes in shareholders’ equity insteast ive presented either in a single continuousrsitt of comprehensive income or in
two separate but consecutive statements. Alsagssification adjustments for items that are rediasisfrom other comprehensive income to
net income must be presented on the face of tlaadial statements. ASU No. 2011-05 will be effeetior the Company for the quarter
ending December 31, 2012. The adoption of thisayuid will have no impact on the Company’s constdididinancial condition and results
of operations.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, “Réatue Measurement (Topic 820): Amendments to Asghi€ommon Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. BAAd IFRSs.” ASU No. 2011-04 clarifies and chartgesapplication of various fair
value measurement principles and disclosure regainés, and will be effective for the Company in skeeond quarter of fiscal 2012
(January 1, 2012). The Company has assessed theedglidance and expects adoption to have no inepaihie Company’s consolidated
financial condition and results of operations. RédeNote 10, “Fair Value Measurements,” of theasaio consolidated financial statements
for disclosures surrounding the Company’s fair ealueasurements.

In December 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009‘@@nsolidations (Topic 810): Improvements to Finah&eporting by Enterprises
Involved with Variable Interest Entities.” ASU N2009-17 changes how a company determines whentiy thiat is insufficiently
capitalized or is not controlled through voting slibbe consolidated. The determination of whethesrapany is required to consolidate an
entity is based on, among other things, an entiyipose and design and a company'’s ability tactlitee activities of the entity that most
significantly impact the entity’s economic performea. This statement was effective for the Compagjirining in
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the first quarter of fiscal 2011 (October 1, 20Ihe adoption of this guidance had no impact orGbmpany’s consolidated financial
condition and results of operations. Refer to tRgriciples of Consolidation” section of Note 1, tBuary of Significant Accounting
Policies,” of the notes to consolidated financtateaments for further discussion.

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-Rvenue Recognition (Topic 605): Multiple-DelivelmRevenue Arrangements — A
Consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task FoASR No. 200913 provides application guidance on whether mudtgliverables exis
how the deliverables should be separated and hewahsideration should be allocated to one or mpits of accounting. This guidance
eliminates the use of the residual method allooadiod requires that arrangement considerationlbeaséd at the inception of the
arrangement to all deliverables using the relaiéng price method. The selling price used farhedeliverable will be based on vendor-
specific objective evidence if available, third tyagvidence if vendor-specific objective evidens@ot available, or estimated selling price if
neither vendor-specific or third party evidencavsailable. The amendments in this ASU also exphadlisclosures related to a vendor’s
multiple-deliverable revenue arrangements. The Gomp@dopted ASU No. 2009-13 on October 1, 2010aqmiopriate disclosures have
been included herein. As each deliverable had eriétable relative selling price and the residuathnd was not previously utilized by the
Company, there were no changes in units of accogintie allocation process, or the pattern anchtjnoif revenue recognition upon adoption
of ASU No. 2009-13. Furthermore, adoption of thSBlAis not expected to have a material effect orctimsolidated financial condition or
results of operations in subsequent periods.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company selectively uses derivative instrumenteduce market risk associated with changesrgign currency, commodities, interest
rates and stock-based compensation. All hedgimgaictions are authorized and executed pursuateadycdefined policies and procedures,
which strictly prohibit the use of financial instnents for speculative purposes. At the inceptiothefhedge, the Company assesses the
effectiveness of the hedge instrument and desigriaéchedge instrument as either (1) a hedge@f@gnized asset or liability or of a
recognized firm commitment (a fair value hedge),ahedge of a forecasted transaction or of thiabidity of cash flows to be received or
paid related to an unrecognized asset or liak{itgash flow hedge) or (3) a hedge of a net investrim a non-U.S. operation (a net
investment hedge). The Company performs hedgete#aess testing on an ongoing basis depending®type of hedging instrument used.

For all foreign currency derivative instrumentsigeated as cash flow hedges, retrospective effenéiss is tested on a monthly basis using a
cumulative dollar offset test. The fair value oé thedged exposures and the fair value of the hiedg@ments are revalued and the ratio o
cumulative sum of the periodic changes in the valube hedge instruments to the cumulative suth@fperiodic changes in the value of the
hedge is calculated. The hedge is deemed as hiffielstive if the ratio is between 80% and 125%. é@mmmodity derivative contracts
designated as cash flow hedges, effectivenesstedt@sing a regression calculation. Ineffectivengsninimal as the Company aligns mos
the critical terms of its derivatives with the siyppontracts.

For net investment hedges, the Company assesses iterestment positions in the non-U.S. operatiamd compares it with the outstanding
net investment hedges on a quarterly basis. Thgehisddeemed effective if the aggregate outstangiimgipal of the hedge instruments
designated as the net investment hedge in a nonelgeBation does not exceed the Company’s nettimesg positions in the respective non-
U.S. operation.

The Company selectively uses interest rate swapsdiece market risk associated with changes imasteates for its fixedate bonds. For tt
five fixed to floating interest rate swaps totali4s0 million to hedge the coupon of its 1.75% mataturing March 2014, the Company
elected the short cut method as the criteria tdyapp short cut method as defined in ASC 815 wasand the critical terms for both the
hedge and underlying hedged item are identicalcgtion of the hedge and the presented repor#riggs. In applying the short cut method,
the Company is allowed to assume zero ineffectiseméthout performing detailed effectiveness assesss and does not record any
ineffectiveness related to the hedge relationgfdp.remaining interest rate swaps, the long-hadhotkeis used. The Company therefore
assesses retrospective and prospective effectiv@mea quarterly basis and records any measuréddtieeness in the consolidated
statements of income.

For equity swaps, these derivative instrumentsatalesignated as hedging instruments under ASC“8Esivatives and Hedging,” and
require no assessment of effectiveness on a glyaogesis.

A discussion of the Company’s accounting policmsderivative financial instruments is included\nte 1, “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies,” of the notes to consolidafieeincial statements, and further
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disclosure relating to derivatives and hedgingvétas is included in Note 9, “Derivative Instrunterand Hedging Activities,” and Note 10,
“Fair Value Measurements,” of the notes to conséid financial statements.

Foreign Exchange

The Company has manufacturing, sales and distoibdicilities around the world and thus makes itmesits and enters into transactions
denominated in various foreign currencies. In otdenaintain strict control and achieve the besedftthe Company’s global diversification,
foreign exchange exposures for each currency dtechiternally so that only its net foreign excharexposures are, as appropriate, hedged
with financial instruments.

The Company hedges 70% to 90% of the nominal amafugdich of its known foreign exchange transactierposures. The Company
primarily enters into foreign currency exchangetcaxcts to reduce the earnings and cash flow impfattte variation of non-functional
currency denominated receivables and payabless@aith losses resulting from hedging instrumentsebthe foreign exchange gains or
losses on the underlying assets and liabilitieadbedged. The maturities of the forward exchamgracts generally coincide with the
settlement dates of the related transactions. Behliind unrealized gains and losses on these ctann@ recognized in the same period as
gains and losses on the hedged items. The Comfemgealectively hedges anticipated transactionisafeasubject to foreign exchange
exposure, primarily with foreign currency exchaigetracts, which are designated as cash flow hadgescordance with ASC 815. At
September 30, 2011 and 2010, the Company estirfgttean unfavorable 10% change in the exchangs vateald have decreased net
unrealized gains by approximately $54 million ad®% million, respectively.

The Company has entered into cross-currency irtteassswaps to selectively hedge portions ofésimvestment in Japan. The currency
effects of the cross-currency interest rate swapsedlected in the accumulated other compreherisa@me (AOCI) account within
shareholders’ equity attributable to Johnson Cdsittac. where they offset gains and losses recbosiethe Company’s net investment in
Japan.

Interest Rates

The Company uses interest rate swaps to offsekfiesure to interest rate movements. In accordaitbeASC 815, these outstanding swaps
qualify and are designated as fair value hedgesf September 30, 2011, the Company had eightasteate swaps totaling $850 million
outstanding. A 10% increase in the average casteo€ompany’s variable rate debt would result iuafavorable change in pre-tax interest
expense of approximately $5 million and $1 millanSeptember 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Commodities

The Company uses commodity contracts in the firdmigrivatives market in cases where commodityeptisk cannot be naturally offset or
hedged through supply base fixed price contraaisi@odity risks are systematically managed pursteapolicy guidelines. As a cash flow
hedge, gains and losses resulting from the hedgstguments offset the gains or losses on purchastee underlying commodities that will
be used in the business. The maturities of the amdityncontracts coincide with the expected purchadbe commodities.

ENVIRONMENTAL, HEALTH AND SAFETY AND OTHER MATTERS

The Company’s global operations are governed byrBnmental Laws and Worker Safety Laws. Under wsioircumstances, these laws
impose civil and criminal penalties and fines, &dl&s injunctive and remedial relief, for noncorapte and require remediation at sites
where Company-related substances have been relieasdhe environment.

The Company has expended substantial resourcealigldtoth financial and managerial, to comply wéghplicable Environmental Laws and
Worker Safety Laws, and to protect the environnaat workers. The Company believes it is in sub&tbodmpliance with such laws and
maintains procedures designed to foster and ercsunpliance. However, the Company has been, artkifuture may become, the subject of
formal or informal enforcement actions or procegdiregarding noncompliance with such laws or theediation of Company-related
substances released into the environment. Suclkemmaypically are resolved by negotiation with redory authorities resulting in
commitments to compliance, abatement or remedigiograms and in some cases payment of penaltisiridally, neither such
commitments nor penalties imposed on the Compang haen material.

Environmental considerations are a part of allificgmt capital expenditure decisions; however,engitures in fiscal 2011 related solely to
environmental compliance were not material. At 8eyiter 30, 2011 and 2010, the
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Company recorded environmental liabilities of $3lliam and $47 million, respectively. A charge tocome is recorded when it is probable
that a liability has been incurred and the amotith® liability is reasonably estimable. The Comyarenvironmental liabilities do not take
into consideration any possible recoveries of fiinsurance proceeds. Because of the uncertaggsgiated with environmental remedia
activities at sites where the Company may be piatigntiable, future expenses to remediate ideatifsites could be considerably higher than
the accrued liability. However, while neither tiraing nor the amount of ultimate costs associatél known environmental remediation
matters can be determined at this time, the Comgdarg not expect that these matters will have amaatidverse effect on its financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.ddiion, the Company has identified asset retirdméligations for environmental matters t
are expected to be addressed at the retiremeptsdik removal or abandonment of existing ownetliti@s, primarily in the power solutions
business. At September 30, 2011 and 2010, the Qoympaorded conditional asset retirement obligatioh$91 million and $84 million,
respectively.

Additionally, the Company is involved in a numbéipooduct liability and various other casualty laiits incident to the operation of its
businesses. Insurance coverages are maintainesstinthted costs are recorded for claims and sbitsnature. It is management’s opinion
that none of these will have a materially adveffeceon the Company’s financial position, resat®perations or cash flows (see Note 19,
“Commitments and Contingencies,” of the notes tosttidated financial statements). Costs relateslitdh matters were not material to the
periods presented.

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

(in millions, except per share da First Second Third Fourth Full
(unaudited Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
2011
Net sales $9,537 $10,14¢ $10,36¢ $10,78¢ $40,83:
Gross profit 1,41¢ 1,47¢ 1,55(C 1,73 6,17(
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, 14 37t 354 357 53¢ 1,62¢
Earnings per shal
Basic (3) 0.5¢ 0.52 0.5 0.7¢ 2.4C
Diluted (3) 0.5t 0.51 0.52 0.7¢ 2.3¢€
2010
Net sales $8,40¢ $ 8,317 $ 8,54( $ 9,04( $34,30¢
Gross profit 1,23¢ 1,22t 1,33¢ 1,491 5,28¢
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, 18 35C 274 41¢€ 44¢ 1,491
Earnings per shal
Basic (3) 0.52 0.41 0.62 0.67 2.2z
Diluted (3) 0.52 0.4C 0.61 0.6¢€ 2.1¢

(1) The fiscal 2011 second quarter net incomiides $36 million of costs related to business eifipns recorded in the automotive
experience Europe segment. The fiscal 2011 thiedtqunet income includes $28 million of coststeddao business acquisitions
recorded in the automotive experience Europe segriba fiscal 2011 fourth quarter net income inelsid $37 million gain on
acquisition of a power solutions partially-ownefdli@te net of acquisition costs, related purchaseounting adjustments and a power
solutions partially-owned affiliate’s restatemehpdor period income, and $43 million of restrudhg costs recorded in the building
efficiency and automotive experience businesses.pfaceding amounts are stated on -tax basis

(2) The fiscal 2010 third quarter net income unieds $11 million of fixed asset impairment changeorded in the automotive experience
Asia segment. The fiscal 2010 fourth quarter nedine includes $11 million of fixed asset impairmeimarges recorded in the
automotive experience Asia segment, an $8 milliverge related to the divestiture of a partially-edraffiliate recorded in the
automotive experience North America segment angi7andillion gain on acquisition of a Korean partjatiwned affiliate net of
acquisition costs and related purchase accountjuginents recorded in the power solutions segnidm.preceding amounts are ste
on a pr-tax basis
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(3) Due to the use of the weighted-average starestanding for each quarter for computing earmipgr share, the sum of the quarterly per
share amounts may not equal the per share amauthefgear

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK ET RISK

See “Risk Management” included in ltem 7 — ManagatseDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditenmd Results of Operations.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Joth@ontrols, Inc.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetadisted in the accompanying index present faifyall material respects, the financial
position of Johnson Controls, Inc. and its subsidiat September 30, 2011 and 2010, and the sestteir operations and their cash flows
for each of the three years in the period endedeBdger 30, 2011 in conformity with accounting pijrtes generally accepted in the United
States of America. In addition, in our opinion, fir@ancial statement schedule listed in the accamiog index presents fairly, in all material
respects, the information set forth therein whextn@ conjunction with the related consolidatedficial statements. Also in our opinion, the
Company maintained, in all material respects, ¢éffednternal control over financial reporting asSeptember 30, 2011, based on criteria
established imnternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriee Treadway Commission
(COSO0). The Company’s management is responsiblidnése financial statements and financial statesedule, for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and fta assessment of the effectiveness of internaralooter financial reporting, included in
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Fitarigeporting appearing under Item 9A. Our respuifigi is to express opinions on
these financial statements, on the financial statérachedule, and on the Company’s internal cootref financial reporting based on our
integrated audits. We conducted our audits in alzmre with the standards of the Public Company Aating Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan eridrp the audits to obtain reasonable assuranmet akhether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement and whether effedtiternal control over financial reporting was ntained in all material respects. Our audits
of the financial statements included examiningadast basis, evidence supporting the amounts iantbslures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, and evaluagngverall financial statement
presentation. Our audit of internal control oveaficial reporting included obtaining an understagdif internal control over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weskexists, and testing and evaluating the desidmoperating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. Our auditsradkaled performing such other procedures as wsidered necessary in the circumstan
We believe that our audits provide a reasonablestf@sour opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over firgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and(idyide reasonable assurance regarding preventitmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygseds that could have a material effect on then@iizé statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 100 East Wisconsin ée/eMilwaukee, W1 532C
T: (414)212- 1600, F: (414) 212- 1880, www.pwc.aesn/
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Milwaukee, Wisconsin
November 22, 201
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(in millions, except per share data)
Net sales
Products and system
Services*

Cost of sale:
Products and system
Services*

Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative exper
Restructuring cosl
Debt conversion cos
Net financing charge
Equity income (loss
Income (loss) before income tax
Provision for income taxe

Net income (loss

Income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling int&e&

Johnson Controls, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income

Net income (loss) attributable to Johnson Contilois,

Earnings (loss) per sha
Basic
Diluted

Year ended September 30,

2011 2010 2009
$32,42( $27,20¢ $21,83
8,41¢ 7,101 6,66(
40,83: 34,30 28,49’
27,63 23,22¢ 19,61¢
7,032 5,79( 5,33(
34,66: 29,01¢ 24,94¢
6,17( 5,28¢ 3,54¢
(4,189 (3,610 (3,210
— — (230)
— — (112)
(174) (170) (239)
29¢ 254 (77)
2,111 1,76: (318)
37¢ 197 32
1,741 1,56€ (350)
117 75 (12)
$ 1,62 $ 1,491 $ (336
$ 2.4C $ 2.2z $ (0.57)
$ 2.3¢ $ 2.1¢ $ (0.57)

* Products and systems consist of automotive gapee and power solutions products and systeméaitding efficiency installed
systems. Services are building efficiency techréeal global workplace solutior

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thénancial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

(in millions, except par value and share data)
Assets

Cash and cash equivalel

Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtfalbants of $89 and $96, respectiv

Inventories
Other current asse

Current assel

Property, plant and equipme— net
Goodwill

Other intangible asse— net
Investments in partial-owned affiliates
Other noncurrent asse

Total asset

Liabilities and Equity

Shor-term debt

Current portion of lon-term debt
Accounts payabl

Accrued compensation and bene
Other current liabilitie:

Current liabilities

Long-term deb
Pension, postretirement health and other ber
Other noncurrent liabilitie

Long-term liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Redeemable noncontrolling intere

Common Stock, $.01 7/18 par value
shares authorized: 1,800,000,000

shares issued: 20:- 682,634,236; 201- 676,197,23"

Capital in excess of par vall
Retained earning

Treasury stock, at cost (20- 2,470,168; 201- 2,470,565 share!

Accumulated other comprehensive income (li

Shareholder equity attributable to Johnson Controls, |

Noncontrolling interest
Total equity
Total liabilities and equit

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thénancial statements.

Johnson Controls, Inc.

September 30,

2011 2010
$ 257 $ 56C
7,151 6,09¢
2,31¢ 1,78¢
2,291 2,211
12,01¢ 10,65:
5,61¢ 4,09¢
7,01¢ 6,501
94t 741
811 72€
3,273 3,02¢
$29,67¢ $25,74:
$ 59€ $ 75
17 662
6,15¢ 5,42¢
1,31t 1,122
2,69 2,62
10,78 9,91(
4,532 2,652
1,10z 992
1,81¢ 1,81¢
7,45¢ 5,46(
26C 19¢
9 9
2,62( 2,44¢
8,92 7,76%
(74) (74)
(43E (77)
11,04 10,07:
13€ 10€
11,18( 10,17,
$29,67¢ $25,74:
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Johnson Controls, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in millions)

Operating Activities

Net income (loss) attributable to Johnson Contiloks,
Income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling in&&

Net income (loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to gasivided by operating activitie
Depreciatior
Amortization of intangible:
Equity in earnings of partial-owned affiliates, net of dividends receiv
Deferred income taxe
Impairment charge
Fair value adjustment of equity investm
Debt conversion cos
Equity-based compensatic
Other
Changes in assets and liabilities, excluding adipris:
Receivable!
Inventories
Other asset
Restructuring reserve
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Accrued income taxe

Cash provided by operating activiti

Investing Activities

Capital expenditure

Sale of property, plant and equipm
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu
Settlement of cro-currency interest rate swa
Changes in lor-term investment

Cash used by investing activiti

Financing Activities
Increase (decrease) in st-term deb+— net
Increase in lon-term debi
Repayment of lor-term debi
Payment of cash dividen:
Debt conversion cos
Proceeds from the exercise of stock opti
Settlement of interest rate swe
Cash paid to acquire a noncontrolling inte
Other

Cash provided (used) by financing activit
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casvadnts
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivale
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thénancial statements.
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Year Ended September 30,

2011
$ 1,62¢
117
1,741

67¢
53
(15)
(144)

(89)
59
37

(721)
(387)
(119)
(99)
(59

1,07¢

(1,325

(1,226)

(140
(2,63

51C
1,85z
(787)
(419

10t

(23

2010

$ 1,491
75

1,56¢

64¢€
43
5
(85)
41
(47)

2009

$ (339

(12)
(350)

707
38
237
6
15€

101

©
~
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Johnson Controls, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity Attbutable to Johnson Controls, Inc.

Accumulatec

Capital ir Treasun Other
Commor Excess ¢ Retaines Stock, Comprehensiv
(in millions, except per share da Total Stock Par Valu Earning: at Cosi Income (Loss
At September 30, 200t $ 9,40¢ $ 8 1,547 $7,28: $ (102) $ 671
Comprehensive los
Net loss attributable to Johnson Controls, (339 — — (33¢) — —
Foreign currency translation adjustme (199 — — — — (199
Realized and unrealized gains on derivat 41 — — — — 41
Employee retirement plar (326 — — — — (32€)
Other comprehensive lo (479
Comprehensive los (817)
Cash dividend
Common ($0.52 per shar (309 — — (309) — —
Debt conversion (Note ¢ 804 1 803 — — —
Redemption value adjustment attributable to
redeemable noncontrolling intere (20 — — (20 — —
Other, including options exercis: 36 — 4 — 32 —
At September 30, 200¢ 9,10 9 2,35¢ 6,61F (70 19z
Comprehensive incom
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, 1,491 — — 1,491 — —
Foreign currency translation adjustme (11%) — — — — (11%)
Realized and unrealized gains on derivat 13 — — — — 13
Unrealized gains on marketable common s 3 — — — — 3
Employee retirement plat (179 — — — — (170
Other comprehensive lo (269
Comprehensive incorr 1,222
Cash dividend
Common ($0.52 per shar (350 — — (350 — —
Redemption value adjustment attributable to
redeemable noncontrolling intere 9 — — 9 — —
Other, including options exercis 90 — 94 — (4) —
At September 30, 201( 10,07: 9 2,44¢ 7,76F (74) (77)
Comprehensive incom
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, 1,624 — — 1,622 — —
Foreign currency translation adjustme (109 — — — — (109
Realized and unrealized losses on derival 47 — — — — 47
Unrealized gains on marketable common s 3 — — — — 3
Employee retirement plat (20%) — — — — (20%)
Other comprehensive lo (358
Comprehensive incorr 1,26¢€
Cash dividend
Common ($0.64 per shar (43%) — — (43E) — —
Redemption value adjustment attributable to
redeemable noncontrolling intere (32 — — (32 — —
Other, including options exercis: 172 — 172 — — —
At September 30, 201. $11,04: $ 9 $ 2,62( $8,922 $ (79 $ (435)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thénancial statements.
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Johnson Controls, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tw®ants of Johnson Controls, Inc. and its domestitnon-U.S. subsidiaries that are
consolidated in conformity with accounting prin@plgenerally accepted in the United States of Acadll).S. GAAP). All significant
intercompany transactions have been eliminatecksimvents in partially-owned affiliates are accodrite by the equity method when
the Company’s interest exceeds 20% and the Comgi@eyy not have a controlling interest. The finan@allts for the year ended
September 30, 2009 include an out of period adjestraf $62 million made in the first and secondrtgra of fiscal 2009 to correct an
error related to the power solutions segment. Tmeection of the error, which reduces segment inggonimarily originated in fiscal
2007 and 2008 and resulted in the overstatementeftory and understatement of cost of salesior periods. The Company
determined that the impact of the error on theinaiting periods was immaterial, and accordinglgstatement of prior period amounts
was not considered necessary. The Company alsovdeésl the impact of correcting the error in fiseBD9 was not material.

On October 1, 2010, the Company adopted Accour8tagdards Update (ASU) No. 2009-17, “Consolidati@mpic 810):
Improvements to Financial Reporting by Enterprise®lved with Variable Interest Entities.” ASU N2009-17 amends the
consolidation guidance applicable to variable ie¢eentities (“VIES”) and requires additional daslires concerning an enterprise’s
continuing involvement with VIEs. Under certainteria as provided for in Financial Accounting Startts Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Cadification (ASC) 810, “Consolidatiothé Company may consolidate a partially-ownediafél To determine whether to
consolidate a partially-owned affiliate, the Compdinst determines if the entity is a VIE. An emtis considered to be a VIE if it has
one of the following characteristics: 1) the entgtyhinly capitalized; 2) residual equity holdels not control the entity; 3) equity
holders are shielded from economic losses or dpauicipate fully in the entity’s residual econasiior 4) the entity was established
with non-substantive voting. If the entity meet& @i these characteristics, the Company then détemif it is the primary beneficiary
of the VIE. The party with the power to direct aittes of the VIE that most significantly impacetNVIE’s economic performance and
the potential to absorb benefits or losses thalddoe significant to the VIE is considered the mimbeneficiary and consolidates the
VIE. The Company evaluated the impact of this gun@deand determined that the adoption did not réswadnsolidation of additional
entities or deconsolidation of existing VIEs. Aglsuthe adoption of this guidance had no impadhenCompany’s consolidated
financial condition and results of operations, apgropriate disclosures have been included herein.

Consolidated VIEs

Based upon the criteria set forth in ASC 810, tbenfany has determined that for the reporting peresiied September 30, 2011 and
2010 it was the primary beneficiary in two VIEswhich it holds less than 50% ownership as the Campdsorbs significant
economics of the entities and has the power tadine activities that are considered most sigaiftdo the entities. The Company fui
the entities’short term liquidity needs through revolving crdditilities and has the power to direct the adBgithat are considered m
significant to the entities through its key customapply relationships. These two VIEs manufacpraucts in North America for the
automotive industry. The carrying amounts and diaasion of assets (none of which are restrictaddl liabilities included in the
Company’s consolidated statements of financialtfmsfor the consolidated VIEs are as follows (iflions):

September 3(

2011 2010
Current assel $ 207 $ 21t
Noncurrent asse 55 69
Total asset $ 262 $ 284
Current liabilities $ 144 $ 174
Noncurrent liabilities — —
Total liabilities $ 144 $ 174
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Nonconsolidated VIEs

During the three month period ended June 30, 20&1Company acquired a 40% interest in an equithateinvestee. The investee
produces and sells lead-acid batteries of whiclCithmpany will both purchase and supply certaindpizts to complement each
investment partners’ portfolio. Commencing on thiedt anniversary of the closing date, the Compaany d contractual right to purchase
the remaining 60% equity interest in the investhe (call option”). If the Company does not exeecibe call option on or before the
fifth anniversary of the closing date and for aigpeiof six months thereafter, the Company is suliga contractual obligation at the
counterparty’s option to sell the Company’s equitiestment in the investee to the counterparty ‘(thpurchase option”)The purchas
price is fixed under both the call option and tepurchase option. Based upon the criteria set for&8C 810, the Company has
determined that the investee is a VIE as the edualgers, through their equity investments, maypaoticipate fully in the entity’s
residual economics. The Company is not the prirbaneficiary as the Company does not have the ptoveake key operating
decisions considered to be most significant tole Therefore, the investee is accounted for urtlerequity method of accounting as
the Company’s interest exceeds 20% and the Comg@ery not have a controlling interest. The investrbatance included within
investments in partially-owned affiliates in thensolidated statement of financial position at Setter 30, 2011 was $41illion, which
represents the Company’s maximum exposure to asent assets and liabilities related to the Vil&immmaterial and represent
normal course of business trade receivables analypes/for all presented periods.

Based upon the criteria set forth in ASC 810, thenfany has determined that it holds a variableéstdn an equity method investee
that was considered thinly capitalized at the tohgs initial investment. The entity has been gty financed with third party debt.
During the three month period ended March 31, 2€id pwners of the remaining interest exercisett tption to put their interest to
the Company. The Company has twelve months frond#te the notice was received to set the dateegbtih closing, reorganize the
ownership structure or secure a third party buyke value of the put will be at a price that apjmates fair value. The Company is not
the primary beneficiary as the Company cannot nkaleoperating decisions considered to be mostfigni to the VIE prior to the p
closing. Therefore, the entity is accounted foramtie equity method of accounting as the Compaingesest exceeds 20% and the
Company does not have a controlling interest. Thm@any’s maximum exposure to loss, which inclutiespartially-owned affiliate
investment balance and a note receivable, appraoegs 43 million at September 30, 2011 and $41 onilit September 30, 2010.
Current liabilities due to the VIE are immaterialdarepresent normal course of business trade pesyédnl all presented periods.
Additionally, the Company consumes a significanbant of the investee’s manufacturing output.

The Company did not have a significant variableri@st in any other nonconsolidated VIEs for thes@néed reporting periods.
Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statesmé@ntonformity with U.S. GAAP requires managententiake estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts eftassd liabilities and disclosure of contingersieds and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amountsveimges and expenses during the reporting perioahlahoesults could differ from
those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, axtsaaceivable, short-term debt and accounts payaiproximate their carrying
values. See Note 9, “Derivative Instruments andgiteglActivities,” and Note 10, “Fair Value Measurents,” of the notes to
consolidated financial statements for fair valudimdincial instruments, including derivative instrants, hedging activities and long-
term debt.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investmenith a maturity of three months or less when pasg to be cash equivalents.
Receivables

Receivables consist of amounts billed and curresily from customers and unbilled costs and acquusis related to revenues on
long-term contracts that have been recognizeddecowanting purposes but not yet billed to customEng Company extends credit to
customers in the normal course of business andtaiasnan allowance for doubtful accounts resulfiogn the inability or unwillingnes
of customers to make required payments. The
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allowance for doubtful accounts is based on histbxperience, existing economic conditions andsgecific customer collection
issues the Company has identified.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or eaiRost is determined using either the last-mst#out (LIFO) method or the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. Finished goods and workpiocess inventories include material, labor andufecturing overhead costs.

Pre-Production Costs Related to Long-Term Supply Arangements

The Company'’s policy for engineering, research @exeklopment, and other design and development alated to products that will
be sold under long-term supply arrangements regjgineh costs to be expensed as incurred or capitafireimbursement from the
customer is assured. Customer reimbursements@edezl as an increase in cash and a reductiodlioigsgeneral and administrative
expense when reimbursement from the customer évet if reimbursement from the customer is notiess. At September 30, 2011
and 2010, the Company recorded within the cons@dlatatements of financial position approxima&i5 million and $304 million,
respectively, of engineering and research and dpwent costs for which customer reimbursementsaras. The reimbursable costs
are recorded in other current assets if reimburs¢mil occur in less than one year and in othancwrent assets if reimbursement will
occur beyond one year.

Costs for molds, dies and other tools used to mpasducts that will be sold under long-term supphaagements are capitalized within
property, plant and equipment if the Company héstid the assets or has the ramcelable right to use the assets during the ¢érime
supply arrangement. Capitalized items, if spediffadesigned for a supply arrangement, are amattmeer the term of the arrangeme
otherwise, amounts are amortized over the estimagetul lives of the assets. The carrying valuessskts capitalized in accordance
with the foregoing policy are periodically reviewmt impairment whenever events or changes in pistances indicate that its carry
amount may not be recoverable. At September 30l 284l 2010, approximately $109 million and $72 ionil] respectively, of costs for
molds, dies and other tools were capitalized withimperty, plant and equipment which representedtato which the Company had
title. In addition, at September 30, 2011 and 2@1©,Company recorded within the consolidated statgs of financial position in oth
current assets approximately $254 million and $2dlRon, respectively, of costs for molds, dies atHer tools for which customer
reimbursement is assured.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at Begireciation is provided over the estimated udefe of the respective assets using
the straight-line method for financial reportingposes and accelerated methods for income tax pespd he estimated useful lives
range from 10 to 40 years for buildings and improgats and from 3 to 15 years for machinery andpegent.

The Company capitalizes interest on borrowingsmdutine active construction period of major capgitaljects. Capitalized interest is
added to the cost of the underlying assets anchistized over the useful lives of the assets.

Gooduwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill reflects the cost of an acquisition in egs of the fair values assigned to identifiableassets acquired. The Company reviews
goodwill for impairment during the fourth fiscal aer or more frequently if events or changes iourhstances indicate the asset might
be impaired. The Company performs impairment resgiéw its reporting units, which have been detepdito be the Company’s
reportable segments or one level below the replersdgments in certain instances, using a fairevelethod based on management's
judgments and assumptions or third party valuatidhs fair value of a reporting unit refers to grece that would be received to sell
unit as a whole in an orderly transaction betwearket participants at the measurement date. Imastig the fair value, the Company
uses multiples of earnings based on the averaggstofrical, published multiples of earnings of cargble entities with similar
operations and economic characteristics. In cemaitances, the Company uses discounted cash fialyses to further support the fair
value estimates. The inputs utilized in the anayae classified as Level 3 inputs within the Yailue hierarchy as defined in ASC 820,
“Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures.” Therested fair value is then compared with the carrgnmpunt of the reporting unit,
including recorded goodwill. The Company is subjedinancial statement risk to the extent thatdheying amount exceeds the
estimated fair value. The impairment testing penfed by the Company in the fourth quarter of fisesr 2011, 2010 and 2009
indicated that the estimated fair value of eaclorépg unit substantially
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exceeded its corresponding carrying amount inclydatorded goodwill, and as such, no impairmergtesiat September 30, 2011,
2010 and 2009. No reporting unit was determindaktat risk of failing step one of the goodwill inmpaent test.

At December 31, 2010, in conjunction with the pragian of its financial statements, the Companysassd goodwill for impairment in
the building efficiency business due to the changeportable segments as described in Note 1&rt@at Information,” of the notes to
consolidated financial statements. As a result@bmpany performed impairment testing for goodwiltler the new segment structure
and determined that the estimated fair value ofi @aporting unit substantially exceeded its coroesiing carrying amount including
recorded goodwill, and as such, no impairment edistt December 31, 2010. No reporting unit wasrdeted to be at risk of failing
step one of the goodwill impairment test.

At March 31, 2009, in conjunction with the prepamatof its financial statements, the Company codetlit had a triggering event
requiring the assessment of impairment of goodwithe automotive experience Europe segment dtleetoontinued decline in the
automotive market. As a result, the Company peréatimpairment testing for goodwill and determinleattfair value of the reporting
unit exceeded its carrying value and no impairnesigted at March 31, 2009.

At December 31, 2008, in conjunction with the pregian of its financial statements, the Companychaated it had a triggering event
requiring the assessment of impairment of goodwithe automotive experience North America and Rarsegments and the building
efficiency other segment (formerly unitary produgteup segment) due to the rapid declines in thenaotive and construction marke
As a result, the Company performed impairmentrgdior goodwill and determined that fair valuegtaf reporting units exceed their
carrying values and no impairment existed at De@er3th, 2008. To further support the fair valuereates of the automotive
experience North America and building efficienchietsegments, the Company prepared a discountedloasanalysis that also
indicated the fair value exceeded the carryingeétu each reporting unit. The assumptions suppopttie estimated future cash flows
of the reporting units, including profit marginenp-term sales forecasts and growth rates, refiec€ompany’s best estimates. The
assumptions related to automotive experience salames reflected the expected continued automatishestry decline with a return
fiscal 2008 volume production levels by fiscal 20TBe assumptions related to the construction niadles volumes reflected steady
growth beginning in fiscal 2010.

Indefinite lived other intangible assets are aldoject to at least annual impairment testing. Othiiangible assets with definite lives
continue to be amortized over their estimated udiefes and are subject to impairment testing ¢ or changes in circumstances
indicate that the asset might be impaired. A carsible amount of management judgment and assursgierrequired in performing
the impairment tests. While the Company believegudgments and assumptions used in the impairtestst are reasonable and no
impairment existed at September 30, 2011, 201®a08, different assumptions could change the e&tinfair values and, therefore,
impairment charges could be required.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews long-lived assets, includirapprty, plant and equipment and other intangibéetsswith definite lives, for
impairment whenever events or changes in circurnstimdicate that the assetarrying amount may not be recoverable. The Coy
conducts its long-lived asset impairment analysesccordance with ASC 360-10-15, “Impairment orpdisal of Long-Lived Assets.”
ASC 360-10-15 requires the Company to group assetdiabilities at the lowest level for which id#iatble cash flows are largely
independent of the cash flows of other assetsiabdifies and evaluate the asset group againssuhe of the undiscounted future cash
flows. If the undiscounted cash flows do not intkctine carrying amount of the asset is recoverallénpairment charge is measured
as the amount by which the carrying amount of 8g=hgroup exceeds its fair value based on disedu#sh flow analysis or
appraisals. See Note 16, “Impairment of Long-Livesdets,” for disclosure of the impairment analysegormed by the Company
during fiscal 2011, 2010 and 20089.

Percentage-of-Completion Contracts

The building efficiency business records certaimglberm contracts under the percentage-of-compietiethod of accounting. Under
this method, sales and gross profit are recograsedork is performed based on the relationship éetvactual costs incurred and total
estimated costs at completion. The Company reamsis and earnings in excess of billings on uncetaglcontracts within accounts
receivable — net and billings in excess of costbearnings on uncompleted contracts within otherert liabilities in the consolidated
statements of financial position. Amounts includethin accounts receivablenet related to these contracts were $773 milliah $68:<
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million at September 30, 2011 and 2010, respegtivainounts included within other current liabilgievere $730 million and
$639 million at September 30, 2011 and 2010, reimty.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s building efficiency business recogsirevenue from certain long-term contracts overctintractual period under the
percentage-of-completion (POC) method of accountiigs method of accounting recognizes sales aoslsgorofit as work is
performed based on the relationship between actsis incurred and total estimated costs at compleRecognized revenues that will
not be billed under the terms of the contract umtdter date are recorded in unbilled accountsivable. Likewise, contracts where
billings to date have exceeded recognized reveargesecorded in other current liabilities. Chanigethe original estimates may be
required during the life of the contract and sustineates are reviewed monthly. Sales and gros# jaref adjusted using the cumulative
catch-up method for revisions in estimated totaltiact costs and contract values. Estimated lemsesecorded when identified. Claims
against customers are recognized as revenue ugiamsnt. The amount of accounts receivable dwer afie year is not significant. T
use of the POC method of accounting involves caraldle use of estimates in determining revenuests @nd profits and in assigning
the amounts to accounting periods. The periodierey have not resulted in adjustments that wengifgignt to the Company’s results
of operations. The Company continually evaluateefahe assumptions, risks and uncertainties iahiewith the application of the PC
method of accounting.

The building efficiency business enters into exeghd/arranties and long-term service and maintenagmements with certain
customers. For these arrangements, revenue ismeogon a straight-line basis over the respedreract term.

The Company’s building efficiency business alsdssegrtain heating, ventilating and air conditianidVAC) and refrigeration
products and services in bundled arrangements,envhaltiple products and/or services are involvedadcordance with ASU No. 2009-
13, “Revenue Recognition (Topic 605): Multiple-Dediable Revenue Arrangements — A Consensus ofABBREmMerging Issues Task
Force,” the Company divides bundled arrangememgssaparate deliverables and revenue is allocateddh deliverable based on the
relative selling price method. Significant delivieles within these arrangements include equipmemntngissioning, service labor and
extended warranties. In order to estimate relat@ting price, market data and transfer price stsidire utilized. Approximately four to
twelve months separate the timing of the firstwible until the last piece of equipment is detek and there may be extended
warranty arrangements with duration of one to jigars commencing upon the end of the standard mgrperiod.

In all other cases, the Company recognizes revantie time title passes to the customer or asce=rare performed.
Research and Development Costs

Expenditures for research activities relating toduct development and improvement are charged stgaitome as incurred and
included within selling, general and administratés@enses in the consolidated statement of inc&meh expenditures for the years
ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were $#itghn$723 million and $767 million, respectively

A portion of the costs associated with these a@ivis reimbursed by customers and, for the figeats ended September 30, 2011,
2010 and 2009 were $366 million, $315 million ad@$ million, respectively.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividaigncome by the weighted average number of comshares outstanding. Diluted
earnings per share are computed by dividing netnecby diluted weighted average shares outstanBihgted weighted average sha
include the dilutive effect of common stock equéargb which would arise from the exercise of stogams and any outstanding Equity
Units and convertible senior notes as of the beggaof the period, for the years ended Septembg2@D1 and 2010. However, dilutive
shares due to stock options, Equity Units and cuditke senior notes were not included in the corapanh of diluted net loss per
common share for the year ended September 30, 20@®, to do so would decrease the loss per sGaseNote 12, “Earnings per
Share,” of the notes to consolidated financialestegnts for the calculation of earnings per share.
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Foreign Currency Translation

Substantially all of the Company'’s internationakogtions use the respective local currency asuhetibnal currency. Assets and
liabilities of international entities have beemiskated at period-end exchange rates, and incothexgenses have been translated using
average exchange rates for the period. Monetastsiaad liabilities denominated in non-functionadrencies are adjusted to reflect
period-end exchange rates. The aggregate transagtios (losses) included in net income for theyeaded September 30, 2011, 2010
and 2009 were ($30) million, $50 million and ($18jJlion, respectively.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company has written policies and proceduraspthae all financial instruments under the directof corporate treasury and rest
all derivative transactions to those intended fxiding purposes. The use of financial instrumemtsgeculative purposes is strictly
prohibited. The Company uses financial instrumémtmanage the market risk from changes in foreigimange rates, commodity
prices, stock-based compensation liabilities ater@st rates.

The fair values of all derivatives are recordethim consolidated statements of financial positidre change in a derivative’s fair value
is recorded each period in current earnings orractated other comprehensive income, depending atheh the derivative is
designated as part of a hedge transaction and thedype of hedge transaction. See Note 9, “¢irke Instruments and Hedging
Activities,” and Note 10, “Fair Value Measuremehts, the notes to consolidated financial statemémtslisclosure of the Company’s
derivative instruments and hedging activities.

Reclassification

Certain prior year amounts have been revised téooonto the current year’s presentation. Recoverabktomer engineering
expenditures are included in the changes in otbssta line within the operating activities sectiéthe consolidated statements of cash
flows. In prior years, these cash flows were ineltith the investing activities section. Also, thadterm portion of pension liabilities
now included in the pension, postretirement heatith other benefits line within the long-term lidtigks section of the consolidated
statements of financial position. In prior yeah&dge liabilities were included in the other nonentiiabilities line. Also, effective
October 1, 2010, the building efficiency businessrganized its management reporting structureflectdts current business activities.
Historical information has been revised to refllet new building efficiency reportable segmentdtite. Refer to Note 18, “Segment
Information,” of the notes to consolidated finaha@tements for further information.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011‘©89mpensation — Retirement Benefits — Multiemplolpéans (Subtopic 715-
80): Disclosures about an Employer’s Participatioa Multiemployer Plan.” ASU No. 2011-09 requiredditional quantitative and
qualitative disclosures about an employer’s paréition in multiemployer pension plans, includingadosure of the name and
identifying number of the significant multiemploygians in which the employer participates, the l@f¢he employer’s participation in
the plans, the financial health of the plans amdrtiiture of the employer commitments to the plagd) No. 2011-09 will be effective
for the Company for the fiscal year ending Septen38e 2012. The adoption of this guidance will haeeimpact on the Company’s
consolidated financial condition and results ofragiens.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 201118&ngibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Ting Goodwill for
Impairment.” ASU No. 2011-08 provides companie®ption to perform a qualitative assessment to deter whether further goodwill
impairment testing is necessary. If, as a resulhefgualitative assessment, it is determineditti&imore likely than not that a reporting
unit’s fair value is less than its carrying amouhg two-step quantitative impairment test is regpli Otherwise, no further testing is
required. ASU No. 2011-08 will be effective for tBempany for goodwill impairment tests performedhia fiscal year ending
September 30, 2013, with early adoption permitidek adoption of this guidance is expected to havenpact on the Company’s
consolidated financial condition and results ofragiens.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, “@ahensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Getmgnsive Income.” ASU
No. 2011-05 eliminates the option to present coreptsof other comprehensive income as part oftdteraent of shareholdersguity.
All non-owner changes in shareholders’ equity iadteust be presented either in a single continataiesment of comprehensive
income or in two separate but consecutive statesnétgo, reclassification adjustments for itemg #ra reclassified from other
comprehensive income to net
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income must be presented on the face of the fiahstatements. ASU No. 2011-05 will be effectivetfie Company for the quarter
ending December 31, 2012. The adoption of thisayuid will have no impact on the Company’s constdididinancial condition and
results of operations.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, “Ré&tue Measurement (Topic 820): Amendments to Aghi@ommon Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. BAAd IFRSs.” ASU No. 20104 clarifies and changes the application of val
fair value measurement principles and disclosugeirements, and will be effective for the Compamyhie second quarter of fiscal 2C
(January 1, 2012). The Company has assessed theedmlidance and expects adoption to have no inopathe Company’s
consolidated financial condition and results ofragpiens. Refer to Note 10, “Fair Value Measuremgmisthe notes to consolidated
financial statements for disclosures surroundirrg@ompany’s fair value measurements.

In December 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009‘@@nsolidations (Topic 810): Improvements to Finah&eporting by
Enterprises Involved with Variable Interest EnstieASU No. 2009-17 changes how a company detersnirteen an entity that is
insufficiently capitalized or is not controlled tugh voting should be consolidated. The determonasif whether a company is required
to consolidate an entity is based on, among ottiegs$, an entity’s purpose and design and a conipaifylity to direct the activities of
the entity that most significantly impact the gyiiteconomic performance. This statement was éffedbr the Company beginning in
the first quarter of fiscal 2011 (October 1, 20Ihe adoption of this guidance had no impact oGbmpany’s consolidated financial
condition and results of operations. Refer to tRgriciples of Consolidation” section of Note 1, tBumary of Significant Accounting
Policies,” of the notes to consolidated financtateaments for further discussion.

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-R&venue Recognition (Topic 605): Multiple-DelivelmRevenue Arrangements
— A Consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues TaskePoASU No. 2009-13 provides application guidanoeadether multiple
deliverables exist, how the deliverables shoulddggarated and how the consideration should beaddilddo one or more units of
accounting. This guidance eliminates the use of@blual method allocation and requires that geerent consideration be allocate
the inception of the arrangement to all deliverahising the relative selling price method. Theirsglprice used for each deliverable \
be based on vendor-specific objective evidencedflable, third party evidence if vendor-speciflgjective evidence is not available, or
estimated selling price if neither vendor-speaifichird party evidence is available. The amendsienthis ASU also expand the
disclosures related to a vendor’s multiple-delibdeaevenue arrangements. The Company adopted ASR2M9-13 on October 1,
2010 and appropriate disclosures have been inclodegin. As each deliverable had a determinabégivel selling price and the residi
method was not previously utilized by the Compahgre were no changes in units of accounting, beation process, or the pattern
and timing of revenue recognition upon adoptio®8tJ No. 2009-13. Furthermore, adoption of this ASWot expected to have a
material effect on the consolidated financial ctiodior results of operations in subsequent periods

2.  ACQUISITIONS

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011, the Comypacquired an additional 49% of a power solutipadially-owned affiliate. The
acquisition increased the Company’s ownership pgage to 100%. The Company paid approximately $a#di®on (excluding cash
acquired of $11 million) for the additional owneigspercentage and incurred approximately $15 nmillid acquisition costs and related
purchase accounting adjustments. As a result agii¢heisition, the Company recorded a non-cash @75 million within power
solutions equity income to adjust the Company’stixg equity investment in the partially-owned l&fie to fair value. Goodwill of

$94 million was recorded as part of the transacfidre purchase price allocation may be subsequadjlysted to reflect final valuation
studies.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2011, the Companmpleted its acquisition of Keiper/Recaro Autdive, a leader in recliner system
technology with engineering and manufacturing etipelin metals and mechanisms for automobile sbated in Kaiserslautern,
Germany. The total purchase price, net of cashieejuvas approximately $450 million, all of whielas paid as of September 30,
2011. In connection with the Keiper/Recaro Autowetacquisition, the Company recorded goodwill c2&iillion in the automotive
experience Europe segment. The purchase priceatibocmay be subsequently adjusted to reflect frahlation studies.

The Keiper/Recaro Automotive acquisition strengthttie Company’s metal components and mechanisnisdsgs Keiper/Recaro’s
expertise includes the complete engineering proaedgechnologies used to produce metal seat coanpgrstructures and mechanis
The product range encompasses mechanisms whic$t #ufuseat’s length and height, recliners thaistdhe backrest position of
vehicle seats, and rear seat latches. The acquisiti
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strengthens the Company’s competitive positionep geating components with expanded opportunitiegvelop new differentiating
products and technologies. Increasing verticagirggon and enhancing the Compasngeating components technologies are expec
accelerate future growth of the Company’s autoneosieating business.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2011, the Campaompleted its acquisition of the C. Rob. Hamne@nsGroup (Hammerstein), a
leading global supplier of high-quality metal ssftictures, components and mechanisms based imy8nliGermany. The total
purchase price, net of cash acquired, was approgiyn®529 million, all of which was paid as of Seiber 30, 2011. In connection w
the Hammerstein acquisition, the Company recoraexdigill of $193 million primarily in the automotivexperience Europe segment.
The purchase price allocation may be subsequedilysted to reflect final valuation studies.

The Hammerstein acquisition enables the Comsaaytomotive experience business to enhance iextisgyin metal seat structures i
expand into premium vehicle segments. Hammersaitnbng product portfolio and customer base imptieenium segment compleme
the Company’s product portfolio, which is primardgmprised of vehicle segments with high productiolumes. Hammerstein’'s
product capabilities include front seat structusest tracks and height adjusters, multi-way adigspower gear boxes, as well as
special applications such as steering column aatipisHammerstein’s expertise includes the completduct development process,
from design and engineering to the manufactur@diidual components and complete seat systems.

Also during fiscal 2011, the Company completed faglitional acquisitions for a combined purchaseepmnet of cash acquired, of
$115 million, all of which was paid as of SeptemB@r 2011. The acquisitions in the aggregate wetenaterial to the Company’s
consolidated financial statements. As a resulinaf of these acquisitions, which increased the Caoipawnership from a
noncontrolling to controlling interest, the Compaegorded a non-cash gain of $14 million withincambtive experience Asia equity
income to adjust the Company’s existing equity staeent in the partially-owned affiliate to fair ual In connection with the
acquisitions, the Company recorded goodwill of $i@iion. The purchase price allocations may bessgjently adjusted to reflect
final valuation studies.

In July 2010, the Company acquired an addition&b 40 a power solutions Korean partially-owned &fi. The acquisition increased
the Company’s ownership percentage to 90%. Theirgngal0% was acquired by the local management t&dm Company paid
approximately $86 million (excluding cash acquicd&57 million) for the additional ownership pertage and incurred approximately
$10 million of acquisition costs and related pusghaccounting adjustments. As a result of the aitepri, the Company recorded a non-
cash gain of $47 million within power solutions @guncome to adjust the Company’s existing equityestment in the Korean
partially-owned affiliate to fair value. Goodwilf 851 million was recorded as part of the transercti

Also during fiscal 2010, the Company completedétaequisitions for a combined purchase price ofié8kon, of which $32 million
was paid as of September 30, 2010. The acquisitiothe aggregate were not material to the Compaognsolidated financial
statements. In connection with the acquisitions,Glompany recorded goodwill of $9 million.

During fiscal 2009, the Company completed four asitjons for a combined purchase price of $43 wiljiof which $38 million was
paid as of September 30, 2009. The acquisitiotiseéraggregate were not material to the Companyisadalated financial statements.
In connection with these acquisitions, the Compaaprded goodwill of $30 million, of which $26 mdh was recorded during fiscal
20009.
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3. INVENTORIES

Inventories consisted of the following (in milligns

September 3(

2011 2010
Raw materials and suppli $ 1,13¢ $ 89¢
Work-in-process 434 27¢
Finished good 867 743
FIFO inventories 2,43 1,92(
LIFO reserve 12y (139
Inventories $ 2,31¢ $ 1,78¢

Inventories valued using the LIFO method of accmgnivere approximately 18% and 22% of total inveetoat September 30, 2011
and 2010, respectively.

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the¥dhg (in millions):

September 3(

2011 2010
Buildings and improvemen $ 2,48¢ $ 2,161
Machinery and equipme 7,20t 6,342
Construction in progres 1,41¢ 752
Land 36C 36¢€
Total property, plant and equipme 11,47: 9,621
Less accumulated depreciati 5,85¢€) 5,525
Property, plant and equipmeé— net $ 5,61¢ $ 4,09¢

Interest costs capitalized during the fiscal yesded September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were $dnm$21 million and
$16 million, respectively. Accumulated depreciatrefated to capital leases at September 30, 204 2@h0 was $44 million and
$48 million, respectively.

5. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Effective October 1, 2010, the building efficiertmysiness reorganized its management reportingtsteuto reflect its current business
activities. Historical information has been revisedeflect the new building efficiency reportaBlegment structure. Refer to Note 18,
“Segment Information,” of the notes to consolidafiedncial statements for further information.
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The changes in the carrying amount of goodwillasteof the Company’s reporting segments for theafigears ended September 30,
2011 and 2010 were as follows (in millions):

Currency
September 3 Business Translation an September 3
2009 Acquisitions Other 2010
Building efficiency
North America systemr $ 52t $ — $ (3) $ 522
North America servic 66¢ 8 — 67€
Global workplace solutior 174 — 3 177
Asia 36¢ — 10 37¢
Other 1,11¢€ — (31 1,08t
Automotive experienc
North America 1,37¢ — 2 1,37¢
Europe 1,211 5 (76) 1,14C
Asia 228 — 10 23¢
Power solution: 88( 51 (20) 911
Total $ 6,542 $ 64 $ (10%5) $ 6,501
Currency
September 3 Business Translation an September 3
2010 Acquisitions Other 2011
Building efficiency
North America systemr $ 527 $ — $ (3) $ 51¢
North America servic 67€ 33 1 71C
Global workplace solutior 177 — 7 184
Asia 37¢ — 12 391
Other 1,08t — (20) 1,06t
Automotive experienc
North America 1,37¢ 2 1) 1,37¢
Europe 1,14(C 371 8 1,50:
Asia 23¢ 16 12 261
Power solution: 911 96 3 1,004
Total $ 6,501 $ 51€ $ (3) $ 7,01¢
The Companys other intangible assets, primarily from busiresguisitions, are valued based on independent @pfga@and consisted
(in millions):
September 30, 201 September 30, 201
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulatec Carrying Accumulatec
Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net
Amortized intangible asse
Patented technolog $ 29¢ $(209) $ 89 $ 277 $(197) $ 86
Customer relationshiy 487 (92) 39¢€ 373 (70 303
Miscellaneous 184 (38) 14€ 68 (31) 37
Total amortized intangible asst 96¢ (33¢) 631 71€ (292 42€
Unamortized intangible asse
Trademark: 314 — 314 31t — 31t
Total intangible asse $1,28:¢ $(33¢) $94¢ $1,03:¢ $(292) $741

Amortization of other intangible assets for thedisyears ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 289%$%8 million, $43 million and
$38 million, respectively. Excluding the impacteaofy future acquisitions, the Company anticipatesréimation for fiscal 2012, 2013,

2014, 2015 and 2016 will be approximately $61 mwilli$54 million, $54 million, $51 million and $46ilfion, respectively.
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6. PRODUCT WARRANTIES

The Company offers warranties to its customers idgipg upon the specific product and terms of thr@amer purchase agreement. A
typical warranty program requires that the Compapface defective products within a specified tjpeeiod from the date of sale. The
Company records an estimate for future warrantyteel costs based on actual historical return eatdsother known factors. Based on
analysis of return rates and other factors, theaaey of the Company’s warranty provisions are stéjtl as necessary. The Company
monitors its warranty activity and adjusts its reseestimates when it is probable that future wayraosts will be different than those

estimates.

The Company’s product warranty liability is recadde the consolidated statement of financial posiin other current liabilities if the
warranty is less than one year and in other noratifiabilities if the warranty extends longer thare year.

The changes in the carrying amount of the Compatoyéd product warranty liability for the fiscal ges ended September 30, 2011 and
2010 were as follows (in millions):

Year Endec
September 3(
2011 2010
Balance at beginning of peri $ 337 $ 344
Accruals for warranties issued during the pe 217 26C
Accruals from acquisition 12 1
Accruals related to p-existing warranties (including changes in estimg (32 (18)
Settlements made (in cash or in kind) during théople (239 (24%)
Currency translatio — (5
Balance at end of peric $ 301 $ 337

7. LEASES

Certain administrative and production facilitieglaguipment are leased under long-term agreenidott.leases contain renewal
options for varying periods, and certain leasekide options to purchase the leased property dunirad the end of the lease term.
Leases generally require the Company to pay farare, taxes and maintenance of the property eldeeapital assets included in net
property, plant and equipment, primarily buildiregsl improvements, were $68 million and $41 millarSeptember 30, 2011 and 2(
respectively.

Other facilities and equipment are leased undangements that are accounted for as operatingslebstal rental expense for the fis
years ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009424sillion, $389 million and $403 million, respeetly.

Future minimum capital and operating lease paymamdsthe related present value of capital leasepats at September 30, 2011 w
as follows (in millions):

Capital Operating

Leases Leases
2012 $ 13 $ 28¢
2013 11 231
2014 11 17C
2015 9 122
2016 6 80
After 2016 36 10C
Total minimum lease paymer 86 $ 992
Interest (16)
Present value of net minimum lease paym $ 70
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8. DEBT AND FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS
Short-term debt consisted of the following (in mitis):

September 3(
2011 2010
Bank borrowings and commercial pa| $59€ $75
Weighted average interest rate on s-term debt outstandin 2.4% 6.2%

During the quarter ended March 31, 2011, the Compaplaced its $2.05 billion committed five-yeaedit facility, scheduled to
maturity in December 2011, with a $2.5 billion coitted four-year credit facility scheduled to matime=ebruary 2015. The facility is
used to support the Company’s outstanding comrnigyajzer. There were no draws against the committedit facilities during the
fiscal years ended September 30, 2011 and 201Gagegeutstanding commercial paper for the fiscal ymded September 30, 2011
was $955 million and $409 million was outstandih@eptember 30, 2011. Average outstanding commegrageer for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2010 was $342 million and n@seoutstanding at September 30, 2010.

Long-term debt consisted of the following (in milis; due dates by fiscal year):

September 3(

2011 2010

Unsecured note
5.25% due in 2011 ($654 million 2010 par val $ — $ 65E
5.8% due in 2013 ($100 million par valt 101 10z
4.875% due in 2013 ($300 million par vall 321 327
Floating rate notes due in 2014 ($350 million palue) 35C —
1.75% due in 2014 ($450 million par valt 462 —
7.7% due in 2015 ($125 million par valt 12t 12¢
5.5% due in 2016 ($800 million par valt 80C 80C
7.125% due in 2017 ($150 million par val 164 167
5.0% due in 2020 ($500 million par valt 49¢ 49¢
4.25% due 2021 ($500 million par valt 497 —
6.0% due in 2036 ($400 million par valt 39t 39t
5.7% due in 2041 ($300 million par valt 29¢ —
11.5% due in 2042 (760,100 and 917,915 equity umigd11 and 2010, respective 38 46
11.5% notes due in 2042 ($8 million par val 8 —
6.95% due in 2046 ($125 million par valt 12t 12t
Capital lease obligatior 70 34
Foreigr-denominated del

Euro 28¢€ 27
Other 11 13
Gross lon-term debt 4,55( 3,31«
Less: current portio 17 662
Net lon¢-term debt $ 4,53¢ $ 2,652

At September 30, 2011, the Company’s euro-denomihiaing-term debt was at fixed rates with a weidfaeerage interest rate of
4.7%. At September 30, 2010, the Company’s euraiémated long-term debt was at fixed rates witheggivted-average interest rate
of 5.0%.

The installments of long-term debt maturing in sduent fiscal years are: 2012 — $17 million; 2013437 million; 2014 —
$930 million; 2015 — $132 million; 2016 — $805 nih; 2017 and thereafter — $2,229 million. The Camgs long-term debt
includes various financial covenants, none of wisith expected to restrict future operations.
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Total interest paid on both short and long-termt debthe fiscal years ended September 30, 20110 2&d 2009 was $216 million,
$181 million and $358 million, respectively. Ther@pgany uses financial instruments to manage itsesteate exposure (see Note 9,
“Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,”daNote 10, “Fair Value Measurements”). These imagnts affect the weighted
average interest rate of the Company’s debt armddst expense.

Financing Arrangements

During the quarter ended September 30, 2011, tinep@oy had four euro-denominated revolving creditlifees totaling 223 million
euro with 50 million euro expiring in July 2012,dv86.5 million euro facilities expiring in Septemi#912 and 100 million euro
expiring in August 2014. Additionally, the Compamgd a $50 million revolving credit facility expignin September 2012. At
September 30, 2011, there were no draws on thévirgaredit facilities.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2011, a 150amituro revolving credit facility and a 50 milli@uro revolving credit facility
matured. There were no draws outstanding on efigtodity.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2011, a totd5@{820 equity units, which had a purchase congaitiement date of March 31, 20
were early exercised. As a result, the Companyesi66,673 shares of Johnson Controls, Inc. constamk and approximately
$8 million of 11.5% notes due 2042.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2011, the Comesued $350 million aggregate principal amourftazdting rate senior unsecured
notes due in fiscal 2014, $450 million aggregatagipal amount of 1.75% senior unsecured fixed naties due in fiscal 2014,

$500 million aggregate principal amount of 4.25%iseunsecured fixed rate notes due in fiscal 2824 $300 million aggregate
principal amount of 5.7% senior unsecured fixed raites due in fiscal 2041. Aggregate net proceefi&.6 billion from the issues
were used for general corporate purposes inclutti@egetirement of short-term debt.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2011, the Compatered into a six-year, 100 million euro, flogtirate loan scheduled to mature
in February 2017. Proceeds from the facility wesedufor general corporate purposes.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2011, the Competired $654 million in principal amount, pluscaged interest, of its 5.25% fix
rate notes that matured on January 15, 2011. Thep@oy used cash to fund the payment.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2010, thepaasnrepaid debt of $82 million which was acquiasdoart of an acquisition in t
same quarter. The Company used cash to repay e de

During the quarter ended September 30, 2010, tinep@oy entered into a new $100 million committecbheng credit facility
scheduled to mature in December 2011. During tleetquended March 31, 2011, the Company retireddnemitted facility. There
were no draws on the facility.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2010, the Competimgd approximately $18 million in principal aomd of its fixed rate notes
scheduled to mature on January 15, 2011. The Comysad cash to fund the repurchases.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2010, a tot206fbonds ($200,000 par value) of the Company'$6:6nvertible senior notes
scheduled to mature on September 30, 2012, weeensed for Johnson Controls, Inc. common stock.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2010, a 50 mi#iaro revolving credit facility expired and ther@eany entered into a new one-year
committed, revolving credit facility in the amourft50 million euro that expired in May 2011.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2010, the Comsued $500 million aggregate principal amourf.6£6 senior unsecured fixed
rate notes due in fiscal 2020. Net proceeds frarigbue were used for general corporate purposksling the retirement of short-term
debt.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2010, the Competired approximately $61 million in principal aomt of its fixed rate notes
scheduled to mature on January 15, 2011. The Compsed cash to fund the repurchases.
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During the quarter ended March 31, 2010, the Competired its 18 billion yen, three-year, floatirafe loan agreement scheduled to
mature on January 18, 2011. The Company used caspay the note.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2009, thepaasnretired its 12 billion yen, three-year, flogtirate loan agreement that
matured. Additionally, the Company retired its idan yen, three-year, floating rate loan agreensstteduled to mature on January 18,
2011. The Company used cash to repay the notes.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2009, thepaagnretired approximately $13 million in princigahount of its fixed rate notes
scheduled to mature on January 15, 2011. Additipnéde Company repurchased 1,685 notes ($1,685800alue) of its 6.5%
convertible senior notes scheduled to mature oe8der 30, 2012. The Company used cash to funefhechases.

In September 2009, the Company settled the restiits previously announced offer to exchange (g) @and all of its outstanding 6.5%
convertible senior notes due 2012 for the followdogsideration per $1,000 principal amount of cetibbke senior notes: (i) 89.3855
shares of the Company’s common stock, (ii) a castment of $120 and (iii) accrued and unpaid intesesthe convertible senior notes
to, but excluding, the settlement date, payableash. Upon settlement of the exchange offer, apmiately $400 million aggregate
principal amount of convertible senior notes wetehanged for approximately 36 million shares of owon stock and approximately
$61 million in cash ($48 million of debt conversipayments and $13 million of accrued interest paymen the convertible senior
notes). As a result of the exchange, the Comparogrézed approximately $57 million of debt converscosts within its consolidated
statement of income which is comprised of $48 onillof debt conversion costs on the exchange aidnailion charge related to the
write-off of unamortized debt issuance costs.

In September 2009, the Company settled the resiits previously announced offer to exchange ug,550,000 of its outstanding nine
million Equity Units in the form of Corporate Unifthe “Corporate Units”) comprised of a forward ghaise contract obligating the
holder to purchase from the Company shares obitsngcon stock and a 1/20, or 5%, undivided benefmiaiership interest in $1,000
principal amount of the Company’s 11.50% subordidatotes due 2042, for the following considerapjen Corporate Unit: (i) 4.8579
shares of the Company’s common stock, (ii) a cagtment of $6.50 and (iii) a distribution consistiofigthe pro rata share of accrued
and unpaid interest on the subordinated notesutoexxluding, the settlement date, payable in ddplon settlement of the exchange
offer 8,082,085 Corporate Units (consisting of $4@ilion aggregate principal amount of outstandirig50% subordinated notes due
2042) were exchanged for approximately 39 millibares of common stock and approximately $65 mililooash ($52 million of debt
conversion payments and $13 million of accruedrésepayments on the subordinated notes). As & afghe exchange, the Company
recognized approximately $54 million of debt corsien costs within its consolidated statement obime which is comprised of

$53 million of debt conversion costs on the excleazgd a $1 million charge related to the writeedflinamortized debt issuance costs.

9. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Company selectively uses derivative instrumenteduce market risk associated with changesrgign currency, commodities,
stock-based compensation liabilities and interatgts: Under Company policy, the use of derivatisesstricted to those intended for
hedging purposes; the use of any derivative ingtnirfor speculative purposes is strictly prohibitddiescription of each type of
derivative utilized by the Company to manage riskcluded in the following paragraphs. In additicefer to Note 10, “Fair Value
Measurements,” of the notes to consolidated firdratatements for information related to the failue measurements and valuation
methods utilized by the Company for each derivatype.

The Company has global operations and participatéee foreign exchange markets to minimize itk ogloss from fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates. The Company pilynases foreign currency exchange contracts t@begtrtain of its foreign
exchange rate exposures. The Company hedges 798%¢mf the nominal amount of each of its known iigmeexchange transactional
exposures.

The Company has entered into cross-currency irtteaessswaps to selectively hedge portions ofétisimvestment in Japan. The
currency effects of the cross-currency interes sataps are reflected in the accumulated other mmepsive income (AOCI) account
within shareholders’ equity attributable to John€&amtrols, Inc. where they offset gains and lossesrded on the Company’s net
investment in Japan. In the second quarter of f3@40, the Company entered into three cross-cayramerest rate swaps totaling

20 billion yen. In the fourth quarter of fiscal Z7a 5 billion yen crossurrency swap matured. In the first quarter ofdis011, anothe
5 billion yen cross-currency swap matured. In theosd quarter of fiscal 2011, a 10 billion yen sroarrency swap matured.
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All three of these cross-currency interest ratepsnaere renewed for one year in their respective@ge. These swaps are designated as
hedges of the Company’s net investment in Japan.

The Company uses commodity contracts in the firdmigrivatives market in cases where commodityeprigk cannot be naturally
offset or hedged through supply base fixed pricgrects. Commaodity risks are systematically manggeduant to policy guidelines.
As cash flow hedges, the effective portion of tedde gains or losses due to changes in fair vatumially recorded as a component
of AOCI and are subsequently reclassified into isgswhen the hedged transactions, typically sadepsts related to sales, occur and
affect earnings. Any ineffective portion of the eds reflected in the consolidated statementadnme. The maturities of the
commodity contracts coincide with the expected pase of the commodities. The Company had the faigwutstanding commodity
hedge contracts that hedge forecasted purchases:

Volume Outstanding as

Commodity Units September 30, 201 September 30, 201
Copper Pounds 18,760,00 24,550,00
Lead Metric Ton: 25,60( 18,45(
Aluminum Metric Ton: 5,39¢ 8,27¢
Tin Metric Ton: 26C —

In addition, the Company selectively uses equitasswto reduce market risk associated with certits stock-based compensation
plans, such as its deferred compensation planseléguity compensation liabilities increase aslbmpany’s stock price increases and
decrease as the Company’s stock price decreasesntirast, the value of the swap agreement movéeeinpposite direction of these
liabilities, allowing the Company to fix a portia@f the liabilities at a stated amount. As of SegienB0, 2011 and 2010, the Company
had hedged approximately 4.3 million and 3.4 millghares of its common stock, respectively.

The Company selectively uses interest rate swapsdiace market risk associated with changes imasteates for its fixed-rate notes.
As fair value hedges, the interest rate swaps elated debt balances are valued under a markedbagpusing publicized swap curves.
Changes in the fair value of the swap and hedgeibpoof the debt are recorded in the consolidatatement of income. During the
second quarter of fiscal 2010, the Company entiestech fixed to floating interest rate swap totgl$100 million to hedge the coupor
its 5.8% notes maturing November 15, 2012 and twexlfto floating swaps totaling $300 million to lyedthe coupon of its 4.875%
notes maturing September 15, 2013. In the fourtrtquof fiscal 2010, the Company terminated altofnterest rate swaps. In the
second quarter of fiscal 2011 the Company enteri@dai fixed to floating interest rate swap total#id0 million to hedge the coupon of
its 5.8% notes maturing November 15, 2012, twodit@floating interest rate swaps totaling $300ionilto hedge the coupon of its
4.875% notes maturing September 15, 2013 andifted to floating interest rate swaps totaling $#&i0ion to hedge the coupon of its
1.75% notes maturing March 1, 2014.

In September 2005, the Company entered into ttmeeafd treasury lock agreements to reduce the rmagkeassociated with changes
in interest rates associated with the Company’gipated fixed-rate note issuance to finance tlgisition of York International (cash
flow hedge). The three forward treasury lock agreets, which had a combined notional amount of $1l®n, fixed a portion of the
future interest cost for 5-year, 10-year and 30-peads. The fair value of each treasury lock agesd, or the difference between the
treasury lock reference rate and the fixed rataveg of note issuance, is amortized to interesteasgp over the life of the respective note
issuance. In January 2006, in connection with tom@any’s debt refinancing, the three forward laglasury agreements were
terminated.
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The following table presents the location and Yailues of derivative instruments and hedging atisiincluded in the Company’s

consolidated statements of financial position (ilioms):

Derivatives and Hedging Activitie
Designated as Hedging Instrume
under ASC 81!

Derivatives and Hedging Activities N
Designated as Hedging Instrume
under ASC 81!

September 3 September 31 September 3 September 3
2011 2010 2011 2010
Other current asse
Foreign currency exchange derivati $ 28 $ 19 % 18 $ 8
Commaodity derivative — 14 — —
Other noncurrent asse
Interest rate swaf 15 — — —
Equity swag — — 11z 104
Foreign currency exchange derivati 11 1 16 1
Total asset $ 54 $ 34 3% 14¢€ $ 113
Other current liabilitie:
Foreign currency exchange derivati $ 49 $ 19 % 21 $ 8
Commaodity derivative 32 — — —
Cros«-currency interest rate swa 20 17 — —
Long-term debi
Fixed rate debt swapped to floati 86% — — —
Other noncurrent liabilitie
Foreign currency exchange derivati 19 1 11 1
Total liabilities $ 98¢t $ 37 $ 32 $ 9

The following table presents the location and amadfigains and losses gross of tax on derivatiggriiments and related hedge items
included in the Company’s consolidated statemehitscome for the fiscal year ended September 3Q12hd 2010 and amounts
recorded in AOCI net of tax or cumulative tranglatadjustment (CTA) net of tax in the consolidattatements of financial position (in

millions):

Year Endec
September 30, 201

As of
September 30, 201

Year Endec
September 30, 201

Amount of Gain

Amount of Gair  Location of Gain (Los: (Loss) Reclassifie

Location of Gain (Loss

Amount of Gair
(Loss) Recognized

(Loss) Recognized Reclassified from AOC from AOCI into Recognized in Income Income or
Derivatives in ASC 815 Cash Flc AOCI on Derivative into Income (Effective Income (Effective Derivative (Ineffective Derivative
Hedging Relationship (Effective Portion) Portion) Portion) Portion) (Ineffective Portion

Foreign currency exchange derivativ = $ (16) Cost of sale: $ 3 Cost of sale: $ —

Commaodity derivative (20) Cost of sale: 28 Cost of sale: —

Forward treasury lock 9 Net financing charge 1 Net financing charge —

Total $ 27) $ 32 $ —
As of Year Endec Year Endec

September 30, 201 September 30, 201

September 30, 201

Amount of Gair

Amount of Gair  Location of Gain (Lost (Loss) Reclassifie

Location of Gain (Loss

Amount of Gair
(Loss) Recognized

(Loss) Recognized Reclassified from AOC from AOCI into Recognized in Income Income or

Derivatives in ASC 815 Cash Flc AOCI on Derivative into Income (Effective Income (Effective Derivative (Ineffective Derivative
Hedging Relationship (Effective Portion) Portion) Portion) Portion) (Ineffective Portion
Foreign currency exchange derivativ  $ — Cost of sale: $ (3) Cost of sale: $ —
Commaodity derivative 10 Cost of sale! (1) Cost of sale: —
Forward treasury lock 10 Net financing charge 2 Net financing charge —
Total $ 20 $ (2 $ —

As of As of

Hedging Activities in ASC 815 N¢
Investment Hedging Relationshi

September 30, 201 September 30, 201

Amount of Gair Amount of Gain
(Loss) Recognized i (Loss) Recognized i
CTA on Outstandini CTA on Outstandin

Derivatives (Effectiv Derivatives (Effectiv

Net investment hedge
Total
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For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 ahd,2® gains or losses were reclassified from QTtd income for the Company’s

outstanding net investment hedges.

Derivatives in ASC 815 Fair Value Hedgi

Year Endec
September 30, 201

Year Endec
September 30, 201

Amount of Gain (Loss  Amount of Gain (Loss

Location of Gain (Loss) Recognized in Incomt Recognized in Income « Recognized in Income «

Relationship: Derivative Derivative Derivative
Interest rate swa Net financing charge $ 15 $ 10
Fixed rate debt swapped to floati Net financing charge (15) (7)
Total $ — $ 3
Year Endec Year Endec

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedg

Location of Gain (Loss) Recognized in Income

September 30, 201 September 30, 201

Amount of Gain (Loss Amount of Gain (Loss
Recognized in Income ' Recognized in Income

Instruments under ASC 8: Derivative Derivative Derivative
Foreign currency exchange derivati Cost of sale: $ 58% 21¢
Foreign currency exchange derivati Net financing charge 3 (18%)
Equity swar Selling, general and administrative expel (23) 14
Commaodity derivative Cost of sale: — 1
Total $ (15) $ 49

10. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosuréstihes fair value as the price that would be ikexkto sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction beem market participants at the measurement datg.828 also establishes a three-level
fair value hierarchy that prioritizes informatiosad in developing assumptions when pricing an asdetbility as follows:

Level 1:0bservable inputs such as quoted prices in actamkets;

Level 2:Inputs, other than quoted prices in active markbtd, are observable either directly or indirectigg

Level 3:Unobservable inputs where there is little or noketaidata, which requires the reporting entity teedep its own

assumptions.

ASC 820 requires the use of observable market dédian available, in making fair value measuremamMisen inputs used to measure
fair value fall within different levels of the harchy, the level within which the fair value measuent is categorized is based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the faalue measurement.
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Recurring Fair Value Measurements

The following tables present the Companfair value hierarchy for those assets and lidgddlimeasured at fair value as of Septembe
2011 and 2010 (in millions):

Fair Value Measurements Usir

Significant
Quoted Price Other Significant
in Active Observabl Unobservabl
Total as of Markets Inputs Inputs
September 30, 20 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Other current asse
Foreign currency exchange derivati $ 46 $ 46 $ — $ —
Other noncurrent asse
Interest rate swaf 15 — 15 —
Investments in marketable common st 34 34 — —
Equity swag 112 112 — —
Foreign currency exchange derivati 27 27 — —
Total asset $ 234 $ 21¢ $ 15 $ —
Other current liabilitie:
Foreign currency exchange derivati $ 70 $ 70 $ — $ —
Cros«-currency interest rate swa 20 — 20 —
Commaodity derivative 32 — 32 —
Long-term debi
Fixed rate swapped to floatit 86% — 86& —
Other noncurrent liabilitie
Foreign currency exchange derivati 30 30 — —
Total liabilities $ 1,015 $ 10C $ 917 $ —
Fair Value Measurements Usir
Significant
Quoted Price Other Significant
in Active Observabl Unobservabl
Total as of Markets Inputs Inputs
September 30, 20 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Other current asse
Foreign currency exchange derivati $ 27 $ 27 $ — $ —
Commaodity derivative 14 — 14 —
Other noncurrent asse
Investments in marketable common st 31 31 — —
Equity swar 104 104 — —
Foreign currency exchange derivati 2 2 — —
Total asset $ 17€ $ 164 $ 14 $ —
Other current liabilitie:
Foreign currency exchange derivati $ 27 $ 27 $ — $ —
Cros«-currency interest rate swa 17 — 17 —
Other noncurrent liabilitie
Foreign currency exchange derivati 2 2 — —
Total liabilities $ 46 $ 29 $ 17 $ —

Valuation Methods

Foreign currency exchange derivatives — The Comsaisctively hedges anticipated transactions tleasabject to foreign exchange
rate risk primarily using foreign currency exchamgelge contracts. The foreign currency exchangeatees are valued under a mal
approach using publicized spot and forward priéascash flow
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hedges, the effective portion of the hedge gaifesses due to changes in fair value are initisorded as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income and areguestly reclassified into earnings when the hedgetsactions occur and affect
earnings. Any ineffective portion of the hedgedfiected in the consolidated statement of inconies€ contracts are highly effective
hedging the variability in future cash flows attriibble to changes in currency exchange rates a¢i@bpr 30, 2011 and 2010. The fair
value of foreign currency exchange derivativesdesignated as hedging instruments under ASC 81feaoeded in the consolidated
statement of income.

Commodity derivatives — The Company selectivelygedanticipated transactions that are subjectriovoadity price risk, primarily
using commodity hedge contracts, to minimize ovgnate risk associated with the Company’s purchadfdead, copper, tin and
aluminum. The commodity derivatives are valued uredmarket approach using publicized prices, whgsdlable, or dealer quotes. As
cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the leegains or losses due to changes in fair valuedialy recorded as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income and aregueéstly reclassified into earnings when the hedgetsactions, typically sales
cost related to sales, occur and affect earningg.ideffective portion of the hedge is reflectedtie consolidated statement of income.
These contracts are highly effective in hedgingvigability in future cash flows attributable tbanges in commaodity price changes at
September 30, 2011 and 2010.

Interest rate swaps and related debt — The Comselegtively uses interest rate swaps to reduceahask associated with changes in
interest rates for its fixed-rate notes. As failueshedges, the interest rate swaps and relataddkinces are valued under a market
approach using publicized swap curves. Changdwiffair value of the swap and hedged portion ofdiélat are recorded in the
consolidated statement of income. During the secprdter of fiscal 2010, the Company entered infized to floating interest rate
swap totaling $100 million to hedge the coupon&s$.8% notes maturing November 15, 2012 and twexfto floating interest rate
swaps totaling $300 million to hedge the couponissof.875% notes maturing September 15, 201ddrfdurth quarter of fiscal 2010,
the Company terminated all of its interest ratepsvén the second quarter of fiscal 2011 the Compemered into a fixed to floating
interest rate swap totaling $100 million to hedge ¢coupon of its 5.8% notes maturing November 0322two fixed to floating interest
rate swaps totaling $300 million to hedge the caougioits 4.875% notes maturing September 15, 2003iae fixed to floating interest
rate swaps totaling $450 million to hedge the cougiits 1.75% notes maturing March 1, 2014.

Investments in marketable common stockltse Company invested in certain marketable comnmeksduring the third quarter of fis
2010. The securities are valued under a markebapprusing publicized share prices. As of Septer@be2011 and 2010, the Compi
recorded an unrealized gain of $9 million and $Biom, respectively, in accumulated other comprediemincome. The Company also
recorded an unrealized loss of $3 million in acclatad other comprehensive income on these investnasof September 30, 2011.
Unrealized losses recorded on these investmentiearaed immaterial for further disclosure.

Equity swaps — The Company selectively uses equiigps to reduce market risk associated with cedfaits stock-based
compensation plans, such as its deferred compengalins. The equity swaps are valued under a rapggoach as the fair value of
the swaps is based on the Company’s stock pritteeaeporting period date. Changes in fair valu¢henequity swaps are reflected in
the consolidated statement of income within sellj@neral and administrative expenses.

Cross-currency interest rate swaps — The Compdeygtaeely uses cross-currency interest rate swajpetge the foreign currency rate
risk associated with certain of its investmentdapan. The cross-currency interest rate swapsaéwed/using market assumptions.
Changes in the market value of the swaps are teflen the foreign currency translation adjustmeot®ponent of accumulated other
comprehensive income where they offset gains asgkkrecorded on the Company’s net investmenpanld he Company entered
into three cross-currency swaps totaling 20 billjen during the second quarter of fiscal 2010hinfburth quarter of fiscal 2010, a

5 billion yen cross-currency swap matured. In fre fjuarter of fiscal 2011, another 5 billion yenoss-currency swap matured. In the
second quarter of fiscal 2011, a 10 billion yerssrourrency swap matured. All three of these ccossency swaps were renewed for
one year in their respective periods. These swapdeasignated as hedges of the Company’s net meeastn Japan.

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, adsaeoeivable, short-term debt and accounts paygipeoximate their carrying values.
The fair value of long-term debt, which was $4.8idn and $3.7 billion at September 30, 2011 anti®0espectively, was determined
using market quotes.
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11.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has three share-based compensatia) plaich are described below. The compensationat@sged against income for
those plans was approximately $47 million, $52iorilland $27 million for the fiscal years ended $egier 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. The total income tax benefit recogdim the consolidated statements of income foreshased compensation
arrangements was approximately $19 million, $2liomiland $11 million for the fiscal years ended teefber 30, 2011, 2010 and 20
respectively. The Company applies a non-substamégting period approach whereby expense is aetetkfor those employees that
receive awards and are eligible to retire priatheaward vesting.

Stock Option Plan

The Company’s 2007 Stock Option Plan, as amendhedRlan), which is shareholder-approved, permégtant of stock options to its
employees for up to approximately 41 million shavEsew common stock as of September 30, 2011 0@iivards are granted with an
exercise price equal to the market price of the @amy’s stock at the date of grant; those option awageds lvetween two and three ye
after the grant date and expire ten years frongthat date (approximately 20 million shares of cammtock remained available to be
granted at September 30, 2011).

The fair value of each option award is estimatedhendate of grant using a Black-Scholes optionatin model that uses the
assumptions noted in the following table. Expecteldtilities are based on the historical volatilitithe Company’s stock and other
factors. The Company uses historical data to estimption exercises and employee terminations witfé valuation model. The
expected term of options represents the periodraf that options granted are expected to be outistgnThe risk-free rate for periods
during the contractual life of the option is basedhe U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at iheetof grant.

Year Ended September 30,

2011 2010 2009
Expected life of option (year: 45-6.0 4.3-5.0 42-45
Risk-free interest rat 1.10%- 1.58% 1.91%- 2.20% 2.57%- 2.68%
Expected volatility of the Compa’s stock 38.00% 40.00% 28.00%
Expected dividend yield on the Comp’s stock 1.74% 1.73% 1.52%

A summary of stock option activity at September3@11, and changes for the year then ended, is et below:

Weighted
Average Aggregate
Weighted Shares Remaining Intrinsic
Average Subject tc Contractue Value
Option Prict Option Life (years (in millions)
Outstanding, September 30, 2( $ 24.17 35,158,10
Granted 30.6¢4 4,994,151
Exercisec 19.1¢ (5,522,62))
Forfeited or expires 29.17 (405,63)
Outstanding, September 30, 2( $ 25.8i 34,224,01 5.7 $ 91
Exercisable, September 30, 2( $ 24.7¢ 22,401,36 4.2 $ 83

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of otigranted during the fiscal years ended Septefthe&2011, 2010 and 2009 was
$9.09, $7.70 and $6.68, respectively.

The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrthe fiscal years ended September 30, 2011, 2002009 was approximately
$101 million, $33 million and $4 million, respeddiy.
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In conjunction with the exercise of stock optiomarged, the Company received cash payments fdistted years ended September 30,
2011, 2010 and 2009 of approximately $105 milli#b2 million and $8 million, respectively.

The Company has elected to utilize the alterndtaesition method for calculating the tax effectstock-based compensation. The
alternative transition method includes computatiguadance to establish the beginning balance efiditional paid-in capital pool
(APIC Pool) related to the tax effects of emplogtEck-based compensation, and a simplified methaktermine the subsequent
impact on the APIC Pool for employee stdzksed compensation awards that are vested andmuditsj upon adoption of ASC 718. 1
tax benefit from the exercise of stock options,ahthis recorded in capital in excess of par valugs $30 million, $7 million and $1
million for the fiscal years ended September 30,12@010 and 2009, respectively. The Company dotsattle equity instruments
granted under share-based payment arrangemerasior

At September 30, 2011, the Company had approxign&gd million of total unrecognized compensatiostaelated to nonvested share-
based compensation arrangements granted undelatiheTlRat cost is expected to be recognized ovegighted-average period of
0.8 years.

Stock Appreciation Rights (SARS)

The Plan also permits SARs to be separately grantedrtain employees. SARs vest under the samestend conditions as option
awards; however, they are settled in cash for iffierdnce between the market price on the datexefaise and the exercise price. As a
result, SARs are recorded in the Company'’s conatitistatements of financial position as a liabilittil the date of exercise.

The fair value of each SAR award is estimated uaisgnilar method described for option awards. fHirevalue of each SAR award is
recalculated at the end of each reporting periabithe liability and expense adjusted based on ¢éwefair value.

The assumptions used to determine the fair valibeoSAR awards at September 30, 2011 were asvllo

Expected life of SAR (year: 0.5-5.2
Risk-free interest rat 0.06%- 1.01%
Expected volatility of the Compa’s stock 38.00%
Expected dividend yield on the Comp’s stock 1.80%

A summary of SAR activity at September 30, 2011 emanges for the year then ended, is presentedbel

Weighted
Average Aggregate
Weighted Shares Remaining Intrinsic
Average Subject tc Contractue Value
SAR Price SAR Life (years (in millions)
Outstanding, September 30, 2( $ 25.2¢ 3,237,111
Granted 30.5¢ 585,19(
Exercisec 22.91] (290,977)
Forfeited or expires 29.2¢ (67,35
Outstanding, September 30, 2( $ 26.2¢ 3,463,97! 6.C $ 8
Exercisable, September 30, 2( $ 25.1¢ 2,032,30 4.4 $ 7

In conjunction with the exercise of SARs grantée, Company made payments of $4 million, $3 milkow $2 million during the fiscal
years ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 200@ctasty.

Restricted (Nonvested) Stock

The Company has a restricted stock plan that pesvidr the award of restricted shares of commocksbo restricted share units to
certain key employees. Awards under the restristedk plan typically vest 50% after two years frthra grant date and 50% after four
years from the grant date. The plan allows foredéht vesting terms on specific grants with apprbyahe board of directors.
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A summary of the status of the Company’s nonvesgstticted stock awards at September 30, 2011¢clkandges for the fiscal year then
ended, is presented below:

Weightec Shares/Unit:

Average Subject tc

Price Restriction

Nonvested, September 30, 2( $ 31.6( 765,45!
Granted 35.02 331,70(
Vested 25.5i (32,75()
Nonvested, September 30, 2( $ 32.8¢ 1,064,40!

12.

At September 30, 2011, the Company had approxisn&tel million of total unrecognized compensatiostaelated to nonvested share-
based compensation arrangements granted underdinieted stock plan. That cost is expected teebegnized over a weightederage
period of 1.2 years.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Company presents both basic and diluted easmiagshare (EPS) amounts. Basic EPS is calcubgtdividing net income by the
weighted average number of common shares outstadirng the reporting period. Diluted EPS is chlted by dividing net income

by the weighted average number of common shares@ndon equivalent shares outstanding during thertimg period that are
calculated using the treasury stock method forkstmtions. The treasury stock method assumeshbatompany uses the proceeds
from the exercise of awards to repurchase comnumk gt the average market price during the pefibé. assumed proceeds under the
treasury stock method include the purchase prigetitle grantee will pay in the future, compensatiost for future service that the
Company has not yet recognized and any windfalbenefits that would be credited to capital in esscef par value when the award
generates a tax deduction. If there would be atfgtloresulting in a charge to capital in excesgaf value, such an amount would be a
reduction of the proceeds.

The Companys outstanding Equity Units due 2042 and 6.5% cdiblersenior notes due 2012 are reflected in dilwarnings per sha
using the “if-converted” method. Under this methibdijlutive, the common stock is assumed issuedfdbe beginning of the reporting
period and included in calculating diluted earnipgs share. In addition, if dilutive, interest erpe, net of tax, related to the outstan
Equity Units and convertible senior notes is adoack to the numerator in calculating diluted eagriper share.
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The following table reconciles the numerators aadaininators used to calculate basic and diluteniregs per share (in millions):

Year Ended September &

2011 2010 2009
Income Available to Common Shareholder:
Basic income (loss) available to common sharehs $ 1,62¢ $ 1,491 $ (339
Interest expense, net of t 3 5 —
Diluted income (loss) available to common shareéis $ 1,627 $ 1,49¢ $ (339
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding
Basic weighted average shares outstan 677.7 672.C 595.c
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options 8.1 5.6 —
Equity units 4.1 4.5 —
Convertible senior note — 0.1 —
Diluted weighted average shares outstan 689.¢ 682.5 595.3
Antidilutive Securities
Options to purchase common she 0.4 0.8 235

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009 ptaéweighted average of potential dilutive shates to stock options, Equity Units
and the convertible senior notes was 47.8 millidowever, these items were not included in the cdatfmn of diluted net loss per
common share for the fiscal year ended Septemhet(®®, since to do so would decrease the losshzee.

During the three months ended September 30, 204 2@10, the Company declared a dividend of $0.16%n13, respectively, per
common share. During the twelve months ended SdyeB80, 2011 and 2010, the Company declared foanteply dividends totaling
$0.64 and $0.52, respectively, per common share. Cdmpany paid all dividends in the month subseijieetine end of each fiscal
quarter.
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13. EQUITY AND NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS

The following schedules present changes in consi@ilequity attributable to Johnson Controls, &med noncontrolling interests (in

millions):
Equity Attributable tt  Equity Attributable t
Johnson Controls Noncontrolling
Inc. Interests Total Equity
At September 30, 20C $ 9,40¢ $ 87 $ 9,49
Total comprehensive income (los
Net income (loss (339 16 (322
Foreign currency translation adjustme (199 3 (197
Realized and unrealized gains on derivat 41 — 41
Employee retirement plat (326) — (32€)
Other comprehensive income (lo (479 3 (47€)
Comprehensive income (los (817) 19 (799
Other changes in equit
Cash dividend— common stock ($0.52 per sha (309 — (309
Dividends attributable to noncontrolling intere — (23 (23
Debt conversiol 804 — 804
Redemption value adjustment attributable to redéén@oncontrolling interes (20 — (20
Other, including options exercis 36 1 37
At September 30, 20C 9,10( 84 9,18¢
Total comprehensive incom
Net income 1,491 43 1,53¢
Foreign currency translation adjustme (115) — (115
Realized and unrealized gains on derivat 13 — 13
Unrealized gains on marketable common s 3 — 3
Employee retirement plai (170 — (170
Other comprehensive lo (269) — (269)
Comprehensive incomr 1,222 43 1,26t
Other changes in equit
Cash dividend— common stock ($0.52 per sha (350 — (350
Dividends attributable to noncontrolling intere — (22 (22
Redemption value adjustment attributable to redé&éen@oncontrolling interes 9 — 9
Other, including options exercis 90 1 91
At September 30, 201 10,07: 10€ 10,17
Total comprehensive incom
Net income 1,624 53 1,67
Foreign currency translation adjustme (109 (1) (110
Realized and unrealized losses on derival 47 — 47
Unrealized gains on marketable common s 3 — 3
Employee retirement plat (20%) — (20%)
Other comprehensive lo (35¢) (1) (359
Comprehensive incorr 1,26¢€ 52 1,31¢
Other changes in equit
Cash dividend— common stock ($0.64 per sha (43%) — (435)
Dividends attributable to noncontrolling intere — (32 32
Redemption value adjustment attributable to redéén@oncontrolling interes (32 — (32
Increase in noncontrolling interest sh — 12 12
Other, including options exercis: 172 — 172
At September 30, 201 $ 11,04: $ 136 $ 11,18(
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The components of accumulated other comprehensogarie were as follows (in millions, net of tax):

September 3(

2011 2010
Foreign currency translation adjustme $ 634 $ 748
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on deres (27) 20
Unrealized gains on marketable common s 6 3
Employee retirement plar (1,049 (843
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li $ (439 $ (1)

The Company consolidates certain subsidiaries ielwihe noncontrolling interest party has withieittcontrol the right to require the
Company to redeem all or a portion of its intefeghe subsidiary. The redeemable noncontrollingrests are reported at their
estimated redemption value. Any adjustment to #ukemption value impacts retained earnings but doesnpact net income.
Redeemable noncontrolling interests which are ne@dédée only upon future events, the occurrence a€hvis not currently probable,
are recorded at carrying value.

The following schedules present changes in theeradble noncontrolling interests (in millions):

Year Endec Year Endec Year Endec

September 30, 20. September 30, 20. September 30, 20!

Beginning balance, September $ 19€ $ 15 $ 167
Net income (loss 64 32 (28)
Foreign currency translation adjustme — 1 2
Increase (decrease) in noncontrolling interestes (21) 17 —
Dividends attributable to noncontrolling intere (11 — 2
Redemption value adjustme 32 (9) 20
Ending balance, September $ 26C $ 19€ $ 15E

14. RETIREMENT PLANS
Pension Benefits

The Company has non-contributory defined benefitsgn plans covering certain U.S. and non-U.S. eyg#s. The benefits provided
are primarily based on years of service and avetag®ensation or a monthly retirement benefit andgffective January 1, 2006,
certain of the Company’s U.S. pension plans wererated to prohibit new participants from entering ptans. Effective September 30,
2009, active participants will continue to accreméfits under the amended plans until Decembe2@®14. Funding for U.S. pension
plans equals or exceeds the minimum requiremertteedEmployee Retirement Income Security Act ofAL9unding for non-U.S.
plans observes the local legal and regulatory $infitso, the Company makes contributions to uniosteed pension funds for
construction and service personnel.

For pension plans with accumulated benefit oblagegi(ABO) that exceed plan assets, the projectedfib@bligation (PBO), ABO and
fair value of plan assets of those plans were $48®ion, $4,185 million and $3,346 million, respively, as of September 30, 2011
and $3,942 million, $3,804 million and $3,169 nailli respectively, as of September 30, 2010.
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2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

2017

In fiscal 2011, total employer and employee contiins to the defined benefit pension plans we&03aillion, of which $183 million
were voluntary contributions made by the Compare Tompany expects to contribute approximately $8Bidon in cash to its
defined benefit pension plans in fiscal year 2(Ardjected benefit payments from the plans as ofeBaper 30, 2011 are estimated as
follows (in millions):

$ 27¢

25C

262

26¢€

27¢

2021 1,46¢

Postretirement Health and Other Benefits

The Company provides certain health care andrgerance benefits for eligible retirees and thepethdents primarily in the U.S. Most
non-U.S. employees are covered by government spathgoograms, and the cost to the Company is gotfi&ant.

Eligibility for coverage is based on meeting cartgears of service and retirement age qualificatidimese benefits may be subject to
deductibles, co-payment provisions and other litioites, and the Company has reserved the right wifijnthese benefits. Effective
January 31, 1994, the Company modified certairrigalglans to place a limit on the Company’s cdstiture annual retiree medical
benefits at no more than 150% of the 1993 cost.

The September 30, 2011 projected postretiremergftbeligation (PBO) for both pre-65 and post-&ays of age employees was
determined using assumed medical care cost tréesl 08 7.5% for U.S. plans and non-U.S. plans,aBsing one half percent each year
to an ultimate rate of 5% and prescription drugdreates of 7.5% for U.S. plans and non-U.S. pldasteasing one half percent each
year to an ultimate rate of 5%. The September B00PBO for both pre-65 and post-65 years of agel@raes was determined using
medical care cost trend rates of 7% and 8% for pl&hs and non-U.S. plans, respectively, decreasieghalf percent each year to an
ultimate rate of 5% and prescription drug trenésaif 9% and 8% for U.S. plans and non-U.S. plaspectively, decreasing one half
percent each year to an ultimate rate of 6% andd%.S. plans and nob-S. plans, respectively. The health care costitessumptiol
does not have a significant effect on the amowaysnted.

In fiscal 2011, total employer and employee contitns to the postretirement health and other biepleins were $183 million, of
which $156 million were voluntary contributions negloy the Company. The Company expects to contriggppeoximately $60 million
in cash to its postretirement health and other fitgplans in fiscal year 2012. Projected benefigipants from the plans as of
September 30, 2011 are estimated as follows (ifoms):

2012 $ 23
2013 24
2014 24
2015 25
2016 25
20172021 98

In December 2003, the U.S. Congress enacted théchtedPrescription Drug, Improvement and ModermizaAct of 2003 (Act) for
employers sponsoring postretirement health camesptzat provide prescription drug benefits. The iAttiboduces a prescription drug
benefit under Medicare as well as a federal subsidponsors of retiree health care benefit plaogiging a benefit that is at least
actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D.1. Untiher Act, the Medicare subsidy amount is receiveeady by the plan sponsor and not
the related plan. Further, the plan sponsor iseguired to use the subsidy amount to fund poetragnt benefits and may use the
subsidy for any valid business purpose. Projeatbdidy receipts are estimated to be approximatglmilion per year over the next ten
years.

Savings and Investment Plans

The Company sponsors various defined contributaaingis plans primarily in the U.S. that allow emy@es to contribute a portion of
their pre-tax and/or after-tax income in accordanith plan specified guidelines. Under specifiedditions, the Company will
contribute to certain savings plans based on th@dames’ eligible pay
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and/or will match a percentage of the employeerdmrttons up to certain limits. Matching contribaris charged to expense amounted
to $67 million, $42 million and $35 million for thescal years ended 2011, 2010 and 2009, respéctive

Multiemployer Pension Plans

The Company participates in multiemployer pensilamg for certain of its hourly employees in the UlSe Company contributed
$51 million, $46 million and $47 million to multigoioyer pension plans in fiscal 2011, 2010 and 2@@8pectively.

Plan Assets

The Company’s investment policies employ an apgragltereby a mix of equities, fixed income and alééive investments are used to
maximize the longerm return of plan assets for a prudent levelsif. iThe investment portfolio primarily containsliaersified blend o
equity and fixed income investments. Equity inve=tis are diversified across domestic and non-dacr&sicks, as well as growth,
value and small to large capitalizations. Fixedme investments include corporate and governmesuoess with short-, mid- and long-
term maturities, with a focus on investment gradermvpurchased. Investment and market risks areurezhand monitored on an
ongoing basis through regular investment portfodciews, annual liability measurements and periediget/liability studies. The
majority of the real estate component of the ptictfis invested in a diversified portfolio of higjuality, operating properties with cash
yields greater than the targeted appreciation.dtments in other alternative asset classes, inaudédge funds and commodities, are
made via mutual funds to diversify the expecteastment returns relative to the equity and fixambme investments. As a result of «
diversification strategies, there are no signiftcancentrations of risk within the portfolio ofviestments.

The Company'’s actual asset allocations are invliitie target allocations. The Company rebalancestad®cations as appropriate, in
order to stay within a range of allocation for easket category.

The expected return on plan assets is based dbaimpany’s expectation of the lotgrm average rate of return of the capital marke
which the plans invest. The average market retaresdjusted, where appropriate, for active asaetigement returns. The expected
return reflects the investment policy target assigtand considers the historical returns earne@émwh asset category.

84




Table of Contents

The Company’s plan assets at September 30, 2012t by asset category, are as follows (in nmfijo

Fair Value Measurements Usir

Significant
Quoted Price Other Significant
in Active Observabl Unobservabl
Total as of Markets Inputs Inputs
Asset Categor September 30, 20 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
U.S. Pensior
Cash $ 25 $ 25 $ — $ —
Equity Securities
Large-Cap 734 734 — —
Smal-Cap 23C 23C — —
Internationa— Developec 42¢ 42¢ — —
Fixed Income Securities
Governmen 162 162 — —
Corporate/Othe 494 494 — —
Hedge Funds 94 — — 94
Real Estate 204 — — 204
Total $ 2,37 $ 2,074 $ — $ 29¢
Non-U.S. Pensior
Cash $ 57 $ 57 $ — $ —
Equity Securities
Large-Cap 141 141 — —
Internationa— Developec 347 347 — —
Internationa— Emerging 47 47 — —
Fixed Income Securities
Governmen 27€ 27€ — —
Corporate/Othe 49¢ 49¢ — —
Commaodities 11 11 — —
Real Estate 93 — — 93
Total $ 1,471 $ 1,37¢ $ — $ 93
Postretirement Health and Other Benefits
Equity Securities
Large-Cap $ 25 $ 25 $ — $ —
Smal-Cap 8 8 — —
Internationa— Developec 19 19 — —
Internationa— Emerging 9 9 — —
Fixed Income Securities
Governmen 19 19 — —
Corporate/Othe 53 53 — —
Commodities 14 14 — —
Real Estate 9 9 — —
Total $ 15€ $ 15€ $ — $ —

85







Table of Contents

Fair Value Measurements Usir

Significant
Quoted Price Other Significant
in Active Observabl Unobservabl
Total as of Markets Inputs Inputs
Asset Categor September 30, 20 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
U.S. Pensior
Cash $ 52 $ 52 $ — $ —
Equity Securities
Large-Cap 77¢ 77¢ — —
Smal-Cap 287 287 — —
Internationa— Developec 50t 50t — —
Fixed Income Securities
Governmen 147 147 — —
Corporate/Othe 46¢ 46¢ — —
Hedge Funds 91 — — 91
Real Estate 141 — — 141
Total $ 2,471 $  2,23¢ $ — $ 23z
Non-U.S. Pension
Cash $ 28 $ 28 $ — $ —
Equity Securities
Large-Cap 97 97 — —
Internationa— Developec 452 452 — —
Internationa— Emerging 13 13 — —
Fixed Income Securities
Governmen 132 132 — —
Corporate/Othe 412 412 — —
Commodities 11 11 — —
Real Estate 71 — — 71
Total $ 1,21¢ $  1,14f $ — $ 71

There were no postretirement health and other Heplah assets held at September 30, 2010.
Following is a description of the valuation methlmdpes used for assets measured at fair value.
Cash:The fair value of cash is valued at cost.

Equity SecuritiesThe fair value of equity securities is determingdrmirect quoted market prices. The value of asketd in separate
accounts is not published, but the investment mensagport daily the underlying holdings. The uhdeg holdings are direct quoted
market prices on regulated financial exchanges.

Fixed Income SecuritieThe fair value of fixed income securities is detieved by indirect quoted market prices. The valuagsets
held in separate accounts is not published, buhtrestment managers report daily the underlyinidihgs. The underlying holdings are
direct quoted market prices on regulated finanexahanges.

CommoditiesThe fair value of the commodities is determinedjbgted market prices of the underlying holdingsegulated financial
exchanges.

Hedge FundsThe fair value of hedge funds is accounted for loystodian. The custodian obtains valuations froeheulying managers
based on market quotes for the most liquid assetabiernative methods for assets that do not baffecient trading activity to derive
prices. The Company and custodian review the mesthedd by the
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underlying managers to value the assets. The Coymelieves this is an appropriate methodology t@iokthe fair value of these ass

Real EstateThe fair value of Real Estate Investment TrustsI{REis recorded as Level 1 as these securitiefraded on an open
exchange. The fair value measurement of other imegss in real estate is deemed Level 3 sincedahe\of these investments is
provided by fund managers. The fund managers \thkieeal estate investments via independent tlarty @mppraisals on a periodic
basis. Assumptions used to revalue the propenmesdated every quarter. The Company believesslasis appropriate methodology
obtain the fair value of these assets. For the corapt of the real estate portfolio under develogrtée investments are carried at cost

until they are completed and valued by a thirdypappraiser.

The methods described above may produce a faieallculation that may not be indicative of netizable value or reflective of
future fair values. Furthermore, while the Comphgeijeves its valuation methods are appropriatecamdistent with other market
participants, the use of different methodologieassumptions to determine the fair value of ceffiagncial instruments could result in

a different fair value measurement at the reportiate.

The following sets forth a summary of changes anftir value of assets measured using significanbservable inputs (Level 3) (in

millions):

U.S. Pensior

Asset value as of September 30, 2
Additions net of redemptior
Realized los!

Unrealized gait

Asset value as of September 30, 2
Additions net of redemptior
Realized gait

Unrealized gait

Asset value as of September 30, 2
Non-U.S. Pension

Asset value as of September 30, 2
Unrealized gait

Asset value as of September 30, 2
Additions net of redemptior
Unrealized gait

Asset value as of September 30, 2

87

Total Hedge Func
$ 174 $ 86
50 —
5) —
13 5
$ 23 $ 91
41 —
10 —
15 3
$ 29¢ $ 94
$ 64 $ —
7 _
$ 7 $ —
12 —
10 —
$ 93 $ =

Real Estat

88
50

(©)
8
141

41
10

12

204

64

71

12

10
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Funded Status
The table that follows contains the ABO and recletions of the changes in the PBO, the chang@dan assets and the funded status

(in millions):
Pension Benefit Postretirement Heall
U.S. Plang Non-U.S. Plans and Other Benefit

September 3( 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Accumulated Benefit Obligation $2,85( $2,65¢ $1,77¢ $1,62: $ — $ —
Change in Projected Benefit Obligatior
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of y 2,717 2,512 1,72¢ 1,521 25€ 27t
Service cos 66 67 34 38 5 4
Interest cos 14t 152 70 68 13 14
Plan participant contributior — — 6 5 6 7
Acquisitions — — 76 1 — —
Actuarial loss 177 10€ 9 14¢€ 5 23
Amendments made during the yi — — (32 3 — (44)
Benefits paic (150 (120 (67) (68) (27 (26)
Estimated subsidy receivi — — — — 1 2
Curtailment gair — — (30 (5) — —
Settlemen 2 — (12 — — —
Other — — 40 6 — —
Currency translation adjustme — — 33 16 — 1
Projected benefit obligation at end of y: $2,95: $2,715 $1,852 $1,728  $ 25¢€ $ 25€
Change in Plan Asset:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \ $2,471 $1,867 $1,21¢ $1,08C $ — $ —
Actual return on plan asse 44 151 29 64 — —
Acquisitions — — 12 — — —
Employer and employee contributic 9 573 271 10¢ 183 26
Benefits paic (150 (120 (67) (68) (27 (26)
Settlement paymen 2 — (12 — — —
Other — — 1 4 — —
Currency translation adjustme — — 21 28 — —
Fair value of plan assets at end of y $2,37: $2,471 $1,471 $1,21¢  $ 15€ $ —
Funded statu $ (58)) $ (246) $ (387) $ (509 $(10% $(256)
Amounts recognized in the statement of financialitpan

consist of.

Prepaid benefit co: $ — $ 7 $ 40 $ 17 $ 15 $ —

Accrued benefit liability (587) (253) (42)) (52€) (11€) (256€)
Net amount recognize $ (58)) $ (246) $ (38)) $ (509 $(10% $(256)
Weighted Average Assumptions (1
Discount rate (2 5.25% 5.5(% 4.00% 400% 5.25% 5.5(%
Rate of compensation incree 3.3(% 3.2(% 2.5(% 3.0% NA NA
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(M Plan assets and obligations are determined basadSeptember 30 measurement date at SeptembedBBDagd 201C

(@  The Company considers the expected benefit patgneena plan-by-plan basis when setting assumedulis rates. As a result, the
Company uses different discount rates for each ggrending on the plan jurisdiction, the demogrepbf participants and the expec
timing of benefit payments. For the U.S. pensiod postretirement health and other benefit plaress@bmpany uses a discount rate
provided by an independent third party calculatesilll on an appropriate mix of high quality bonds.tRe non-U.S. pension and
postretirement health and other benefit plansCiiapany consistently uses the relevant countryispéenchmark indices for

determining the various discount rat

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensiveriaamn the consolidated statement of financial osiexclusive of tax impacts,
that have not yet been recognized as componemist gferiodic benefit cost at September 30, 201hsufellows (in millions):

Postretiremen

Pensior Health and Oth¢
Benefits Benefits
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (inco
Net transition obligatiol $ 2 $ —
Net actuarial los 1,66: 16
Net prior service cred (172) (35)
Total $1,65¢ $ (19

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensiveriaeexpected to be recognized as components oeniet benefit cost over the
next fiscal year are shown below (in millions):

Postretiremen

Pensior Health and Oth¢
Benefits Benefits
Amortization of:
Net actuarial los $ 10z $ 1
Net prior service cred — an
Total $ 102 $ (16)
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Net Periodic Benefit Cost

The table that follows contains the componentsabfperiodic benefit cost (in millions):

Pension Benefit Postretirement Heall
U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans and Other Benefit

Year ended September 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
Components of Nel

Periodic Benefit Cost:
Service cos $ 66 $ 67 $ 66 $ 34 $ 38 $ 32 $ 5 $ 4 $ 4
Interest cos 14~ 152 15¢ 70 68 65 13 14 18
Expected return on plan ass (209) (9] (1749 (76) (64) (55) — — —
Amortization of net actuarial loss

(gain) 55 28 4 12 11 3 2 — 3
Amortization of prior service co

(credit) 1 1 1 2 — — a7) (a7) (7)
Special termination benefi — — — — — 1 — — —
Curtailment loss (gair — — 4 (29 @ 2 — — —
Settlement los — — — 4 2 — — — —
Divestures gail — — — — — @ — — —
Currency translation adjustme — — — (2) 2 — — — —
Net periodic benefit cos $ 58 $ 69 $ 60 $ 25 $ 56 $ 43 $ 3 $ 1 $ 12
Expense Assumptions:
Discount rate 5.5(% 6.25% 7.5(% 4.0(% 4.7%% 5.5(% 5.5(% 6.25% 7.5(%
Expected return on plan ass 8.5(% 8.5(% 8.5(% 5.5(% 6.0(% 6.0(% NA NA NA
Rate of compensation incree 3.2(% 4.2(% 4.2(% 3.0(% 3.2(% 3.0(% NA NA NA

15. RESTRUCTURING COSTS

To better align the Company’s cost structure wlthbgl automotive market conditions, the Company mded to a significant

restructuring plan (2009 Plan) in the second quartéiscal 2009 and recorded a $230 million restindng charge. The restructuring
charge related to cost reduction initiatives in@@nmpany’s automotive experience, building efficigand power solutions businesses
and included workforce reductions and plant constions. The Company expects to substantially cetagghe 2009 Plan by the end of
2011. The automotive-related restructuring actiangeted excess manufacturing capacity resultiog flower industry production in
the European, North American and Japanese autoenmi@rkets. The restructuring actions in buildinficefncy were primarily in
Europe where the Company is centralizing certamttions and rebalancing its resources to targegdélographic markets with the
greatest potential growth. Power solutions actforssed on optimizing its manufacturing capacityaassult of lower overall demand
for original equipment batteries resulting from Ewehicle production levels.

Since the announcement of the 2009 Plan in Mar&® 2the Company has experienced lower employegasse and termination
benefit cash payouts than previously calculatecémomotive experience in Europe of approximat&§ illion, all of which was
identified prior to the current fiscal year, dudaworable severance negotiations and the decisioot close previously planned plants
in response to increased customer demand. The spetet of the initial 2009 Plan reserves has beemritied for additional costs
incurred as part of power solutions and automatixgerience Europe and North America’s additionat ceduction initiatives. The
planned workforce reductions disclosed for the 2B have been updated for the Company’s revisgohs.
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The following table summarizes the changes in tom@any’s 2009 Plan reserve, included within otherent liabilities in the
consolidated statements of financial position (ilioms):

Employee
Severance al
Termination Currency
Benefits Other Translatior Total
Balance at September 30, 2( $ 14C $ 2 $ 8 $ 15C
Noncash adjustmer— underspent 42 — — 42
Noncash adjustmer— revised action 20 — — 20
Utilized — cash (64) — — (64)
Utilized — noncast — 2 (6) (8
Balance at September 30, 2( $ 54 $ — $ 2 $ 56
Utilized — cash (43 — — (43)
Utilized — noncast — — 2 (2
Balance at September 30, 2( $ 11 $ — $ — $§ 11

To better align the Comparg/tesources with its growth strategies while redgithe cost structure of its global operations,Goenpany
committed to a significant restructuring plan (20®8n) in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 andoréed a $495 million restructuring
charge. The restructuring charge related to catat®on initiatives in its automotive experiencaijltiing efficiency and power solutions
businesses and included workforce reductions aamat pbnsolidations. The Company expects to subatiyntomplete the 2008 Plan by
the end of 2011. The automotive-related restrucguwas in response to the fundamentals of the Eampnd North American
automotive markets. The actions targeted reductiotfse Company’s cost base by decreasing excesafawuring capacity due to
lower industry production and the continued moveneéwehicle production to low-cost countries, esphy in Europe. The
restructuring actions in building efficiency wenenparily in Europe where the Company centralizedaie functions and rebalanced its
resources to target the geographic markets witlgthatest potential growth. Power solutions actforased on optimizing its regional
manufacturing capacity.

Since the announcement of the 2008 Plan in Septedild, the Company has experienced lower emplsgeerance and termination
benefit cash payouts than previously calculategrope for building efficiency and automotive expace of approximately

$95 million, all of which was identified prior thé current fiscal year, due to favorable severaegmtiations, individuals transferred to
open positions within the Company and changes $h mluction actions from plant consolidation tevdeizing of operations. The
underspend of the initial 2008 Plan has been cotadhfor similar additional restructuring actionfieTunderspend experienced by
building efficiency in Europe has been committedtry same group for workforce reductions and ptansolidations. The underspend
experienced by automotive experience in Europebbeas committed for additional plant consolidatiforsautomotive experience in
North America and workforce reductions for buildiefficiency in Europe. The planned workforce reduts disclosed for the 2008 P
have been updated for the Company’s revised actions

91




Table of Contents

The following table summarizes the changes in tom@any’s 2008 Plan reserve, included within otherent liabilities in the
consolidated statements of financial position (ilioms):

Employee
Severance at
Termination Fixed Asse Currency
Benefits Impairmen Other Translatiot Total
Balance at September 30, 2( $ 21k $ — $ — $ (19 $ 197
Noncash adjustmer— underspent (32 — — — (32
Noncash adjustmer— revised action 23 19 12 — 54
Utilized — cash (98) — — — (98)
Utilized — noncast — (19 (12 (10 (41
Balance at September 30, 2( $ 10¢ $ — $ — $ (28 $ 80
Utilized — cash (52) — — — (52)
Utilized — noncast — — — 1 1
Balance at September 30, 2( $ 57 $ — $ — $ (27 $ 30

16.

The 2008 and 2009 Plans included workforce redostaf approximately 20,400 employees (9,500 foomative experience North
America, 5,200 for automotive experience Europ&0Q for automotive experience Asia, 2,900 for baddefficiency other, 700 for
building efficiency global workplace solutions, 2f2@ building efficiency Asia and 800 for power gtbns). Restructuring charges
associated with employee severance and terminbéosfits are paid over the severance period grdatedch employee and on a lump
sum basis when required in accordance with indalideverance agreements. As of September 30, 2ppioximately 17,300 of the
employees have been separated from the Companygnit® the 2008 and 2009 Plans. In addition, 6@82nd 2009 Plans included
33 plant closures (14 for automotive experiencettNdmerica, 11 for automotive experience Europfraautomotive experience Asia,
2 for building efficiency other and 3 for power stidns). As of September 30, 2011, 27 of the 38tgladave been closed. The
restructuring charge for the impairment of longetivassets associated with the plant closures wesmeed using fair value based on a
discounted cash flow analysis.

Company management closely monitors its overall sipscture and continually analyzes each of itsitmsses for opportunities to
consolidate current operations, improve operatifigiencies and locate facilities in low cost coti@s in close proximity to customers.
This ongoing analysis includes a review of its nfaoturing, engineering and purchasing operatiosisyell as the overall global
footprint for all its businesses. Because of thpantance of new vehicle sales by major automotie@ufacturers to operations, the
Company is affected by the general business comditin this industry. Future adverse developmentle automotive industry could
impact the Company’s liquidity position, lead topairment charges and/or require additional reatrirgg of its operations.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairmérenever events or changes in circumstancesateltbat the asset’s carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The Company condadting-lived asset impairment analyses in acaocd with ASC 360-10-15,
“Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” AS60-10-15 requires the Company to group assetséatilities at the lowest level
for which identifiable cash flows are largely in@eplent of the cash flows of other assets and iligisiland evaluate the asset group
against the sum of the undiscounted future castsfl¢f the undiscounted cash flows do not indi¢atecarrying amount of the asset
group is recoverable, an impairment charge is nredsas the amount by which the carrying amountefasset group exceeds its fair
value based on discounted cash flow analysis ora#gais.

At September 30, 2011, the Company concluded ihdichave any triggering events requiring assessofémpairment of its long-
lived assets. Refer to Note 1, “Summary of SigatifitAccounting Policies,” for discussion of the Gmany’s goodwill impairment
testing.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Companopaluded it had a triggering event requiring assesd of impairment of its long-lived
assets due to the planned relocation of a pladajan in the automotive experience Asia segmend. rasult, the Company reviewed its
long-lived assets for impairment and recorded ahrillion impairment charge within cost of saleglie fourth quarter of fiscal 2010
related to the automotive experience Asia segnidrd.impairment was measured under a market apprddicing an appraisal. The
inputs utilized in the
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analysis are classified as Level 3 inputs withim fdar value hierarchy as defined in ASC 820, “Ré&tue Measurements and
Disclosures.”

In the third quarter of fiscal 2010, the Companpaoded it had a triggering event requiring assesgraf impairment of its long-lived
assets due to the planned relocation of its heatiraaduilding in Japan in the automotive expergeAsia segment. As a result, the
Company reviewed its long-lived assets for impamtrend recorded an $11 million impairment chargéiwiselling, general and
administrative expenses in the third quarter afdi010 related to the automotive experience Asgment. The impairment was
measured under a market approach utilizing an &ggbrd he inputs utilized in the analysis are dféexs as Level 3 inputs within the fe
value hierarchy as defined in ASC 820, “Fair Vallieasurements and Disclosures.”

In the second quarter of fiscal 2010, the Compamgluded it had a triggering event requiring assesd of impairment of its long-
lived assets due to planned plant closures foathemotive experience North America segment. Tlokxires are a result of the
Company’s revised restructuring actions to the 2P#. Refer to Note 15, “Restructuring Costs,thaf notes to consolidated financial
statements for further information regarding th@@@lan. As a result, the Company reviewed itsiboregl assets for impairment and
recorded a $19 million impairment charge in theosecquarter of fiscal 2010 related to the autongoéixperience North America
segment. This impairment charge was offset by aedse in the Company'’s restructuring reserve latéhe 2008 Plan due to lower
employee severance and termination benefit castm@iatg than previously expected, as discussed furtiidote 15. The impairment
was measured under an income approach utiliziregc&sted discounted cash flows for fiscal 2010 tind2014 to determine the fair
value of the impaired assets. This method is ctersisvith the method the Company has employedior periods to value other long-
lived assets. The inputs utilized in the discourdash flow analysis are classified as Level 3 igpuithin the fair value hierarchy as
defined in ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements ansc@sures.”

In the third quarter of fiscal 2009, the Companpaaded it had a triggering event requiring assesgraf impairment of its long-lived
assets in light of the restructuring plans in N@therica announced by Chrysler LLC (Chrysler) areh&€al Motors Corporation

(GM) during the quarter as part of their bankrup®grganization plans. As a result, the Companievesd its long-lived assets relating
to the Chrysler and GM platforms within the autoiv@experience North America segment and determireidhpairment existed.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2009, the Compamcluded it had a triggering event requiring assesd of impairment of its long-
lived assets in conjunction with its restructurpign announced in March 2009. As a result, the Gowpeviewed its long-lived assets
associated with the plant closures for impairmext @corded a $46 million impairment charge ingbeond quarter of fiscal 2009, of
which $25 million related to the automotive expede North America segment, $16 million relatedhi® automotive experience Asia
segment and $5 million related to the automotiveegience Europe segment. Refer to Note 15, “Resiing Costs,” of the notes to
consolidated financial statements for further infation regarding the 2009 Plan. Additionally, atrbta31, 2009, in conjunction with
the preparation of its financial statements, thenBany concluded it had a triggering event requieegessment of its other long-lived
assets within the automotive experience Europe segdue to significant declines in European autdractales volume. As a result,
Company reviewed its other long-lived assets withsnautomotive experience Europe segment for impit and determined no
additional impairment existed.

At December 31, 2008, in conjunction with the pregian of its financial statements, the Companyctuated it had a triggering event
requiring assessment of impairment of its longdiessets due to the significant declines in NortieAican and European automotive
sales volumes. As a result, the Company revieveeldiitg-lived assets for impairment and recordedZ3nillion impairment charge
within cost of sales in the first quarter of fis@al09, of which $77 million related to the autoraetexperience North America segment
and $33 million related to the automotive expergeEarope segment.

The Company reviews its equity investments for iimmpant whenever there is a loss in value of anstment which is other than a
temporary decline. The Company conducts its eqoitgstment impairment analyses in accordance W8 823, “Investments-Equity
Method and Joint Ventures.” ASC 323 requires then@any to record an impairment charge for a decrieagalue of an investment
when the decline in the investment is considerdaktother than temporary.

At December 31, 2008, in conjunction with the pregian of its financial statements, the Companyctaated it had a triggering event
requiring assessment of impairment of its equitiegiment in a 48%-owned joint venture with U.S.cAinditioning Distributors, Inc.
(U.S. Air) due to the significant decline in No’merican residential housing construction startsictv had significantly impacted the
financial results of the equity investment. The
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17.

Company reviewed its equity investment in U.S. fAirimpairment and as a result, recorded a $15Ramilmpairment charge within
equity income (loss) for the building efficiencyhet segment in the first quarter of fiscal 2009 ThS. Air investment balance incluc
in the consolidated statement of financial positb®September 30, 2011 was $53 million. The Compkmas not anticipate future
impairment of this investment as, based on itsenirforecasts, a further decline in value thatligothan temporary is not considered
reasonably likely to occur.

INCOME TAXES

The more significant components of the Companyeine tax provision from continuing operations adéalows (in millions):

Year Ended September @

2011 2010 2009
Tax expense (benefit) at federal statutory $ 73¢ $ 617 $ (11)
State income taxes, net of federal ber (20 28 (15)
Foreign income tax expense at different rates areldn losses without tax benel (357) (330 (92
U.S. tax on foreign incom 28 3 81
Reserve and valuation allowance adjustm (30 (13¢) 18C
Medicare Part [ — 16 —
Credits (7 (3) (17)
Other 1 10 —
Provision for income taxe $ 37C $ 197 $ 32

The effective rate is below the U.S. statutory date to continuing global tax planning initiativéscome in certain non-U.S.
jurisdictions with a rate of tax lower than the Us&tutory tax rate and certain discrete periechs.

Valuation Allowances

The Company reviews its deferred tax asset valnaiowances on a quarterly basis, or whenevertsw@changes in circumstances
indicate that a review is required. In determiniing requirement for a valuation allowance, thednisal and projected financial results
of the legal entity or consolidated group recordimg net deferred tax asset are considered, al@hgawy other positive or negative
evidence. Since future financial results may diffem previous estimates, periodic adjustmentfi®oGompany’s valuation allowances
may be necessary.

In fiscal 2011, the Company recorded a decreais t@luation allowances primarily due to a $30limil discrete period income tax
adjustment in the fourth quarter. In the fourthrgeraof fiscal 2011, the Company performed an asialselated to the realizability of its
worldwide deferred tax assets. As a result, aret afinsidering tax planning initiatives and othesifive and negative evidence, the
Company determined that it was more likely thanthat the deferred tax assets primarily within DarknItaly, automotive experience
in Korea and automotive experience in the Unitedgdiom would be utilized. Therefore, the Compangaséd a net $30 million of
valuation allowances in the three month period drisieptember 30, 2011.

In fiscal 2010, the Company recorded an overaltekse to its valuation allowances of $87 milliomarily due to a $111 million
discrete period income tax adjustment. In the foguarter of fiscal 2010, the Company performedalysis related to the realizability
of its worldwide deferred tax assets. As a result] after considering tax planning initiatives atider positive and negative evidence,
the Company determined that it was more likely thatithat the deferred tax assets primarily witiiexico would be utilized.
Therefore, the Company released $39 million of attun allowances in the three month period endgde®eber 30, 2010. Further, the
Company determined that it was more likely thanthat the deferred tax assets would not be utilinesklected entities in Europe.
Therefore, the Company recorded $14 million of a#ibn allowances in the three month period endgde®gber 30, 2010. To the ext
the Company improves its underlying operating tasualthese entities, these valuation allowancea,mrtion thereof, could be
reversed in future periods.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2010, the Companted®mined that it was more likely than not that atipo of the deferred tax assets wit
the Slovakia automotive entity would be utilizedheFefore, the Company released $13 million of vdnaallowances in the three
month period ended June 30, 2010.
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In the first quarter of fiscal 2010, the Companyedained that it was more likely than not that atipon of the deferred tax assets within
the Brazil automotive entity would be utilized. Tafore, the Company released $69 million of vahragllowances. This was
comprised of a $93 million decrease in income tepease offset by a $24 million reduction in cumivktranslation adjustments.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Compamyréased the valuation allowances by $20 milliomictv was substantially offset by a
decrease in its reserves for uncertain tax positiora similar amount. These adjustments were basedreview of tax return filing
positions taken in these jurisdictions and theldistaed reserves.

In fiscal 2009, the Company recorded an overalldase to its valuation allowances by $245 millibhis was comprised of a
$252 million increase in income tax expense withrgmaining amount impacting the consolidated state of financial position.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2009, the Companted®mined that it was more likely than not that atipo of the deferred tax assets wit
the Brazil power solutions entity would be utiliz8therefore, the Company released $10 million dfiation allowances in the three
month period ended June 30, 2009. This was contpaba $3 million decrease in income tax expengh thie remaining amount
impacting the consolidated statement of financdifion because it related to acquired net opagdtisses.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2009, the Compatgrthined that it was more likely than not thatdleéerred tax asset associated with a
capital loss would be utilized. Therefore, the Campreleased $45 million of valuation allowancethimthree month period ended
March 31, 2009.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2009, as a resulthef rapid deterioration in the economic environtmseaveral jurisdictions incurred
unexpected losses in the first quarter that redufteumulative losses over the prior three ye@ssa result, and after considering tax
planning initiatives and other positive and negatwvidence, the Company determined that it was tilaly than not that the deferred
tax assets would not be utilized in several judgdns including France, Mexico, Spain and the &chiKingdom. Therefore, the
Company recorded $300 million of valuation allowesiin the three month period ended December 3B.20Dthe extent the Compe
improves its underlying operating results in thgsesdictions, these valuation allowances, or diparthereof, could be reversed in
future periods.

Uncertain Tax Positions

The Company is subject to income taxes in the Bn8.numerous non-U.S. jurisdictions. Judgmentdsired in determining its
worldwide provision for income taxes and recording related assets and liabilities. In the ordiramyrse of the Company’s business,
there are many transactions and calculations wheraltimate tax determination is uncertain. Thenpany is regularly under audit by
tax authorities.

At September 30, 2011, the Company had gross fagtefl unrecognized tax benefits of $1,357 millidnvhich $1,164 million, if
recognized, would impact the effective tax ratetal net accrued interest at September 30, 201 lapoximately $77 million (net of
tax benefit).

At September 30, 2010, the Company had gross fagtefl unrecognized tax benefits of $1,262 millkérvhich $1,063 million, if
recognized, would impact the effective tax ratetalnet accrued interest at September 30, 201Gappoximately $68 million (net of
tax benefit).

At September 30, 2009, the Company had gross fagtefl unrecognized tax benefits of $1,049 millibrvhich $874 million, if
recognized, would impact the effective tax ratetal net accrued interest at September 30, 200apaoximately $68 million (net of
tax benefit).
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoaininrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

Year Endec Year Endec Year Endec
September 30, 20. September 30, 20. September 30, 20!

(in millions)

Beginning balance, September $ 1,26z $ 1,04¢ $ 814
Additions for tax positions related to the currgaar 15C 258 23¢€
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 20 257 65
Reductions for tax positions of prior yei (62 (15§ (29
Settlement: (5) (209 (37)
Statute closing (8) (30 —

Ending balance, September $ 1,351 $ 1,262 $ 1,04¢

The Company is regularly under audit by tax autiesj including major jurisdictions noted below:

Tax Statute o

Jurisdiction Limitations

Austria 5 years

Belgium 3 years

Brazil 5 years

Canade 5 years

China 3to 5 year

Czech Republi 3 years

France 3 years

Germany 4 to 5 year

Italy 4 years

Japar 5to 7 year

Mexico 5 years

Poland 5 years

Spain 4 years

United Kingdom 4 years

United State— Federal 3 years

United State— State 3to 5 year

In the U.S., the fiscal years 2007 through 200%areently under exam by the Internal Revenue $erfiRS) and fiscal years 2004
through 2006 are currently under IRS Appeals. Addélly, the Company is currently under exam inftllowing major foreign

jurisdictions:

Tax Jurisdictior

Tax Years Covere

Austria

Brazil

Canade

Czech Republi
France
Germany

Italy

Mexico

Poland

Spain

2006— 2008
2005— 2008
2007— 2008
2007— 2009
2002— 2010
2001— 2009
2005— 2009
2003— 2004
2007— 2008
2006— 2008

It is reasonably possible that certain tax exanonat appellate proceedings and/or tax litigatidih e@nclude within the next

12 months, the impact of which could be up to ad®tdllion adjustment to tax expense.

Based on published case law in a non-U.S. jurisgia@nd the settlement of a tax audit during thedtquarter of fiscal 2010, the

Company released net $38 million of reserves faettain tax positions, including interest and ptes
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As a result of certain events related to prior yaamlanning initiatives during the first quartdrfiscal 2010, the Company increased
reserve for uncertain tax positions by $31 milliorgluding $26 million of interest and penalties.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Compapgréased its reserves for uncertain tax positigr&b million, which was
substantially offset by an increase in its valuatdlowances in a similar amount. These adjustmeate based on a review of tax filing
positions taken in jurisdictions with valuationallances as indicated above.

As a result of certain events in various jurisdin during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2G68luding the settlement of the fiscal
2002 through fiscal 2003 U.S. federal tax examaretj the Company decreased its total reserve frtain tax positions by
$32 million. This was comprised of a $55 millioncdease to tax expense and a $23 million increageddwill.

As a result of various entities exiting businesseértain jurisdictions and certain events relatedrtor tax planning initiatives during the
third quarter of fiscal 2009, the Company redudedreserve for uncertain tax positions by $33 onlliThis was comprised of a $17
million decrease to tax expense and a $16 milliecrebse to goodwill.

Changein Tax Status

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, the Compaagorded $84 million in discrete period tax benefated to a change in tax status of a
U.S. and a U.K. subsidiary. This is comprised 568 million tax expense benefit and a $25 milli@tiase to goodwill. In the second
quarter of fiscal 2009, the Company recorded arisiion discrete period tax benefit related to awebe in tax status of a French
subsidiary.

The changes in tax status resulted from voluntxyetections that produced deemed liquidationdJf&. federal income tax purposes.
The Company received tax benefits in the U.S.Herlbsses from the decrease in value as compaitbé twiginal tax basis of its
investments. These elections changed, for U.Srdédeome tax purposes, the tax status of thesesrand are reported as a discrete
period tax benefit in accordance with the provissteSC 740.

Impacts of Tax Legisation and Change in Statutory Tax Rates

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 20Xlletgislation was adopted in various jurisdictioN®ne of these changes are expe
to have a material impact on the Company’s conatgidi financial condition, results of operationsash flows.

On March 23, 2010, the U.S. President signed amodomprehensive health care reform legislatioreutite Patient Protection and
Affordable Care Act (HR3590). Included among thganarovisions of the law is a change in the taatment of a portion of Medicare
Part D medical payments. The Company recorded easbrtax charge of approximately $18 million in seeond quarter of fiscal year
2010 to reflect the impact of this change. In tnrth quarter of fiscal 2010, the amount decredse®? million resulting in an overall
impact of $16 million.

In fiscal 2009, the Company obtained High Tech Enise status from the Chinese Tax Bureaus foouarChinese subsidiaries. This
status allows the entities to benefit from a 15%rtde.

In February 2009, Wisconsin enacted numerous clsatogé/isconsin income tax law as part of the Bu@ighulus and Repair Bill,
Wisconsin Act 2. These changes were effective@Cbmpany’s tax year ended September 30, 2010mEj@r changes included an
adoption of corporate unitary combined reportind an expansion of the related entity expense adkl fw@visions. These Wisconsin
tax law changes did not have a material impacherompany’s consolidated financial condition, hessof operations or cash flows.
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Continuing Operations

Components of the provision for income taxes ortinaing operations were as follows (in millions):

Year Ended September @

2011 2010 2009
Current
Federal $ 56 $ 112 $ 53
State — 29 6
Foreign 45¢ 141 (33
514 282 26
Deferred
Federal 20¢ 10€ (15¢
State (9) 2 (12)
Foreign (343 (193 17¢€
(149 (85) 6
Provision for income taxe $ 37C $ 197 $ 32

Consolidated domestic income from continuing openatbefore income taxes and noncontrolling intsrés the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was income af §ifl8on, income of $666 million and loss of $268llion, respectively.
Consolidated non-U.S. income from continuing operest before income taxes and noncontrolling intsrés the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was income 824illion, income of $1,097 million and loss &3million, respectively.

Income taxes paid for the fiscal years ended Sdpte®0, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were $384 million, $%58bon and $326 million,
respectively.

The Company has not provided additional U.S. inctames on approximately $5.7 billion of undistriédtearnings of consolidated non-
U.S. subsidiaries included in shareholders’ egaitsibutable to Johnson Controls, Inc. Such easgauld become taxable upon the
sale or liquidation of these non-U.S. subsidiaoiespon dividend repatriation. The Company’s inierfor such earnings to be
reinvested by the subsidiaries or to be repatriatdg when it would be tax effective through thdization of foreign tax credits. It is

not practicable to estimate the amount of unrecaghivithholding taxes and deferred tax liabilitysach earnings. Refer to
“Capitalization” within the “Liquidity and CapitdResources” section of Iltem 7 for discussion of dstmeand foreign cash projections.

Deferred taxes were classified in the consolidatatements of financial position as follows (inlioils):

September 3(

2011 2010
Other current asse $ 55¢ $ 53¢
Other noncurrent asse 1,85t 1,43¢
Other current liabilitie 4) Q)
Other noncurrent liabilitie (56) (112
Net deferred tax ass $ 2,35: $ 1,85¢
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Temporary differences and carryforwards which géaseto deferred tax assets and liabilities inctu@e millions):

September 3(

2011 2010
Deferred tax asse
Accrued expenses and reser $ 79: $ 821
Employee and retiree benef 39C 33:
Net operating loss and other credit carryforwe 2,31« 1,731
Research and developmt 10z 12¢
3,60( 3,01z
Valuation allowance (719 (739
2,881 2,27¢
Deferred tax liabilitie:
Property, plant and equipme 13C 40
Intangible asset 34t 33C
Other 53 48
52¢ 41€
Net deferred tax ass $ 2,35: $ 1,85¢

18.

At September 30, 2011, the Company had availalileperating loss carryforwards of approximately8#3illion, of which $1.4 billion
will expire at various dates between 2012 and 2886,the remainder has an indefinite carryforwandonl. The Company had availa
U.S. foreign tax credit carryforwards at Septen8r2011 of $961 million, which will expire at vaus dates between 2016 and 2021.
The valuation allowance, generally, is for lossyfmrwards for which utilization is uncertain besaut is unlikely that the losses will
utilized given the lack of sustained profitabiland/or limited carryforward periods in certain ctrigs.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Effective October 1, 2010, the building efficienmysiness of the Company reorganized its managempaoltting structure to reflect its
current business activities.

Prior to this reorganization, building efficiencyagrcomprised of six reportable segments for fir@meporting purposes (North
America systems, North America service, North Areetinitary products, global workplace solutions;dpe and rest of world). As a
result of this change, building efficiency is noantprised of five reportable segments for financéglorting purposes (North America
systems, North America service, global workpladetsans, Asia and other).

A summary of the significant building efficiencypertable segment changes is as follows:

. The systems and services businesses in Asiappay included in the rest of world segment, ase/part of a new
reportable segment nam“Asia.”

. The former Europe segment is now included in tmmér rest of world segment, which has been rené"other”
. The former North America unitary products segmemntaw included in the other segme

The Company'’s financial statements reflect the bailding efficiency reportable segment structurd aartain building efficiency cost
allocation methodology changes. The changes ication methodology more specifically allocate eegiing and other building
efficiency costs to the reportable segments. Bear building efficiency reportable segment infotima has been revised to conform to
this presentation.

ASC 280, “Segment Reporting,” establishes the stadwdfor reporting information about segmentsmaricial statements. In applying
the criteria set forth in ASC 280, the Company thetermined that it has nine reportable segmentirfancial reporting purposes. The
Company’s nine reportable segments are presentbe icontext of its three primary businesses —dingj efficiency, automotive
experience and power solutions.
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Building efficiency

Building efficiency designs, produces, markets mstalls heating, ventilating and air conditionifi/AC) and control systems that
monitor, automate and integrate critical buildiegent equipment and conditions including HVAGsfafety and security in
commercial buildings and in various industrial apgtions.

North America systems designs, produces, marketsnstalls mechanical equipment that provides hgatind cooling it
North American no-residential buildings and industrial applicati@sswell as control systems that integrate the diperaf
this equipment with other critical building syster

North America service provides technical servicesduding inspection, scheduled maintenance, repalrreplacement «
mechanical and control systems in North Americayels as the retrofit and service components ofgrarance contracts
and other solution:

Global workplace solutions provides on-site staffcomplete real estate services, facility operaand management to
improve the comfort, productivity, energy efficignand cost effectiveness of building systems ardhedjlobe

Asia provides HVAC and refrigeration systems arahtécal services to the Asian marketple

Other provides HVAC and refrigeration systems eawthnical services to markets in Europe, the Midethst and Latin
America. Other also designs and produces heatidgartonditioning solutions for residential anghli commercial
applications and markets products to the replacearhnew construction marke

Automotive experience

Automotive experience designs and manufacturesidmteystems and products for passenger cars ghtlttucks, including vans, pick-
up trucks and sport utility/crossover vehicles iort America, Europe and Asia. Automotive expereesgstems and products include
complete seating systems and components; coclgigsg, including instrument panels and clustefernimation displays and body
controllers; overhead systems, including headliaars electronic convenience features; floor corssa@ad door systems.

Power solutions

Power solutions services both automotive origimglipment manufacturers and the battery aftermdnketroviding advanced battery
technology, coupled with systems engineering, ntangeand service expertise.
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Management evaluates the performance of the segrhased primarily on segment income, which reptesanome from continuing
operations before income taxes and noncontrolhiterésts excluding net financing charges, debt emion costs and significant

restructuring costs. General corporate and otherh@ad expenses are allocated to business segmeetermining segment income.
Financial information relating to the Company’sagpble segments is as follows (in millions):

Net Sales

Building efficiency
North America system
North America servic
Global workplace solutior
Asia
Other

Automotive experienc
North America
Europe
Asia

Power solution:
Total net sale

Segment Income (Los

Building efficiency
North America system
North America service (1
Global workplace solutions (.
Asia (3)
Other (4)

Automotive experienc
North America (5
Europe (6
Asia (7)

Power solutions (€
Total segment incom

Net financing charge
Debt conversion cos
Restructuring cosl

Income (loss) before income tax
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Year Ended September @

2011 2010 2009
$ 2,348 $ 2,14 $ 2,22
2,30¢ 2,127 2,16¢
4,15: 3,28¢ 2,832
1,84( 1,42z 1,29:
4,252 3,82:% 3,97¢
14,89: 12,80: 12,49:¢
7,431 6,76¢ 4,631
10,26 8,01¢ 6,287
2,361 1,82¢ 1,09¢
20,06¢ 16,61( 12,01¢
5,87¢ 4,89: 3,98¢
$40,83: $34,30¢ $28,49'

Year Ended September @

2011 2010 2009
$ 23¢ $ 20¢ $ 25¢
115 117 18¢€
16 40 58
24¢ 17¢ 17C
99 132 (27¢)
71€ 673 397
404 37¢ (337
114 10E (212
243 107 4
761 591 (541
80¢ 66¢ 40¢€
$ 2,28¢ $ 1,93 $ 262
(174) (170) (23¢€
— — (112)
— — (230)
$ 2,111 $ 1,762 $ (319
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Assets

Building efficiency
North America system
North America servic
Global workplace solutior
Asia
Other

Automotive experienc
North America
Europe
Asia

Power solution:
Unallocatec
Total

Depreciation/Amortizatiol
Building efficiency
North America system
North America servic
Global workplace solutior
Asia
Other

Automotive experienc
North America
Europe
Asia

Power solution:
Total
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September 3(

2011 2010 2009
$ 1,30C $ 1,354 $ 1,301
1,581 1,511 1,481
1,22¢ 1,012 86C
1,247 1,23¢ 1,014
4,11¢ 3,92¢ 3,83:
9,471 9,03¢ 8,48¢
3,868 3,392 3,25¢
7,34¢ 5,39( 5,38¢
1,587 1,34¢ 1,087
12,79¢ 10,125 9,732
6,63¢ 5,47¢ 4,27¢
76¢ 1,10C 1,58¢
$29,67¢ $25,74: $24,08t¢

Year Ended September @

2011 2010 2009
$ 10 $ 11 $ 9
25 23 19
18 16 13
15 15 14
69 73 79
137 13€ 134
13¢ 147 19¢
254 213 22C
27 31 32
41¢ 391 45C
17¢ 162 161
$ 731 $ 691 $ 74F
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Year Ended September &

2011 2010 2009
Capital Expenditure
Building efficiency
North America system $ 6 $ 14 $ 12
North America servic 17 32 55
Global workplace solutior 32 17 9
Asia 22 13 12
Other 91 43 44
16€ 11¢ 132
Automotive experienc
North America 21C 12: 104
Europe 382 22¢ 23¢
Asia 45 38 30
63€ 38¢€ 36¢
Power solution: 51¢ 272 14¢€
Total $ 1,32¢ $ 777 $ 647

(1) Building efficiency — North America servicegment income for the year ended September 30, i28lides $2 million of equity
income.

(2) Building efficiency — Global workplace solatis segment income for the year ended Septemb@080,excludes $1 million of
restructuring costs

(3) Building efficiency — Asia segment income fbe year ended September 30, 2009 excludes $dmilf restructuring costs. For the
years ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009ségient income includes $3 million, $2 million &idmillion, respectively, c
equity income

(4) Building efficiency — Other segment income fioe year ended September 30, 2009 excludes $Eémuf restructuring costs. For the
years ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009,setfpment income includes $17 million, $2 milliodg$153) million, respectivel
of equity income (loss

(5) Automotive experience — North America segnianbme for the year ended September 30, 2009 @aslfi47 million of restructuring
costs. For the years ended September 30, 2011,8@12009, North America segment income includésréilion, $14 million and
($14) million, respectively, of equity income (Ids

(6) Automotive experience — Europe segment incéon¢he year ended September 30, 2009 excludes#i86n of restructuring costs.
For the years ended September 30, 2011, 2010 &%) Edrope segment income includes $7 million, $ian and ($3) million,
respectively, of equity income (los:

(7) Automotive experience — Asia segment incooretie year ended September 30, 2009 excludes $&3nof restructuring costs. For
the years ended September 30, 2011, 2010 and 26298segment income includes $187 million, $133iamiland $70 million,
respectively, of equity incom

(8) Power solutions segment income for the yeded September 30, 2009 excludes $50 million dfuetiring costs. For the years ended
September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009, power solusegsient income includes $62 million, $97 milliord&22 million, respectively, of
equity income

The Company has significant sales to the automatidestry. In fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 2009¢ustomer exceeded 10% of
consolidated net sales.
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Geographic Segments

Financial information relating to the Company’s gi®ns by geographic area is as follows (in mil&iy

Year Ended September @

2011 2010 2009

Net Sales

United State: $14,36" $12,89: $11,09¢
Germany 4,59( 3,542 2,871
Mexico 1,86¢ 1,42¢ 952
Other European countrit 10,21 8,33¢ 7,33(
Other foreigr 9,79¢ 8,10¢ 6,23¢
Total $40,83: $34,30¢ $28,49;
Long-Lived Assets (Yeiend)

United State: $ 2,11¢ $ 1,57 $ 1,53t
Germany 864 38¢ 43¢
Mexico 54C 464 403
Other European countrit 1,35¢ 1,071 1,11¢
Other foreigr 74C 60C 492
Total $ 5,61¢ $ 4,09¢ $ 3,98¢

Net sales attributed to geographic locations asedan the location of the assets producing thesshbng-lived assets by geographic
location consist of net property, plant and equipme

19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company accrues for potential environmentallliges in a manner consistent with accountingipiples generally accepted in the
United States; that is, when it is probable a ligbhas been incurred and the amount of the lighis reasonably estimable. Reserves
environmental liabilities totaled $30 million and®million at September 30, 2011 and 2010, respelgtiThe Company reviews the
status of its environmental sites on a quarterbidand adjusts its reserves accordingly. Suchpatdiabilities accrued by the
Company do not take into consideration possibleveges of future insurance proceeds. They do, kewéake into account the likely
share other parties will bear at remediation sitas.difficult to estimate the Company’s ultimdéyel of liability at many remediation
sites due to the large number of other partiesrtiet be involved, the complexity of determining te&ative liability among those
parties, the uncertainty as to the nature and sobbee investigations and remediation to be cotetlidhe uncertainty in the application
of law and risk assessment, the various choicesasid associated with diverse technologies thgtheaised in corrective actions at
the sites, and the often quite lengthy periods @aréch eventual remediation may occur. NeverthelggsCompany has no reason to
believe at the present time that any claims, pisatlr costs in connection with known environmentatters will have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s financial positiesults of operations or cash flows. In addititve, Company has identified asset
retirement obligations for environmental matteis hre expected to be addressed at the retiredispgsal, removal or abandonment of
existing owned facilities, primarily in the poweslgtions business. At September 30, 2011 and 20&80Company recorded conditional
asset retirement obligations of $91 million and $@#ion, respectively.

The Company is involved in a number of productilighand various other casualty lawsuits incidemthe operation of its businesses.
Insurance coverages are maintained and estimastsl @ recorded for claims and suits of this matiiis management’s opinion that
none of these will have a material adverse effadhe Company’s financial position, results of @tiems or cash flows. Costs related to
such matters were not material to the periods ptede
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JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(In millions)
Year Ended September & 2011 2010 2009
Accounts Receivabl— Allowance for Doubtful Account
Balance at beginning of peric $ 96 $ 99 $ 87
Provision charged to costs and expet 37 42 51
Reserve adjustmen (23) (24) (11)
Accounts charged o (24 (25) (28)
Acquisition of businesse 4 4 —
Currency translatio (1) — —
Balance at end of peric $ 89 $ 96 $ 99
Deferred Tax Asset— Valuation Allowance
Balance at beginning of peric $ 73¢ $ 81€ $ 378
Allowance established for new operating and otbss karryforward 95 70 531
Acquisition of businesse 18 — (19
Allowance reversed for loss carryforwards utilized other adjustmen (139 (147) (69)
Balance at end of peric $ 71¢ $ 73¢ $ 81€

ITEM 9 CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participatiothefCompanys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offichas evaluat:
the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure odgtind procedures (as such term is defined in RRdel5(e) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“the Exchang®)Aat of the end of the period covered by thisore@Based on such evaluations,
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chiefdfinial Officer have concluded that, as of the énslich period, the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures are effectivedording, processing, summarizing, and reportimga timely basis, information
required to be disclosed by the Company in thentepbat it files or submits under the Exchange, Aad that information is
accumulated and communicated to the Company’s neameugt, including the Company’s Chief Executive @dfiand Chief Financial
Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisioagarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for estabfj and maintaining adequate internal controt émancial reporting, as such
term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Twnpany’s management, with the participation ef@mpany’s Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluatkd effectiveness of the Company’s internal contkar financial reporting based on
the framework in Internal Control-Integrated Framoekissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgaitunatof the Treadway
Commission. Based on this evaluation, the compamgsagement has concluded that, as of Septemb20380, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting was etfee.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detaisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to risk that controls may become inadtmjbecause of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance whithpolicies or procedures may deteriorate.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registarblic accounting firm, has audited the Compsieghsolidated financial
statements and the effectiveness of internal clsnénger financial reporting as of September 30,1284 stated in its report which is
included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K and is incorgied by reference herein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Except as noted below, there have been no changke Company'’s internal control over financialogmg during the quarter ended
September 30, 2011, that have materially affeciedre reasonably likely to materially affect, tbempany’s internal control over
financial reporting.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 20ELCtmpany completed the implementation of a gl@ibahcial consolidations
software system, and maintained and monitored g@piatte internal controls during the implementatg@riod. The Company believes
that its internal control environment has been ankd as a result of this implementation.

The Company is also undertaking the implementatfamew enterprise resource planning (“ERP”) systemtertain businesses, which
will occur over a period of several years. As thased rolleut of the new ERP systems occurs, the Companyax@grience changes
its internal control over financial reporting. Nigisificant changes were made to the Company’s atiingernal control over financial
reporting as a result of the implementation ofrieev ERP systems during the fiscal year ended Séjeted®, 2011.

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION
None.
PART llI

The information required by Part lll, Items 10, 1B,and 14, and certain of the information requlvgdtem 12, is incorporated herein
by reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement$a2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (fiscal 2Ptdxy Statement), dated and to
be filed with the SEC on or about December 9, 2@%Xpllows:

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

Incorporated by reference to the sections entffRrdposal One: Election of Directors,” “Q: Wherenddind Corporate Governance
materials for Johnson Controls?,” “Board Informatid'Audit Committee Report,” and “Beneficial Owrgdip Reporting Compliance
— Section 16(a),” of the fiscal 2011 Proxy Statetn&equired information on executive officers o tiompany appears at Part |,
Item 4 of this report.

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Incorporated by reference to the sections entffmpensation Committee Report,” “Compensation Déston and Analysis,”
“Director Compensation during Fiscal Year 2011,bténtial Payments and Benefits Upon Terminatio@laange of Control,” “Board
Information,” and “Shareholder Information Summaof’the fiscal 2011 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Incorporated by reference to sections entitled i3oln Controls Share Ownership” and “Schedule 13DSuhedule 13G Filings” of the
fiscal 2011 Proxy Statement.
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The following table provides information about thempany’s equity compensation plans as of SepteB8he2011:

(@) (b) ()
Number of Securitie
Remaining Available fc
Future Issuance Und
Number of Securities  Weightec-Average  Equity Compensatio

be Issued upon Exerc  Exercise Price ¢ Plans (Excluding
of Outstanding Option Outstanding Option Securities Reflected i
Warrants and Right  Warrants and Righ Column (a))
Plan Categonr
Equity compensation plans approved by shareho 34,224,01 $ 25.81 22,497,94
Equity compensation plans not approved by shareis — — —
Total 34,224,01 $ 25.81 22,497,94

(¢) Includes shares of Common Stock that remaailable for grant under Company Plans as folla@@5265,547 shares under the 2007
Stock Option Plan, 2,085,125 shares under the R@Btricted Stock Plan, as amended, and 147,276sshader the 2003 Stock Plan
for Outside Directors, as amended and resti

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Incorporated by reference to sections entitled ‘tBdaformation — Related Person Transactions” addrd Information — Board
Independence” of the fiscal 2011 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Incorporated by reference to the Audit Committepdrt section entitled “Relationship with IndepentAuditors,” of the fiscal 2011
Proxy Statement.
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PART IV
ITEM 15 EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Page ir
Form 1(-K
(a) The following documents are filed as part @ fform 1¢-K:
(1) Financial Statemen
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfing 52
Consolidated Statements of Income for the yearse®#@ptember 30, 2011, 2010 and 2 54
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position ateeber 30, 2011 and 20 55
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeraaled September 30, 2011, 2010 and : 56
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ EquitsitAttable to Johnson Controls, Inc. for the yeardeel
September 30, 2011, 2010 and 2! 57
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem 58
(2) Financial Statement Sched:
For the years ended September 30, 2011, 2010 &¢d
Schedule |— Valuation and Qualifying Accoun 10t

(3) Exhibits

Reference is made to the separate exhibit indetagwd on pages 110 through 113 filed herev

All other schedules are omitted because they arapmicable, or the required information is shawthe financial statements or notes
thereto.

Financial statements of 50% or less-owned compdrzies been omitted because the proportionate shneir profit before income taxes
and total assets are less than 20% of the respeagivsolidated amounts, and investments in suclpaoi®s are less than 20% of consolidi
total assets.

Other Matters

For the purposes of complying with the amendmemthké rules governing Form S-8 under the Securitiesof 1933, the undersigned
registrant hereby undertakes as follows, which tastang shall be incorporated by reference intastegnt’s Registration Statements on F¢
S-8 Nos. 333-173326, 33-30309, 33-31271, 333-10383566073, 333-41564, 333-117898 and 333-141578.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arisingder the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitteditectors, officers and controlling persons
of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing pravrisi or otherwise, the registrant has been adwisddn the opinion of the SEC such
indemnification is against public policy as expegb the Securities Act of 1933 and is, therefarenforceable. In the event that a claim for
indemnification against such liabilities (otherrnithe payment by the registrant of expenses indwreaid by a director, officer or
controlling person of the registrant in the sucidstefense of any action, suit or proceeding)siseated by such director, officer or controll
person in connection with the securities beingsteged, the registrant will, unless in the opinibits counsel the matter has been settled by
controlling precedent, submit to a court of appiaterjurisdiction the question whether such inddioation by it is against public policy as
expressed in the Act and will be governed by thelfadjudication of such issue.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.

By /s/ R. Bruce McDonald
R. Bruce McDonald
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Date: November 22, 2011

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bamaf November 22, 2011, by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant amthie capacities indicated:

/sl Stephen A. Roe /s/ R. Bruce McDonal
Stephen A. Roe R. Bruce McDonalc
Chairman ant Executive Vice President ai
Chief Executive Office Chief Financial Officel

/s/ Brian J. Stie /s/ Dennis W. Arche

Brian J. Stief Dennis W. Arche

Vice President and Corporate Director Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer

/s/ David Abney /s/ Robert L. Barne:
David Abney Robert L. Barnet
Director Director

/s/ Natalie A. Blacl /s/ Robert A. Cornoi
Natalie A. Black Robert A. Cornog
Director Director

/sl Richard Goodma /sl Jeffrey A. Joerre
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Restated Articles of Incorporation of Johnson Galstrinc., as amended through January 26, 201 brfiocated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to Johnson Controls, Inc. Current Répor Form -K dated January 26, 2011) (Commission File M-5097).

Johnson Controls, Inc. By-Laws, as amended andtegsthrough January 26, 2011 (incorporated byeat® to Exhibit 3.2 to
Johnson Controls, Inc. Current Report on Fo-K dated January 26, 2011 ) (Commission File M-5097).

Miscellaneous lor-term debt agreements and financing leases withsbané other creditors and debenture indentu
Miscellaneous industrial development bond I-term debt issues and related loan agreements aselsl¢

Letter of agreement dated December 6, 1990 betdamson Controls, Inc., LaSalle National Trust, NaAd Fidelity
Management Trust Company which replaces LaSall@NatTrust, N.A. as Trustee of the Johnson Costroic. Employee
Stock Ownership Plan Trust with Fidelity ManagemBntst Company as Successor Trustee, effectiveadariy 1991
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.F to Joim&ontrols, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for trear ended
September 30, 1991) (Commission File N-5097).

Indenture for debt securities dated January 176 2@®ween Johnson Controls, Inc. and US Bank NsAugcessor trustee to
Morgan Chase (incorporated by reference to ExHildiito Johnson Controls, Inc. Registration Statérapr-orm S3ASR [Reg
No. 33:-130714)).

Underwriting Agreement dated February 1, 2011, amimhnson Controls, Inc. and the underwriters natimexin,
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to Joimn&antrols, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K datetiaary 1, 2011)
(Commission File No.-5907).

Supplemental Indenture, dated March 16, 2009, leiwiehnson Controls, Inc. and U.S. Bank NationabA&gtion, as Trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Jolmn&aontrols, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K/A dakéarch 10, 2009)
(Commission File No.-5907).

Subordinated Indenture, dated March 16, 2009, letwehnson Controls, Inc. and U.S. Bank Nationab&mtion, as Trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Jolmn&antrols, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K/A dakéarch 10, 2009)
(Commission File No.-5907).

Supplemental Indenture No. 1, dated March 16, 2b88yeen Johnson Controls, Inc. and U.S. Bank NatiAssociation, as
Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3dhnson Controls, Inc. Current Report on FornY&-¢tated March 10,
2009) (Commission File No-5907).

Purchase Contract and Pledge Agreement, dated M&;c2009, among Johnson Controls, Inc., U.S. Béational
Association, as Purchase Contract Agent, and UaBk Blational Association, as Collateral Agent, Gdi&l Agent and
Securities Intermediary (incorporated by referetocExhibit 4.4 to Johnson Controls, Inc. Currenp&t on Form 8-K/A dated
March 10, 2009) (Commission File N¢-5907).

Form of Remarketing Agreement among Johnson Cantiret., U.S. Bank National Corporation, as theeRégent and the
Remarketing Agent and U.S. Bank National Corporatas the Purchase Contract Agent (incorporatagfieyence to
Exhibit 4.5 to Johnson Controls, Inc. Current Répor Form -K/A dated March 10, 2009) (Commission File N-5907).

Form of Corporate Unit (incorporated by refererm&xhibit 4.6 to Johnson Controls, Inc. Current &épn Form 8-K/A dated
March 10, 2009) (Commission File N¢-5907).
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Form of Treasury Unit (incorporated by referenc&xdibit 4.7 to Johnson Controls, Inc. Current Répa Form 8-K/A dated
March 10, 2009) (Commission File N¢-5907).

Form of Subordinated Note (incorporated by refegeiocExhibit 4.8 to Johnson Controls, Inc. Curf@aport on Form 8-K/A
dated March 10, 2009) (Commission File N-5907).

Officer’s Certificate, dated March 9, 2010 creatth00% Senior Notes due 2020 (incorporated byeatse to Exhibit 4.1 to
Johnson Controls, Inc. Current Report on Fo-K dated March 9, 2010) (Commission File N-5907).

Credit Agreement, dated as of February 4, 2011 ngnJohnson Controls, Inc. and the financial instins parties thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Joln€ontrols, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K dafedbruary 4, 2011)
(Commission File No.-5907).

Officers’ Certificate, dated February 4, 2011, bkshing the Floating Rate Notes due 2014, 1.75%id@éNotes due 2014,
4.25% Senior Notes due 2021 and 5.70% Senior Nie2041 (incorporated by reference to Exhibittd.Johnson Controls,
Inc.’s Current Report on Forn-K dated February 7, 2011

Johnson Controls, Inc. Common Stock Purchase BlaBxecutives as amended November 17, 2004 anctiefeDecember 1,
2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.Babnson Controls, Inc. Annual Report on Form 1®Ktlie year ended
September 30, 2004) (Commission File N-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Deferred Compensation Riaf€értain Directors, as amended and restatedtizeldovember 18, 20C
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.C to Ja@m&ontrols, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K foe tfear ended
September 30, 2009) (Commission File N-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Executive Survivor Bend®ian, as amended and restated effective Septerbb20Q9 (incorporated |
reference to Exhibit 10.D to Johnson Controls, fenual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended &apier 30, 2009)
(Commission File No.-5097).**

Form of employment agreement between Johnson Gsnine. and all elected officers remains effecfimethose officers
employed before September 15, 2009, as amendesiated January 1, 2008 (incorporated by referemBEshibit 10.K to
Johnson Controls, Inc. Annual Report on Forr-K for the year ended September 30, 2007) (ComnrisSile No. -5097).**

Form of employment agreement between Johnson Gsning. and all elected officers and named exgesthired between
September 15, 2009 and July 28, 2010, as amendectstated effective September 15, 200!

Form of indemnity agreement effective October 18)& between Johnson Controls, Inc. and each dfiteetors and elected
officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@LJohnson Controls, Inc. Annual Report on ForaKifor the year ended
September 30, 2007) (Commission File N-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Director Share Unit Plargragnded and restated effective September 20, #Edlherewith.**
Johnson Controls, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Plan nasraled and restated effective January 1, 2009rfincated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Johnson Controls, Inc. Annual Repmor Form 10-K for the year ended September 309P200ommission File
No. 1-5097).**

Form of stock option award agreement for Johnsami@ts, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Plan, as amendealtin October 1, 2001,
as in use through March 20, 2006 (incorporatedefigrence
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to Exhibit 10.1 to Johnson Controls, Inc. CurreepBrt on Form 8-K dated November 17, 2004) (ComiansEile No. 1-
5097).**

10.K Johnson Controls, Inc. 2001 Restricted Stock Rlaramended and restated effective September 20, el herewith.**

10.L Form of restricted stock award agreement for Jam@&antrols, Inc. 2001 Restricted Stock Plan, & imended March 21,
2006 with effectiveness of August 1, 2006, andwuasently amended effective September 20, 2011d fikerewith.**

10.M Johnson Controls, Inc. Executive Deferred Compéms#&tlan, as amended and restated effective Ma&8cB®10 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Johnson Contrais, Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quartpdyiod ended March 31,
2010) (Commission File No-5097) .**

10.N Johnson Controls, Inc. 2003 Stock Plan for OutBitectors, as amended September 1, 2009 (incogmbiat reference to
Exhibit 10.N to Johnson Controls, Inc. Annual Régor Form 10-K for the year ended September 3092(@0ommission File
No. 1-5097).**

10.0 Johnson Controls, Inc. Annual Incentive Performaplea, as amended and restated effective Janu2608, (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Johnson Controls, Current Report Form 8-K dated January 26, 201dy{(@ission File No. 1-
5097).**

10.P Johnson Controls, Inc. Retirement Restoration Rlargmended and restated effective November 18, @€orporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.P to Johnson Controls, Amnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended &apter 30, 2009)
(Commission File No.-5097).**

10.Q Compensation Summary for N-Employee Directors as amended and restated effeStptember 20, 2011, filed herewith

10.S Form of stock option award agreement for JohnsamtiGls, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Plan, as amendede®gper 16, 2006, as
in effect since October 2, 2006 (incorporated bgnence to Exhibit 10.CC to Johnson Controls, Amual Report on
Form 1(-K for the year ended September 30, 2006) (Commidsie No. -5097).**

10.T Johnson Controls, Inc. Long Term Incentive PerfarogaPlan, as amended and restated effective Jahua@@8 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Johnson Contrais, Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 26120Commission File
No. 1-5097).**

10.U Johnson Controls, Inc. 2007 Stock Option Plan, atedras of September 20, 2011, filed herewitl

10.v Form of stock option award agreement for Johnsomi@Gts, Inc. 2007 Stock Option Plan effective Seyier 20, 2011, filed
herewith.**

10w Supplemental Agreement to the Employment Contrast/éen the Company and Dr. Beda Bolzenius datedigtizp, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.EE to JamControls, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K fog year ended
September 30, 2008) (Commission File N-5097).**

10.X Johnson Controls, Inc. Executive Compensation lineefRecoupment Policy effective September 15, 2@@&rporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.X to Johnson Controls, lenual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Sapeer 30, 2009)
(Commission File No.-5097).**

10.Y Form of employment agreement between Johnson Gsntne. and all elected officers and named exgesthired after

July 28, 2010, as amended and restated July 28, @@dorporatec
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by reference to Exhibit 10.Y to Johnson Contrats, Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quartedyiod ended June 30,
2010) (Commission File No-5097).**
12 Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed chargasthe years ended September 30, 2011 and Sept@db2010, filed
herewith.
21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant, filed herew
23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriting dated November 22, 2011, filed herew
31.1 Certification by the Chief Executive Officer pursiido Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002, filed herewitt
31.2 Certification by the Chief Financial Officer pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002, filed herewitt
32 Certification of Periodic Financial Report by thhi€f Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offigeursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarban«Oxley Act of 2002, filed herewitt
101 The following materials from Johnson Controls, Imé&nnual Report on Form 10-K for the year endept&mber 30, 2011,

formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reportingiggaage)

(i) the Consolidated Statements of Financial Pasjt{ii) the Consolidated Statements of Incomé, tfie Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flow, (iv) the Consolidatedeftants of Shareholders’ Equity Attributable to JmControls, Inc. and
(v) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsdffierewith

* These instruments are not being filed as exbibérewith because none of the long-term debtuimsnts authorizes the issuance of debt
in excess of 10% of the total assets of Johnsorir@Gleninc. and its subsidiaries on a consolid&iasis. Johnson Controls, Inc. agrees to
furnish a copy of each agreement to the SecuatiesExchange Commission upon requ

**  Denotes a management contract or compensatory
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Exhibit 10.F

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.
DIRECTOR SHARE UNIT PLAN

ARTICLE 1.
PURPOSE AND DURATION

Section 1.Rurpose The purpose of the Johnson Controls, Inc. DireStaare Unit Plan is to advance the Company’s drasad
success, and to advance the interests of its stidegh, by attracting and retaining well-qualifil@dtside Directors upon whose judgment the
Company is largely dependent for the successfulleoinof its operations and by providing such indiadls with incentives to put forth
maximum effort for the long-term success of the @any’s business, thereby aligning their interestsentlosely with the interests of
shareholders.

Section 1.Duration. The Plan was originally effective on November 1898. The Plan is amended and restated effective
September 20, 2011. The provisions of the Planm@ded and restated apply to each individual witmgerest hereunder on or after
September 20, 2011.

ARTICLE 2.
DEFINITIONS AND CONSTRUCTION

Section 2.Definitions. Wherever used in the Plan, the following termedidiave the meanings set forth below and, whemteaning
is intended, the initial letter of the word is dafized:

(a) “Administrator” means the EmployeeBéts Policy Committee of the Company.

(b) “Affiliate” means each entity thatrisquired to be included in the Compamygbntrolled group of corporations within the meanof
Code Section 414(b), or that is under common comuiith the Company within the meaning of Code Sat#14(c); provided that for
purposes of determining when a Participant hasriedua Separation from Service, the phrase “at B&percent’shall be used in place of 1
phrase “at least 80 percent” in each place thaigghappears in the regulations issued thereunder.

(c) “Beneficiary” means the person orgoas entitled to receive the interest of a Pasitipn the event of the Participant’s death as
provided in Section 3.7.

(d) “Board” means the Board of Directofgshe Company.
(e) “Change of Control” has the meanisgréoed to such term in Section 10.2.

(f) “Committee” means the Corporate Gonagrce Committee of the Boanghovided, howeverthat if the Corporate Governance
Committee does not include two or more “non-empéogigectors” within the meaning of Rule 16b-3 of tixchange Act, then the term




“Committee” means such other committee appointethbyBoard consisting of two or more “non-emplog@ectors.”
(g) “Company” means Johnson Controls,, ladVisconsin corporation, and any successor theseprovided in Article 11.

(h) “Exchange Act” means the Securitigstiange Act of 1934, as interpreted by regulatemd rules issued pursuant thereto, all as
amended and in effect from time to time. Any refieeto a specific provision of the Exchange Actidbemdeemed to include reference to
successor provision thereto.

(i) “Fair Market Valuetneans with respect to a Share, except as othepnas@ded herein, the closing sales price of a Sharthe Nev
York Stock Exchange as of 4:00 p.m. EST on the mladgiestion (or the immediately preceding tradilag, if the date in question is not a
trading day), and with respect to any other prgpetich value as is determined by the Administrator

() “Investment Options” means the invesht options offered under the Johnson Controlén§aand Investment (401k) Plan
(excluding the Company stock fund) or any succegkor thereto, the Share Units, and any otherratares made available by the
Administrator, which shall be used for the purposeeasuring hypothetical investment experienagbatible to a Participant’s Retirement
Account.

(k) “Outside Director” means a membethaf Board who is not an officer or employee of @mmpany or an Affiliate.

() “Participant” means each Outside Bicg who has a Retirement Account under the Plameid/the context so requires, a Participant
also means a former director who is entitled t@magfit under the Plan.

(m) “Plan” means the arrangement desdrfiezein, as from time to time amended and in éffec

(n) “Retirement Account” means the reckeeping account maintained to record the intexkstich Participant under the Plan. A
Retirement Account is established for record kegpirposes only and not to reflect the physicatesggtion of assets on the Participant’s
behalf, and may consist of such subaccounts onbataas the Administrator may determine to be Bacg®r appropriate.

(o) “Separation from Service” means aiBigant’'s cessation of service as a Board menfbegny reason, provided the cessation of
service is a good-faith and complete terminatiothefParticipant’s relationship with the Compand &a Affiliates, within the meaning of
Code Section 409A. If, at the time the Participasgrvice as a Board member ends, the Particiggm providing services to the Company
or an Affiliate as an employee, the Participantlgiat incur a Separation from Service under thenteof the Plan until the Participant has a
separation from service from the Company or anliafé as an employee within the meaning of Coddi@ed09A.
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(p) “Share” means a share of the Compmaogimmon stock, $0.16 par value.
(q) “Share Units” means the hypothetighares that are credited to the Participant’s &atnt Account in accordance with Article 5.

(r) “Total and Permanent Disability” maahe Participant’s inability to engage in any sabtal gainful activity as a result of a
medically-determinable physical or mental impairtnghich can be expected to result in death or whanh be expected to last for a
continuous period of at least twelve (12) montlssi@termined by the Administrator. The Administrat@y require the Participant to submit
such medical evidence or to undergo a medical exation by a doctor selected by the AdministratothesAdministrator determines is
necessary in order to make a determination hereunde

(s) “Valuation Date” means each day wtienUnited States financial markets are open feirtass, as of which the Administrator will
determine the value of each Retirement Account.

Section 2.Zonstruction Wherever any words are used in the masculing,ghall be construed as though they were useckin th
feminine in all cases where they would so applyt wherever any words are use in the singular ophbiel, they shall be construed as tho
they were used in the plural or the singular, ascise may be, in all cases where they would sly.apiles of articles and sections are for
general information only, and the Plan is not tacbrstrued by reference to such items.

Section 2.Feverability. In the event any provision of the Plan is hdkegidl or invalid for any reason, the illegalityiowalidity shall
not affect the remaining parts of the Plan, andRlaa shall be construed and enforced as if thkibagal or invalid provision had not been
included.

ARTICLE 3.
ADMINISTRATION

Section 3.1General The Committee shall have overall authority wigspect to administration of the Plgmovidedthat the
Administrator shall have responsibility for the geal operation and daily administration of the Rdarspecified herein. If at any time the
Committee shall not be in existence or not be caeagmf members of the Board who qualify as “non4eyge directors”, then the Board
shall administer the Plan (with the assistancé@fAdministrator) and all references herein toGloenmittee shall be deemed to include the
Board.

Section 3.Authority . In addition to the authority specifically proviiberein, the Committee and the Administrator shalle full
power and discretionary authority to take any actiomake any determination deemed necessarydqurttper administration of the Plan
with respect to the respective duties of each utidePlan, including but not limited to the powadauthority to: (a) interpret the Plan;

(b) correct errors, supply omissions or reconcitmnsistencies in the Plan’s terms; (c) estabdiatend or waive rules and regulations, and
appoint such agents, as it deems appropriate éoPl#n’s administration; and (d) make any otheemfeinations, including factual
determinations, and take any other action as érdehes is necessary or desirable for the Plantsr@dtration. Any action taken by the
Committee shall




be controlling over any contrary action of the Admsfrator. The Committee and the Administrator rdalegate their ministerial duties to
third parties and to the extent of such delegatieferences to the Committee or Administrator esbiall mean such delegates, if any.

Section 3.Pecision Binding The Committee’s and the Administrator’s deterrtiores and decisions made pursuant to the provisions
of the Plan and all related orders or resolutidrth® Board shall be final, conclusive and bindamgall persons who have an interest in the
Plan, and such determinations and decisions sbabereviewable.

Section 3.Lrocedures for AdministratiaiThe Committee’s determinations must be made lbyess than a majority of its members
present at the meeting (in person or otherwisehith a quorum is present, or by written majoribnsent, which sets forth the action, is
signed by the members of the Committee and filatl thie minutes for proceedings of the Committeendjority of the entire Committee
shall constitute a quorum for the transaction dfibeiss. The Administrat@’determinations shall be made in accordance with procedure
it establishes.

Section 3.9ndemnification. Neither the Committee, nor the Administrator, aoy member thereof shall be liable for any act,
omission, interpretation, construction or deterrtioramade in connection with the Plan in good faitid the members of the Committee and
the Administrator shall be entitled to indemnifioatand reimbursement by the Company in respeatypfclaim, loss, damage or expense
(including attorneys’ fees) arising therefrom te fall extent permitted by law and under any divestand officers’ liability insurance that
may be in effect from time to time.

Section 3.@Restrictions to Comply with Applicable Lawlransactions under the Plan are intended to comiph all applicable
conditions of Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Ace Tommittee and the Administrator shall adminigterPlan so that transactions under
the Plan will be exempt from or comply with Sectith of the Exchange Act, and shall have the righiestrict or rescind any transaction, or
impose other rules and requirements, to the extedeems necessary or desirable for such exempticompliance to be met.

Section 3. Designation of BeneficiaryEach Participant may designate a Beneficiarpwahgorm and manner and within such time
periods as the Administrator may prescribe. A Bgxdint can change his beneficiary designation watiame, provided that each beneficiary
designation shall revoke the most recent designasind the last designation received by the Adrtratigr while the Participant is alive shall
be given effect. If a Participant designates a Heiaey without providing in the designation thaetBeneficiary must be living at the time of
distribution, the designation shall vest in the &fiary all of the distribution payable after tRarticipant’s death, and any distributions
remaining upon the Beneficiary’s death shall be entadthe Beneficiary’s estate. If there is no vakgheficiary designation in effect at the
time of the Participant’ death, if the Beneficiary does not survive thei€pant, or if the beneficiary designation prostdthat the Beneficia
must be living at the time of each distribution @uth designated Beneficiary does not survivedistaibution date, the Participant’s estate
will be deemed the Beneficiary and will be entittedeceive payment. If a Participant designateshouse as a Beneficiary, such beneficiary
designation automatically




shall become null and void on the date the Admiaist receives notice of the Participant’s divoocéegal separation.

ARTICLE 4.
PARTICIPATION

Each Outside Director shall automaticallgome a Participant on the date the individufitss elected or appointed to become an
Outside Director.

ARTICLE 5.
RETIREMENT ACCOUNTS

Section 5.Establishment of Retirement AccourEach Participant shall have a Retirement Accestablished under this Plan on his
behalf. A Participant’s Retirement Account shalldoedited with “Share Units” and otherwise subjecadjustment as follows:

(a) Conversion of Accrued Benefitsor each Participant who was an Outside Direztdne Company as of December 1, 1998, the
Administrator shall calculate the value of such<dig Director’'s accrued benefits under the Compabyfector Retirement Plan as of
September 30, 1998. Each such Outside DirectoitiseReent Account shall be credited with a numbeBbére Units equal to the result
obtained by (i) dividing (A) the value of such QdtsDirector’s accrued benefits under the CompaByrector Retirement Plan as of
September 30, 1998 by (B) the Fair Market Valua &hare as of the first trading day in DecembeB199

(b) Annual Credit of Share Unit®©n the date of each regular meeting of the Bbatd in November, the Retirement Account of each
Participant who is then an Outside Director shalttedited with a number of additional Share Uedfsal to the result obtained by dividing
(A) the amount determined for such year by the Cidtemby (B) the Fair Market Value of a Share oorsdate. Effective October 1, 2006,
no additional Share Units shall be credited to @iélpant’'s Retirement Account under this subsettio).

Section 5.2nterim Election. Any Outside Director whose election to the Boiarfirst effective at any time other than the regul
meeting of the Board held in November shall haeglited to his or her Retirement Account a propadte share of the Annual Credit at the
time of effectiveness of his election. Such crebll be based on the Fair Market Value of a Sharéhe date on which his election is
effective. Effective October 1, 2006, no Share §/shall be credited to a Participant’s RetiremertAint under this Section 5.2.

Section 5.3nvestment Election

(a) Effective November 15, 2006, amounésiited to a Participant’s Retirement Account Istedlect the investment experience of the
Investment Options selected by the Participanta&i€ipant may elect to reallocate his or her Retient Account among the various
Investment Options in whole increments of one par¢E%) from time to time as prescribed by the Adlistrator, subject to any restrictions
on reallocation with respect to Share Units as may heosed by the Company. Such investment electiorlbrehaain in effect until change
by the Participant. All investment elections shw@tome effective as soon as
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practicable after receipt of such election by tlteministrator or its designee, and must be madearfadrm and manner and within such time
periods as the Administrator prescribes in orddra@ffective. In the absence of an effective aacthe Participant’s Account shall be
deemed invested in the Share Unit Account.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Paricipmay not reallocate his or her Retirement Actanmong the various Investment Options
until the date of such Participant’s Separatiomfi®ervice. Thereafter, such a Participant mayaealé his or her Retirement Account at any
time as set forth above.

(b) On each Valuation Date, the Admiraitir or its designee shall credit the deemed invesst experience with respect to the selected
Investment Options to each Participant’s Account.

(c) Notwithstanding anything herein te ttontrary, the Company retains the right to atileeetual amounts hereunder without rega
a Participant’s request.

Section 5.465ecurities Law RestrictiondNotwithstanding anything to the contrary heraithelections under Section 5.3 by a
Participant who is subject to Section 16 of thelaxmge Act are subject to review by the Administratgor to implementation. In accordance
with Section 3.6, the Administrator may restrictldidnal transactions, rescind transactions, orasgoother rules and procedures, to the e
deemed desirable by the Administrator in orderaimply with the Exchange Act, including, without ltation, application of the review and
approval provisions of this Section 5.4 to Partitifs who are not subject to Section 16 of the BExglaAct.

Section 5.%Accounts are For Record Keeping Purposes ORlgtirement Accounts and the record keeping praesddescribed
herein serve solely as a device for determiningatheunt of benefits accumulated by a Participadeuthe Plan, and shall not constitute or
imply an obligation on the part of the Companyund such benefits.

ARTICLE 6.
RULES WITH RESPECT TO SHARE UNITS

Section 6.Zransactions Affecting Common Stockn the event of any merger, share exchange, agargtion, consolidation,
recapitalization, stock dividend, stock split on@t change in corporate structure of the Compafegtiig Shares, the Administrator may
make appropriate equitable adjustments with redpdtte Share Units credited to the Retirement Aotof each Participant, including
without limitation, adjusting the date as of whialch units are valued and/or distributed, as thmiAstrator determines is necessary or
desirable to prevent the dilution or enlargemerthefbenefits intended to be provided under tha.Pla

Section 6.No Shareholder Rights With Respect to Share Uritarticipants shall have no rights as a stockigidgaining to Share
Units credited to their Retirement Accounts. Notiegrant or Beneficiary shall have any right toeae a distribution of Shares under this
Plan. All distributions under the Plan are madeash.




Section 6.Dividends. Whenever the Company declares a dividend orhigses, in cash or in property, at a time when Epents
have Share Units credited to their Retirement Aateua dividend award shall be made to all suckidaaints as of the date of payment of
dividend. The dividend award for a Participant haldetermined by multiplying the Share Units destito the Participant’s Account as of
the date the dividend is declared by the amoufiaarMarket Value of the dividend paid or distriedton one Share. The dividend award
shall be credited to the Participant’s Retiremeot@unt by converting such award into Share Unitdiliding the amount of the dividend
award by the Fair Market Value of a Share on the tlee dividend is paid. Any other provision ofstiflan to the contrary notwithstanding, if
a dividend is declared on Shares in the form aglat or rights to purchase shares of capital stiidchke Company or of any entity acquiring
the Company, such dividend award shall not be taddo the Participant’s Retirement Account, buthe@hare Unit credited to a Participant’
Retirement Account at the time such dividend islpand each Share Unit thereafter credited to #rédipant’s Retirement Account at a time
when such rights are attached to Shares, sha#dfier be valued as of any point in time on thesbaisthe aggregate of the then Fair Market
Value of one Share plus the then Fair Market Valuguch right or rights then or previously attactedne Share.

ARTICLE 7.
PAYMENT

Section 7.Distributions.

(a) Participatg Separation from ServicéJpon a Participant’s Separation from Servicedioy reason, the Participant, or his
Beneficiary, in the event of his death, shall betked to payment of the amount accumulated in $atticipant’s Retirement Account.

Section 7.ZElection of Form of Distribution A Participant, within the first thirty (30) dajsllowing the date he commences
participation in the Plan, shall make a distribntedection with respect to his Retirement Acco&ich election shall be made in such form
and manner and within such time periods as the Athnator may prescribe, and shall be irrevocabe election shall specify whether
distributions shall be made in a single lump surarrual installments of from two (2) to ten (10ase If no valid election is in effect,
distribution shall be made in ten (10) annual ihst@nts.

Section 7.3Manner of Distribution A Participant’s Retirement Account shall be paiidegin to be paid in cash as follows:

(a) If payment is to be made in a lummspayment shall be made in the first calendartquaf the year following the year in which
the Participant’s Separation from Service occund, hall be in an amount equal to the balanceeoPrticipant’'s Retirement Account as of
the Valuation Date immediately preceding the disttion date.

(b) If payment is to be made in annuatafiments, the first annual payment shall be madee first calendar quarter of the year
following the year in which the Participant’s Seqtaon from Service occurs, and shall equal theevalul/10t (or 1/9th, 1/8t, 1/7t, etc.
depending on the number of installments electethebalance of the Participant’s
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Retirement Account as of the Valuation Date immidjgpreceding the distribution date. A second ahpayment shall be made in the first
calendar quarter of the second year after theipeahich the Participant's Separation from Sendceurs, and shall equal the value of 1/9
(or 1/8th, 1/7th 1/6t, etc. depending on the number of installmentstetdof the balance of the Participant’s Retirenfesttount as of the
Valuation Date immediately preceding the distribntdate. Each succeeding installment payment yif simall be determined in a similar
manner, until the final installment which shall agjthe then remaining balance of such account #seo¥aluation Date immediately
preceding the final distribution date.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisioifighe balance of a Participant’s Retirement Aattoas of the Valuation Date immediately
preceding a distribution date is $50,000 or léssn the entire remaining balance of the Participd®tirement Account shall be paid in the
form of a lump sum on such distribution date.

Section 7.4Distribution of Remaining Account Following Parpieints Death In the event of the Participant’s death priordoeiving
all payments due under this Article 7, the balaofcéne Participant’s Retirement Account shall balpa the Participant’s Beneficiary in a
lump sum in the first calendar quarter of the ylellowing the year of the Participant’s death.

Section 7.5Tax Withholding. The Company shall have the right to deduct fromdeferral or payment made hereunder, or from any
other amount due a Participant, the amount of saffitient to satisfy the Company’s or Affiliatefsreign, federal, state or local income tax
withholding obligations with respect to such dedéor payment. In addition, if prior to the datedidtribution of any amount hereunder, the
Federal Insurance Contributions Act (FICA) tax irmpd under Code Sections 3101, 3121(a) and 312}, (wk2re applicable, becomes due,
the Participant’s Retirement Account balance dimlfeduced by the amount needed to pay the Panticspportion of such tax, plus an
amount equal to the withholding taxes due undeeri@dstate or local law resulting from the paymafirguch FICA tax, and an additional
amount to pay the additional income tax at sourcevages attributable to the pyramiding of the C8detion 3401 wages and taxes, but no
greater than the aggregate of the FICA tax amonahtlae income tax withholding related to such Fi@RA amount.

Section 7.@ffset. The Company shall have the right to offset fromg amount payable hereunder any amount that thecipant
owes to the Company or to any Affiliate without tmnsent of the Participant (or his Beneficiarytha event of the Participant’s death).

Section 7.Additional Payment Provisions

(&) Acceleration of Paymel. Notwithstanding the foregoin

(1) If an amount deferred under this Plan guned to be included in income under Code Sect@®A prior to the date such amount
is actually distributed, a Participant shall reeedvdistribution, in a lump sum within ninety (2@ys after the date the Plan fails to
meet the requirements of Code Section 409A, o&theunt required to be included in the Participaimc®me as a result of such
failure.




(2) If an amount under the Plan is requiredgdammediately distributed in a lump sum under méstic relations order within the
meaning of Code Section 414(p)(1)(B), it may béritisted according to the terms of such order, juled the Participant holds 1
Administrator harmless with respect to such distiitn. The Plan shall not distribute amounts respiiio be distributed under a
domestic relations order other than in the limitg#gdumstance specifically stated here

(b) Delay in Paymer. Notwithstanding the foregoin

(1) If adistribution required under the terafghis Plan would jeopardize the ability of them@many to continue as a going concern,
the Company shall not be required to make suchildision. Rather, the distribution shall be delaymdil the first date that maki
the distribution does not jeopardize the abilityltdé Company to continue as a going concern. Astyidution delayed under this
provision shall be treated as made on the datéfiggbander the terms of this Ple

(2) If the distribution will violate the terntd Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act or other Fabgecurities laws, or any other
applicable law, then the distribution shall be gethuntil the earliest date on which making theritigtion will not violate such
law.

ARTICLE 8.
TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Section 8.1No Funding. No stock, cash or other property will be delil#eato a Participant or his or her Beneficiaryéspect of the
Participant’s Retirement Account until the datelates identified pursuant to Article 7, and alliRehent Accounts shall be reflected in one
or more unfunded accounts established for thedfaatit by the Company. Payment of the Company’gatbn will be from general funds,
and no special assets (stock, cash or otherwise)heen or will be set aside as security for thiggation, unless otherwise provided by the
Administrator.

Section 8.2o Transfers Except as permitted by Section 7.5, a Participaights to payments under this Plan are not suifijeany
manner to anticipation, alienation, sale, transdesignment, pledge, encumbrance by a Participaris @eneficiary, or garnishment by a
Participant’s creditors or the creditors of hisher beneficiaries, whether by operation of law thieovise, and any attempted sale, transfer,
assignment, pledge, or encumbrance with respextdio payment shall be null and void, and shall leout legal effect and shall not be
recognized by the Company.

Section 8.3)nsecured CreditarThe right of a Participant or Beneficiary to reeepayments under this Plan is that of a general,
unsecured creditor of the Company, and the obbigaif the Company to make payments constitutesra premise by the Company to pay
such benefits in the future. Further, the arrangesmeontemplated by this Plan are intended to fienaled for tax purposes and for purposes
of Title | of ERISA.




Section 8./Retention as DirectarNothing contained in the Plan shall interferehvat limit in any way the right of the shareholdefs
the Company to remove any Director from the Boaod,confer upon any Director any right to contimu¢he service of Company as a
Director.

ARTICLE 9.
TERMINATION AND AMENDMENT OF PLAN

Section 9.JAmendment To the extent permitted by Code Section 409A Gbenmittee may at any time amend the Pfapyided,
however, that (a) the Committee may not amend the Plarertiam once every six months, other than amendnttentS8ommittee deems
necessary or advisable to assure the conformitlyeoPlan with any requirements of state and fedavabr regulations now or hereafter in
effect, and (b) subject to the provisions of Set8d?, no amendment shall affect adversely anpj@fights of any Outside Director (excep
such Outside Director’s Retirement Account balames be reduced as a result of investment lossesadile to such account), without such
Outside Director’s consent, under any electiondtwfore in effect under the Plgmovided further thathe Board must approve any
amendment that expands the class of individuadgbédi for participation under the Plan, that matyiincreases the benefits provided
hereunder, or that is required to be approved e\Bibard by any applicable law or the listing regmients of the national securities exchange
upon which the Company’s common stock is then ttatteaddition, the Administrator may at any timmend the Plan to make
administrative changes and changes necessary tplgarith applicable law.

Section 9.Zlermination. The Committee may terminate the Plan in accorelavith the following provisions. Upon terminatioftbe
Plan, the Committee may authorize the paymentl@rabunts accrued under the Plan in a single symeat without regard to any
distribution election then in effect, only in th@lbwing circumstances:

(1) The Plan is terminated within twelve (12) monthaaorporate dissolution taxed under Code Sect¥in @ with the approval ol
bankruptcy court pursuant to 11 U.S.C. 8503(b)(L)(A such event, the single sum payment must $teildited by the latest of:
(A) the last day of the calendar year in whichBtten termination occurs, (B) the first calendarryipavhich the amount is no
longer subject to a substantial risk of forfeituwe(C) the first calendar year in which paymeradsninistratively practicabl

(2) The Plan is terminated at any other timeyjgled that such termination does not occur praténo a downturn in the financial
health of the Company or an Affiliate, and all atp&ans required to be aggregate with this Plareu@bde Section 409A are also
terminated and liquidated. In such event, the sisgim payment shall be paid no earlier than twgl2¢ months (and no later than
twenty-four (24) months) after the date of the Rdaermination. Notwithstanding the foregoing, aayment that would otherwi:
be paid during the twelve (1-month period beginning on the Plan termination gatesuant to the terms of the Plan shall be
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in accordance with such terms. In additibe, Company or any Affiliate shall be prohibitedrfradopting a similar arrangement
within three (3) years following the date of thaf' s termination

ARTICLE 10.
CHANGE OF CONTROL

Section 10.Acceleration of PaymentAnything in this Plan to the contrary notwithsdénmg, each Participant’s Retirement Account
shall be paid in cash in a lump sum within thid@) days following the occurrence of a Change afit€d. The amount of the cash payment
shall be determined by multiplying the number o&fhUnits in the Retirement Account by the Fair kaNValue of a Share as of the most
recent Valuation Date preceding the occurrenceé@®fthange of Control.

In determining the amount accumulated Participant’s Retirement Account, each Share &htl have a value equal to the higher of
(a) the highest reported sales price, regular wag,share of the Company’s common stock on thefoasite Tape for New York Stock
Exchange Listed Stocks (the “Composite Tape”) dutire sixty (60)-day period prior to the date af tbhange of Control of the Company
and (b) if the Change of Control of the Companth&result of a transaction or series of transastiescribed in Section 10.2(a), the highest
price per Share of the Company paid in such trdizsaor series of transactions.

Section 10.Definition of a Change of ControlA Change of Control means any of the followingts, provided that each such ey
would constitute a change of control within the mieg of Code Section 409A:

(a) The acquisition, other than from @@mpany, by any individual, entity or group of bicial ownership (within the meaning of Ri
13d-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act), inclgdimnconnection with a merger, consolidation orgamization, of more than either:

(1) Fifty percent (50%) of the then outstandshgres of common stock of the Company (the “Ontbitey Company Common Stogk”
or

(2) Thirty-five percent (35%) of the combineating power of the then outstanding voting secesitof the Company entitled to vote
generally in the election of directors (“Company Voting Securiti”),

provided, howeve, that any acquisition by (x) the Company or anyt®bubsidiaries, or any employee benefit plarrétated trust) sponsor
or maintained by the Company or any of its subsielaor (y) any corporation with respect to whifdilowing such acquisition, more than
sixty percent (60%) of, respectively, the then tarding shares of common stock of such corporatmhthe combined voting power of the
then outstanding voting securities of such corpomnatntitled to vote generally in the election ofdtors is then beneficially owned, directly
or indirectly, by all or substantially all of thedividuals and entities who were the beneficial evgnrespectively, of the Outstanding
Company Common Stock and Company Voting Secuiiti@sediately prior to such acquisition in substdhtithe same proportion as their
ownership, immediately prior to such acquisitiohttee Outstanding Company Common
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Stock and Company Voting Securities, as the caselmashall not constitute a Change in Controhef Company; or

(b) Individuals who, as of January 1, 20€onstitute the Board (the “Incumbent Board”)seetor any reason to constitute at least a
majority of the Board during any twelve (12)-moptriod,providedthat any individual becoming a director subsequedanuary 1, 2005,
whose election or nomination for election by ther(@any’s shareholders was approved by a vote efat b majority of the directors then
comprising the Incumbent Board, shall be considasethough such individual were a member of tharrment Board; or

(c) A complete liquidation or dissolutiohthe Company or sale or other disposition obalsubstantially all of the assets of the
Company other than to a corporation with respeethich, following such sale or disposition, moraritsixty percent (60%) of, respectively,
the then outstanding shares of common stock andaimbdined voting power of the then outstandingng8ecurities entitled to vote gener:
in the election of directors is then owned benefigj directly or indirectly, by all or substantiyakll of the individuals and entities who were
the beneficial owners, respectively, of the Outdiag Company Common Stock and Company Voting Sgesiimmediately prior to such
sale or disposition in substantially the same pridpo as their ownership of the Outstanding Comp@oynmon Stock and Company Voting
Securities, as the case may be, immediately prisuth sale or disposition. For purposes heredfala or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Company?! mét be deemed to have occurred if the sale ire@bssets having a total gross fair market
value of less than forty percent (40%) of the tgtalss fair market value of all assets of the Camgpenmediately prior to the acquisition. For
this purpose, “gross fair market value” means thiee of the assets without regard to any liabfiagsociated with such assets.

(d) For purposes of this Section 10.2spes will not be considered to be acting as augt®olely because they purchase or own stock
of the Company at the same time, or as a restiteofame public offering. However, persons wilcbesidered to be acting as a “group” if
they are owners of a corporation that enters imweeger, consolidation, purchase or acquisitiostotk, or similar business transaction with
the Company. If a person, including an entity, owtesk in the Company and any other corporatiohehgers into a merger, consolidation,
purchase or acquisition of stock, or similar tranigs, such shareholder is considered to be aesng group with other shareholders in such
corporation only with respect to the ownershiphattcorporation prior to the transaction givingerie the change and not with respect to the
ownership interest in the Company.

ARTICLE 11.
SUCCESSORS

All obligations of the Company under #lan shall be binding on any successor to the Campehether the existence of such
successor is the result of a direct or indirectpase, merger, consolidation or otherwise, of fiutostantially all of the business and/or as
of the Company. This Plan shall be binding uponiande to the benefit of the Participants, Benefigis, and their heirs, executors,
administrators and legal representatives.
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ARTICLE 12.
DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Section 12.15overning Law. This Plan and the rights and obligations hereustall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the internal laws of the State of Wisconsirglading any choice of law rules that may dire@ #pplication of the laws of another
jurisdiction).

Section 12.Arbitration .

(a) Application Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herdim, Participant or Beneficiary brings a claim thefates to benefits
under this Plan, regardless of the basis of thenglsuch claim shall be settled by final bindingitration in accordance with the rules of the
American Arbitration Association (“AAA”) and judgméupon the award rendered by the arbitrator magritered in any court having
jurisdiction thereof

(b)_Initiation of Action Arbitration must be initiated by serving or magia written notice of the complaint to the othartp. Normally
such written notice should be provided to the offeety within one year (365 days) after the daydbmaplaining party first knew or should
have known of the events giving rise to the conmplaiiowever, this time frame may be extended ifapplicable statute of limitation
provides for a longer period of time. If the coniptas not properly submitted within the appropeigitne frame, all rights and claims that the
complaining party has or may have against the qihgy shall be waived and void. Any notice serth® Company shall be delivered to:

Office of General Counsel
Johnson Controls, Inc.

5757 North Green Bay Avenue
P.O. Box 591

Milwaukee, WI 53201-0591

The notice must identify and describerthure of all complaints asserted and the faot® wghich such complaints are based. Notice
will be deemed given according to the date of amstmark or the date of time of any personal dejiver

(c) Compliance with Personnel Polici&efore proceeding to arbitration on a complaime, Participant or Beneficiary must initiate and
participate in any complaint resolution proceduatentified in the Company’s personnel policiesh tlaimant has not initiated the complaint
resolution procedure before initiating arbitratmma complaint, the initiation of the arbitratidma#i be deemed to begin the complaint

resolution procedure. No arbitration hearing shalheld on a complaint until any applicable Compemmyplaint resolution procedure has
been completed.

(d)_Rules of ArbitrationAll arbitration will be conducted by a single #rator according to the Employment Dispute Arltitva Rules
of the AAA. The arbitrator will have authority tovard any remedy or relief that a court of compejensdiction could order or grant
including, without limitation, specific performanoé any obligation created under
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policy, the awarding of punitive damages, the iss@aof any injunction, costs and attorney’s feeth&oextent permitted by law, or the
imposition of sanctions for abuse of the arbitnagiwocess. The arbitrator's award must be renderadwriting that sets forth the essential
findings and conclusions on which the arbitratergrd is based.

(e) Representation and Caodtach party may be represented in the arbitrdtioan attorney or other representative selectettidy
party. The Company shall be responsible for its casts, the AAA filing fee and all other fees, soahd expenses of the arbitrator and AAA
for administering the arbitration. The claimantlsha responsible for his attorney’s or represewt fees, if any. However, if any party
prevails on a statutory claim which allows the @ifrg party costs and/or attorneys’ fees, theteatir may award costs and reasonable
attorneys’ fees as provided by such statute.

(f) Discovery; Location; Rules of Evidendiscovery will be allowed to the same extent aftwl under the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure. Arbitration will be held at a locatiaiexted by the Company. AAA rules notwithstanditg, admissibility of evidence offered at
the arbitration shall be determined by the arlwtratho shall be the judge of its materiality anévance. Legal rules of evidence will not be
controlling, and the standard for admissibilityeeidence will generally be whether it is the tyfiénformation that responsible people rely
upon in making important decisions.

(g)_Confidentiality The existence, content or results of any arltnatnay not be disclosed by a party or arbitratitheut the prior
written consent of both parties. Witnesses whaatea party to the arbitration shall be excludedrfithe hearing except to testify.
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Exhibit 10.K

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.
2001 RESTRICTED STOCK PLAN

(Adjusted to reflect 3-for-1 stock split effecti@@ptember 14, 2007)

ARTICLE 1.
PURPOSE AND DURATION

Section 1.Rurpose The Johnson Controls, Inc. Restricted Stock Risitwo complementary purposes: (a) to promotsubeess of
the Company by providing incentives to the Comparyid subsidiarg officers and other key employees that will lihnkit personal interes
to the long-term financial success of the Compard/ta growth in value; and (b) to permit the Compand its subsidiaries to attract,
motivate and retain experienced and knowledgeabfdayees upon whose judgment, interest, and speftats the successful conduct of
Company’s operations is largely dependent.

Section 1.Duration. The Plan was originally effective on October QQ2. The Plan is amended and restated effectivie®déer 20,
2011. The Plan shall remain in effect, subjechtoright of the Board to terminate the Plan att@mg pursuant to Article 11 herein, until all
Shares reserved for issuance under the Plan havei¢mied.

ARTICLE 2.
DEFINITIONS AND CONSTRUCTION

Section 2.Definitions. Wherever used in the Plan, the following termedidiave the meanings set forth below and, whemteaning
is intended, the initial letter of the word is dafized:

(a) “Act” means the Securities Act of B93s interpreted by rules and regulations issuesiant thereto, all as amended and in effect
from time to time. Any reference to a specific gsion of the Act shall be deemed to include refeesto any successor provision thereto.

(b) “Award” means a grant of Restrictdth&s or Restricted Share Units.

(c) “Beneficial Owner” (or derivativesdteof) shall have the meaning ascribed to such irefRule 13d-3 of the General Rules and
Regulations under the Exchange Act.

(d) “Board” means the Board of Directofgshe Company.

(e) “Cause” means: (1) if the Participsngubject to an employment agreement that comtaitefinition of “cause”, such definition, or
(2) otherwise, any of the following as determingdiie Committee: (a) violation of the provisionsanfy employment agreement, non-
competition agreement, confidentiality agreemensimilar agreement with the Company or subsidiarthe Company’s or subsidiary’s
code of ethics, as then in effect, (b) conduchgdb the level of gross negligence or willful masduct in the course of employment




with the Company or subsidiary, (c) commissionmfat of dishonesty or disloyalty involving the Qoamy or subsidiary, (d) violation of a
federal, state or local law in connection with Breaticipant's employment, or (e) breach of any didwy duty to the Company or a subsidiary.

(f)
1)

)

©)

“Change of Contr” means the occurrence of any one of the follow

The acquisition, other than from the Compday any Person of Beneficial Ownership of 20%nare of either (A) the then
outstanding shares of common stock of the Comptrey“QOutstanding Company Common Stock”) or (B) ¢benbined voting
power of the then outstanding voting securitiethefCompany entitled to vote generally in the ébecof directors (the
“Company Voting Securities”provided, howeverthat any acquisition by (x) the Company or anjt®bubsidiaries, or any
employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsoradaintained by the Company or any of its subsielaor (y) any corporation
with respect to which, following such acquisitiongre than 60% of, respectively, the then outstapdhares of common stock
such corporation and the combined voting powehefthen outstanding voting securities of such a@atpan entitled to vote
generally in the election of directors is then Bamially Owned, directly or indirectly, by all orubstantially all of the individuals
and entities who were the Beneficial Owners, rehpalg, of the Outstanding Company Common Stock @odhpany Voting
Securities immediately prior to such acquisitiorsibstantially the same proportion as their owriprsimnmediately prior to such
acquisition, of the Outstanding Company Common IStoawl Company Voting Securities, as the case magHadl not constitute
a Change in Control of the Compal

Individuals who, as of May 24, 1989, condé the Board (the “Incumbent Board”) cease for @ason to constitute at least a
majority of the Boardprovidedthat any individual becoming a director subseqoeday 24, 1989, whose election or
nomination for election by the Company’s sharehdeas approved by a vote of at least a majoritpefdirectors then
comprising the Incumbent Board shall be considasethough such individual were a member of therrment Board, but
excluding, for this purpose, any such individualos# initial assumption of office is in connectioithxan actual or threatened
election contest relating to the election of theebiors of the Company (as such terms are usedlanRa-11 of Regulation 14A
promulgated under the Exchange A

Consummation of a reorganization, mergeramsolidation (a “Business Combinationif),each case, with respect to which al
substantially all of the individuals and entitiechkawvere the respective Beneficial Owners of thes@niding Company Common
Stock and Company Voting Securities immediatelpipid such Business Combination do not, followingrsBusiness
Combination, Beneficially Own, directly «




indirectly, more than 60% of, respectively, thertlmaitstanding shares of common stock and the cadhinting power of the then
outstanding voting securities entitled to vote gathgin the election of directors, as the case m@yof the corporation resulting
from such Business Combination in substantiallysme proportion as their ownership immediatelgrpio such Business
Combination of the Outstanding Company Common Stoek Company Voting Securities, as the case ma

(4) A complete liquidation or dissolution of the Compar sale or other disposition of all or substdhtiall of the assets of the
Company other than to a corporation with respeethizh, following such sale or disposition, moraril60% of, respectively, the
then outstanding shares of common stock and théioauh voting power of the then outstanding votiagwsities entitled to vote
generally in the election of directors is then Bamially Owned, directly or indirectly, by all oubstantially all of the individuals ar
entities who were the Beneficial Owners, respettivaf the Outstanding Company Common Stock and @y Voting Securities
immediately prior to such sale or disposition ibstantially the same proportion as their ownersiiifhe Outstanding Company
Common Stock and Company Voting Securities, agéise may be, immediately prior to such sale oradision.

(g) “Code” means the Internal Revenue&oid1986, as interpreted by rules and regulatiesised pursuant thereto, all as amended anc
in effect from time to time. Any reference to aaifie provision of the Code shall be deemed toudel reference to any successor provision
thereto.

(h) “Committee” means the Compensatiom@iittee of the Board, or such other committee amtedi by the Board to administer the
Plan pursuant to Article 3 herein.

(i) “Company” means Johnson Controls,,ladNisconsin corporation, and any successor@sdad in Article 13.

(i) “Deferred Compensation Plan” mearesdbhnson Controls, Inc. Executive Deferred Comg@ars Plan, as from time to time
amended and in effect.

(k) “Eligible Employee” means a curreramagement or highly compensated employee of thep@oynor subsidiary.

() “Exchange Act” means the Securitiesltange Act of 1934, as interpreted by rules agdletions issued pursuant thereto, all as
amended and in effect from time to time. Any refeeto a specific provision of the Exchange Actidbedeemed to include reference to
successor provision thereto.

(m) “Fair Market Value” means with resptca Share, the closing sales price on the Nerk Btock Exchange on the date in question
(or the immediately preceding trading




day if the date in question is not a trading dayyd with respect to any other property, such vakies determined by the Committee.

(n) “Inimical Conduct” means any act onission that is inimical to the best interestsha&f Company or any subsidiary, as determined
by the Committee in its sole discretion, includmg not limited to: (1) violation of any employmenbncompete, confidentiality or other
agreement in effect with the Company or any subsjdi(2) taking any steps or doing anything whiauld damage or negatively reflect on
the reputation of the Company or a subsidiary3pfdilure to comply with applicable laws relatitgtrade secrets, confidential informatiol
unfair competition.

(o) “Participant” means an Eligible Empde who has been granted an Award.

(p) “Period of Restriction” means theipdrduring which Shares or Share Units may notaesferred and are subject to a substantial
risk of forfeiture.

(q) “Person” shall have the meaning d&atito such term in Section 3(a)(9) of the Exchahgfeand used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d)
thereof, including a “group” as defined in Secti®(d) thereof.

(n) “Plan” means this Johnson Contratg,. P001 Restricted Stock Plan, as from time t@timended and in effect.
(s) “Restricted Shares” means Sharesatteasubject to a Period of Restriction.
(t) “Restricted Share Units” means SHanés that are subject to a Period of Restriction.

(u) “Retirement” means, unless othervgiseforth in an Award agreement, a voluntary teation of employment from the Company
and its subsidiaries (for other than Cause) orfter age fifty-five (55) and completion of at ledsh (10) years of vesting service, or age
sixty-five (65) and completion of at least five §@ars of vesting service (such vesting servideetdetermined within the meaning of the
Johnson Controls Pension Plan or such other plametihodology specified by the Committee).

(v) “Rule 16b-3" means Rule 16b-3 under Exchange Act.
(w) “Share” means the common stock ofGloenpany, or such other securities specified irtiGed.3.
(x) “Share Unit” means a measure of comspéion having a value equal to the Fair Markeu¥aif a single Share.

(y) “Total and Permanent Disability” maahe Participant’s inability to perform the maaé¢duties of his occupation as a result of a
medically-determinable physical or mental impairtnehich can be expected to result in death or whih lasted or can be




expected to last for a period of at least tweh@) fhonths, as determined by the Committee. ThadRzht will be required to submit such
medical evidence or to undergo a medical examindtjpa doctor selected by the Committee as the dtimerdetermines is necessary in
order to make a determination hereunder.

Section 2.Zonstruction Wherever any words are used in the masculing,ghall be construed as though they were useckin th
feminine in all cases where they would so applyt wherever any words are use in the singular ophbiel, they shall be construed as tho
they were used in the plural or the singular, ascise may be, in all cases where they would sly.apies of articles and sections are for
general information only, and the Plan is not tacbrstrued by reference to such items.

Section 2.Feverability. In the event any provision of the Plan is hdiebihl or invalid for any reason, the illegalityiovalidity shall
not affect the remaining parts of the Plan, andAtas shall be construed and enforced as if thekibagal or invalid provision had not been
included.

ARTICLE 3.
ADMINISTRATION

Section 3.1The Committee The Plan shall be administered by the Commitfest.any time the Committee shall not be in existe
the Plan shall be administered by the Board ant ezference to the Committee herein shall be degmaatiude the Board.

Section 3.Authority of the Committee In addition to the authority specifically grantedthe Committee in the Plan, and subject to
the provisions of the Plan, the Committee shallehia¥ power and discretionary authority to: (alese Participants, grant Awards, and
determine the terms and conditions of each suchrédwiracluding but not limited to the Period of Ré&gion and the number of Shares to
which the Award will relate; (b) administer the Rlancluding but not limited to the power and auttyoto construe and interpret the Plan and
any award agreement; (c) correct errors, supplssions or reconcile inconsistencies in the termte®Plan and any award agreement;

(d) establish, amend or waive rules and regulatiand appoint such agents, as it deems approfoiatiee Plan’s administration; and
(e) make any other determinations, including fdati@géerminations, and take any other action astiérnines is necessary or desirable for the
Plan’s administration.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Contegtshall have no authority to act to adverselgafthe rights or benefits granted under any
outstanding Award without the consent of the petsoiding such Award (other than as specificallyyided herein).

Section 3.Pecision Binding The Committees determination and decisions made pursuant tprihngsions of the Plan and all rela
orders or resolutions of the Board shall be finahclusive and binding on all persons who havengarést in the Plan or an Award, and such
determinations and decisions shall not be reviesvabl

Section 3.Lrocedures of the Committedhe Committee’s determinations must be made lbyess than a majority of its members
present at the meeting (in person or otherwisa)héth a quorum is present, or by written majoribnsent, which sets forth the




action, is signed by each member of the Committekfitled with the minutes for proceedings of then@uittee. A majority of the entire
Committee shall constitute a quorum for the tratisa®f business. Service on the Committee shalktitute service as a director of the
Company so that the Committee members shall bezhto indemnification, limitation of liability ahreimbursement of expenses with
respect to their Committee services to the sanenextat they are entitled under the Company’sdysland Wisconsin law for their services
as directors of the Company.

Section 3.%Award Agreements The Committee shall evidence the grant of eaclarivby an award agreement which shall be signed
by an authorized officer of the Company and byRheticipant, and shall contain such terms and ¢omdi as may be approved by the
Committee, subject to the terms and conditions ag Ine approved by the Committee, subject to thedef the Plan. Terms and conditions
of such Awards need not be the same in all cases.

ARTICLE 4.
SHARES SUBJECT TO THE PLAN

Section 4. Number of SharesSubject to adjustment as provided in Sectionth&aggregate number of Shares that may be issued
pursuant to Awards granted under the Plan shakkroted 4,500,000 Shares. Shares delivered urel®lah shall consist solely of treasury
Shares.

Section 4.2.apsed Awards If any shares issued under the Plan are forfeitexh such Shares shall be available for the graathew
Award under the Plan.

Section 4.Adjustments in Authorized Sharein the event of any merger, reorganization, cbdation, recapitalization, separation,
liquidation, stock dividend, split-up, share condiian, or other change in the corporate structéitheCompany affecting the Shares, the
Committee shall adjust: (a) the number and claghafres which may be delivered under the Plan{lanihe number and class of Shares or
Share Units subject to outstanding Awards, astérd@nes to be appropriate and equitable to prediurtion or enlargement of the rights
intended to be granted hereunder and under anyd\weovidedthat the number of Shares subject to any Award shahys be a whole
number.

ARTICLE 5.
PARTICIPATION

Subject to the provisions of the Plae, @ommittee shall have the authority to selecBimployees to receive an Award. No Employee
shall have any right to be granted an Award ev@mafiously granted an Award.




ARTICLE 6.
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF AWARDS

Section 6.XGrant of Award Subject to the terms and provisions of the Rta@ Committee shall have the authority to deterrtiiee
number of Shares or Share Units to which an Awhadl selate, the term of the Restriction Period aodditions for lapse thereof, and any
other terms and conditions of an Award. If deterdiby the Committee, a Participant may elect terdall or any portion of his Restricted
Shares or Restricted Share Units pursuant to tlieri2el Compensation Plan.

Section 6.Z'erms and Conditions of Restricted Share Awards

(a) Period of RestrictiarRestricted Shares may not be sold, transfertedgpd, assigned, or otherwise alienated or hypated, and
shall be subject to a substantial risk of forfetwmntil the termination of the applicable PeriddRestriction as set forth in the Participant’s
award agreement or provided herein. During theddest Restriction, the Company shall have the rightold the Restricted Shares in
€SCrow.

(b) Certificate Legendeach certificate representing Restricted Shadrel Bear the following legend:

“The sale or other transfer of the shares of stepkesented by this certificate, whether voluntary,
involuntary, or by operation of law, is subjectcirtain restrictions on transfer set forth in tbhrison
Controls, Inc. 2001 Restricted Stock Plan, in thles and administrative procedures adopted purdaant

such Plan, and in a Restricted Stock Agreementidate . A copy of the Plan, such rules
and procedures, and such Restricted Stock Agreema&ynbe obtained from the Secretary of Johnson
Controls, Inc.”

(c) Removal of RestrictiongExcept as otherwise provided in this Article, fReted Shares shall become vested in, and freely
transferable by, the Participant after the lastafahe Period of Restriction. Once the Sharega@eased from the restrictions, the Participant
shall be entitled to have the legend required lipgsation (b) removed from his stock certificate.

(d)_Voting Rights Unless determined otherwise by the Committeenduthe Period of Restriction, Participants holdiRestricted
Shares may exercise full voting rights with resgedhose Shares.

(e) Dividends and Other Distributionsny dividends or other distributions paid or gelied with respect to Restricted Shares will be
subject to the same terms and conditions (includsigof forfeiture) as the Restricted Shares taciithey relate and payment or delivery
thereof will be deferred accordingly. Unless othisendetermined by the Committee, all dividendstbepdistributions paid or delivered with
respect to Restricted Shares shall be allocatadSioare Unit account or other investment accoudéuthe Deferred Compensation Plan.




Section 6.3[erms and Conditions of Restricted Share Units

(a) Establishment of Accouriypon the grant of Restricted Share Units to di¢tpant, the Company shall establish a bookkeeping
account under the Deferred Compensation Plan tolwdtiall be credited the number of Share Unitstgchn

(b) Alienation of AccountA Participant (or beneficiary) shall not have aight to assign, hypothecate, pledge, encumbetha@rwise
alienate his Share Unit account.

(c) Dividends and Other DistributionSach Participant with a Share Unit account dbalntitled to receive a credit to such accour
any dividends or other distributions delivered ¢rai®s, whether in the form of cash or in propentygccordance with the terms of the
Deferred Compensation Plgmrovidedthat such credit shall be subject to the same tamdsconditions (including risk of forfeiture) dwet
Restricted Share Units to which they relate.

(d)_ Payment of Account he value of the Participant’s Share Unit accasnto which the Restriction Period has lapsed bkgbaid to
the Participant (or his beneficiary) in accordanith the terms of the Deferred Compensation Plan.

Section 6.4lermination of EmploymentUpon a Participant’s termination of employmewinfrthe Company and its subsidiaries, the
following rules shall apply:

(a) Retirementlf the Participant terminates employment due ¢ébir@ment, any remaining Period of Restriction ktahtinue as if the
Participant continued in active employment. Notsiéimding the foregoing, if the Participant engagdaimical Conduct after his Retireme
any Restricted Shares and/or Restricted Share Bhilltsubject to a Period of Restriction shall@ugtically be forfeited as of the date of the
Committee’s determination.

(b) Death or Disabilitylf the Participant’s employment terminates beeanfsdeath or Total and Permanent Disability atne twhen
the Participant could not have been terminatecCtuse, or if the Participant dies after Retirenvgrite holding an Award that is subject to a
Period of Restriction, any remaining Period of Resbn shall automatically lapse as of the datswth termination of employment or death,
as applicable.

(c) Termination for Other Reasorithe Patrticipant's employment terminates foy asason not described above, then any Restricted
Shares and/or Restricted Share Units still sulhgeatPeriod of Restriction as of the date of s@chination shall automatically be forfeited
and returned to the Comparprpvided, howeverthat in the event of an involuntary terminatidrite employment of an Employee by the
Company or a subsidiary for other than Cause, tirarGittee may waive the automatic forfeiture of anyll such Shares or Share Units and
may add such new restrictions to such RestrictedeShor Restricted Share Units as it deems apptepri

(d)_SuspensianThe Committee may suspend payment or delive§hafres (without liability for interest thereon) dery its
determination of whether the Participant was ousthbave been terminated for Cause or whether éinicibant has engaged in Inimical
Conduct.




Section 6.%ther Restrictions The Committee may impose such other restrictimmany Awards granted pursuant to the Plan
(including after the Period of Restriction lapsas)t may deem advisable including, without limaaf restrictions under applicable Federe
state securities laws, and the Committee may legertiicates to give appropriate notice of sucddtrietions.

ARTICLE 7.
RIGHTS OF ELIGIBLE INDIVIDUALS

Section 7.Employment Nothing in the Plan shall interfere with or lintitany way the right of the Company or subsidiary
terminate any Participant’s employment at any tingg,confer upon any Participant any right to comdi in the employ of the Company or
subsidiary.

Section 7.2No Implied Rights; Rights on Termination of Servidéeither the establishment of the Plan nor anyraiment thereof
shall be construed as giving any Participant or@thgr person any legal or equitable right unlesh sight shall be specifically provided for
in the Plan or conferred by specific action of @@nmittee in accordance with the terms and prongsiaf the Plan.

Section 7.No Funding. Neither the Participant nor any other personl stegjuire, by reason of the Plan or any Award, iégiyt in or
title to any assets, funds or property of the Camypend its subsidiaries whatsoever including, witHoniting the generality of the foregoing,
any specific funds, assets, or other property wthiehCompany or its subsidiaries may, in their slideretion, set aside in anticipation of a
liability hereunder. Any benefits which become galgahereunder shall be paid from the general as$¢tee Company and its subsidiaries, as
applicable. The Participant shall have only a cottral right to the amounts, if any, payable hedeuninsecured by any asset of the Com
or its subsidiaries. Nothing contained in the Rianstitutes a guarantee by the Company or its dialois that the assets of the Company or
its subsidiaries shall be sufficient to pay anydféro any person.

Section 7.4ther Restrictions As a condition to the issuance of any SharesCtiramittee may require the Participant to enter at
restrictive stock transfer or other shareholdegieament with the Company.

ARTICLE 8.
CHANGE OF CONTROL

If a Change of Control occurs, any Penb&estriction of any outstanding Award shall kapgpon the date of the Change of Control.




ARTICLE 9.
AMENDMENT, MODIFICATION, AND TERMINATION

Section 9.JAmendment, Modification, and Termination of therPlat any time and from time to time, the Board ntegminate,
amend, or modify the Plan. However, the approvagf such amendment by the shareholders of the @woyrghall be obtained if required
the Code, by the insider trading rules of Secti6rofithe Exchange Act, by any national securitieshange or system on which the Share:
then listed or reported, or by any regulatory bhdying jurisdiction with respect hereto. Furthey termination, amendment or modification
of the Plan shall in any manner adversely affegtAanard theretofore granted under the Plan, withtbatwritten consent of the Participant,
except as specifically provided herein.

Section 9. 2Amendment of Award Agreement3he Committee may at any time amend any outstgraivard agreementrovided,
howeverthat any amendment that decreases or impairsghtsrof a Participant under such agreement shabaeffective unless consented
to by the Participant in writing, except that Rapant consent shall not be required in the everAward is amended, adjusted or cancelled
under Section 4.3 or paid as provided in Articla®d Participant consent shall not be required reiipect to any amendment of the Deferred
Compensation Plan that affects a Participant’s &himit account to the extent such plan does nafiredparticipant consent.

Section 9.3urvival Following Termination Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent paed in the Plan, the authority of (a) the
Committee to amend, alter, adjust, suspend, disaombr terminate any Award, waive any conditionsestrictions with respect to any
Award, and otherwise administer the Plan and anavand (b) the Board to amend the Plan, shalheXteyond the date of the Plan’s
termination. Termination of the Plan shall not effthe rights of Participants with respect to Avsapteviously granted to them, and all
unexpired Awards shall continue in force and efedttr termination of the Plan except as they na@gé or be terminated by their own terms
and conditions, subject to the terms of the Dete@empensation Plan.

ARTICLE 10.
WITHHOLDING

Section 10.Trax Withholding. The Company shall have the power and the rigbettuct or withhold, or require a Participant toite
to the Company, an applicable amount sufficierstatisfy foreign, Federal, state and local taxed\fafing the Participant’s FICA obligation)
required by law to be withheld with respect to is®iance of Shares, the lapse of the Period ofiRtmt, or the distribution of the
Participant’s Share Unit account. The Company stlatl have the right to withhold Shares as to whhiehPeriod of Restriction has lapsed
and which have a Fair Market Value equal to thei¢pants’ minimum tax withholding liability, to siafy any withholding obligations.

Section 10.5tock Delivery or Withholding Participants may elect, subject to the approf#he Committee and such rules as it shall
prescribe, to satisfy the withholding requiremémtihole or in part, by tendering to the Compangviwusly acquired Shares in an




amount having a Fair Market Value equal to the amhoequired to be withheld to satisfy the minimwar withholding obligations described
in Section 10.1. The value of the Shares to beattis to be based on the Fair Market Value ofSth@res on the date that the amount of tax
to be withheld is determined.

ARTICLE 11.
LEGENDS; PAYMENT OF EXPENSES

Section 11.1.egends The Company may endorse such legend or legeraisthp certificates for Shares issued under the &ia
may issue such “stop transfer” instructions tdramsfer agent in respect of such Shares as itrdietes to be necessary or appropriate to (a)
prevent a violation of, or to perfect an exempfiam, the registration requirements of the Seasitct, applicable state securities laws or
other legal requirements, or (b) implement the fgiowns of the Plan or any agreement between thep@agnand the Participant with respect
to such Shares.

Section 11.RPayment of Expensedhe Company shall pay for all issuance taxes wegipect to the issuance of Shares under the Plar
as well as all fees and expenses incurred by timep@oy in connection with such issuance.

ARTICLE 12.
SUCCESSORS

All obligations of the Company under tlan with respect to Awards granted hereunder $ealinding on any successor to the
Company, whether the existence of such succes#ue igsult of a direct or indirect purchase, mergensolidation or otherwise, of all or
substantially all of the business and/or assetseCompany. The Plan shall be binding upon anckitmthe benefit of the Participants and
their heirs, executors, administrators or legatesentatives.

ARTICLE 13.
REQUIREMENTS OF LAW

Section 13.Requirements of LawThe granting of Awards and the issuance of Shamdsr this Plan shall be subject to all applicable
laws, rules, and regulations, and to such apprdysabny governmental agencies or national secasmi&hanges as may be required.

Section 13.Zoverning Law. This Plan and the rights and obligations hereustall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the internal laws of the State of Wisconsirdlading any choice of law rules that may direa #pplication of the laws of another
jurisdiction), except as provided in Section 13e3dof.

Section 13.3rbitration .

(a) Application Notwithstanding any employee agreement in etietiveen a Participant and the Company or any sialpgidmployer
if a Participant brings a claim that relates todféa under this Plan, regardless of the basid@ftaim (including but not limited to, actions
under Title VII, wrongful discharge, breach of emghent agreement, etc.), such




claim shall be settled by final binding arbitrationaccordance with the rules of the American Agtibn Association (“AAA”) and judgment
upon the award rendered by the arbitrator may beredhin any court having jurisdiction thereof.

(b)_Initiation of Action Arbitration must be initiated by serving or maglia written notice of the complaint to the othartp. Normally
such written notice should be provided the othetypaithin one year (365 days) after the day theptaining party first knew or should have
known of the events giving rise to the complainbwver, this time frame may be extended if the iapple statute of limitation provides for
a longer period of time. If the complaint is nobperly submitted within the appropriate time framkrights and claims that the complaining
party has or may have against the other party bleallaived and void. Any notice sent to the Compstrall be delivered to:

Office of General Counsel
Johnson Controls, Inc.

5757 North Green Bay Avenue
P.O. Box 591

Milwaukee, WI 53201-0591

The notice must identify and describerthture of all complaints asserted and the faot® ughich such complaints are based. Notice
will be deemed given according to the date of avstmark or the date of time of any personal dejiver

(c) Compliance with Personnel Polici&efore proceeding to arbitration on a complaime, Participant or Beneficiary must initiate and
participate in any complaint resolution proceduatentified in the Company’s or subsidiary’s persdmpadicies. If the claimant has not
initiated the complaint resolution procedure befaitating arbitration on a complaint, the iniiiah of the arbitration shall be deemed to b
the complaint resolution procedure. No arbitrati@aring shall be held on a complaint until any maible Company or subsidiary complaint
resolution procedure has been completed.

(d)_Rules of ArbitrationAll arbitration will be conducted by a single #rator according to the Employment Dispute Arliiba Rules
of the AAA. The arbitrator will have authority tevard any remedy or relief that a court of compejensdiction could order or grant
including, without limitation, specific performanoé any obligation created under policy, the awagddf punitive damages, the issuance of
any injunction, costs and attorney’s fees to thempermitted by law, or the imposition of sanedor abuse of the arbitration process. The
arbitrator's award must be rendered in a writingt tets forth the essential findings and conclissmmwhich the arbitrator’'s award is based.

(e) Representation and Cadtach party may be represented in the arbitrdtioan attorney or other representative selectettidy
party. The Company or subsidiary shall be respdaé$ds its own costs, the AAA filing fee and alhatr fees, costs and expenses of the
arbitrator and AAA for administering the arbitratioThe claimant shall be responsible for his atgior representative’s fees, if any.
However, if any party prevails on a statutory claumich allows the prevailing party costs and/oomateys’ fees, the arbitrator may award
costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees as provideddiy statute.




(f)_Discovery; Location; Rules of EvidendDiscovery will be allowed to the same extent aftal under the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure. Arbitration will be held at a locatiaiexted by the Company. AAA rules notwithstanditg, admissibility of evidence offered at
the arbitration shall be determined by the arlwtratho shall be the judge of its materiality anévance. Legal rules of evidence will not be
controlling, and the standard for admissibilityeeidence will generally be whether it is the tyfiénformation that responsible people rely

upon in making important decisions.

(g)_Confidentiality The existence, content or results of any arltnatnay not be disclosed by a party or arbitratitheut the prior
written consent of both parties. Witnesses whaatea party to the arbitration shall be excludedrfithe hearing except to testify.




Exhibit 10.L

Granted To: Number of Shares: Grant Date: Vesting Schedule

RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT

This certifies that on [DATE], Johnson Controls;.lrgranted a Restricted Stock Award as indicabeye, upon the terms and conditions in
this Agreement and the terms of the RestrictedkSbéan dated October 1, 2001, and amended throegte®ber 20, 2011, which terms the
Participant accepts.

Johnson Controls, Inc., a Wisconsin corporatios,iteprincipal office in Milwaukee, Wisconsin, @iCompany”).The Restricted Stock Pl
(the “Plan™) was adopted October 1, 2001, to alRestricted Shares or Restricted Share Units o€tirapany’s common stock (“Shares”) to
be granted to certain key employees of the Compamyy Subsidiary, as defined in Section 425(fhefInternal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (“Subsidiary”).

The individual named in this agreement (the “Paoéint”) is a key employee of the Company or a Siibsy, and the Company desires the
Participant to remain in such employ by providihg Participant with a means to increase his/hgurigtary interest in the Company’s
success. The Plan and this Agreement shall be &taried by the Compensation Committee of the Bo&idirectors (the “Committee”)f at
any time the Committee shall not be in existentoe Board shall administer the Plan and this Agre#rard each reference to the Committee
herein shall be deemed to include the Board.

The parties mutually agree as follows:

1. Grant of Award . Subject to the terms and conditions of the Pdargpy of which has been delivered to the Partitipad made a
part hereof, and this Agreement, the Company gtarttse Participant an award of Restricted Shanethe date and with respect to
the number of Shares specified above. Any capé@dlterms not defined in this Agreement will have theanings provided in the
Plan.

2. Restricted Shares If the Award is in the form of Restricted Shars Restricted shares are subject to the followoyisions:

Restriction Period. The Company will hold the Restricted Shares in@sdor the Restriction Period. During this peritite
Participant may not sell, transfer, pledge, assigotherwise use these Restricted Shares, andgsigidted Shares shall be subject to
forfeiture as provided in Section

Restricted Shares will be held in a book entry slparsition while in escrow, subject to the transéstrictions and risk of forfeitur

a. _Removal of Restriction®Restricted Shares that have not been forfeitall Bicome available to the Participant after &g |
day of the Restriction Period. Once the Sharesedeased, the restrictions shall be removed fragrPtrticipans book entn
share position

b.  Voting Rights During the Restriction Period, the Participanyraaercise full voting rights with respect to thediicted
Shares

C. Dividends and Other Distributionfny dividends or other distributions paid or gelied with respect to Restricted Shares
will be subject to the same terms and conditionsl(iding risk of forfeiture) as the Restricted Swato which they relate. A
dividends or other distributions paid or deliverith respect to Restricted Shares during the Reistni Period (other than
dividends or other distributions payable in Shasbs)ll be allocated to a Share Unit account urteDeferred
Compensation Plan. Dividends or distributions pé&yatshares will be held in a book entry shardtfmsas Restricted
Shares




d.

Payment of DividendsThe value of the Participant’s Share Unit accasto which the Restriction Period has lapsed shal
be paid to the Participant (or his beneficia

3. Restricted Share Units.If the Award is in the form of Restricted Share t3pithe Restricted Share Units are subject to theviafig

terms:

a.

Establishment of AccounThe Company shall establish a bookkeeping acamushr the Deferred Compensation Plan to
which shall be credited the number of Restrictedr8tunits elected. During the Restriction Peribd, Restricted Share Unit
account will be subject to a risk of forfeiture@svided in Section ¢

Alienation of Account The Participant (or beneficiary) shall not hawng aght to assign, transfer, pledge, encumber or
otherwise use the Restricted Share Unit accoualu@mng after the Restriction Period has laps

Dividends and Other Distribution¥he Participant’s Restricted Share Unit accobatlde credited for any dividends or
other distributions delivered on Shares equivalemhe number of Restricted Share Units crediteslitth account, whether
the form of cash or in property, in accordance i terms of the Deferred Compensation Plan. Stedit shall be subject
to the same terms and conditions (including risfod®eiture) as the Restricted Share Units to whiaty relate

Payment of AccountThe value of the Participant's Share Unit accasto which the Restriction Period has lapsed bkal
paid to the Participant (or his beneficiary) in @etance with the terms of the Deferred Compensatlan.

4.  Termination of Employment — Risk of Forfeiture.

a.

Retirementl|f the Participant terminates employment from @@mpany and its Subsidiaries due to Retiremermraiter
the last day of the calendar year following theendhr year in which the Award of Restricted ShareRestricted Share
Units is made, any remaining Restriction PeriodIsimntinue as if the Participant continued in aetemployment. If the
Participant engages in Inimical Conduct after hésilfment, as determined by the Committee, anyriRest Shares and/or
Restricted Share Units still subject to a Restiit®Period shall automatically be forfeited as & dlate of the Committee’s
determination. For purposes of this Agreement, itRatent” [[has the meaning given in the Plan.] [methe attainment of
age x [with x years of service.

Death or Disability If the Participant’'s employment from the Compamyl its Subsidiaries terminates because of death or
Total and Permanent Disability at a time when thgi€ipant could not have been terminated for Caoisé the Participant
dies after Retirement while this Award is still gdi to the Restriction Period, any remaining Rettm Period shall
automatically lapse as of the date of such terrgnaif employment or death, as applical

Other Terminatiorf the Participant’s employment terminates for aegson not described above, then any Restricte$ha
or Restricted Share Units (and all deferred divitepaid or credited thereon) still subject to thestRction Period as of the
date of such termination shall automatically bédibed and returned to the Company. In the eveth@®Participant’s
involuntary termination of employment by the Compan a Subsidiary for other than Cause, the Conemithay waive the
automatic forfeiture of any or all such Sharesloau® Units (and all deferred dividends paid or iteebthereon) and may a
such new restrictions to such Restricted Shar&sestricted Share Units as it deems appropriate Cdmpany may suspend
payment or delivery of Shares (without liabilityr fiaterest thereon) pending the Committee’s deteation of whether the
Participant was or should have been terminate@&urse or whether the Participant has engagedrimidai Conduct

-2-




10.

Amendment of Agreement.The Committee, subject to the provisions of thetfiRdged Stock Plan, may amend this award agreer

Withholding. The Participant agrees to remit to the Companyfargign, Federal, state and/or local taxes (inclgdhe Participan$
FICA obligation) required by law to be withheld tvitespect to the issuance of Shares or the vesstidfpr distribution of the
Participant’s Share Unit account. The Company cinheld Shares no longer restricted, or can witdHadm other cash or property
payable to the Participant, in the amount needeatisfy any withholding obligation

The Participant may elect to tender to then@any previously acquired Shares to satisfy themmim tax withholding obligations.
The value of the Shares to be tendered is to bedbas the Fair Market Value of the Shares on the et the amount of tax to be
withheld is determinec

Securities Compliance The Company may place a legend or legends upocettiéicates for Shares issued under the Plan aad m
issue “stop transfer” instructions to its transigent in respect of such Shares as it determines t@cessary or appropriate to (a)
prevent a violation of, or to obtain an exemptiooni, the registration requirements of the Secwrifiet, applicable state securities
laws or other legal requirements, or (b) implentaatprovisions of the Plan or any agreement betwleeiCompany and the
Participant with respect to such Shal

SuccessorsAll obligations of the Company under this Agreemsimll be binding on any successor to the CompEmg terms of
this Agreement and the Plan shall be binding upwhiaure to the benefit of the Participants, hasgcutors, administrators or legal
representative:

Legal Compliance.The granting of this Award and the issuance of &hander this Agreement shall be subject to alliegige
laws, rules, and regulations and to such apprdyabny governmental agencies or national secugttebanges as may be requir

Governing Law; Arbitration. This Agreement and the rights and obligations hadeushall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the internal laws of the State &fdahsin.

Arbitration will be conducted per the provisionglire Restricted Stock Pla

This Agreement, and any documents expressly incatpd herein, contains all of the provisions agtile to the Restricted Stock Award. No
other statements, documents or practices may moaéive or alter such provisions unless expressyath in writing, signed by an
authorized officer of the Company and deliverethParticipant.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused thisrRes] Stock Agreement to be executed by onesaduly authorized officers, and
the Participant has consented to the terms ofAtgisement, as of the date of Grant specified orfrtive of this certificate.

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.

Jerome D. Okarma
Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel

[Name] Date



Exhibit 10.C

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.
COMPENSATION SUMMARY FOR NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS

Compensation for non-employee membeth@Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Johnson @ols, Inc. (the “Company”), effective
October 1, 2011, consists of the payment for the@amy’s fiscal year of:

(i) a retainer at the annual rate of $280 to each non-employee director in the formIdfG000 in cash and $130,000 in common
stock of the Company (the “Retainer”) and

(i) a Committee chair fee at the anmadé of $25,000 in cash to each non-employee emarsuccessor chair for the Audit, Corporate
Governance, Nominating and Compensation Commitiettse Board (the “Committee Chair Fee”).

Payment of Common Stock Portion of tletaiher. The Company will pay the common stock portionhaf Retainer on the date of the
annual shareholders meeting to each director theffice, subject to the following:

» If a director is retiring from the Board as oéttlate of such annual shareholders meeting, tleeditbctor will be entitled to receive
common stock with an aggregate value equal tohenumber of days that have elapsed from Octolétte fiscal year in question to the
date of the annual shareholders meeting divide@p$65, multiplied by $130,00(

* If a director is newly elected at the annual shafders meeting, or was appointed as a director after the October 1 of the fiscal year in
question, then the director will be entitled toaiwe common stock with an aggregate value equ@)tthe number of days in the period
from the effective date of the director’s appointrner election to the Board through September 3befiscal year in question divided by
(y) 365, multiplied by $130,00(

If a director is newly appointed or ettto the Board after the annual shareholders ne#tithe fiscal year in question, then the
director will be entitled to receive upon the effee date of his or her appointment or election own stock with an aggregate value equal to
(x) the number of days in the period from the affecdate of the director’s appointment or electiorough September 30 of the fiscal year in
question divided by (y) 365, multiplied by $130,000

If a director retires from the Board eitlon October 1 or after October 1 of the fiscalnja question but prior to the annual
shareholders meeting in such fiscal year, therlitteetor will be entitled to receive upon the effee date of his or her date of retirement
common stock with an aggregate value of (x) the lmemof days that have elapsed from October 1 ofisical year in question to the date of
the director’s retirement divided by (y) 365, mplliied by $130,000.

Payment of the Cash Portion of the Refaand Committee Chair Fe&he Company will pay the cash portion of the Reaand the
Committee Chair Fee in the form of a quarterly paeptr($27,500 per quarter for the cash portion efRletainer and $6,250 per quarter for
Committee Chair Fee) in advance on the first bissirday of each quarter to each director then inenfff a director is either elected or
appointed to the Board or is appointed as a Coreeni{fthair (or successor to a Committee Chair) atiemsyduring the fiscal year after the
first business day of a quarter, then such direstthreceive upon the effective date of such etactbr appointment, for the quarter in which
such




election or appointment is effective, a proratedam of the cash portion of the Retainer and/or @agnmittee Chair Fee with such amour
be determined in the manner set forth below:

» Cash portion of RetaineiThe director shall receive a cash amount equ@l)tthe number of days from the effective dat¢hef
appointment or election to the first day of the trguxarter divided by (y) 90, multiplied by $27,5G0d

» Committee Chair FeeThe director shall receive a cash amount equ@)tthe number of days from the effective datéhef appointment
or election to the first day of the next quartasndied by (y) 90, multiplied by $6,25

The Company will not pay any fees foeattance at meetings of the Board or any committee.
All shares of stock to be issued to doesas contemplated above will be issued purdioathie 2003 Director Stock Plan.

Non-employee directors are permittedefedall or any part of their Retainer and Comneit@hair Fees under the Johnson Controls,
Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for Certain Diresto

The Company will also reimburse non-empidirectors for any expenses related to theuiceeon the Board.
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Exhibit 10.L

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.
2007 STOCK OPTION PLAN

(Adjusted to reflect 3-for-1 stock split effecti@@ptember 14, 2007)
1. Purpose and Effective Date.

(a) Purpose. The Johnson Controls, Inc. 2007 Stock Option Rsitwo complementary purposes: (i) to attractratalin outstanding
individuals to serve as officers and employees(éntb increase shareholder value. This Plan pidlvide participants incentives to increase
shareholder value by offering the opportunity tquace shares of the Company’s common stock, olivegaonetary payments based on the
value of such common stock, on the potentially falate terms that this Plan provides.

(b) Effective Date This Plan will become effective, and Awards maygoanted under this Plan, on and after Januar@@¥, (the
“Effective Date”), contingent on approval of theRlby the Company’s shareholders on such date. UoEffective Date, no new awards
may be granted under the Johnson Controls, In® S3d6ck Option Plan (the “2000 Stock Option Plan”).

2. Definitions. Capitalized terms used in this Plan have the fahgwneanings:

(a) “Administrator” means the Committee. Irddin, the Chief Executive Officer of the Compamngy act as the Administrator with
respect to Awards made (or to be made) to employbesare not Section 16 Participants or Sectior(rb§Participants at the time such
authority or responsibility is exercised.

(b) “Affiliate” means any entity that, diregtor through one or more intermediaries, is cotgtbby, controls, or is under common control
with the Company within the meaning of Code Se&iéh4(b) or (c)providedthat, in applying such provisions, the phrase éast 50
percent” shall be used in place of “at least 8@@et” each place it appears therein; and furtheviged that solely for purposes of Sections 2
(e), 2(m), 2(r), 9 and 14(b), the phrase “at |&&spercent” shall be used in place of “at leasp&@ent” each place it appears therein.

(c) “Award” means a grant of Options and/avckt Appreciation Rights.
(d) “Board” means the Board of Directors of Bompany.

(e) “Cause” means: (1) if the Participantubject to an employment agreement with the Compeairan Affiliate that contains a definition
of “cause”, such definition, or (2) otherwise, asfyithe following as determined by the Administrat@) violation of the provisions of any
employment agreement, non-competition agreemenfijdamtiality agreement, or similar agreement wite Company or an Affiliate, or the
Company’s or an Affiliate’s code of ethics, as tlerffect, (B) conduct rising to the level of gsasegligence or willful misconduct in the
course of employment with the Company or an AffdigC) commission of an act of dishonesty or gialty involving the Company or an
Affiliate, (D) violation of any federal, state avdal law in connection with the Participa€mployment, or (E) breach of any fiduciary duat
the Company or an Affiliate.




(f) “Change of Control” means the first to acof any one of the following events:

(i) The acquisition by any Person of benefioianership (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 prdgated under the Exchange Act) of
35% or more of either (A) the then-outstanding 8bgthe “Outstanding Company Common Stock”) ortfig)combined voting power of
the then-outstanding voting securities of the Comypentitled to vote generally in the election afedtors (the “Outstanding Company
Voting Securities”); provided, however, that thdwing acquisitions shall not constitute a Chaon§€ontrol: (1) any acquisition directly
from the Company, (2) any acquisition by the Conyp4B) any acquisition by any employee benefit glanrelated trust) sponsored or
maintained by the Company or any Affiliated Compéay defined below) or (4) any acquisition by aayporation pursuant to a
transaction that complies with Sections 2(f)(iii)(A- 2(f)(iii)(C);

(i) Any time at which individuals who, as tife date hereof, constitute the Board (the “IncumiB®ard”) cease for any reason to
constitute at least a majority of the Board; preddhowever, that any individual becoming a direstdbsequent to the date hereof whose
election, or nomination for election by the Comparshareholders, was approved by a vote of at keastjority of the directors then
comprising the Incumbent Board shall be considesethough such individual were a member of theririment Board, but excluding, for
this purpose, any such individual whose initialuasption of office occurs as a result of an actuaheceatened election contest with respect
to the election or removal of directors or othauator threatened solicitation of proxies or carisédoy or on behalf of a Person other than
the Board;

(iif) Consummation of a reorganization, merggatutory share exchange or consolidation orlaimbrporate transaction involving the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a sale or adisgosition of all or substantially all of the atsof the Company, or the acquisition of
assets or stock of another entity by the Comparangrof its subsidiaries (each, a “Business Contliing), in each case unless, following
such Business Combination, (A) all or substantiallyof the individuals and entities that were Heneficial owners of the Outstanding
Company Common Stock and the Outstanding Compatindy8ecurities immediately prior to such Busin€ssnbination beneficially
own, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of theh-outstanding shares of common stock and the io@alvoting power of the then-
outstanding voting securities entitled to vote galtgin the election of directors, as the case in@yof the corporation resulting from such
Business Combination (including, without limitatiancorporation that, as a result of such transactiwns the Company or all or
substantially all of the Company’s assets eithexadly or through one or more subsidiaries) in saftgally the same proportions as their
ownership immediately prior to such Business Comtiim of the Outstanding Company Common Stock hadXutstanding Company
Voting Securities, as the case may be, (B) no PRefacluding any corporation resulting from suctsiBess Combination or any employ
benefit plan (or related trust) of the CompanyawiAffiliated Company or such corporation resultfrgm such Business Combination)
beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, 35% orone of, respectively, the then-outstanding shafe®mmon stock of the corporation
resulting from such Business Combination or the lmioed voting power of the then-outstanding votiegwsities of such corporation,
except to the extent that such ownership existext fir the Business Combination, and (C) at leasbgority of the members of the board
of directors of the corporation resulting from siBisiness Combination were members of the IncumBeatd at the time of the execut
of the




initial agreement or of the action of the Boardyiling for such Business Combination; or
(iv) Approval by the shareholders of the Compaf a complete liquidation or dissolution of tBempany.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, for purps®f an Award that provides for the payment oédeid compensation that is subject to Code
Section 409A, if a Change of Control triggers tlagment of compensation under such Award, then éfiaiion of Change of Control herein
shall be deemed amended to conform to the requitesnaé Code Section 409A and the Administrator ipayvide such an alternate definiti
of a Change of Control in the Award agreement goingrsuch Award.

(9) “Code”means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as ameAdgdeference to a specific provision of the Caut#udes any succes:
provision and the regulations promulgated undeh guwovision.

(h) “Committee” means the Compensation Conawitif the Board (or a successor committee wittsémee or similar authority).
(i) “Company” means Johnson Controls, Inddigconsin corporation, or any successor thereto.

() “Disability” means the inability to engageany substantial gainful activity by reason oy anedically determinable physical or mental
impairment that can be expected to result in deattan be expected to last for a continuous pexiad least twelve (12) months, as
determined by the Administrator. The Administratway request such evidence of disability as it reably determines.

(k) “Exchange Act” means the Securities Exgj@aAct of 1934, as amended. Any reference to aifsppcovision of the Exchange Act
includes any successor provision and the regulatmad rules promulgated under such provision.

() “Fair Market Value” means, per Share gmaaticular date, the closing sales price on sut¢h da the New York Stock Exchange, or if
no sales of Stock occur on the date in questionherast preceding date on which there was asaguch market. If the Shares are not listed
on the New York Stock Exchange, but are traded oatisnal securities exchange or in an over-thextmyumarket, the closing sales price (or
if there is no closing sales price reported, therage of the closing bid and asked prices) foiSthares on the particular date, or on the last
preceding date on which there was a sale of Slwardisat exchange or market, will be used. If thar8b are neither listed on a national
securities exchange nor traded in an over-the-evumarket, the price determined by the Administidtoits discretion, will be used.
However, in connection with an exercise of Optidnghe extent the Participant sells any Sharesissdjupon such exercise in a market
transaction on the date of exercise, the sale (gdi¢er any such Shares shall be the Fair Markét&/for such Shares.

(m) “Inimical Conduct” means any act or omigsthat is inimical to the best of interests of @@mpany or any Affiliate, as determined by
the Administrator in its sole discretion, includibgt not limited to: (i) violation of any employmigmoncompete, confidentiality or other
agreement in effect with the Company or any Afféig(ii) taking any steps or doing anything whicbuld damage or negatively reflect on
reputation of the




Company or an Affiliate, or (iii) failure to complyith applicable laws relating to trade secretsficiential information or unfair competition.
(n) “Option” means the right to purchase Shaxea stated price for a specified period of time.
(o) “Participant” means an individual seleclsdthe Administrator to receive an Award.
(p) “Person” has the meaning given in Sec8(a)(9) of the Exchange Act, as modified and use8idctions 13(d) and 14(d) thereof.
(q) “Plan” means this Johnson Controls, Ifi02 Stock Option Plan, as may be amended fromtintiene.

(r) “Retirement” means, unless otherwise sghfin an Award agreement, termination of emploghfeom the Company and its Affiliates
(for other than Cause) on a date the Participathieis eligible to receive immediate early or normedlrement benefits under the provisions of
any of the Company’s or its Affiliate’s defined ket pension plans, or if the Participant is noteed under any such plan, on or after
attainment of age fifty-five (55) and completionteh (10) years of continuous service with the Canypand its Affiliates or on or after
attainment of age sixty-five (65) and completiorfieé (5) years of continuous service with the Campand its Affiliates.

(s) “Rule 16b-3” means Rule 16b-3 as promdddty the United States Securities and Exchangenission under the Exchange Act.
(t) “Section 16 Participants” means Particiganho are subject to the provisions of Sectiowflfhe Exchange Act at the time in question.

(u) “Section 162(m) Participants” means thée€Executive Officer of the Company (or personragin such capacity) and the four
highest compensated officers (other than the (wetutive Officer).

(v) “Share” means a share of Stock.
(w) “Stock” means the Common Stock of the Camp par value of $0.01-7/18 per share.

(x) “Stock Appreciation Right” or “SARMeans the right to receive a payment equal topthbesgiation of the Fair Market Value of a St
during a specified period of time.

(y) “Subsidiary” means any corporation, lintitiégability company or other limited liability eryiin an unbroken chain of entities beginning
with the Company if each of the entities (othemtktze last entity in the chain) owns the stockaquity interest possessing more than fifty
percent (50%) of the total combined voting powealbtlasses of stock or other equity interestsria of the other entities in the chain.
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3. Administration.

(a) Administration. The Administrator shall administer this Planatidition to the authority specifically granted @ tAdministrator in
this Plan, the Administrator has full discretionarthority to administer this Plan and all Awards]uding but not limited to the authority to:
(i) interpret the provisions of this Plan, (ii) pogibe, amend and rescind rules and regulatioasimglto this Plan, (iii) correct any defect,
supply any omission, or reconcile any inconsistana@ny Award or agreement covering an Award inrttenner and to the extent it deems
desirable to carry this Plan into effect and (i\gkm all other determinations necessary or advidablihe administration of this Plan. All
determinations of the Administrator are final anading.

(b) Delegation to Other Committees or OfficefBo the extent applicable law permits, the Boaay mielegate to another committee of the
Board, or the Committee may delegate to one or moffieers of the Company, any or all of the authoand responsibility of the Committee.
However, no such delegation is permitted with respe Awards made to Section 16 Participants oti&ed 62(m) Participants at the time
any such delegated authority or responsibilityxisreised. The Board also may delegate to anothranttee of the Board consisting entirely
of Non-Employee Directors any or all of the authpdand responsibility of the Committee with respiecindividuals who are Section 16
Participants or Section 162(m) Participants. IfBoard or the Committee has made such a delegaltien,all references to the Committee in
this Plan include such other committee or one arenadficers to the extent of such delegation.

(c) Indemnification. The Company will indemnify and hold harmless eanxg@mber of the Committee, the Chief Executive @ffiof the
Company, and each officer or member of any otheritee to whom a delegation under Section 3(b)bess$ made, as to any act done, or
determination made, with respect to this Plan grAamard to the maximum extent that the law and@oenpany’s articles of incorporation
and by-laws permit.

4. Eligibility. The Administrator (to the extent of its authorityay designate any of the following as a Particifeorh time to time: any
officer or other employee of the Company or itsilfdfes, or an individual that the Company or affiliste has engaged to become an officer
or employee. The Administratardesignation of a Participant in any year will refjuire the Administrator to designate such peteaeceive
an Award in any other year. No individual shall @any right to be granted an Award, even if an Alwaas granted to such individual at any
prior time, or if a similarly-situated individuad or was granted an Award under similar circumstanc

5. Types of Awards.Subject to the terms of this Plan, the Administratay grant any type of Award to any Participarseikects, but onl
employees of the Company or a Subsidiary may reagiignts of incentive stock options within the megrof Code Section 422. Awards
may be granted alone or in addition to, in tanddth,wer in substitution for any other Award (or aother award granted under another plan
of the Company or any Affiliate).

6. Shares Reserved under this Plan.

(a) Plan Reserve Subject to adjustment as provided in Sectiorah3ggregate of 36,965,289 Shares, plus the Sthesesbed in
subsection (c), are reserved for issuance undePtan. Notwithstanding the foregoing, subjectdustment as provided in Section 13, the
Company may issue only 36,965,289 Shares undePtaisupon the exercise of incentive stock options.
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(b) Depletion and Replenishment of Share Resefle aggregate number of Shares reserved undgoisé¢a) shall be depleted by the
number of Shares with respect to which an Awagtasted. If, however, an Award lapses, expirespitgates or is cancelled without the
issuance of Shares under the Award, or if Shaeefoaieited under an Award, or if Shares are isauadkr any Award and the Company
subsequently reacquires them pursuant to righ&sved upon the issuance of the Shares, or if an iSARttled in cash, then such Shares may
again be used for new Awards under this Plan uBdetion 6(a), but such Shares may not be issuetignirto incentive stock options.

(c) Addition of Shares from Predecessor Plahany Shares subject to awards granted unde2@b8 Stock Option Plan would again
become available for new grants under the ternssicii plan (and are in fact not used for new grantier such plan prior to the Effective
Date), then those Shares will be available forphigose of granting Awards under this Plan, theiabgeasing the number of Shares
available for issuance under this Plan as detemnimeler the first sentence of Section 6(a). Anyhsbigares will not be available for future
awards under the 2000 Stock Option Plan after ffective Date.

(d) Participant Limitations Subject to adjustment as provided in Sectiomb3articipant may receive Options for, and/or Etoc
Appreciation Rights with respect to, more than 6,000 Shares during any two consecutive calendasyé the initial calendar year that
this Plan is in effect, any Options or SARs grartted Participant under the 2000 Option Plan ihstadendar year shall be counted towards
this limit. In all cases, determinations under tBéction 6(d) should be made in a manner thatrisistent with the exemption for
performance-based compensation that Code Sect@(m).rovides.

7. Options. Subject to the terms of this Plan, the Administraidl determine all terms and conditions of eaghtion, including but not
limited to: (a) the grant date, which may not bg day prior to the date the Administrator approtresgrant; (b) the number of Shares subject
to the Option; (c) the exercise price, which maybmless than the Fair Market Value of the Shaubgect to the Option as determined on the
date of grant; (d) the terms and conditions of eset and (e) the term, except that an Option neustinate no later than ten (10) years after
the date of grant. In all other respects, the tasfrasy incentive stock option should comply witie fprovisions of Code Section 422 except to
the extent the Administrator determines otherwise.

8. Stock Appreciation Rights.Subject to the terms of this Plan, the Administratdl determine all terms and conditions of eadkR$
including but not limited to: (a) whether the SARgranted independently of an Option or relatent@ption; (b) the number of Shares to
which the SAR relates; (c) the grant date, whicly mat be any day prior to the date the Administrafaproves the grant; (d) the grant price,
provided that the grant price shall not be lesa tha Fair Market Value of the Shares subject #0SAR as determined on the date of grant;
(e) the terms and conditions of exercise or matufi} the term, provided that an SAR must terménad later than ten (10) years after the
of grant; and (g) whether the SAR will be settleatash, Shares or a combination thereof. If an &AdRanted in relation to an Option, then
unless otherwise determined by the Administratoe,3AR shall be exercisable or shall mature asémee time or times, on the same
conditions and to the extent and in the proportibat the related Option is exercisable and magxeecised or mature for all or part of the
Shares subject to the related Option. Upon exedfis@ SAR in respect of any number of Sharesntiraber of Shares subject to the related
Option shall be reduced by the same amount and@ptbn may not be exercised with respect to thatlmer of Shares. The

6




exercise of any number of Options that relate t&AR shall likewise result in an equivalent redoistin the number of Shares covered by the
related SAR.

9. Termination of Awards.

(a) Termination of EmploymentUnless otherwise provided by the Administratorthe event of the Participant’s termination of
employment or service from the Company and itsliatiés:

(i) As a result of death, the Participatward shall be exercisable immediately to theekit would have been exercisable had the
Participant remained in service for twelve (12) thsrafter the date of death, and may be exercistldlue earlier of the first (1st)
anniversary of the date of the Participant’s deattihe last day of the term of the Award.

(ii) As a result of Retirement, the Papant’'s Award shall be exercisable immediatelfuih ( providedthat an Award made to a
Participant who Retires prior to the end of thetffull calendar year following the completion bétfiscal year in which such Award was
granted shall be exercisable only to the extentoisable as of the date of Retirement and withegard to Retirement), and may be
exercised until the earlier of the third (3rd) aremsary of the date of Retirement or the last dah@term of the Award; provided that if
the Participant is an officer of the Company attthre of Retirement, the Award may be exercisedHerremainder of its full term;

(i) As a result of Disability, the Panipant’s Award shall be exercisable immediately in fuidanay be exercised until the earlie
the third (3rd) anniversary of the date of termimaor the last day of the term of the Awapdpvidedthat if the Participant is an officer of
the Company at the time of Disability, the Awardyniiee exercised until the earlier of the fifth (5#mniversary of the date of termination
or the date the Award expires;

(iv) For any other reason not describeave (other than Cause, which is governed by stibse@®)), the Participant’s Award may
be exercisable (to the extent exercisable as afdlte of such termination) until the earlier ofty(30) days from the date of terminatior
the date the Award expires.

For purposes of this subsection (a) and Sexfiloand 8, the termination of an Award shall o@tithe close of business at the Company’s
headquarters on the date in question, or if the mlaguestion is a Saturday, Sunday or holidaytheimmediately preceding business day.

(b) For Cause or Inimical ConductUnless otherwise provided by the Administratatwithstanding any provisions of this Plan or an
Award agreement to the contrary, a Participant’safdshall be immediately cancelled and forfeitedardless of vesting, and any pending
exercises shall be cancelled, on the date thahdilCompany or an Affiliate terminates the Papticit's employment for Cause, (i) the
Administrator determines that the Participant’s Eyment could have been terminated for Cause ifXbmpany or Affiliate had all relevant
facts in its possession as of the date of the ddaaitit’'s termination, or (iii) the Administrator tdemines the Participant has engaged in
Inimical Conduct. The Administrator may suspendeakrcises or delivery of cash or Shares (withialgility for interest thereon)
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pending its determination of whether the Partictgeas been or should have been terminated for Gausas engaged in Inimical Conduct.

10. Transferability. Awards are not transferable other than by willler kaws of descent and distribution, unless antigextent the
Administrator allows a Participant to: (a) designi writing a beneficiary to exercise the Awartkathe Participant’ death; or (b) transfer
Award.

11. Termination and Amendment of Plan; Amendment, Mdification or Cancellation of Awards.

(a) Term of Plan Unless the Board earlier terminates this Plasyamt to Section 11(b), this Plan will terminatetios tenth (10th)
anniversary of the Effective Date.

(b) Termination and Amendmenthe Board or the Committee may amend, alter,enpdiscontinue or terminate this Plan at any time
subject to the following limitations:

(i) the Board must approve any amendroétiiis Plan to the extent the Company determineh spproval is required by: (A) acti
of the Board, (B) applicable corporate law or (@Y ather applicable law;

(ii) shareholders must approve any amedrof this Plan to the extent the Company detezgmsuch approval is required by:
(A) Section 16 of the Exchange Act, (B) the Cod®, the listing requirements of any principal setiesi exchange or market on which the
Shares are then traded or (D) any other applidabipand

(i) shareholders must approve any effibllowing Plan amendments: (A) an amendment ttenaly increase any number of
Shares specified in Section 6(a) or 6(d) (excepteasiitted by Section 13); or (B) an amendmentwwaild diminish the protections
afforded by Section 11(e).

Notwithstanding anything in the Ptarthe contrary, the Board reserves the rightterad the provisions of Section 13(c) prior to
effective date of a Change of Control without tleedhto obtain the consent of a Participant or dhgrdandividual with an interest in an
Award.

(c) Amendment, Modification or Cancellation of Award&ubject to the requirements of this Plan inclgdiection 11(e), the
Administrator may modify, amend or cancel any Awandwaive any restrictions or conditions applieatl any Award or the exercise of the
Award, providedthat any modification or amendment that materidiipinishes the rights of the Participant, or theaadlation of the Award,
shall be effective only if agreed to by the Papigeit, but the Administrator need not obtain Pgrtint consent for the modification, adjustrr
or cancellation of an Award pursuant to the prarisiof Section 13 or the modification of an Awardtie extent deemed necessary in the
judgment of the Administrator to comply with anypéipable law or the listing requirements of anyngipal securities exchange or market
which the Shares are then traded or to presenagrdble accounting treatment of any Award for thenpany. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
unless determined otherwise by the Administratoy, such amendment shall be made in a manner tianaible an Award intended to be
exempt from Code Section 409A to continue to bexampt, or to enable an Award intended to compth @iode Section 409A to continue
to so comply.




(d) Survival of Authority and AwardsNotwithstanding the foregoing, the authority lo¢ Board and the Administrator under this
Section 11 and to otherwise administer this Pldhextend beyond the date of this Platérmination. In addition, termination of this Plaill
not affect the rights of Participants with respecAwards previously granted to them, and all uiexpAwards will continue in force and
effect after termination of this Plan except ag/timay be terminated by their own terms and conalitior the terms and conditions of this F
prior to its termination.

(e) Repricing Prohibited Notwithstanding anything in this Plan to the ¢ant, and except for the adjustments provided ictiSe 13,
neither the Administrator nor any other person megrease the exercise price for any outstandingp@pt SAR after the date of grant nor
allow a Participant to surrender an outstandingddpir SAR to the Company as consideration forgtaant of a new Option or SAR with a
lower exercise price.

(f) Foreign Participation. To assure the viability of Awards granted to Rgrants employed in foreign countries, the Adntiritor may
provide for such special terms as it may consi@éeensary or appropriate to accommodate differendesal law, tax policy or custom.
Moreover, the Administrator may approve such supplats to, or amendments, restatements or alteenagirsions of, this Plan as it
determines is necessary or appropriate for sughgges. Any such amendment, restatement or alteenaisions that the Administrator
approves for purposes of using this Plan in a ereountry will not affect the terms of this Plam &iny other country. In addition, all such
supplements, amendments, restatements or alteznagigions must comply with the provisions of Smtti1(b)(ii) or (iii).

(g) Code Section 409AThe provisions of Code Section 409A are incorfeatédnerein by reference to the extent necessamgnipAward
that is subject to Code Section 409A to complyength.

12. Taxes.

(a) Withholding. The Company is entitled to withhold the amounamy tax attributable to any amount payable or &hdeliverable und
this Plan, and the Company may defer making paymedelivery if any such tax may be pending unkass until indemnified to its
satisfaction. If Shares are deliverable upon egeror payment of an Award, the Administrator magnpeor require a Participant to satisfy
or a portion of the federal, state and local witdhmg tax obligations arising in connection withchuAward by electing to (a) have the
Company withhold Shares otherwise issuable undeAthard, (b) tender back Shares received in coforeatith such Award or (c) deliver
other previously owned Shares, in each case havirajr Market Value equal to the amount to be vétihHowever, to the extent that the
limitation in this sentence must apply for the Camypto avoid an accounting charge, the amount twittdneld may not exceed the total
minimum federal, state and local tax withholdindigditions associated with the transaction. If thdmAnistrator permits an election, the
election must be made on or before the date adhimhvthe amount of tax to be withheld is determinad otherwise as the Administrator
requires.

(b) No Guarantee of Tax Treatmeriflotwithstanding any provisions of this Plan, @@mpany does not guarantee to any Participant or
any other Person with an interest in an Award émgt Award intended to be exempt from Code Sect@@shall be so exempt, nor that any
Award intended to comply with Code Section 409Allsb@ comply, nor will the Company or any Affiliatedemnify, defend or hold harmle
any individual with respect to the tax consequendesy such failure.
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13. Adjustment Provisions; Change of Control.

(a) Adjustment of Sharedf (i) the Company shall at any time be involvadh merger or other transaction in which the Share changed
or exchanged, (ii) the Company shall subdivideanbine its Shares or the Company shall declargidedid payable in Shares, other
securities, or other property; (iii) the Companglskffect a cash dividend the amount of which edseten percent (10%) of the Fair Market
Value at the time the dividend is declared, or@eenpany shall effect any other dividend or othstriiution on the Shares in the form of
cash, or a repurchase of Shares, that the Boagdndiees by resolution is special or extraordinarpature or that is in connection with a
transaction that the Company characterizes puldislg recapitalization or reorganization involvihg Shares, or (iv) any other event shall
occur, which, in the case of this clause (iv),iia judgment of the Committee necessitates an aiuntto prevent dilution or enlargement of
the benefits or potential benefits intended to laelenavailable under this Plan, then the Board oni@ittee shall, in such manner as it deems
equitable, adjust any or all of: (i) the number &k of Shares subject to this Plan (includingrthmber and type of Shares described in
Sections 6(a), 6(c) and 6(d)) and which may afteravent be made the subject of Awards under this i) the number and type of Shares
subject to outstanding Awards, and (iii) the exszair grant price with respect to any Award. Withouitation, in the event of any
reorganization, merger, consolidation, combinationther similar corporate transaction or eventetiibr or not constituting a Change of
Control (other than any such transaction in whih@ompany is the continuing corporation and inclvlihe outstanding Stock is not being
converted into or exchanged for different secwsijt@ash or other property, or any combination bi@réhe Committee may substitute, on an
equitable basis as the Committee determines, fdr 8hare then subject to an Award and the Shabgscsuo this Plan (if the Plan will
continue in effect), the number and kind of shafestock, other securities, cash or other propertyhich holders of Stock are or will be
entitled in respect of each Share pursuant torémesaction.

Unless the Administrator determines otlig®, any such adjustment to an Award that is exdropm Code Section 409A shall be made
in manner that permits the Award to continue teb@xempt, and any adjustment to an Award thatbgest to Code Section 409A shall be
made in a manner that complies with the provistbeseof. Further, the number of Shares subjechyofavard payable or denominated in
Shares must always be a whole number. Notwithstgritlie foregoing, in the case of a stock dividesttidr than a stock dividend declared in
lieu of an ordinary cash dividend) or subdivisiorcombination of the Shares (including a reverselssplit), if no action is taken by the
Board or Committee, adjustments contemplated Isyshbsection that are proportionate shall neversedutomatically be made as of the
of such stock dividend or subdivision or combinatad the Shares.

(b) Issuance or AssumptiorNotwithstanding any other provision of this Pland without affecting the number of Shares othsewi
reserved or available under this Plan, in connectith any merger, consolidation, acquisition adgerty or stock, or reorganization, the
Administrator may authorize the issuance of Awandder this Plan or the assumption of awards issméér other plans upon such terms and
conditions as it may deem appropriate, subjedtédisting requirements of any principal securiggshange or market on which the Shares
are then traded.

(c) Change of Control If the Participant has in effect an employmeatention, change of control, severance or simigae@ment with th
Company or any Affiliate that discusses the eftda Change of Control on the vesting of a Pardintfs Awards, then such
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agreement shall control the vesting of such Awarisn the occurrence of a Change of Control. lothiér cases, unless provided otherwis
an Award agreement, upon a Change of Control, @hiis then held by Participants who are employethbyCompany or an Affiliate shall
be exercisable in full. In addition, upon a Chang€ontrol, the Committee may, in its discretioancel each outstanding Award effective on
the date of the Change of Control in exchange frash payment to the holder thereof in an amouwndleq the number of Options or Stock
Appreciation Rights that have not been exerciseltiptiad by the excess of the fair market value $bare on the date of the Change of
Control (as determined by the Committee) over tterase price of the Option or the grant pricenaf Stock Appreciation Right, as the case
may be.

Except as otherwise expressly provideaniy agreement between a Participant and the Conmgraan Affiliate, if the receipt of any
payment by a Participant under the circumstancssrifed above would result in the payment by thei¢h@ant of any excise tax provided
in Section 280G and Section 4999 of the Code, themmount of such payment shall be reduced textent required to prevent the
imposition of such excise tax.

14. Miscellaneous.

(a) Other Terms and ConditionsAny Award may also be subject to other provisiGmkether or not applicable to the Award granted to
any other Participant and whether determined atithe of grant or later) as the Administrator detigres appropriate, including, without
limitation, provisions for:

(i) the payment of the purchase price of Quiby delivery of cash or other Shares or otheursiges of the Company (including by
attestation) having a then Fair Market Value eqodhe purchase price of such Shares, or by dglifrecluding by fax) to the Company or
its designated agent of an executed irrevocabiempixercise form together with irrevocable instiarts to a broker-dealer to sell or
margin a sufficient portion of the Shares and dglihe sale or margin loan proceeds directly ta@bmpany to pay for the exercise price;

(ii) restrictions on resale or other dispasitbf Shares; and
(iif) compliance with federal or state sedestlaws and stock exchange requirements.

(b) Employment The issuance of an Award shall not confer up®auicipant any right with respect to continued wyment or service
with the Company or any Affiliate. Unless deterndr@herwise by the Administrator, for purposeshid Plan and all Awards, the following
rules shall apply:

(i) a Participant who transfers employmentaein the Company and its Affiliates, or betweeriliates, will not be considered to have
terminated employment;

(i) a Participant who ceases to be employethb Company or an Affiliate and immediately tredter becomes a non-employee
director of the Company or of an Affiliate, or ansoiltant to the Company or any Affiliate shall betconsidered to have terminated
employment until such Participant’s service asraafor of, or consultant to, the Company and itsliafes has ceased;

11




(i) a Participant employed by an Affiliateli\be considered to have terminated employmenit wie Company and its Affiliates when
such entity ceases to be an Affiliate.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, for purps®f an Award that is subject to Code Section 408& Participant’s termination of
employment triggers the payment of compensatioreusdch Award, then the Participant will be deertaeldave terminated employment
upon a “separation from service” within the mean@ode Section 409A.

(c) No Fractional SharesNo fractional Shares or other securities maysbaad or delivered pursuant to this Plan, and draifAistrator
may determine whether cash, other securities arqttoperty will be paid or transferred in lieuasfy fractional Shares or other securities, or
whether such fractional Shares or other secutiemy rights to fractional Shares or other semsriwvill be canceled, terminated or otherwise
eliminated.

(d) Offset. The Company shall have the right to offset, flmmy amount payable or stock deliverable hereuradsramount that the
Participant owes to the Company or any Affiliateheut the consent of the Participant or any indigidwvith a right to the Participant’s
Award.

(e) Unfunded Plan This Plan is unfunded and does not create, andldimot be construed to create, a trust or sepéuatl with respect
this Plan’s benefits. This Plan does not estalaishfiduciary relationship between the Company amg Participant or other person. To the
extent any person holds any rights by virtue oAarard granted under this Plan, such rights arereatgr than the rights of the Company’s
general unsecured creditors.

(f) Requirements of Law and Securities Exchanfge granting of Awards and the issuance of Sharesnnection with an Award are
subject to all applicable laws, rules and regufegiand to such approvals by any governmental ageocinational securities exchanges as
may be required. Notwithstanding any other provisidthis Plan or any Award agreement, the Comgeasyno liability to deliver any Shar
under this Plan or make any payment unless sudVedglor payment would comply with all applicabsens and the applicable requirements
of any securities exchange or similar entity, ankéss and until the Participant has taken all asti@quired by the Company in connection
therewith. The Company may impose such restrictmmany Shares issued under this Plan as the Cgongeermines necessary or desirable
to comply with all applicable laws, rules and regigdns or the requirements of any national seasrigéixchanges.

(g) Governing Law This Plan, and all Awards hereunder, and allrdgiteations made and actions taken pursuant tdlais, shall be
governed by the internal laws of the State of Whisdo (without reference to conflict of law prinaysl thereof) and construed in accordance
therewith, to the extent not otherwise governedhigylaws of the United States or as otherwise gexvhereinafter. Notwithstanding anyth
to the contrary herein, if any individual (otheaththe Company) brings a claim that relates tofitsnender this Plan, regardless of the basis
of the claim (including but not limited to wrongfdischarge or Title VII discrimination), such clashall be settled by final binding arbitrat
in accordance with the rules of the American Adiibn Association (“AAA”) and the following provishs, and judgment upon the award
rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in anytd@mving jurisdiction thereof.
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() Initiation of Action. Arbitration must be initiated by serving or magia written notice of the complaint to the othartp.
Normally, such written notice should be providedtte other party within one year (365 days) afterday the complaining party first
knew or should have known of the events giving tisthe complaint. However, this time frame mayek&nded if the applicable statute
limitation provides for a longer period of time tife complaint is not properly submitted within gqgpropriate time frame, all rights and
claims that the complaining party has or may haagrest the other party shall be waived and voidy Aatice sent to the Company shall
delivered to:

Office of General Counsel
Johnson Controls, Inc.

5757 North Green Bay Avenue
P.O. Box 591

Milwaukee, WI 53201-0591

The notice must identify and describe the naturallafomplaints asserted and the facts upon which somplaints are based. Notice will be
deemed given according to the date of any postimatike date of time of any personal delivery.

(i) Compliance with Personnel Policie8efore proceeding to arbitration on a complaimt, claimant must initiate and participate in
any complaint resolution procedure identified ia trersonnel policies of the Company or an Affiljas applicable. If the claimant has not
initiated the complaint resolution procedure befaitating arbitration on a complaint, the iniiia of the arbitration shall be deemed to
begin the complaint resolution procedure. No aahiitn hearing shall be held on a complaint untjf aemplaint resolution procedure of
Company or an Affiliate, as applicable, has beanmeted.

(iif) Rules of Arbitration All arbitration will be conducted by a single @rator according to the Employment Dispute Arldiva
Rules of the AAA. The arbitrator will have authgrtb award any remedy or relief that a court of petent jurisdiction could order or
grant including, without limitation, specific perfnance of any obligation created under the awagbticy, the awarding of punitive
damages, the issuance of any injunction, costatinchey’s fees to the extent permitted by lawtherimposition of sanctions for abuse of
the arbitration process. The arbitrator’'s awardtrbesrendered in a writing that sets forth the etakfindings and conclusions on which
the arbitrator’'s award is based.

(iv)Representation and Cost&ach party may be represented in the arbitrdtjoan attorney or other representative selecteithidy
party. The Company or Affiliate shall be responsifar its own costs, the AAA filing fee and all ettfees, costs and expenses of the
arbitrator and AAA for administering the arbitratioThe claimant shall be responsible for his atgior representative’s fees, if any.
However, if any party prevails on a statutory claumich allows the prevailing party costs and/oomateys’ fees, the arbitrator may award
costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees as provideddiy statute.

(v)Discovery; Location; Rules of EvidencBiscovery will be allowed to the same extent edféal under the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure. Arbitration will be held at a locatialexted by the Company. AAA rules notwithstandiimg, admissibility of

13




evidence offered at the arbitration shall be deteedhby the arbitrator who shall be the judge &hiiateriality and relevance. Legal rule:
evidence will not be controlling, and the standardadmissibility of evidence will generally be wher it is the type of information that
responsible people rely upon in making importamisiens.

(vi)Confidentiality. The existence, content or results of any arlinatay not be disclosed by a party or arbitratitheut the prior
written consent of both parties. Withesses whaatea party to the arbitration shall be excludedriithe hearing except to testify.

(h) Construction. Whenever any words are used herein in the masguliey shall be construed as though they wer inghe feminine
in all cases where they would so apply; and wheramg words are used in the singular or pluraly thteall be construed as though they were
used in the plural or singular, as the case majnka| cases where they would so apply. Titleafteons are for general information only, and
this Plan is not to be construed with referencsuith titles.

(i) Severability. If any provision of this Plan or any Award agreamor any Award (i) is or becomes or is deemduoktinvalid, illegal or
unenforceable in any jurisdiction, or as to anysparor Award, or (ii) would disqualify this PlamyaAward agreement or any Award under
any law the Administrator deems applicable, theshqurovision should be construed or deemed ametadeahform to applicable laws, or if
it cannot be so construed or deemed amended wijtimotlite determination of the Administrator, maadlyi altering the intent of this Plan,
Award agreement or Award, then such provision shbwel stricken as to such jurisdiction, person oafdyand the remainder of this Plan,
such Award agreement and such Award will remaifulinforce and effect.
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Exhibit 10.v

Johnson )))I(

Controls
JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.
OPTION OR STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHT AWARD
Name: XXXXXXXXXXXXXX Number of Options: ###
Grant Date: XxX/XX/XXXX Expiration Date: XX/XX/XXXX
Exercisable Date:xx/Xx/Xxxx — #t## Exercise Price Per Share: &x.xx

Exercisable Date:xx/XxX/XXxx — ###

Grant — Terms for Nonqualified Stock Options and Stock Appeciation Rights

Johnson Controls, Inc., has adopted the 2007 Siption Plan to permit awards of stock options ocktappreciation rights to be made to
certain key employees of the Company or any Atliarhe Company desires the employee to remaimpla@yment with the Company or an
Affiliate by providing the Participant with a meatwsacquire or to increase his/her proprietaryrggein the Company’s success.

Definitions . Capitalized terms used in this Agreement havddhewing meanings:
(&) “Award” means a grant of Options and/or Stock Apprecidfimnts.
(b) “Compan” means Johnson Controls, Inc., a Wisconsin cororatir any successor there

(c) “Fair Market Value” means, per Share on a particdkte, the closing sales price on such date oNéve York Stock Exchange, or if no
sales of Stock occur on the date in question, erast preceding date on which there was a sateicim market

(d) “Grant Dat” is the date the Award was made to the Particiy

(e) “NSC” is an Award of a Nonqualified Stock Optic

(H “Optior” means the right to purchase Shares at a statesifpria specified period of tim

(g) “Participan” means an individual selected to receive an Aw

(h) “Plar” means the Johnson Controls, Inc. 2007 Stock Ojtian, as may be amended from time to ti

() “Retiremer” [[has the meaning given in the Plan][means the atiaih of age x [and completion of x years of sefjic

() “SAR” is an Award of Stock Appreciation Rights whiwill be settled in cash. The Participant willeae the economic equivalent of the
value between the Exercise Price and the Fair Mafakie on exercise dat

(k) “Stock” means the Common Stock of the Company, par val$®.6f1257 per shar
() “Tax Dat¢’ means the date income is recognized pursuant texiéreise of the Option or SAI
Other capitalized terms used in this Agreement lthgeneaning given in the Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises afithe covenants and agreements herein set fodtparties hereby mutua
covenant and agree as follows:

1. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Rdasgpy of which has been made available to theciant and made a part hereof, and this
Agreement, the Company grants to the Participaitvaard of Nonqualified Stock Options or an AwardSibck Appreciation Rights, as
specified in the Participant Award letter delivetedhe Participant by email from the Chief ExeeetOfficer of the Company.

2. The purchase price payable upon exercise di§@ Options or used to determine the value of th@sSshall be the Exercise Price per
share indicated in the Participant Award lettehjsct to adjustment as described in the termsefian.

3. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Rlahthis Agreement, the Award may be exercisedhbyParticipant while in the employ of
the Company or any Subsidiary, in whole or in jjaihcrements of not less
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than 50 shares, from time to time, to the exteatAtvard is vested and prior to the expiration datee vesting schedule of the Award is as
follows:

(a) Fifty Percent (50%) of the Award shall vest on tlve-year anniversary date of the Grant Di
(b) Fifty Percent (50%) of the Award shall vest on thiee-year anniversary date of the Grant Di
The Award shall expire ten years from the Gate.

4. The Award may only be exercised through the Camg{s Option/SAR execution service provider.

5. (a) It shall be a condition of the obligationtiké Company to issue or transfer shares of Stpok exercise of the NSO, that the Participant
pay to the Company upon its demand, such amoumigsbe requested by the Company for the purposatisfying its liability to withhold
federal, state or local income or other taxes iremiby reason of the exercise of the NSO. If thewamrequested is not paid, the Company
may refuse to issue or transfer shares of Stock egercise of the NSO.

(b) The Participant shall be permitted tosatthe Company’s withholding tax requirements Bceng (the “Election”) to have the
Company withhold shares of Stock otherwise issuttbtee Participant or to deliver to the Compangrseb of Stock having a Fair Market
Value on the Tax Date equal to the minimum amoequired to be withheld by the Participant. If thember of shares of Stock determined
pursuant to the preceding sentence shall includectional share, the number of shares withheldedivered shall be reduced to the next
lower whole number and the Participant shall delteehe Company cash in lieu of such fractionarshor otherwise make arrangements
satisfactory to the Company for payment of suchwamarhe Election shall be irrevocable, and shalsbbject to disapproval, in whole or in
part, by the Administrator. The Election shall bada in writing and shall be made according to sutds and regulations and in such form as
the Administrator shall determine.

(c) In the case of the exercise of an SAR{teminotice must be provided to the Option/SAR exiea service provider, and shall include
the Participant’s local payroll contact for the poge of processing the payment which will includs$ying the Company’s liability to
withhold payroll taxes designated by local laws.

6. (a)Termination. In the event a Participant’s employment with thenpany or any of its Affiliates shall be terminafed any reason,
except Retirement, death or total and permaneability or Cause, a Participant may exercise hisasrAward (to the extent vested and
exercisable as of the date of the Participantitesition of employment) for a period of thirty (3ys after the date of the Participant’s
termination of employment, but not later than thea#d’s expiration date. Thereafter, all rights xeeise the Award shall terminate.

(b) Termination for Retirement. If the Participant ceases to be an employee o€thrapany or any Affiliate by reason of Retiremehg t
Award shall be exercisable in full without regaodainy vesting requirements; provided that the Avedrall be exercisable in full only if the
Participant retires on or after the last day ofdhkendar year following the calendar year in wrgabh Award was granted, unless the
Administrator determines otherwise. In such case Award may be exercised by the Participant attiamg within thirtysix (36) months aft:
the date of Retirement, but not later than the Algaexpiration date, or if the Participant is afiaar of the Company at the time of
Retirement, the Award may be exercised by the épatnt at any time through the Award’s expirati@ted

For certain participants who are officefshe Company or who are selected by the Compiems@ommittee of the Board, nonqualifi
stock options: (i) shall be exercisable in full gt regard to any vesting requirements; providhed &n Option of a Participant who retires
shall be exercisable in full only if the Participaetires on or after the last day of the fiscaryi® which such Option was granted, unless the
Committee determines otherwise, and (i) may beased for a period selected by the Compensatiani@ittee of either five (5) or ten
(10) years after Retirement, or for five (5) yeafter the date of such total and permanent disapils the case may be, and not thereatfter,
unless such Option expires earlier under the tefrtise award agreement.
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(c) Termination for Total and Permanent Disability. If the Participant ceases to be an employee o€tirapany or any Affiliate by
reason of total and permanent disability, if thetifigant is permanently and totally disabled (afirted in the Plan), the Award shall be
exercisable in full without regard to any vestieguirements, and may be exercised by the Particgiaany time within thirtysix (36) month
after the date of such termination, or if the R#tint is an officer of the Company at the timehef total and permanent disability, the Award
shall exercisable at any time within five (5) yeaft®r the date of such termination, but not l&tten the Award’s expiration date.

(d) Death. In the event of the Participant’s death while aglinemployed by the Company or any Affiliate, thevad shall be exercisable
immediately to the extent it would have been exatoie had the Participant remained in serviceartlelve (12) months after the date of
death, and may be exercised at an time until tsednniversary of the date of the Participantatdebut not later than the Award'’s expiration
date. The Award may be exercised by the persorhtmwthe Award is transferred by will or by applialaws of the descent and distribut
by giving notice, as provided in paragraph 4. ka évent of the death of a retired Participant Bagicipant on total and permanent disability,
the Award may be exercised by the person to whenOgption is transferred, by will or by applicaldevs of the descent and distribution, &
the Participant had remained living under paragsdb) or (c), as applicable.

(e) Termination for Cause (as defined in the Plan) shall cause the canaafiand forfeiture of any Award, regardless of vegtiand any
pending exercises shall be cancelled on that date.

7. If the Administrator determines that a Partiaipaas engaged in Inimical Conduct (as definedhénRlan) whether before or after
termination of employment, the Award shall be cdlederegardless of vesting; and any pending egescshall be cancelled on that date.

8. The Participant shall not be deemed for any @aep to be a stockholder of the Company with régpeany shares which may be acquired
hereunder except to the extent that the Optiorl Baak been exercised with respect thereto anestuirJohnson Controls common stock
issued therefor.

9. This Award shall not be transferable (withow fdministrator's consent) other than by will oe tlaws of descent and distribution or
pursuant to a “Qualified Domestic Relations Ordes"defined in Section 414(p) of the U.S. Internevé&hue Code.

Following transfer (if applicable), the AwasHall continue to be subject to the same termscanditions as were applicable immediately
prior to transfer, provided that the Award may kereised during the life of the Participant onlythe Participant or, if applicable, by the
alternate payee designated under a Qualified Daeniestations Order or the Participant’s permittethsferees.

10. The Participant agrees for himself/herself gnedParticipant’s heirs, legatees, and legal remtasives, with respect to all shares of Stock
acquired pursuant to the terms and conditionsisfAQreement (or any shares of Stock issued putgoanstock dividend or stock split
thereon or any securities issued in lieu theredh aubstitution or exchange therefor) that theiBigant and the Participant’s heirs, legatees,
and legal representatives will not sell or otheeadsspose of such shares except pursuant to astieéfeegistration statement under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (“Act”), or gxtde a transaction which, in the opinion of courfeethe Company, is exempt from
registration under the Act.

11. The existence of the Award herein granted stwlbffect in any way the right or power of then@any or its stockholders to make or
authorize any or all adjustments, recapitalizatioesrganizations, or other changes in the Comsargpital structure or its business, or any
merger or consolidation of the Company, or anydsse of bonds, debentures, preferred, or prioepeate stock ahead of or affecting the
Stock or the rights thereof, or dissolution or iaation of the Company, or any sale or transfealbbr any part of its assets or business, ol
other corporate act or proceeding, whether of dairoharacter or otherwise.

12. As a condition of the granting of the Awards tarticipant agrees for himself/herself and hisléxgal representatives, that any dispute or
disagreement which may arise under or as a rekaftgursuant to this Agreement shall be governethb internal laws of the State of
Wisconsin and settled by final binding arbitratinraccordance with the rules of the American Adiitrn Association and the provisions of
the Plan.
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13. Notwithstanding the provisions of paragrapt iz Agreement, in the event of a Change of CGuridf the Company (as defined in the
Plan), if the Participant has in effect an emplogimeetention, change of control, severance orlaimaigreement with the Company or any
Affiliate that discusses the effect of a Chang€ontrol on the vesting of such Participant's Awattien such agreement shall control the
vesting of this Award upon the occurrence of a @eaof Control. In all other cases, upon a Changearftrol, this Award, if the Participant
is then employed by the Company or an Affiliateglshe exercisable in full. Further, upon a Chaof€ontrol of the Company, the
Committee may, in its discretion, cancel this Awaffibctive on the date of the Change of Contraxnhange for a cash payment to the
Participant (or other holder thereof) in an amaeogual to the number of Options or SARs that hauéaen exercised multiplied by the
excess of the Fair Market Value per Share on tie afthe Change of Control over the Exercise Price

This Agreement, and any documents expressly incated herein, contain all of the provisions apileao the Award and no other
statements, documents or practices may modify, evaialter such provisions unless expressly sét forwriting, signed by an authorized
officer of the Company and delivered to the Pgrtai.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused thigéent to be executed by one of its duly authorididers as of the date of
Grant.

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.

Jerome D. Okarm
Vice President, Secretary and General Cou
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JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

EXHIBIT 12

The following table shows our ratio of earninggixed charges for the fiscal years ended Septerd®e2011 and 2010:

(Dollars in millions)

Net income attributable to Johnson Controls,

Provision for income taxe

Income attributable to noncontrolling intere

Income from equity affiliate

Distributed income of equity affiliate
Amortization ofpreviously capitalized intere
Fixed charges less capitalized intel

Earnings

Fixed charges

Interest incurred and amortization of debt expe
Estimated portion of interest in rent expe

Fixed charge:

Less: Interest capitalized during the per
Fixed charges less capitalized intel

Ratio of earnings to fixed charg

Year Ended Year Ended
September 30, 201 September 30, 201
$ 1,62¢ $ 1,491

37C 197

117 75

(29¢) (254)

194 21z

10 11

331 30z

$ 2,34¢ $ 2,03¢
$ 224 $ 19z
141 13C

$ 36t $ 32%
(39 (22)

$ 331 % 30z
6.4 6.3

For the purposes of computing this ratio, “earnirggmsist of net income attributable to Johnson @18, Inc. from continuing operations
before income taxes, income attributable to norabing interests and income from equity affiliatgss (a) amortization of previously

capitalized interest, (b) distributed income froquigy affiliates and (c) fixed charges, minus ietgrcapitalized during the period. “Fixed
charges” consist of (i) interest incurred and aimation of debt expense plus (ii) the portion aftrexpense representative of the interest

factor.



EXHIBIT 21

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.
Following is a list of significant subsidiaries thie Company, as defined by section 1.02(w) of Ratgr S-X, as of October 31, 2011.

Jurisdiction
Where
Subsidiary is
Name Incorporated
York International Corporatio Delaware

Johnson Controls Battery Group, |i Wisconsin



EXHIBIT 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢lee Registration Statements on Form S-3 anchFx8 listed below of Johnson
Controls, Inc. of our report dated November 22,2fHlating to the financial statements, financtatement schedule and the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, whichpagars in this Form 10-K

1. Registration Statement on Forr-8 (Registration No. 3:-173326)

Registration Statement on Forr-8 (Registration No. -30309)
Registration Statement on Forr-8 (Registration No. -31271)
Registration Statement on Forr-3 (Registration No. -64703)
Registration Statement on Forr-8 (Registration No. 3:-10707)
Registration Statement on Forr-3 (Registration No. 3:-13525)
Registration Statement on Forr-3 (Registration No. 3:-130714)
Registration Statement on Forr-8 (Registration No. 3:-66073)

© © N o g M D

Registration Statement on Forr-8 (Registration No. 3:-41564)

-
o

Registration Statement on Forr-3 (Registration No. 3:-59594)

=
=

. Registration Statement on Forr-8 (Registration No. 3:-117898)

=
N

. Registration Statement on Forr-3 (Registration No. 33-111192)
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Stephen A. Roell, Chairman and Chief Executi¥éo®r of Johnson Controls, Inc., certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Johnson Controls, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgittde a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets. under which such statements were made, nigamisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ aéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledetablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as defin
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))imtednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15«15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and pruaesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepa

b) Designed such internal control over finahm@gorting, or caused such internal control owearicial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramzgding the reliability of financial reporting attie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordanceggitlerally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and preséntais report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in #gistrant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorterhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and materialak@esses in the design or operation of internairabaver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpanhcial information; an

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, thatotwes management or other employees who have Hisag role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: November 22, 2011 /sl Stephen A. Roell
Stephen A. Roel
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS
I, R. Bruce McDonald, Executive Vice President &fdef Financial Officer of Johnson Controls, Ineertify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Johnson Controls, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgitsde a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets. under which such statements were made, nigamisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ aéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledetablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as defin
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))imtednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15«15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and pruaesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepa

b) Designed such internal control over finahm@gorting, or caused such internal control owearicial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramzgding the reliability of financial reporting attie preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordanceggitlerally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and preséntais report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in #gistrant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | leadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorterhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and materialak@esses in the design or operation of internairabaver financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidf’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpanhcial information; an

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, thatotwes management or other employees who have Hisag role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: November 22, 2011 /s/ R. Bruce McDonald
R. Bruce McDonald
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC FINANCIAL REPORTS

We, Stephen A. Roell, Chairman and Chief Execuiificer, and R. Bruce McDonald, Executive Vice Ridest and Chief Financial Officer,
of Johnson Controls, Inc., certify, pursuant tot®&c906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded September 30, 2011 (the “Periodic Repartijhich this statement is an exhibit
fully complies with the requirements of Sectiond)3g¢r 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1@3U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)) at

(2) information contained in the Periodic Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finarmaldition and results of operations
Johnson Controls, Ini

Dated: November 22, 2011

/sl Stephen A. Roell
Stephen A. Roel
Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer

/s/ R. Bruce McDonald

R. Bruce McDonald
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer




